
TAHOE REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY (TRPA) 
TAHOE METROPOLITAN PLANNING AGENCY 
(TMPO) AND TRPA COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on Wednesday, February 28, 2024, commencing no earlier 
than 10:45 a.m., on both Zoom and at the North Tahoe Events Center, 8318 N. Lake Blvd., Kings Beach, 
CA the Governing Board of the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency will conduct its regular business 
meeting. 

      Pursuant to TRPA Rules of Procedure, 2.16 Teleconference/Video Conference Meetings and   
Participation, Board members may appear in person or on Zoom. Members of the public may observe the 
meeting and submit comments in person at the above location or on Zoom. Details will be posted on the 
day of the meeting with a link to Zoom. 

    To participate in any TRPA Governing Board or Committee meetings please go to the Calendar 
on the https://www.trpa.gov/ homepage and select the link for the current meeting. Members of the 
public may also choose                        to listen to the meeting by dialing the phone number and access code posted on 
our website. For information                     on how to participate by phone, please see page 3 of this Agenda. 

 NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that on Wednesday, February 28, 2024, commencing at 8:30 
a.m., at the North Tahoe Events Center, and on Zoom, the TRPA Operations & Governance
Committee will meet. The agenda will be as follows: 1) Approval of Agenda (action); 2) Approval of
Minutes (action) (Pages 7); 3) Recommend approval of January Financials (action) (Page 27) (Staff:
Chris Keillor); 4) Discussion and possible recommendation for adoption of 2024 Aquatic Invasive Species
Watercraft Inspection Fee Schedule (action) (Page 49) (Staff: Dennis Zabaglo); 5) Upcoming Topics (Staff:
Chris Keillor); 6) Committee Member Comments; Chair – Laine, Vice Chair – Diss, Aguilar, Bass, Gustafson,
Hill; 7) Public Interest Comments

  NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that on Wednesday, February 28, 2024, commencing 8:30 a.m., at 
the North Tahoe Events Center, and on Zoom, the TRPA Legal Committee will meet. The agenda will be 
as follows: 1) Approval of Agenda (action); 2) Approval of Minutes (action); (Page 13) 3) Closed Session 
with Counsel to Discuss Existing and Potential Litigation; 4) Potential Direction Regarding Agenda Item 
No. 3 (action); 5) Committee Member Comments; Chair – Williamson, Vice Chair – Aldean, Faustinos, 
Leumer, Rice; 6) Public Interest Comments       

  NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that on Wednesday, February 28, 2024, commencing no earlier  
  than 9:15 a.m., at the North Tahoe Events Center, and on Zoom, the TRPA Transportation  
  Committee will meet. The agenda will be as follows: 1) Approval of Agenda (action); 2) Approval of  
  Minutes (action) (Pages 17); 3) Election of Vice Chair (action) (Staff: Julie Regan); 4) Discussion and  
  possible recommendation for endorsement of the Vision Zero Strategy (action) (Page 59) (Staff: Rachael 
  Shaw); 5) Discussion and possible recommendation for adoption of the 2023 Federal Transportation  
  Improvement Program Amendment No. 7 (action) (Page 81) (Staff: Judy Weber); 6) Transportation  
  Committee Strategy Session (action) (Page 273) (Staff: Nick Haven & Michelle Glickert) 7) Committee  
  Member Comments; – Chair Hill, Vice Chair – Open, Aguilar, Bass, Hays; Hoenigman; 8) Public Interest  
  Comments  

1

https://www.trpa.gov/


Julie W. Regan, 
Executive Director 

This agenda has been posted at the TRPA office and at the following locations and/or websites: Post 
Office, Stateline, NV, North Tahoe Event Center, Kings Beach, CA, IVGID Office, Incline Village, NV, North 
Lake Tahoe Chamber/Resort Association, Tahoe City, CA, and Lake Tahoe South Shore Chamber of 
Commerce, Stateline, NV 

TAHOE REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY 
GOVERNING BOARD 

 North Tahoe Events Center   February 28, 2024 
 8318 N. Lake Blvd., Kings Beach, CA   No earlier than 10:45 a.m. 

All items on this agenda are action items unless otherwise noted. Items on the agenda, 
unless designated for a specific time, may not necessarily be considered in the order in which 
they appear and may, for good cause, be continued until a later date.   

Written Public Comment: Members of the public may email written public comments to 
‘publiccomment@trpa.gov’. We encourage you to submit written comments (email, mail, or 
fax) in advance of the meeting date to give our staff adequate time to organize, post, and 
distribute your input to the appropriate staff and representatives. Written comments 
received by 4 p.m. the day before a scheduled public meeting will be distributed and posted 
to the TRPA website before the meeting begins. TRPA does not guarantee written comments 
received after 4 p.m. the day before a meeting will be distributed and posted in time for the 
meeting. Late comments may be distributed and posted after the meeting. Please include 
the meeting information and agenda item in the subject line. For general comments to 
representatives, include “General Comment” in the subject line.  

Verbal Public Comment: Public comments at the meeting should be as brief and concise as 
possible so that all who wish to participate may do so; testimony should not be repeated. 
The Chair of the Board shall have the discretion to set appropriate time allotments for 
individual speakers (usually 3 minutes for individuals and group representatives as well as for 
the total time allotted to oral public comment for a specific agenda item). No extra time for 
participants will be permitted by the ceding of time to others. In the interest of efficient 
meeting management, the Chairperson reserves the right to limit the duration of each public 
comment period to a total of 1 hour. Public comment will be taken for each appropriate 
action item at the time the agenda item is heard and a general public comment period will be 
provided at the end of the meeting for all other comments including agendized informational 
items.  

Accommodation: TRPA will make reasonable efforts to assist and accommodate physically 
handicapped persons that wish to participate in the meeting. Please contact Marja Ambler at 
(775) 589-5287 if you would like to participate in the meeting and are in need of assistance.
The meeting agenda and staff reports will be posted at https://www.trpa.gov/meeting-
materials no later than 7 days prior to the meeting date. For questions please contact TRPA
admin staff at virtualmeetinghelp@trpa.gov or call (775) 588-4547.2

https://www.trpa.gov/meeting-materials
https://www.trpa.gov/meeting-materials
mailto:virtualmeetinghelp@trpa.gov


Zoom Webinar - Public Participation 

To Participate Online: 

1. Download the Zoom app on your computer, tablet, or smartphone.
• The computer app can be downloaded here:

https://us02web.zoom.us/client/latest/ZoomInstaller.
exe

• The tablet or smartphone app can be found in the app store on your device.
2. On the day of the meeting, join from the link or phone numbers posted

under the appropriate meeting date and time on the TRPA website
(www.trpa.gov).

3. Ensure that you are connected to audio either through your computer (provided it
has a microphone) or using your phone as a microphone/speaker. You can manage
your audio settings in the tool bar at the bottom of the Zoom screen.

4. At the appropriate time for public comments, you will be able to “raise your hand” by
clicking on the Hand icon located on the bottom of your Zoom screen OR by dialing *9
if you are on your phone. With your hand raised, a TRPA staff member will unmute you
and indicate that you can make your comment.

To Participate on the phone: 

1. Dial the call-in number posted at the calendar event for the appropriate
meeting (www.trpa.gov).

2. At the appropriate time for public comments, you will be able to “raise your hand” by dialing
*9 if you are on your phone. With your hand raised, a TRPA staff member will
unmute you and indicate that you can make your comment.

If you do not have the ability or access to register for the webinar, please contact TRPA admin 
staff at virtualmeetinghelp@trpa.org or (775) 588-4547. 

Additional Resources from Zoom: 
• Joining and Participating in a Zoom Webinar
• Joining a Zoom Webinar by Phone
• Raising Your Hand in a Webinar

3

mailto:virtualmeetinghelp@trpa.org
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/115004954946-Joining-and-participating-in-a-Zoom-Webinar
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362663
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/205566129-Raising-your-hand-in-a-webinar


AGENDA 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  (January 24, 2024 Governing Board Minutes will be in the March 27, 2024,
Packet)

V. TRPA CONSENT CALENDAR (see Consent Calendar agenda below for specific items)

Adjourn as the TRPA and convene as the TMPO

VI. TAHOE METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION CONSENT CALENDAR (see Consent Calendar
agenda below for specific items)

Adjourn as the TMPO and reconvene as the TRPA

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. Economic sustainability and housing amendments to Placer  Action    Page 99 
County’s Tahoe Basin Area Plan

(Staff: Jacob Stock)

VIII. REPORTS

A. Executive Director Status Report   Informational Only   

1) Annual Report   Informational Only    Page 259 

2) Update on Transportation and Sustainable Communities  Informational Only  
Threshold Standard 1 (and associated VMT Regional Plan
policies)

B. General Counsel Status Report  Informational Only 

IX. GOVERNING BOARD MEMBER REPORTS

X. COMMITTEE REPORTS

A. Local Government Committee  Report 

B. Legal Committee  Report 

C. Operations & Governance Committee  Report 

D. Environmental Improvement Program Committee  Report 

4



E. Transportation Committee  Report 

F. Regional Planning Committee  Report 

XI. PUBLIC INTEREST COMMENTS
Any member of the public wishing to address the Governing Board on any item listed or not listed on
the agenda including items on the Consent Calendar may do so at this time. TRPA encourages public
comment on items on the agenda to be presented at the time those agenda items are heard.
Individuals or groups commenting on items listed on the agenda will be permitted to comment either
at this time or when the matter is heard, but not both. The Governing Board is prohibited by law
from taking immediate action on or discussing issues raised by the public that are not listed on this
agenda.

XII. ADJOURNMENT

TRPA CONSENT CALENDAR 

 Item  Action Requested 

1. January Financials  Action/Approval    Page 27 
(Staff: Chris Keillor)

2. 2024 Aquatic Invasive Species Watercraft Inspection Fee Schedule   Action/Approval     Page 49
(Staff: Dennis Zabaglo)

3.    Vision Zero Strategy  Action/Approval     Page 59 
  (Staff: Rachael Shaw)  

4.   Notice of Preparation for Joint Environmental Impact Report/     Action/Approval   Page 67 
 Environmental Impact Statement for Proposed Boatworks  
 Redevelopment Project; 740, 760, and 790 North Lake Boulevard,  
 Tahoe City, Placer County, California; APNs 094-090-001, -033, -036, 
- 042, and 065; TRPA File # ERSP2022-0953

TMPO CONSENT CALENDAR 

 Item  Action Requested 

1. 2023 Federal Transportation Improvement Program Amendment      Action/Approval     Page 81
No. 7

The consent calendar items are expected to be routine and non-controversial. They will be acted upon 
by the Board at one time without discussion. The special use determinations will be removed from the 
calendar at the request of any member of the public and taken up separately. If any Board member or 
noticed affected property owner requests that an item be removed from the calendar, it will be taken 
up separately in the appropriate agenda category. Four of the members of the governing body from 
each State constitute a quorum for the transaction of the business of the agency. The voting 
procedure shall be as follows: (1) For adopting, amending or repealing environmental threshold 

5



carrying capacities, the regional plan, and ordinances, rules and regulations, and for granting variances 
from the ordinances, rules and regulations, the vote of at least four of the members of each State 
agreeing with the vote of at least four members of the other State shall be required to take action. If 
there is no vote of at least four of the members from one State agreeing with the vote of at least four 
of the members of the other State on the actions specified in this paragraph, an action of rejection 
shall be deemed to have been taken. (2) For approving a project, the affirmative vote of at least five 
members from the State in which the project is located and the affirmative vote of at least nine 
members of the governing body are required. If at least five members of the governing body from the 
State in which the project is located and at least nine members of the entire governing body do not 
vote in favor of the project, upon a motion for approval, an action of rejection shall be deemed to 
have been taken. A decision by the agency to approve a project shall be supported by a statement of 
findings, adopted by the agency, which indicates that the project complies with the regional plan and 
with applicable ordinances, rules and regulations of the agency. (3) For routine business and for 
directing the agency's staff on litigation and enforcement actions, at least eight members of the 

  governing body must agree to take action. If at least eight votes in favor of such action are not cast,    
 an                     action of rejection shall be deemed to have been taken.  

 Article III (g) Public Law 96-551 Tahoe Regional Planning Agency Governing Board Members:   
Chair, Cindy Gustafson, Placer County Supervisor Representative; Vice Chair, Hayley Williamson, 
Nevada At-Large Member; Francisco Aguilar, Nevada Secretary of State; Shelly Aldean, Carson City 
Supervisor Representative; Ashley Conrad-Saydah, California    Governor’s Appointee; Jessica Diss, 
Nevada Governor’s Appointee; Belinda Faustinos, California Assembly Speaker’s Appointee; Cody 
Bass, City of South Lake Tahoe Councilmember; Meghan Hays, Presidential Appointee; Alexis Hill, 
Washoe County Commissioner; Vince Hoenigman, California Governor’s Appointee; Brooke Laine, El 
Dorado County Supervisor; Wesley Rice, Douglas County Commissioner; James Settelmeyer, Nevada 
Dept. of Conservation & Natural Resources  Representative; Alexandra Leumer, California Senate 
Rules Committee Appointee. 

6



TAHOE REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY       
OPERATIONS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

TRPA/Zoom Webinar   January 24, 2024 

  Meeting Minutes 

CALL TO ORDER AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 

Chair Ms. Laine called the meeting to order at 8:32 a.m. 

Members present: Ms. Bowman (for Mr. Aguilar), Ms. Diss, Ms. Gustafson, Ms. Hill, Mr. 
Hoenigman, Ms. Laine 

I. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Agenda approved. 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

November 15, 2023 Operations and Governance Committee Minutes 

Minutes approved. 

III. Recommend approval of December 2023 Audited Financial Statements

Mr. Chris Keillor, TRPA Finance Director, presented the item. He began by saying we are halfway 
through the year with no major liens against the budget. After a slow start, planning fees saw a good 
month in December. In addition, a few fee changes, in a package previously approved by the board, 
have now kicked in. And at the end of this month, the inflation adjustment across the board for fees 
will take effect.  

Looking to the revenue side on slide 2, Mr. Keillor said the grant revenues are still very low at only 
10%, but all grants are billed in arrears at the end of the quarter. We've also had a few grants, such 
as the large forest health grant that have only just got contracts against them, so we'll start to spend 
against that, but we are behind on that grant and some others. The only remaining money in the 
state revenue category is TSAC (Tahoe Science Advisory Council) money, which is billed on a cost 
reimbursement basis. 

The expenditure side is shown on slide 3. Compensation is a little low because we still haven't filled 
the Attorney position, although there is a path forward on that. Contracts always tend to lag a bit, so 
no surprise that it's only at 25%, and everything else is pretty much on track. 

Moving to cash flow charts on slide 5, Mr. Keillor said we are anticipating that the California Tahoe 
Conservancy (CTC) project will be executed soon. When that happens there will be a large transfer 
of mitigation funds to CTC. Mr. Keillor reminded everyone that under GASB 84, we are now required 
to report mitigation fund receipts and expenditures as revenue and expenses in our financial 
statements. This has a very distortional impact on the financial statements, so Mr. Keillor excludes 

7

https://www.trpa.gov/wp-content/uploads/January-2024-Operations-Governance-Committee.pdf


OPERATIONS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
January 24, 2024 

mitigation funds from the charts presented to the Operations Committee but does provide quarterly 
briefings. Mr. Keillor added that the they invest the mitigation funds, and any accrued interest 
increases the amount money available for projects. 

Committee Comments 
None. 

Public Comment 

None. 

Motion 

Mr. Hoenigman made a motion to recommend the Governing Board approve the December 
Financials 

Ayes: Ms. Bowman, Ms. Diss, Ms. Gustafson, Ms. Hill, Mr. Hoenigman, Ms. Laine 

Motion passed. 

VI. Tahoe Keys Mitigation Fund Request

Ms. Shay Navarro, TRPA Watersheds and Water Quality Program Manager presented this item on 
the Tahoe Keys Property Owners Association (TKPOA) request to release Tahoe Keys Water Quality 
Mitigation Funds for the Tahoe Keys Lagoons Long-term Water Quality Improvement Project. Ms. 
Navarro also introduced Mr. Rick Lind, a consultant representing the TKPOA to help answer any 
questions. 

Ms. Navarro said the Tahoe Keys, located in South Lake Tahoe was first established in the late 1950’s 
by dredging and grading a portion of the Upper Truckee marsh to create a suburban residential 
development with 11 miles of backyard lagoons or waterways. The lagoons receive urban 
stormwater runoff and are more than 90% covered with aquatic invasive weeds, which negatively 
impact their water quality. The lagoon's water quality is also being impacted by climate change - 
Tahoe is seeing a greater fluctuation of extreme events between drought and flood conditions. Ms. 
Navarro explained that the Lagoons Long-term Water Quality Improvement Project 
aims to mitigate local and regional non-point source nutrient and pollutants that are inputted to the 
lagoons from the Tahoe Keys and South Lake Tahoe developments upstream. 

This initial planning phase of the project aims to identify restoration and treatment strategies that 
would improve the circulation and water quality of the Tahoe Keys lagoons, reduce spread of 
aquatic invasive weeds, and reduce the risks and impacts to the adjacent and hydrologically 
connected Pope Marsh in Lake Tahoe. The project is complementary to the Tahoe Keys Control 
Methods Test and Green Infrastructure Planning projects that are happening in the Tahoe Keys. 
The requested funds would support stakeholder engagement and coordination, refinement of goals 
and objectives, analyzing existing conditions, identifying restoration and treatment opportunities 
and constraints, and initiating planning to formulate project alternatives.  

Ms. Navarro said this initial planning phase has a three to five-year timeline and follows the EIP 
Stormwater Quality Improvement Committee project delivery process in formulating and evaluating 
an alternatives process – both were developed specifically for stormwater improvement projects.  

Ms. Navarro provided some background on the Tahoe Keys Water Quality Mitigation Fund. This fund 
is money that was collected specifically from Tahoe Keys properties. It was created by the 
Californian Tahoe Regional Planning Agency and Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board 
(Lahontan), to mitigate the water quality impacts from development of the Tahoe Keys, and it 

8

https://www.trpa.gov/wp-content/uploads/Operations-Governance-Committee-Agenda-Item-No-4-Tahoe-Keys-Mitigation-Fund-Request.pdf


OPERATIONS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
January 24, 2024 

applied to construction of Tahoe Keys homes that were allowed to be built on the remaining lots 
after a change in the Keys land capability classification from stream environment zone (SEZ) to a 
man modified stream environment zone. TRPA and Lahontan previously released the majority of the 
principal fund in 2001 for EIP project implementation in the watershed that is upstream of the 
Tahoe Keys, but close to $450,000.00 remains in mitigation fund interest. 

Ms. Navarro said the TRPA Governing Board Policy Guidelines for the release of mitigation funds 
permits the use of mitigation fund interest for project planning. TRPA staff requests approval of the 
release of $200,000.00 from the Tahoe Keys Water Quality Mitigation Fund interest for the Tahoe 
Keys Lagoon's Long-term Water Quality Improvement Project. $100,000.00 will initiate planning of 
the project, and $100,000.00 will provide match for grant funding. The account balance is sufficient 
to cover the request and release. The release will also supplement dedicated TKPOA funding that is 
generated through a property owner approved special assessment that shares a fund of the project. 

Ms. Navarro said the project is consistent with Lahontan's waste discharge requirements for the 
Tahoe Keys, and aligns with the intent of the Tahoe Keys water quality mitigation fund to mitigate 
water quality from the development of the Tahoe Keys itself. The request is consistent with 
Environmental Improvement Program objectives, Regional Plan goals and policies, and the  
mitigation fund policy guidelines. Ms. Navarro added that staff had heard from board member Ms. 
Aldean with a request to amend condition 5 in the staff report, which currently reads; “upon written 
approval from TRPA, these funds may be reallocated to another project”. Ms. Aldean  wanted to add 
“within the Tahoe Keys”.  

Committee Comments 

Ms. Laine said she agreed with Ms. Aldean’s recommendation. 
Public Comment 

None. 

Motion 

Mr. Hoenigman made a motion to recommend the Governing Board approve the release subject to 
the conditions in the staff report, including the amendment to condition 5 to add, “within the Tahoe 
Keys”. 

Ayes: Ms. Bowman, Ms. Diss, Ms. Gustafson, Ms. Hill, Mr. Hoenigman, Ms. Laine 

IV. Quarterly Treasurer’s Report

Mr. Keillor said the main highlight was that they had moved some money out of LAIF in anticipation 
of the CTC Project. He added that cash flow for the year has peaked and is now in decline. He said 
the investment pool is still fairly short and still heavily into Treasuries and into LAIF and LGIP. Mr. 
Keillor informed that the staff report includes an error on the pie chart (3% corporate is actually 5% 
corporate).  

Referring to the charts on slide 10, Mr. Keillor said the chart on the left showed the distribution of 
the investments. In terms of maturities, it is very short. To a large extent the investment pools 
operate like money market funds - they're very short term because it's all cash management. 
Speaking to the chart on the right, Mr. Keillor said he had excluded government securities and only 
used the commercial. He added that it's a very small group of investments, but everything is within 
the investment policy.  

This item was informational only. 

9

https://www.trpa.gov/wp-content/uploads/January-2024-Operations-Governance-Committee.pdf


OPERATIONS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
January 24, 2024 

V. Annual Update by Principal Group Investment Advisor

Mr. Keillor introduced Mr. Bruce Remington to present the item. Mr. Remington provided a brief 
economic overview, noting challenges faced throughout the year. He said initial concerns about 
rising rates and oil prices were prevalent, but the year concluded on a positive note economically. 
He said they anticipate a mild recession in the late first half of the year, with the market already 
factoring in much of the impact. He expressed concern about the situation in the Red Sea, and 
acknowledged the Federal Reserve's attempt to manage the situation. Mr. Remington highlighted 
the deceleration of inflation, resulting in a significant drop by the end of the year and subsequent 
decreases in bond yields. The good news is that the portfolio had a lot of funds locked up at higher 
yields over the past six months.  

Mr. Remington noted that we are coming to the end of the tightening cycle, with the Fed and most 
central banks currently on hold. He added that the aggressive rate increases seen over the last 18-24 
months, aimed at controlling inflation, are starting to come to an end. Mr. Remington said that the 
Fed is monitoring the next couple of months' data for inflation, growth, and volatility before making 
any decisions. He suggested that rate cuts may not happen until later in the year, emphasizing the 
data-dependent nature of these decisions. 

As for equities, Mr. Remington said they are projecting a period of volatility between now and the 
middle of the year. He observed that the market is adjusting to slower growth but moderate 
inflation, with rate cuts in a slowing economy already priced into the market. He added that this is 
very much a bifurcated market, with the so-called "magnificent 7" (tech-oriented stocks) driving a 
significant portion of S&P returns. Mr. Reminton anticipates a potential improvement in 
performance for values, small cap, and mid-cap stocks in a broader market scenario. 

Mr. Remington said they definitely had a significant sell-off but noted the positive impact of a well-
structured portfolio, with an extremely short-term and high-quality orientation, leading to favorable 
outcomes during market volatility. He described the yield curve inversion and how the portfolio took 
advantage by purchasing high-quality, high-coupon bonds with longer maturities. Mr. Remington 
said he holds bonds to maturity, and plans for bonds with favorable coupons to roll off in the next 
couple of years. He noted increased stability in rates and mentions that spreads between corporates 
and treasuries are currently tight. Mr. Remington also highlighted the changing landscape of agency 
bonds, noting the reduced exposure due to the diminishing yield advantage and liquidity 
considerations. 

Looking back to 2020, Mr. Remington discussed the yields on various financial instruments, noting 
the low returns on 2-year Treasury bonds (0.13%), money market, passbook savings, and bank 
accounts (all close to 0%). By 2021 there was some recovery, and by September 2022, inflation had 
gone from transitory to really embedded in the system, and the market reacted. By September 
2023, 2-years had gone up to 5.04%. Mr. Remington described the impact on the portfolio's 
performance, noting the stability and positive outcomes due to a well-structured approach. 
Referring to cashflows as of September 30, 2023 for the quarter, Mr. Remington said they started at 
$12 million and made $114.000.00.  

Mr. Remington ran through a breakdown of the portfolio's composition, highlighting significant 
holdings in Treasuries and high-quality corporate bonds. He also mentioned the avoidance of agency 
bonds due to tight spreads and discussed the careful selection of investment-grade corporates. 

Looking to the portfolio's performance, Mr. Remington emphasizing positive returns against the 
blended benchmark, which was up 0.74, outperforming by 21 basis points. He added that the fiscal 
number is also good, and the one-year number was up 3.22%. Mr. Remington pointed out the 
impact of interest rate changes on the portfolio's performance and contrasted it with the broad 
market (Bloomberg US Aggregate Bond Index). He emphasized the portfolio's success in avoiding 
excessive volatility while delivering steady returns. 

10



OPERATIONS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
January 24, 2024 

Mr. Remington said he hadn’t changed the portfolio structure much since September 30th. He 
discussed the rationale behind staying short in the last couple of years, emphasizing the importance 
of maintaining liquidity, especially with the bulk of assets in LGIP and LAIF accounts. He highlighted 
the maturity distribution, with approximately 45% of the portfolio in the 0–1-year range and 44% in 
the 1-5 year range. He explained the positive returns of the portfolio over the last three years 
compared to the benchmark and the broader market (Bloomberg US Aggregate Bond Index). 

Referring to what is in the portfolio right now, Mr. Remington highlighted that there were no triple B 
corporate bonds. He described key figures such as option adjusted yield, duration, and portfolio 
value. He expressed a desire to start stretching out maturities slightly longer to the 2–3-year range, 
if that meets the approval of the TRPA Board. Mr. Remington explored potential future adjustments 
and repositioning, and mentioned a desire to buy bonds again in 2025 to lock in the decent yields. 

Mr. Keillor acknowledged the thoughtful structure of the portfolio, highlighting the strategy of 
buying smaller amounts of bonds at different intervals to mitigate reinvestment risk. He agreed with 
the idea of considering longer maturities given the perceived economic stability. 

Committee Comment 

Ms. Laine and Ms. Gustafson said they agreed that it was time to consider longer maturities, and 
thanked Mr. Remington for his presentation. 

VII. Upcoming Topics

Mr. Keillor said they have not done a general increase in the AIS inspection decontamination fees for 
5 years. The program is in good health financially, although we've taken some hits lately with the 
loss of a DBW grant. That's not a reflection on us or in the program. It’s just that now everybody is 
fighting mussels in all the lakes and it's certainly fair for other people to get a shot at that money 
too. So we've lost a fair amount of money, and we're also seeing a lot of staffing pressures in the 
stations. We do have reserves, but we think it's time to get back into a regular cycle of annually 
reviewing and increasing those fees. That item will come before the committee and board next 
month for consideration. 

Mr. Keillor added that they will get started on budgets for the coming year soon, with the item 
tentatively scheduled for May 2024. He said they had their first interim committee meeting 
yesterday with the State of Nevada. There was a lot of attendance, a lot of public comment. 
One of the issues that's coming up is people talking about whether or not we're as transparent as 
we should be. Mr. Keillor asked the committee to let him know if there is more they want to see. He 
said he’s trying to strike a balance between burying you in minutia and giving you real information 
you can use. 

In response to the AIS fees item, Ms. Gustafson said she would prefer to see regular smaller 
increases than waiting 5 years. In that time there's been a lot of cost increases just in labor, and she 
would like to see an annualized adjustment. Mr. Keillor explained that the way they had structured 
the program was for the fees and the state funds to cover the cost of the prevention program. But 
then they started picking up grant money that allowed them to bank funds. That's why they haven't 
been bringing new increases for the last 5 years because it didn't seem right to increase the fees 
when you're sitting on a pile of money. Now everything's working in the opposite direction, 
including the hourly inspector rate, which has doubled. 

11



OPERATIONS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
January 24, 2024 

VIII. Committee Member Comments

None.

IX. Public Comments

None.

X. ADJOURNMENT

Ms. Gustafson made a motion to adjourn.

Ayes: [All]

Chair Laine adjourned the meeting at 9:28 a.m.

Respectfully Submitted, 

Tracy Campbell 
Executive Assistant 

The above meeting was recorded in its entirety. Anyone wishing to listen to the recording of the 
above mentioned meeting may find it at https://www.trpa.gov/meeting-materials/. In addition, 
written documents submitted at the meeting are available for review. If you require assistance 
locating this information, please contact the TRPA at (775) 588-4547 or 
virtualmeetinghelp@trpa.gov.  

12

https://www.trpa.gov/meeting-materials/
mailto:virtualmeetinghelp@trpa.gov


TAHOE REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY 
LEGAL COMMITTEE        

TRPA December 13, 2023 
Zoom 

Meeting Minutes 

CALL TO ORDER AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM  

Chair Williamson called the meeting to order at 8:32 a.m. on December 13, 2023. 

Members present: Mayor Bagwell, Ms. Williamson, Ms. Faustinos, Ms. Leumer, and Mr. Rice. 

Members absent: None. 

I. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Mr. Marshall stated there were no changes proposed to the agenda.

Chair Williamson deemed the agenda approved as posted.

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Ms. Faustinos made a motion to approve the October 25, 2023 Legal Committee meeting
minutes as presented.

Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.

III. RESOLUTION OF ENFORCEMENT ACTION: GREENLEAF VENTURES CA LLC; UNAUTHORIZED
DISTURBANCE TO SEZ, FAILURE TO INSTALL AND MAINTAIN CONSTRUCTION BMPs, AND
MATERIAL DAMAGE TO TREES, 1650 IROQUOIS CIRCLE, EL DORADO COUNTY, CA, ASSESSOR’S
PARCEL NUMBERS 034-171-003 AND 1654 IROQUOIS CIRCLE, EL DORADO COUNTY, CA,
ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NUMBERS 034-171-002

Steve Sweet, TRPA Code Compliance Program manager, presented a violation case concerning
Greenleaf Ventures California LLC, involving unauthorized disturbance, failure to install and
maintain construction measures, and tree damage. The violation occurred across two properties
in Eldorado County, marked by unauthorized construction access, significant disturbance to the
stream environment zone, and damage to trees. The violations, not exempt under TRPA codes,
included disturbance to the environment, improper tree protection fencing, unauthorized
disturbance outside the construction zone, improper temporary measures, and material damage
to trees. Greenleaf agreed to a $25,000 penalty, restoration of disturbed areas, and future
compliance with construction measures. They've already completed the restoration, which will
be monitored to ensure vegetation establishment. Staff recommended the Governing Board
approve the proposed settlement agreement.

13



LEGAL COMMITTEE  
December 13, 2023 

 
Committee Questions & Comments 
 
None. 
 
 
Public Comment 
 
None. 
 
 
Ms. Faustinos made a motion to recommend the Governing Board approve the settlement 
agreement. 
 
Ayes: Mayor Bagwell, Ms. Williamson, Ms. Faustinos, Ms. Leumer, and Mr. Rice. 
Nays: None. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
IV. DISCUSSION AND RECOMMENDATION ON GENERAL COUNSEL PERFORMANCE REVIEW AND 

FY2023-24 SALARY INCREASE 
 
 Angela Atchley presented the performance review of Mr. Marshall covering July 2022 to June 

2023. The review involved a self-assessment by Mr. Marshall, circulated among select TRPA 
employees and governing board members, alongside an anonymous survey. Twenty-nine 
respondents evaluated Mr. Marshall's overall accomplishments and TRPA's core competencies. 

 
 47% of respondents rated Mr. Marshall as "exceptional" for overall accomplishments, and 37% 

marked him as "fully effective/achieved." The review highlighted positive aspects such as Mr. 
Marshall's specific hours for staff meetings, direct communication, handling legal issues, 
providing exceptional service as general counsel, and a strong understanding of TRPA laws. 

 
 Comments from the survey commended Mr. Marshall's availability, guidance, support, and 

ability to steer board conversations in the right direction. Suggestions included maintaining 
good work, hiring additional staff, imparting knowledge, and focusing more on enforcement. 

 
 Overall, the review was positive, and the presentation requested consideration for a proposed 

base pay adjustment for Mr. Marshall's performance during the mentioned period. 
 

Public Comment 
 
None. 
 
Committee Comments/Questions 

 
 Chair Williamson expressed gratitude to John for his hard work and echoed the positive 

comments received. She commended his availability, calm demeanor, excellent leadership, 
direction, and legal advice. Chair Williamson thanked him for his contributions and offered him 
the opportunity to share any thoughts or comments if he wished. 

 

14



LEGAL COMMITTEE  
December 13, 2023 

John Marshall reflected on the agency's recent increase in litigation, highlighting the success in 
resolving some cases while others remain pending. He acknowledged challenges in coordination 
and mentioned that staff and board advice and consultation had seen some difficulties, mainly 
due to a sense of disjointedness and challenges with external partnerships. Mr. Marshall 
emphasized the need to improve communication and reassess approaches to partnerships for 
future success. He expressed a commitment to focusing on improving agency performance and 
personal capabilities in the coming year. He also addressed concerns raised about the type and 
quality of information provided to the governing board, seeking feedback to strike the right 
balance between providing comprehensive information without overwhelming the recipients. 
Mr. Marshall invited feedback for improvement either privately or in other settings. 

Mayor Bagwell inquired about the salary increase percentages and whether they were standard 
or flexible for staff at TRPA. Ms. Atchley responded, explaining that there isn't a fixed salary 
schedule but rather a range, and the increase percentages can vary annually. She also discussed 
issues related to salary ranges and mentioned defined contribution but expressed a wish to 
improve certain aspects of compensation. 

Mr. Rice expressed his gratitude for working together over the past five years and praised Mr. 
Marshall’s reliable counsel, stating that he's never been led astray by it. He expressed 
anticipation for continuing their collaboration over the next three years. 

Ms. Faustinos made the motion to recommend the Governing Board approve the suggested pay 
increase for Mr. Marshall. 

Ayes: Mayor Bagwell, Ms. Williamson, Ms. Faustinos, Ms. Leumer, and Mr. Rice. 
Nays: None. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

V. CLOSED SESSION WITH COUNSEL TO DISCUSS EXISTING AND POTENTIAL LITIGATION

Ms. Faustinos made the motion to move into closed session.

Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.

Mayor Bagwell made the motion to move out of closed session. 

Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 

VI. POTENTIAL DIRECTION REGARDING AGENDA ITEM NO. 5

No direction.

VII. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS

None.

15



LEGAL COMMITTEE  
December 13, 2023 

                     
VIII. PUBLIC INTEREST COMMENTS   

 Ellie Waller, a Douglas County resident, expressed concern about the Barton hole in 
the ground and its protection during the Douglas County area plan process. She 
highlighted worries about potential height increases and zoning changes for Barton 
before the area plan review is completed. Ellie sought guidance on how to ensure 
adequate protections for the property and address potential environmental issues. 

 
VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

 Mr. Rice moved to adjourn.  
 

Meeting adjourned at 9:14 a.m.  
 

  
                                                Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 
Katherine Huston 

Paralegal 
 
 

The above meeting was recorded in its entirety. Anyone wishing to listen to the recording may find it at 
https://www.trpa.gov/meeting-materials/. In addition, written documents submitted at the meeting are 
available for review. If you require assistance locating this information, please contact the TRPA at (775) 

588-4547 or virtualmeetinghelp@trpa.gov.                               
  

16

https://www.trpa.gov/meeting-materials/
mailto:virtualmeetinghelp@trpa.gov


TAHOE REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY 
TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE        

TRPA December 13, 2023 
Zoom 

Meeting Minutes 

CALL TO ORDER AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM  

Member Hoenigman called the meeting to order at 9:43 a.m. on December 13, 2023. 

Members present: Mr. Aguilar, Mr. Friedrich, Ms. Hays, Ms. Hill, Mr. Hoenigman. 

Members absent: None. 

I. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Ms. Regan stated there were no changes to the agenda.

Member Hoenigman deemed the agenda approved as posted.

II. ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR

Mr. Hoenigman nominated Ms. Hill to be Chair and John Friedrich to be Vice Chair of the
Transportation Committee.

Public Comment 

None. 

Mr. Aguilar made the motion to elect Ms. Hill to be Chair and John Friedrich to be Vice Chair of 
the Transportation Committee. 

Ayes: Mr. Aguilar, Mr. Friedrich, Ms. Hays, Ms. Hill, Mr. Hoenigman. 
Nays: None. 

Motion carried. 

III. TRPA TRANSPORTATION OVERVIEW

Julie Regan, TRPA's Executive Director, introduced the committee's inaugural meeting focused
solely on transportation, a key aspect of the environmental improvement program. She
highlighted the complexity of Tahoe's transportation challenges, influenced by the area's rural
nature and high influx of visitors.

The transportation system faces issues due to its constraints, inadequate funding, and struggles
to reduce dependency on private automobiles as mandated by the by-state compact. The

17



TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE  
December 13, 2023 

system's limitations impact the region's economy, quality of life, safety, environmental health, 
and mobility. 

 
Regan emphasized the unique role of Tahoe as an NPO (Metropolitan Planning Organization) 
despite not meeting typical population criteria. She discussed the challenges associated with 
federal funding and the ongoing efforts to obtain recognition for visitation in population 
metrics. 

 
She stressed that transportation has been a pressing concern within the community, 
necessitating action. The committee's goals would include discussions on funding, 
acknowledging the importance of the equity study and the recent recognition of the team's 
work with the Rosa Parks Diversity Leadership Award. 

 
Ultimately, she welcomed the committee members and expressed a commitment to ensuring 
the committee's work is engaging, meaningful, and impactful. 

 
Nick Haven, the MPO Director for TRPA's Transportation Program, outlined the significance of 
the committee and its partnership potential in addressing vital transportation issues. He 
expressed the intention to share information without overwhelming the committee and 
encouraged their input for advancing policy, projects, and funding. 

 
Mr. Haven provided an overview of TRPA's role in transportation, explaining its comprehensive 
responsibilities as a metropolitan planning organization. TRPA aims to create a cohesive 
transportation vision that aligns regional and local priorities, involving various partners, local 
governments, and state DOTs. 

 
He discussed TRPA's involvement in long-range transportation planning through the Regional 
Transportation Plan (RTP), corridor planning, project selection, funding allocations, and project 
monitoring. Haven emphasized the collaborative nature of TRPA's role, working closely with 
partners throughout different planning stages and project implementation. 

 
Using a visual spectrum, he illustrated TRPA's involvement at different stages of transportation 
planning, highlighting the coordination among various partners for effective project 
development and implementation. Haven stressed the importance of this partnership 
throughout the transportation planning cycle, reflecting the integrated nature of TRPA's 
approach. 

 
He concluded by indicating that while they wouldn't delve too deeply into topics during that 
session, future presentations would offer more context for the committee's decision-making 
process within this transportation framework. 

  
Mr. Friedrich inquired about the intended role of the committee in shaping TRPA's planning, 
regional vision, goals, and strategies. He sought clarification beyond merely carrying out 
administrative actions or approvals, aiming to understand how the committee could actively 
contribute to informing and deliberating on the broader vision of the organization. 
 
Nick Haven highlighted that the committee's timing is opportune as TRPA is in the process of 
updating its transportation plan. He emphasized the importance of the committee's input in 
shaping the strategies and goals related to transportation. Nick also mentioned that they would 
keep the committee updated on funding releases, seek their support in obtaining funding, 
provide updates on corridors, and showcase tangible progress on the ground to illustrate the 

18



TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE 
December 13, 2023 

results of planning efforts. He expressed the intention to bring in partners to showcase 
successes and demonstrate the real-world impact of their planning initiatives. 

John Hester explained the role of the committee, likening it to the Regional Planning Committee 
(formerly RPIC) that examines Regional Plan and code amendments. He specified that this new 
committee would primarily handle the review process for the Regional Transportation Plan and 
Sustainable Community Strategy updates, indicating that they would be the key group providing 
feedback and discussing these updates. 

Julie Regan highlighted the committee's role as a partner bridging connections with the 
community, aiming to engage their constituencies more effectively in transportation matters. 
Additionally, she emphasized the significance of funding, noting Member Hayes' experience and 
connections in Washington, stressing the need to refine strategies for securing more 
infrastructure funding for Lake Tahoe. 

Michelle Glickert, the Transportation Planning Program Manager, outlined the 
interconnectedness of various planning elements in transportation at Lake Tahoe. The Regional 
Transportation Plan (RTP) stood at the core, encompassing regional goals, a funding plan, a 20-
year vision, and a project list developed through associated planning. 

She touched on various programs feeding into the RTP, including active transportation plans, 
travel demand management, transit planning, technology integration, performance planning, 
corridor planning, public participation, and transportation equity. 

Ms. Glickert also previewed upcoming topics for committee consideration, such as safety 
strategies, updates to the active transportation plan, federal transportation improvement 
amendments, and performance evaluations. Finally, she highlighted the role of the committee in 
overseeing the transportation planning and improvement teams' work for the next fiscal year, 
primarily focusing on RTP development and project implementation. 

Mr. Friedrich inquired about opportunities for the committee to engage in the earlier stages of 
planning rather than just being presented with fully developed plans for approval. He sought 
ways for the committee to be involved in the formative stages of planning, akin to being part of 
the baking process of a cake rather than just being asked to approve the finished product. 

Michelle Glickert emphasized that although the planning process may seem a bit advanced, 
there are ongoing collaborations with agency staff to shape various plans. She highlighted active 
meetings with public works groups to discuss project lists, potential policies, and new directions 
for upcoming plans like the Active Transportation Plan and the Safety Strategy. Ms. Glickert 
pointed out that while certain plans are in progress, the Regional Transportation Plan remains a 
focal point where committee involvement is crucial in merging all these initiatives. 

Nick Haven added that while the planning efforts involve extensive information, the focus is on 
refining policy decisions rather than inundating the committee with extensive volumes of text. 
He highlighted the importance of these documents stemming from previous discussions within 
governing boards and EIP committees. Nick mentioned the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) 
as an example, noting that instead of presenting finalized chapters, they aim to bring forth key 
policy decisions for discussion and refinement with the committee. 

Julie Reagan, TRPA Executive Director, expressed the significance of engaging the committee 

19



TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE 
December 13, 2023 

effectively and meaningfully, considering potential workshops to discuss transportation 
projects, funding, prioritization, and costs. She highlighted the significance of the constrained 
and unconstrained project lists within the $2.5 billion regional transportation plan and proposed 
potential joint meetings with the Transportation District board, leveraging Member Hill's dual 
role. Julie emphasized openness to the committee's ideas and plans to return with concrete 
examples on how to utilize the committee's time effectively. 

Commissioner Hill expressed interest in adopting goals for the committee, drawing from the 
approach used at the Tahoe Transportation District (TTD). Emphasizing the need for this 
committee to have specific objectives, she highlighted the importance of goal-setting, possibly 
in a workshop format. Additionally, she proposed aligning the committee's discussions with 
TTD's plans, specifically mentioning the short-range transit plan, aiming to ensure the 
committee is informed about TTD's initiatives and enhancing communication between TRPA and 
TTD. 

IV. RECOMMEND ADOPTION OF THE 2024 REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
(RTIP)

Nick Haven presented the Regional Improvement Program Funding, an administrative item
recurring every two years through the state of California. This funding consists of a 75% regional
and 25% interregional allocation. TRPA had an advance from eight years ago to fund Kings Beach
commercial core improvements, which is now being paid off, leaving a remaining $1.2 million.
However, this amount isn't enough to fully fund a project or phase of work, so they plan to roll it
over to couple with future allocations. The request made was to approve the Planning,
Programming, and Monitoring (PPM) funding of $165,000 over five years, which supports
project tracking and administration, essential for budgeting and staff support. The proposed
resolution would go to the governing board for approval before submission to Cal Trans and the
California Transportation Commission.

Public Comment 

Pamela Tsigdinos raised concerns regarding the committee's role in addressing the primary 
transportation challenge in the Tahoe Basin: facilitating evacuation during emergencies. She 
sought clarification on how this critical aspect would be integrated into the committee's 
responsibilities. Additionally, she highlighted the practicality of planning in a region often 
affected by icy and snowy conditions for up to six months, expressing the need for realistic 
transportation planning that acknowledges these challenges rather than simply emphasizing the 
creation of multiple paths. 

TRPA Executive Director, Julie Regan addressed the concerns raised about evacuation during 
emergencies, highlighting the ongoing efforts to evolve discussions around fire evacuation. She 
mentioned that the Environmental Improvement Program would be holding briefings on Forest 
Health and the work of the Tahoe Fire and Fuels Team, integrating these aspects into 
transportation planning, safety, and regional transportation processes. Additionally, she 
acknowledged the challenge of ensuring year-round access to pathways, emphasizing the 
agency's goal to keep pathways accessible throughout the year despite the significant cost 
implications. 

20



TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE  
December 13, 2023 

 
Commissioner Hill made a motion to recommend the TRPA Governing Board adopt Attachment 
A, Resolution 2023 - ___, approving the 2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program. 

 
Ayes: Mr. Aguilar, Mr. Friedrich, Ms. Hays, Ms. Hill, Mr. Hoenigman. 

 Nays: None. 
 

Motion carried. 
 
V. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE FY 2023-2024 STATE OF GOOD REPAIR PROJECT LISTS FOR THE 

TAHOE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT (TTD) AND TAHOE TRUCKEE AREAT REGIONAL TRANSIT 
(TART) AND AUTHORIZE THE ALLOCATION OF FY 2023-2024 TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT 
ACT FUNDING FOR TTD, TART, AND TRPA. 

 
Kira Richardson, TRPA Senior Transportation Planner, presented on the approval of 
Transportation Development Act (TDA) funds for administrative purposes to TRPA, and for 
transit capital and operations expenses for TTD and TART. She provided background information 
on the TDA, established in 1971 to fund transit capital and operations in California. The funds 
are derived from various sources such as a quarter-cent general sales tax, a statewide sales tax 
on gasoline, and the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017. 
 
Kira explained the allocation breakdown for the last five fiscal years and the fluctuations in 
funding from different sources due to variations in gasoline purchases, sales taxes, and the 
relatively steady State of Good Repair funding. She highlighted the requirement for approving 
the State of Good Repair project list for fleet maintenance and vehicle purchases. 
 
The presentation included a breakdown of TDA allocations for the fiscal year 2023 and 2024, 
with each fund source requiring its own resolution, along with an additional resolution for 
approving the State of Good Repair project lists. Kira invited questions after the presentation. 
 
 
Committee Questions/Comments 
 
John Friedrich inquired about the Local Responsibility Funds (LRF) and confirmed their status as 
unprogrammed to date. He acknowledged ongoing discussions regarding the potential use of 
these funds in the upcoming year, noting the flexibility in their allocation for the 2023-2024 
budget period. 
 
Ms. Richardson responded that there were ongoing discussions between the Tahoe 
Transportation District (TTD) and the South Shore Transportation Management Association 
regarding the potential allocation of a portion of their funding to support the expansion of micro 
transit on the South Shore. She clarified that although amendments to the claim application 
submitted by TTD could be made once funds are allocated, there was a procedural necessity to 
proceed with board approval for funding allocation to ensure timely payment from the state to 
the operator. Thus, the current timing was crucial for this procedural step. 
 
Mr. Friedrich confirmed his understanding of the process, acknowledging the ongoing 
conversations and the flexibility regarding the allocation of funds. He highlighted that these 
discussions weren't finalized and emphasized that there was room for adjustments or changes 
as things progressed. 

 

21



TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE 
December 13, 2023 

Public Comment 

None. 

Mr. Friedrich made a motion to recommend adoption the attached resolution (Attachment A) 
(Attachment A) approving the allocation of FY 2023-2024 Local Transportation Fund funds to the 
TRPA, TTD, and TART, attached resolution (Attachment B) approving the allocation of FY 2023-
2024 State Transit Assistance funds to TTD and TART, attached resolution (Attachment C) 
approving the FY 2023-2024 State of Good Repair project lists submitted by the Tahoe-Truckee 
Area Regional Transit and Tahoe Transportation District, and attached resolution (Attachment 
D) approving the allocation of FY 2023-2024 State of Good Repair funds to TTD and TART.

Ayes: Mr. Aguilar, Mr. Friedrich, Ms. Hays, Ms. Hill, Mr. Hoenigman. 
Nays: None. 

Motion carried. 

VI. RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO ALLOCATE FISCAL YEAR 2023/24 CALIFORNIA TRANSIT AND
INTERCITY RAIL CAPITAL PROGRAM AND ZERO EMISSION TRANSIT CAPITAL PROGRAM FUNDING

Nick Haven discussed the recent allocation of emergency funding by the state of California to 
boost transit agencies' recovery post-COVID. This funding aims to support transit services, 
enhance ridership, and focus on electrification. The allocated funds consist of two components: 
the Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program and the Zero Emission Transit Capital Program. 

He outlined the allocation of approximately $5.7 million for the Tahoe region through this 
funding, highlighting its significance for transit electrification and service enhancements. Nick 
highlighted the focus areas for funding, including supporting emerging services like micro 
transit, investing in charging infrastructure, and transitioning to electric vehicles. 

He emphasized the need for comprehensive operational analysis (COA) to support service 
planning, grant applications, and transit improvements. Additionally, he explained the strict 
timing and reporting requirements for these funds and the necessity of meeting the submission 
deadline by December 31st to the California State Transportation Agency. 

Mr. Haven stressed that while this allocation was for one year, there would be ongoing efforts 
to secure funding for subsequent years, promising continued updates and proposals for future 
funding cycles. 

Committee Questions/Comments 

Chair Hill expressed excitement about the recent developments, particularly in partnership with 
Plaster regarding microtransit. They highlighted the opportunity for Placer [County] to move 
forward with vehicle procurement, expressing appreciation for the team's efforts in making this 
happen. Chair Hill emphasized the significance of this progress, deeming it a potential game-
changer as they aim to reduce costs associated with microtransit by owning their own vehicles. 

22



TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE  
December 13, 2023 

John Friedrich sought clarification on the flexibility of funding allocation, specifically mentioning 
the $3 million intended for micro transit vehicle procurement infrastructure for TDD. He 
inquired whether the ultimate recipient of that funding could extend beyond TDD, possibly 
redirecting to SSTMA or the City for vehicle purchases. Friedrich emphasized the need to 
confirm the fluidity of the ultimate recipient, ensuring it wasn't pre-programmed. 
 
Nick Haven responded that the actual recipient of the funding needs to align with the guidelines, 
indicating that the eligible entities receiving funds should be the ones designated by TRPA. 
While TTD might initially purchase the rolling stock, agreements could enable its use for micro 
transit elsewhere. Mr. Haven emphasized the intent to procure vans for micro transit on the 
south shore and suggested that operating agreements might facilitate this process. 
 
John Friedrich restated that currently, there's no existing plan for a distinct micro transit 
operation directly under SSTMA's purview? 
 
Carl Hasty, District Manager for TTD, highlighted several reasons for considering the use of 
funds. One crucial aspect involves ensuring TDA funds support the existing transit service. 
There's an ongoing effort to integrate the South Shore micro transit service with TTD's 
operations. This integration involves exploring funding avenues, especially for essential transit 
services like pair transit. Discussions revolve around the flexibility the district has in finding an 
arrangement that benefits all involved parties, aiming for an integrated approach that combines 
assets to optimize micro transit services and enhance overall integration. 
 
John Friedrich emphasized the availability of funds to electrify and expand fleets. He highlighted 
ongoing discussions with SSTMA, the city, and other stakeholders about programming the 
available 3 million dollars within specified buckets. The focus is on determining how these funds 
can be utilized to meet operational needs, aligning efforts toward this goal. 
 
Mr. Hasty agreed and reiterated that he doesn’t have the final details yet but that is how TTD is 
looking at various solutions.  
 
Chair Hill highlighted the upcoming discussions within the TTD board throughout the next year, 
emphasizing their focus on programming available funds and the relationships between TTD, the 
city, and TMA. Chair Hill acknowledged that TTD is currently the sole entity able to procure 
these funds, there's ongoing dialogue regarding the flexibility of allocating these resources. 
There's a collective effort to align various aspects, including available funds for micro-transit, 
optimizing their use to provide the desired coverage for the community's needs. The emphasis 
lies on flexibility in approaching these discussions and decisions. 
 
 
Public Comment 
 
Gavin Feiger, representing the Leage to Save Lake Tahoe, highlighted SSTMA’s commitment to 
developing microtransit on the South Shore. Collaborating with partners like the city and TTD, 
they're focused on expanding and electrifying services in the region. They're set to expand the 
service in mid-January, aligning efforts with Douglas County and the city's matching funds. 
They've secured grants for infrastructure like an overnight charger powered by solar energy, 
emphasizing the transition to electric vehicles. Gavin expressed confidence in their partnership 
dynamics and operational models, anticipating more vehicles and electric ones on the roads by 
the next summer, appreciating the funding and support. 
 

23



TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE 
December 13, 2023 

Ellie Waller emphasized the need to address microtransit coverage issues in Douglas County, 
particularly pointing out that the current service zones don't adequately cover the area. She 
highlighted the involvement of a county commissioner, Charlotte Hales, in the South Shore 
Transportation Management group and expressed concerns about the imbalance in service 
compared to the funding contributions coming from Douglas County. 

Marta Michilizzi inquired about the efficiency and performance of electric vehicles in Tahoe's 
cold weather conditions, noting the emphasis on electric vehicles and expressing curiosity about 
available data regarding their functionality in such climates. 

Ann Nichols raised concerns about the lack of a financial analysis regarding transit services, 
citing Placer County's comprehensive study on ridership and usage. She emphasized the need 
for transparency regarding the public's responsibility and questioned the allocation of costs, 
such as transportation for ski area employees and teenagers' use of micro-transit for daily trips, 
which she noted cost around $17 per ride. She expressed a desire for a more detailed discussion 
and information regarding this financial aspect beyond Placer County's analysis. 

Nick Haven responded to some of the public comments and acknowledged the complexities of 
electric vehicle (EV) adoption in the Tahoe area due to factors like topography and access 
requirements. He highlighted TTD's experience with heavy-duty EV buses, acknowledging that 
full electrification might not be immediately feasible given vehicle availability and suitability for 
the terrain. He assured a methodical approach to electrification by TART and TTD. Regarding the 
South Shore micro-transit, he mentioned the potential cost reduction once the organization 
owns its vehicles and suggested checking the South Shore TMA for available metrics on their 
service performance, indicating that similar data could be accessed upon request. 

Mr. Friedrich highlighted his experience with electric vehicles (EVs) in the area, referencing the 
Lake Tahoe Unified School District's operation of electric school buses. He emphasized the 
increasing presence of EVs, including medium and heavy-duty vehicles, in mountain 
communities, stating his personal experience with EVs since 2014 without any incidents. Mr. 
Friedrich noted slight battery capacity reductions in cold weather but assured that route 
planning compensates for this. He discussed the performance similarities between EVs and 
traditional vehicles, citing all-wheel drive capabilities and strong torque. Additionally, he 
mentioned the availability of funding and incentives like California's HVIP program, providing 
economic benefits for transitioning to EV ownership. 

Mr. Friedrich made a motion to adoption of Resolution 2023-__ as shown in Attachment A. 

Ayes: Mr. Aguilar, Mr. Friedrich, Ms. Hays, Ms. Hill, Mr. Hoenigman. 
Nays: None. 

Motion carried. 

VII. UPCOMING TOPICS

Michelle Glickert revisited a previously displayed slide and welcomed suggestions or
additional input from the committee members regarding the agenda and plans for the
upcoming year. She encouraged board members to contribute, ask questions, or

24



TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE 
December 13, 2023 

propose any additions or modifications to the agenda for discussion. 

V. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS

None.

VI. PUBLIC INTEREST COMMENTS

Ellie Waller expressed anticipation for the revival of the bi-state consultation on transportation
that occurred in 2017, led by the directors of Nevada's Department of Conservation and Natural
Resources and California's Secretary of Natural Resources. Ms. Waller emphasized the
importance of their input at the committee level and urged their appearance before this
committee or any regional discussions regarding the 777 funding framework. She voiced
concerns about the substantial financial commitment required from local jurisdictions over two
decades, particularly emphasizing the need for transparent legislative processes, especially in
Douglas County where significant backlog maintenance in transportation and roads exists. Ms.
Waller looked forward to robust discussions and detailed consultations at both local and
committee levels.

Carl Hasty, representing the Tahoe Transportation District, extended a warm welcome to the
committee, highlighting their focus on transportation matters. He emphasized their
commitment as a bi-state partner exclusively dedicated to transportation issues. Mr. Hasty
noted the significant overlap in board membership between the two entities and expressed a
desire for increased dialogue, especially as they approach discussions in the spring about future
plans. Additionally, he mentioned the upcoming fiftieth anniversary of public transit initiation at
Lake Tahoe in 2024, signifying an opportune moment to reflect on past achievements and look
ahead to future endeavors.

Cindy Gustafson expressed the importance of the committee seeking presentations from various
jurisdictions to comprehend the complexities between TMAs, transit operations, and the
expansion of micro mass transit due to bus driver shortages. She highlighted the significant
contributions from ski areas to funding transportation projects through TOT and TBID funds,
totaling over 4.5 million dollars recently allocated by the Board of Supervisors. Ms. Gustafson
emphasized understanding how each jurisdiction surpasses the private share of funding for
transportation initiatives.

Ms. Hill acknowledged the support for microtransit from various organizations like the North
Lake Tahoe Tourism Board, RSCBA, and Washoe County. She expressed anticipation for
discussions with IVGID due to their involvement in a ski resort.

25



TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE 
December 13, 2023 
VII. ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Friedrich moved to adjourn.

Meeting adjourned at 11:11 a.m.

   Respectfully Submitted, 

Katherine Huston 
Paralegal 

The above meeting was recorded in its entirety. Anyone wishing to listen to the recording may find it at 
https://www.trpa.gov/meeting-materials/. In addition, written documents submitted at the meeting are 
available for review. If you require assistance locating this information, please contact the TRPA at (775) 

588-4547 or virtualmeetinghelp@trpa.gov.

26

https://www.trpa.gov/meeting-materials/
mailto:virtualmeetinghelp@trpa.gov


       OPERATIONS & GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1  

STAFF REPORT 

Date: February 21, 2024  

To: TRPA Governing Board 

From: TRPA Staff 

Subject: January Financial Statements, Fiscal Year 2024 

Summary and Staff Recommendation: 
We are seven months, or 64% of the way into fiscal year 2024. So far, everything is going 
according to plan. Contract expenditures lag, but that is normal. 

Staff recommends acceptance of the January Financial Statements for Fiscal Year 2024. 

Required Motion:  
In order to accept the Financial Statements, the Governing Board must make the following 
motion based on the staff report: 

1) A motion to accept the January 2024 Financial Statements

In order for the motion to pass, an affirmative vote of any eight Board members is required. 

Background:  
The first seven months (64%) of the fiscal year are now complete. Revenues are 54% of the 
annual budget, and expenditures are 39% of the budget. Planning Fees are ahead of last year 
and 6% over the three-year average. Grant revenues are billed in arrears, so they lag, leaving us 
in a small negative position.  

YTD Revenues and Expenses  
Revenues are 54% of the budget. TRPA recognizes revenue when billed, so the states’ 
contributions are shown in their entirety. Expenditures over the rest of the fiscal year will offset 
the revenue received up front. Tahoe Science Council billings account for the remaining 
unrealized state revenue. Those are cost reimbursement and are billed in arrears. Current 
Planning fees are ahead of the three-year average. Current Planning Fees are 106% of the 
average for the prior 3 years and are at 54% of the budget. The annual inflation increase for 
planning fees was implemented at the end of January and will start showing up in February. AIS 
fees are 62% of the budget. Shoreline fees are 35% of the budget, but buoy renewal fees are not 
due until June. We did bill TKPOA for their mooring fees and that is why Shoreline is so high at 
this point in the year. Grants revenues are at 25% of the budget. Two major EIP grants from the 

27



OPERATIONS & GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1  

US Forest Service have been slow to ramp up, bringing all these numbers down. We forecast 
$3.2M in contract expenditures against those grants, but none of that has been spent yet. We 
still have not billed all our Transportation grants for the 2nd quarter. 

Expenditures are 33% of the budget. Compensation expenses are at 54% of the annual budget, 
which is expected due to vacancies. We have filled our Legal vacancies. Contract expenses have 
risen to 28% of the budget and will continue to close the gap in the months ahead. This is held 
back by the USFS grants. Our debt service payment in December included both principle and 
capital, so it amounts to 70% of the budget. An interest payment is due in June. 

Year to date we have taken in $1.3M in mitigation fees and disbursed $0.9M through the end of 
January. We transferred $3.7M in Excess Coverage Mitigation Fees to CTC in February, and that 
will show up in next month’s reports. 

TRPA Balance Sheet 
TRPA’s Balance Sheet remains strong due to billing both State’s contributions at the beginning of 
the fiscal year. Nevada’s contribution was received in August and California funds were received 
in September. TRPA spends down the annual state funds throughout the fiscal year. Total assets 

Tahoe Regional Planning Agency
Fiscal YTD January 2024

Revenue State & Local Fees Grants  Total
Fees for Service 11,200 2,760,505 2,771,705
Grants 425 22,149 3,355,574 3,378,148
State Revenue 8,070,087 83,496 8,153,584
Local Revenue 150,000 150,000
Rent Revenue 201,548 201,548
Other Revenue 106,078 7,101 113,178
TRPA Rent Revenue 401,905 401,905

Revenue Total 8,337,790 3,393,208 3,439,070 15,170,068

Expenses
Compensation 2,757,853 1,299,272 724,139 4,781,264
Contracts 1,114,630 787,474 2,719,528 4,621,633
Financing (350) 434,487 434,137
Other 480,705 168,217 56,257 705,179
Rent 423,235 12,758 435,993
A&O/Transfers (886,253) 604,327 281,749 (177)

Expenses Total 3,889,820 3,306,536 3,781,673 10,978,029

Net 4,447,970 86,672 (342,603) 4,192,039

* Excludes mitigation funds

28



   

OPERATIONS & GOVERNANCE     
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1                                                                                                                                                                           

decreased by $0.1M with Grant billings mostly offsetting expenditures. Liabilities increased by 
$0.6M due to increased collection of mitigation funds. Net assets are $27.3M, mostly due to 
having the state funds on hand at the beginning of the fiscal year plus $9.0M of Mitigation and 
Securities deposits and $3.8M of Grants. 
 

 
 

Cash Flow 
Net Cash flow was a positive $0.1M for the month. Cash receipts totaled $2.1M, $1.5M from 
Grant billings and the balance from planning fees. Disbursements were $2.0M, 10% higher than 
the five-year average for January. Increased funding from LTRA is driving this.  

Tahoe Regional Planning Agency
Balance Sheet @1-31-24

TRPA Grants Trust Total
Cash & Invest 9,873,711 3,031,495 23,472,115 36,377,321
A/R 215,397 817,001 1,032,398
Current Assets 160,753 160,753
LT Assets 8,313,592 8,313,592

Total Assets 18,563,453 3,848,496 23,472,115 45,884,064

A/P 13,616 (4,001) 9,615
Benefits 989,143 989,143
Deferred Rev 54,459 42,091 96,550
Deposits 154,024 2,845 156,869
LT Debt 7,972,000 7,972,000
Mitigation 1,585,463 1,585,463
Securities 7,458,988 7,458,988

Total Liabilities 9,183,242 40,934 9,044,451 18,268,628

Net Position 9,380,211 3,807,561 14,427,664 27,615,436

29



OPERATIONS & GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1  

When reading the detailed reports (attached), be aware that fund balances may not be intuitive. 
Negative balances mean revenues exceeded expenses. Positive fund balance occurs when 
expenses exceed revenue. This reflects the formatting in our accounting system. 

Contact Information: 
For questions regarding this agenda item, please contact Chris Keillor at (775) 589-5222 or 
ckeillor@trpa.gov. 

To submit a written public comment, email publiccomment@trpa.gov with the appropriate 
agenda item in the subject line. Written comments received by 4 p.m. the day before a 
scheduled public meeting will be distributed and posted to the TRPA website before the 
meeting begins. TRPA does not guarantee written comments received after 4 p.m. the day 
before a meeting will be distributed and posted in time for the meeting. 

Attachment: 
A. January Financial Statements

30

mailto:ckeillor@trpa.gov
mailto:publiccomment@trpa.gov


OPERATIONS & GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1  

Attachment A 

January Financial Statements 

31



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency
Fiscal YTD January 2024

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

State Revenue Grants Fees for
Service

Revenue

Budget Year to Date

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

Compensation Contracts

Expenditures

Budget Year to Date

TRPA, 
9,380,211 

Grants, 3,807,561 

Trust, 
14,427,664 

Net Position

OPERATIONS AND GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO 1.
32



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency
Actuals vs. Budget by Program

Fiscal YTD January 2024

TRPA Totals Ann Budget YTD Remaining % Spent
Revenue

State Revenue 8,479,456 8,153,584 325,872 96%
Grants 14,069,747 3,378,148 10,691,599 24%
Fees for Service 4,069,663 2,771,705 1,297,958 68%
Local Revenue 150,000 150,000 100%
Rent Revenue 329,623 201,548 128,075 61%
TRPA Rent Revenue 688,980 401,905 287,075 58%
Other Revenue 100,000 113,178 13,178 113%

Revenue Total 27,887,469 15,170,068 12,717,401 54%

Expenses
Compensation 8,901,175 4,781,264 4,119,911 54%
Contracts 16,618,623 4,621,633 11,996,990 28%
Financing 620,260 434,137 186,122 70%
Rent 788,525 435,993 352,532 55%
Other 1,293,388 767,455 525,934 59%
A&O/Transfers 13,838 177 13,661 1%

Expenses Total 28,208,133 11,040,304 17,167,828 39%

TRPA Net (320,664) 4,129,763 (4,450,427)

Agency Mgmt
Revenue

Fees for Service 11,200 11,200
Grants 50,000 20,049 29,951 40%
State Revenue 7,262,571 7,179,000 83,571 99%
Other Revenue 100,000 106,078 6,078 106%
Local Revenue 150,000 150,000 100%

Revenue Total 7,562,571 7,466,327 96,244 99%

Expenses
Compensation 2,532,724 1,362,584 1,170,140 54%
Contracts 272,180 102,030 170,151 37%
Financing 74 244 318 -330%
Rent 2,249 2,586 337 115%
Other 270,138 124,299 145,839 46%

Expenses Total 3,077,365 1,591,255 1,486,110 52%

Agency Mgmt Net 4,485,206 5,875,072 (1,389,866)

OPERATIONS AND GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO 1.33



Ann Budget YTD Remaining
Current Planning

Revenue
Fees for Service 3,111,616 2,164,319 947,297 70%
Grants 2,100 2,100
State Revenue 124,000 124,000 100%
Other Revenue 5,204 5,204

Revenue Total 3,235,616 2,295,623 939,994 71%

Expenses
Compensation 2,260,876 1,259,664 1,001,212 56%
Contracts 831,825 586,255 245,569 70%
Financing 57,611 30,489 27,122 53%
Other 96,392 26,861 69,531 28%
A&O/Transfers 1,230,030 580,875 649,156

Expenses Total 4,476,733 2,484,142 1,992,590 55%

Curr Plan Net (1,241,117) (188,520) (1,052,597)

Envir. Imp.
Revenue

Fees for Service 958,047 596,187 361,861 62%
Grants 9,705,911 2,126,387 7,579,524 22%
State Revenue 750,000 750,000 100%

Revenue Total 11,413,958 3,472,574 7,941,385 30%

Expenses
Compensation 1,247,248 764,028 483,220 61%
Contracts 10,253,453 2,327,909 7,925,544 23%
Financing 15,000 10,461 4,539 70%
Rent 94,769 25,950 68,819 27%
Other 180,795 54,410 126,384 30%
A&O/Transfers 247,529 99,088 148,442

Expenses Total 12,038,794 3,281,846 8,756,949 27%

Env Imp Net (624,836) 190,728 (815,564)

OPERATIONS AND GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO 1.34



Ann Budget YTD Remaining
LRTP

Revenue
Grants 3,515,979 738,845 2,777,134 21%
Fees for Service
Other Revenue

Revenue Total 3,515,979 738,845 2,777,134 21%

Expenses
Compensation 1,458,098 697,910 760,188 48%
Contracts 2,305,702 246,760 2,058,942 11%
Rent 2,527 2,527
Other 33,860 91,355 57,495 270%
A&O/Transfers 512,242 205,597 306,645

Expenses Total 4,312,428 1,241,621 3,070,807 29%

LRTP Net (796,449) (502,776) (293,674)

R & A
Revenue

Grants 797,857 490,766 307,090 62%
State Revenue 342,885 100,584 242,301 29%

Revenue Total 1,140,742 591,350 549,392 52%

Expenses
Compensation 1,157,439 639,145 518,294 55%
Contracts 2,328,603 818,107 1,510,496 35%
Other 16,165 4,097 12,068 25%
A&O/Transfers 2,001 517 1,484 26%

Expenses Total 3,504,207 1,461,865 2,042,342 42%

R & A Net (2,363,465) (870,515) (1,492,951)

OPERATIONS AND GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO 1.35



Ann Budget YTD Remaining
Infrastructure

Revenue
Other Revenue 1,897 1,897
Rent Revenue 329,623 201,548 128,075 61%
TRPA Rent Revenue 688,980 401,905 287,075 58%

Revenue Total 1,018,603 605,349 413,253 59%

Expenses
Compensation 101,607 57,933 43,675 57%
Contracts 626,860 210,573 416,287 34%
Financing 547,575 393,432 154,143 72%
Rent 688,980 401,905 287,075 58%
Other 555,859 404,159 151,700 73%

Expenses Total 2,520,881 1,468,001 1,052,880 58%

Infrastructure Net (1,502,279) (862,652)

Other
Expenses

A&O/Transfers 2,005,640 886,253 1,119,388
Expenses Total 2,005,640 886,253 1,119,388

OPERATIONS AND GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO 1.36



TRPA Selected Current Planning Fees
Fiscal YTD January 2024

Fee Type 2021 2022 2023 2024
This year vs. 
Last 3 Years

RESIDENTIAL 237,846 289,512 321,811 209,259 (73,797)
SHOREZONE 93,655 98,035 36,508 152,964 76,898
OTHER_REV 100,780 123,061 124,223 151,187 35,166
REVISIONS 54,312 47,471 61,030 97,728 43,457
COMMERCL_TA 43,579 79,992 58,145 77,538 16,966
ALLOCATION 57,290 58,195 54,535 72,877 16,204
TREE_RMVL 58,577 53,825 45,058 58,548 6,061
LAND_CHALL 89,131 35,462 26,598 56,709 6,312
FULL_SITE 45,453 53,663 47,000 49,262 556
SECURITIES 24,514 32,199 47,340 44,466 9,782
RECR_PUBLIC 30,406 37,923 38,287 44,201
GENERAL 92,201 86,597 79,381 41,395
LAND_CAP 12,100 8,057 12,537 24,945 14,047
MOORING 21,354 101,943 52,990 24,803 (33,959)
GRADE_EXCEPT 20,496 26,034 21,012 24,388 1,874
SOILS_HYDRO 15,060 26,367 18,014 19,437 (377)
ENFORCEMNT 44,922 32,233 11,273 17,806 (11,669)
IPES 12,540 8,894 15,101 15,416
VB_COVERAGE 10,338 6,445 7,593 11,394
VB_USE 2,892 1,986 8,368 10,764
STD2 34,731 8,533
ENVIRONMENT 8,280 8,280
LLADJ_ROW 5,140 7,256 20,285 7,550 (3,344)
QUAL_EXEMPT 5,278 4,321 6,130 7,399 2,156
GRADING 7,663 7,688 7,376 7,024 (552)
TEMP_USE 1,846 2,853 5,005 5,420 2,185
PRE-APP 2,185 4,370 9,006 5,130 (57)
TRANS_DEV 15,015 9,067 5,450 5,004 (4,840)
PARTIAL_SITE 5,768 5,534 4,460 3,526 (1,728)
CONSTR_EXT 2,114 2,418 2,404 3,407
SUBDIV_EXIST 3,329 1,119 2,999
QE SHOREZONE 3,399 5,088 2,697 2,904 (824)
SIGNS 2,918 3,356 1,731 2,097 (571)
HISTORIC 1,105 1,198 1,297 529
RES_DRIVE 600 0 651 940 523
LMTD_INCENT 357 368 756 840 346
SCENIC_ASSES 546 483 301
UNDRGRD_TANK 1,628 419 882 478 (498)
CONVERSION 305 645 331 358 (69)
STD (602) 13,512 5,344 0 (6,085)
MONITORING (2,500) 5,000 (833)
CEP 4,995 (1,665)
NOTE_APPEAL 3,968 3,066 3,228 (3,421)
Totals 1,126,133 1,279,227 1,209,583 1,278,755 73,774

106%

OPERATIONS AND GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 137



TRPA Detailed Financials
Fiscal YTD January 2024

Row Labels Ann  Budget YTD Remaining Percent Spent
Agency Mgmt

GF Revenue
Revenue

Fees for Service - (11,200) 11,200 #DIV/0!
State Revenue (7,262,571) (7,179,000) (83,571) 98.8%
Local Revenue (150,000)       (150,000) 0 100.0%
Other Revenue (100,000)       (106,078) 6,078 106.1%

Revenue Total (7,512,571) (7,446,278) (66,293) 99.1%

GF Revenue Total (7,512,571)   (7,446,278) (66,293) 99.1%

Gov Board
Expenses

Contracts - 16,838 (16,838) #DIV/0!
Other 26,038          13,621 12,416 52.3%
Rent 2,249             2,500 (251) 111.2%

Expenses Total 28,287          32,959 (4,672) 116.5%

Gov Board Total 28,287          32,959 (4,672) 116.5%

Executive
Expenses

Compensation 913,969        570,753 343,216 62.4%
Other 12,803          13,936 (1,133) 108.8%

Expenses Total 926,773        584,690 342,083 63.1%

Executive Total 926,773        584,690 342,083 63.1%

Legal
Expenses

Compensation 489,553        179,116 310,437 36.6%
Contracts 123,319        17,579 105,740 14.3%
Other 6,920             4,813 2,106 69.6%

Expenses Total 619,792        201,508 418,284 32.5%

Legal Total 619,792        201,508 418,284 32.5%

Communications
Expenses

Compensation 390,061        158,810 231,251 40.7%
Contracts 30,000          0 30,000 0.0%
Other 61,607          19,085 42,522 31.0%
Rent - 86 (86) #DIV/0!

Expenses Total 481,668        177,981 303,687 37.0%

OPERATIONS AND  GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO 1.38



TRPA Detailed Financials
Fiscal YTD January 2024

Row Labels Ann  Budget YTD Remaining Percent Spent

Communications Total 481,668        177,981 303,687 37.0%

Finance
Revenue

Financing (100) (350) 250 350.0%
Revenue Total (100) (350) 250 350.0%

Expenses
Compensation 461,504        291,025 170,479 63.1%
Contracts 54,115          23,300 30,815 43.1%
Other 3,259             2,825 434 86.7%

Expenses Total 518,878        317,149 201,728 61.1%

Finance Total 518,778        316,799 201,978 61.1%

HR
Expenses

Compensation 277,636        162,881 114,755 58.7%
Contracts 64,746          44,313 20,433 68.4%
Other 82,592          31,474 51,118 38.1%

Expenses Total 424,975        238,668 186,307 56.2%

HR Total 424,975        238,668 186,307 56.2%

Agency Mgmt Total (4,512,299)   (5,893,673) 1,381,374 130.6%

Current Planning
Current Planning

Revenue
Fees for Service (2,415,068) (1,291,498) (1,123,570) 53.5%

Revenue Total (2,415,068) (1,291,498) (1,123,570) 53.5%

Expenses
Compensation 1,636,795     933,784 703,011 57.0%
Contracts 342,970        219,964 123,006 64.1%
Financing 49,087          27,529 21,557 56.1%
Other 5,485             3,846 1,638 70.1%
A&O/Transfers 912,022        446,128 465,894 48.9%

Expenses Total 2,946,358     1,631,251 1,315,107 55.4%

Current Planning Total 531,290        339,753 191,537 63.9%

Current Planning Reimbursed

OPERATIONS AND  GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO 1.39



TRPA Detailed Financials
Fiscal YTD January 2024

Row Labels Ann  Budget YTD Remaining Percent Spent
Revenue

Fees for Service (200,000)       (635,751) 435,751 317.9%
Revenue Total (200,000)       (635,751) 435,751 317.9%

Expenses
Contracts 200,000        235,798 (35,798) 117.9%

Expenses Total 200,000        235,798 (35,798) 117.9%

Current Planning Reimbursed Total - (399,953) 399,953 #DIV/0!

Code Enforcement
Expenses

Compensation 393,182        235,722 157,460 60.0%
Other 7,889             1,425 6,464 18.1%
A&O/Transfers 219,081        113,422 105,659 51.8%

Expenses Total 620,151        350,568 269,583 56.5%

Code Enforcement Total 620,151        350,568 269,583 56.5%

Boat Crew
Revenue

State Revenue (124,000)       (124,000) 0 100.0%
Revenue Total (124,000)       (124,000) 0 100.0%

Expenses
Compensation 53,356          46,955 6,401 88.0%
Other 50,055          19,645 30,410 39.2%
Rent - 2,813 (2,813) #DIV/0!

Expenses Total 103,411        69,413 33,998 67.1%

Boat Crew Total (20,589)         (54,587) 33,998 265.1%

Settlements
Revenue

Fees for Service (150,000)       0 (150,000) 0.0%
Grants - (2,100) 2,100 #DIV/0!

Revenue Total (150,000)       (2,100) (147,900) 1.4%

Expenses
Contracts 159,000        82,351 76,649 51.8%
Other 20,600          0 20,600 0.0%

Expenses Total 179,600        82,351 97,249 45.9%

Settlements Total 29,600          80,251 (50,651) 271.1%

OPERATIONS AND  GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO 1.40



TRPA Detailed Financials
Fiscal YTD January 2024

Row Labels Ann  Budget YTD Remaining Percent Spent

Legal - Direct or Disallowed
Revenue

Fees for Service - (67,648) 67,648 #DIV/0!
Revenue Total - (67,648) 67,648 #DIV/0!

Expenses
Contracts - 3,709 (3,709) #DIV/0!
Fees for Service - 8,732 (8,732) #DIV/0!

Expenses Total - 12,440 (12,440) #DIV/0!

Legal - Direct or Disallowed Total - (55,208) 55,208 #DIV/0!

Shorezone
Revenue

Fees for Service (346,548)       (178,153) (168,395) 51.4%
Other Revenue - (5,204) 5,204 #DIV/0!

Revenue Total (346,548)       (183,357) (163,191) 52.9%

Expenses
Compensation 177,543        43,203 134,340 24.3%
Contracts 129,855        44,434 85,420 34.2%
Financing 8,524             2,959 5,565 34.7%
Other 12,363          1,945 10,418 15.7%
Rent - 2,739 (2,739) #DIV/0!
A&O/Transfers 98,927          21,324 77,603 21.6%

Expenses Total 427,212        116,604 310,607 27.3%

Shorezone Total 80,664          (66,752) 147,416 -82.8%

Current Planning Total 1,241,117     194,072 1,047,045 15.6%

Envir. Imp.
Env. Improv.

Expenses
Compensation 649,229        449,587 199,643 69.2%
Contracts 21,855          1,960 19,895 9.0%
Other 14,131          1,960 12,171 13.9%

Expenses Total 685,215        453,506 231,709 66.2%

Env. Improv. Total 685,215        453,506 231,709 66.2%

USFS LTRA Ski Run Marina
Revenue

OPERATIONS AND  GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO 1.41



TRPA Detailed Financials
Fiscal YTD January 2024

Row Labels Ann  Budget YTD Remaining Percent Spent
Grants (194,816)       (19,303) (175,513) 9.9%

Revenue Total (194,816)       (19,303) (175,513) 9.9%

Expenses
Compensation 44,835          2,372 42,463 5.3%
Contracts 125,000        16,382 108,618 13.1%
A&O/Transfers 24,982          1,046 23,936 4.2%

Expenses Total 194,816        19,799 175,017 10.2%

USFS LTRA Ski Run Marina Total 0                    496 (496) 177221.4%

BMP Enforcement in NV (NV 319)
Revenue

Grants (62,114)         (1,090) (61,024) 1.8%
Revenue Total (62,114)         (1,090) (61,024) 1.8%

Expenses
Compensation 1,566             1,571 (5) 100.3%
Contracts 60,000          0 60,000 0.0%
A&O/Transfers 548                283 265 51.6%

Expenses Total 62,114          1,853 60,261 3.0%

BMP Enforcement in NV (NV 319) Total 0                    763 (763) 282685.2%

Stormwater Planning Support
Revenue

Fees for Service (61,100)         (40,406) (20,694) 66.1%
Revenue Total (61,100)         (40,406) (20,694) 66.1%

Expenses
Compensation -                 46,553 (46,553) #DIV/0!
Other 721                0 721 0.0%
A&O/Transfers -                 23,452 (23,452) #DIV/0!

Expenses Total 721                70,005 (69,284) 9708.3%

Stormwater Planning Support Total (60,379)         29,599 (89,978) -49.0%

Lahontan Caldor Fire Monitoring
Revenue

Grants (99,639)         (404) (99,235) 0.4%
Revenue Total (99,639)         (404) (99,235) 0.4%

Expenses
Compensation 2,305             404 1,901 17.5%

OPERATIONS AND  GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO 1.42



TRPA Detailed Financials
Fiscal YTD January 2024

Row Labels Ann  Budget YTD Remaining Percent Spent
Contracts 97,333          0 97,333 0.0%
A&O/Transfers - 0 0 #DIV/0!

Expenses Total 99,639          404 99,234 0.4%

Lahontan Caldor Fire Monitoring Total (0) 0 (0) -47.4%

USFS LTRA Forest Health
Revenue

Grants (1,631,476) (23,546) (1,607,930) 1.4%
Revenue Total (1,631,476) (23,546) (1,607,930) 1.4%

Expenses
Compensation 52,380          7,735 44,645 14.8%
Contracts 1,549,909     0 1,549,909 0.0%
A&O/Transfers 29,186          58 29,129 0.2%

Expenses Total 1,631,476     7,793 1,623,683 0.5%

USFS LTRA Forest Health Total (0) (15,753) 15,753 4633285.3%

USFS LTRA BMP
Revenue

Grants - (19,596) 19,596 #DIV/0!
Revenue Total - (19,596) 19,596 #DIV/0!

Expenses
Compensation 24,689          643 24,046 2.6%
Contracts 1,699,962     0 1,699,962 0.0%
Grants (1,738,407) 0 (1,738,407) 0.0%
A&O/Transfers 13,757          4,173 9,584 30.3%

Expenses Total 0 4,816 (4,815) 1852138.5%

USFS LTRA BMP Total 0 (14,780) 14,780 -5684592.3%

EPA Green Infrastructure Watershed
Revenue

Grants (34,695)         (16,970) (17,725) 48.9%
Revenue Total (34,695)         (16,970) (17,725) 48.9%

Expenses
Compensation 9,437             1,412 8,024 15.0%
Contracts 20,000          15,515 4,485 77.6%
A&O/Transfers 5,258             521 4,738 9.9%

Expenses Total 34,695          17,448 17,247 50.3%

OPERATIONS AND  GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO 1.43



TRPA Detailed Financials
Fiscal YTD January 2024

Row Labels Ann  Budget YTD Remaining Percent Spent
EPA Green Infrastructure Watershed Total (0) 478 (478) -398350.0%

Envir. Imp. Total 624,836        454,310 170,526 72.7%

LRTP
Long Range & Transp. Planning

Expenses
Compensation 279,976        162,245 117,731 57.9%
Contracts 328,408        30,500 297,908 9.3%
Other 8,777             2,648 6,129 30.2%
Rent 2,527             0 2,527 0.0%

Expenses Total 619,687        195,392 424,295 31.5%

Long Range & Transp. Planning Total 619,687        195,392 424,295 31.5%

TMPO
Expenses

Contracts 155,729        233 155,496 0.1%
Other 21,034          32,489 (11,455) 154.5%

Expenses Total 176,763        32,722 144,041 18.5%

TMPO Total 176,763        32,722 144,041 18.5%

LRTP Total 796,450        228,115 568,335 28.6%

R & A
Research & Analysis

Expenses
Compensation 1,112,391     630,942 481,448 56.7%
Contracts 1,237,942     284,133 953,809 23.0%
Other 13,133          3,591 9,542 27.3%

Expenses Total 2,363,466     918,667 1,444,799 38.9%

Research & Analysis Total 2,363,466     918,667 1,444,799 38.9%

Nearshore Trib Monitoring (Lahontan)
Revenue

Grants (128,223)       (145,139) 16,916 113.2%
Revenue Total (128,223)       (145,139) 16,916 113.2%

Expenses
Compensation 2,305             1,346 960 58.4%
Contracts 125,918        85,508 40,410 67.9%
A&O/Transfers - 0 0 #DIV/0!

OPERATIONS AND  GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO 1.44



TRPA Detailed Financials
Fiscal YTD January 2024

Row Labels Ann  Budget YTD Remaining Percent Spent
Expenses Total 128,223        86,854 41,370 67.7%

Nearshore Trib Monitoring (Lahontan) Tota 0 (58,285) 58,286 -12142797.9%

Lake Tahoe West GIS Support
Revenue

State Revenue (201,422)       (83,496) (117,926) 41.5%
Revenue Total (201,422)       (83,496) (117,926) 41.5%

Expenses
Contracts 201,422        76,370 125,052 37.9%
Other - 25 (25) #DIV/0!

Expenses Total 201,422        76,396 125,026 37.9%

Lake Tahoe West GIS Support Total - (7,100) 7,100 #DIV/0!

Lahontan Lakewide Survey
Revenue

Grants (207,057)       (86,435) (120,622) 41.7%
Revenue Total (207,057)       (86,435) (120,622) 41.7%

Expenses
Compensation 3,590             495 3,095 13.8%
Contracts 204,752        86,117 118,635 42.1%
A&O/Transfers (1,285)           (177) (1,108) 13.8%

Expenses Total 207,057        86,435 120,622 41.7%

Lahontan Lakewide Survey Total (0) 0 (0) -500.0%

Climate Impacts on Alpine Lake
Revenue

Grants (48,000)         0 (48,000) 0.0%
Revenue Total (48,000)         0 (48,000) 0.0%

Expenses
Contracts 45,714          0 45,714 0.0%
A&O/Transfers 2,286             0 2,286 0.0%

Expenses Total 47,999          0 47,999 0.0%

Climate Impacts on Alpine Lake Total (0) 0 (0) 0.0%

NDEP Nearshore Algal Monitoring
Revenue

Grants (32,000)         (19,072) (12,928) 59.6%

OPERATIONS AND  GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO 1.45



TRPA Detailed Financials
Fiscal YTD January 2024

Row Labels Ann  Budget YTD Remaining Percent Spent
Revenue Total (32,000)         (19,072) (12,928) 59.6%

Expenses
Contracts 32,000          19,072 12,928 59.6%

Expenses Total 32,000          19,072 12,928 59.6%

NDEP Nearshore Algal Monitoring Total - 0 0 #DIV/0!

R & A Total 2,363,466     853,281 1,510,185 36.1%

Infrastructure
General Services

Expenses
Compensation 101,607        57,933 43,675 57.0%
Contracts 30,414          432 29,982 1.4%
Other 181,208        123,837 57,370 68.3%
Rent 688,980        401,905 287,075 58.3%

Expenses Total 1,002,209     584,107 418,102 58.3%

General Services Total 1,002,209     584,107 418,102 58.3%

IT
Expenses

Contracts 280,000        148,924 131,076 53.2%
Other 213,586        204,121 9,465 95.6%

Expenses Total 493,586        353,045 140,541 71.5%

IT Total 493,586        353,045 140,541 71.5%

Building
Revenue

Other Revenue - (1,897) 1,897 #DIV/0!
Rent Revenue (325,943)       (201,548) (124,395) 61.8%
TRPA Rent Revenue (688,980)       (401,905) (287,075) 58.3%

Revenue Total (1,014,923) (605,349) (409,573) 59.6%

Expenses
Contracts 316,447        61,217 255,229 19.3%
Financing 547,575        393,432 154,143 71.8%
Other 83,378          23,208 60,170 27.8%

Expenses Total 947,400        477,858 469,542 50.4%

Building Total (67,523)         (127,492) 59,969 188.8%

OPERATIONS AND  GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO 1.46



TRPA Detailed Financials
Fiscal YTD January 2024

Row Labels Ann  Budget YTD Remaining Percent Spent
CAM

Revenue
Rent Revenue (3,680)           0 (3,680) 0.0%

Revenue Total (3,680)           0 (3,680) 0.0%

Expenses
Other 77,687          52,992 24,695 68.2%

Expenses Total 77,687          52,992 24,695 68.2%

CAM Total 74,007          52,992 21,015 71.6%

Infrastructure Total 1,502,279     862,652 639,627 57.4%

Other
Other

Expenses
Compensation 143,183        0 143,183 0.0%
Contracts - 330,000 (330,000) #DIV/0!
Other 140,181        0 140,181 0.0%
A&O/Transfers (2,005,640) (886,253) (1,119,388) 44.2%

Expenses Total (1,722,276) (556,253) (1,166,024) 32.3%

Other Total (1,722,276)   (556,253) (1,166,024) 32.3%

Other Total (1,722,276)   (556,253) (1,166,024) 32.3%

Grand Total 293,572        (3,857,496) 4,151,067 -1314.0%

OPERATIONS AND  GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO 1.47



48



OPERATIONS & GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 2 

STAFF REPORT 

Date: February 21, 2024 

To: TRPA Governing Board 

From: TRPA Staff 

Subject:  Adoption of 2024 Watercraft Inspection Fee Schedule 

Staff Recommendation:   
Staff recommends that the Governing Board adopt the proposed Resolution (Attachment A) containing the 
2024 Watercraft Inspection Fee Schedule. 

Required Motion:  
In order to approve the proposed 2024 Watercraft Inspection Fee Schedule, the Governing Board must make 
the following motion based on the staff report: 

I. A motion to adopt the proposed Resolution 2024-____, (Attachment A) approving the
2024 Watercraft Inspection Fee Schedule.

In order for the motion to pass, an affirmative vote of any eight members of the Board is required. 

Project Description/Background:   
In 2008, TRPA initiated the Aquatic Invasive Species (AIS) Watercraft Inspection Program (Program) to 
prevent the introduction and spread of aquatic invasive species (AIS) into the waters of the Lake Tahoe 
Region. The Program serves as a national model and is a tremendous success with no new invasions 
detected since the Program began, until the recent discovery of New Zealand mudsnails in September 2023. 
The TRPA has a unique relationship with the Tahoe Resource Conservation District (Tahoe RCD) in that they 
are TRPA’s primary partner in the AIS Program overall, but also a contractor to implement the inspection 
Program and has been doing so since the Program began. 

The TRPA Code (63.4) allows for the collection of fees from the boating public as a long-term funding source 
for the Program that complements public funds. The Code also states that the TRPA Governing Board 
approves the fee schedule annually. The Program utilizes two different stickers to indicate that a boat has 
paid the appropriate fee for that season: one for boats that are exclusively used on Lake Tahoe (“Tahoe 
Only”), and one for boats launching on Lake Tahoe and in other bodies of water outside of the Region 
(“Tahoe In and Out”). The Program also allows for a Single Inspection Pass with a reduced rate that is valid 
for one inspection at the inspection station and seven consecutive days of seal inspections at launch ramps. 
In addition to the annual sticker fees, the Program charges for each decontamination performed. The 
decontamination fee can be avoided if boaters adhere to the “Clean, Drain and Dry” practice the Program 
promotes. Decontamination fees are based on how many “systems” need to be decontaminated because 
they were not “Clean, Drained and Dry.” (A system is a bilge, engine, hull, trailer, live well, etc.) 

49



OPERATIONS & GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 2 

To ensure the continued success and sustainability of the Program, TRPA staff are proposing an increase to 
the fee schedule for the 2024 season.  
 
The proposed fee schedule increases for inspections include: 

• Tahoe Only sticker- increase $5. 
• Tahoe In/Out stickers and Single Inspection passes- increase $10 for watercraft under 17 feet and 

personal watercraft. 
• Tahoe In/Out stickers and the Single Inspection passes- increase $15 for watercraft over 17 feet. 

 
The proposed fee schedule for decontaminations includes a modification based on the number of systems 
that require decontamination, increasing the categories from two to three: 

• Single system decontamination- increase $5.  
• Two and three systems (new category)- the current category is more than one system, with the fee 

of $50. The proposed fee for 2-3 systems is a $10 increase from the current schedule. 
• More than four systems (new category)- the current category is more than one system, with the fee 

of $50. The proposed fee for four or more systems is a $60 increase from the current schedule. 
 

Inspection Fees 2023 
2024 

Proposal 

Amount 
of 
increase 

Tahoe Only  45 50 5 
In/Out: PWC & up to 
17 60 70 10 

In/Out: 17 and up 100 115 15 
Single: PWC & up to 
17 55 65 10 

Single: 17 and up 80 95 15 

    
Decontamination 
Fees 2023     
Decontamination 
(single system, jet ski) 25 30 5 

Decontamination (2-3 
systems) 50 60 10 

Complex 
Decontamination (4 
or more systems) 

  110 110 

Ballast Boats (in addition)     
Drained Ballasts  25 30 5 

Undrained Ballasts  50 60 10 
Attached Mussels 250 350 100 

 
Supporting Information  
Several factors weighed into the proposal to increase fees for 2024 including staff wages, grant funding, and 
general cost increases to operate the Program.  
 

50



OPERATIONS & GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 2 

Sticker fees have not had a significant increase in several years, although the structure of the fee schedule 
has been adapted to address the factors listed above. 

Sticker Fee Increase Recent History 
Inspection fees: 

• Tahoe Only stickers increased by $3 in 2019.
• Tahoe In/Out and Single Inspection pass increased by $5 in 2021.

Decontamination fees: 
• Single system decontaminations and personal watercraft decontaminations increased $5 in 2022.
• Multiple system decontaminations increased $10 in 2021.
• In 2022, the program added a decontamination category for ballast tanks, both drained and

undrained.
• The attached mussel fee last increased in 2021 from $200 to $250.

The AIS sticker sales remained steady between 2019 and 2023, providing a consistent revenue source. 

The primary reason for fee increases is to more accurately reflect the amount of work required to conduct 
inspections and decontaminations. Watercraft are becoming more complicated, requiring more expertise, 
time, and resources to inspect and decontaminate.  

For the last several years labor rates have risen, creating increases in programmatic costs associated with 
performing inspections and decontaminations and administering the Program. Seasonal inspector wages 
increased from $14 in 2019 to $20 in 2023 to keep up with regional wages and attract valuable staff. Year-
round supervisory staff wages have increased as well to maintain an appropriate separation between 
positions. Seasonal inspectors are supervised by assistant site supervisors and site supervisors. Program 
staff then implement the Program and supervise the stations.  

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

All Sticker Sales with Total

Total Tahoe Only Tahoe In/Out Single Inspection Total Sales

51



OPERATIONS & GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 2 

Inspector Wages- 2016-2023 

In addition to the wage increases and in reaction to the recent discovery of New Zealand mudsnails, the 
Program plans to hire roving inspectors to interact and educate the non-motorized audience. The roving 
inspectors are new positions and will be strategically located around the lake to interact with as many 
recreationists as possible. This role fills a gap in reaching the non-motorized users and will further assist in 
preventing the introduction of all AIS.  

Until recently, the Program has successfully competed for grants from the California Division of Boating and 
Waterways (CA DBW) since 2014. The Program has received approximately $400,000 each annual cycle, 
thus totaling $400,000 in Program funds each year. (Each grant award is for two years.) The Program was 
not awarded the grant for the 2023 grant cycle. The loss of these funds accounts for an approximately 16% 
reduction to the overall AIS Prevention Program budget and a 25% reduction to the Tahoe RCD contract.  

The Program was not awarded the grant for the 2023 grant cycle due to several factors, the most likely of 
which being that the CA DBW prioritizes prevention program development over developed prevention 
programs such as our Watercraft Inspection Program. In addition, funding becomes more competitive each 
year as more prevention programs are developed in California, ultimately helping to protect Lake Tahoe 
waters. 

$14 $14 $14 $14 $16 $16 $18 $20

$0
$5

$10
$15
$20
$25

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

0.00

50.00

100.00

150.00

200.00

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Tahoe RCD Program Staff Increases

Inspector Decon Specialist Asst. Site Lead

Site Lead Program Coordinator Service Technician

Program Manager

52



OPERATIONS & GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 2 

The Watercraft Inspection Program has healthy reserves but is operating at a deficit without the grant 
funding, a deficit made larger by the continued rise in wages and Program costs. The Program annually 
assesses these costs and discusses options to decrease expenses. Long-term solutions may include smaller 
graduated increases to fees to address the deficit. The annual budget is estimated at $2,414,000, of which 
$1,569,722 pays the Tahoe RCD contract, comprising 65% of the overall Program budget. Within the Tahoe 
RCD budget, 74% is reserved for staffing, both seasonal and year-round. 

The proposed fee schedule shown in Exhibit 1 does not include the $12 Shoreline Program fee approved by 
the Governing Board in October 2018. The Shoreline Program fees do not cover costs of the AIS inspections; 
rather, they contribute to, among other items, control and monitoring of existing species in Lake Tahoe that 
can be spread by boats to other areas of the lake. The Shoreline fees are collected at the time of sale of the 
AIS sticker.  

Environmental Review: 
None necessary. 

Regional Plan Compliance:  
The proposed action complies with all requirements of the TRPA Goals and Policies, Plan Area Statements, 
and Code of Ordinances, including all required findings in Chapter 6 of the TRPA Code of Ordinances. 

Contact Information: 
For questions regarding this Agenda item, please contact Thomas Boos at (775) 589-5240 or 
tboos@trpa.gov.  

To submit a written public comment, email publiccomment@trpa.gov with the appropriate agenda item in 
the subject line. Written comments received by 4 p.m. the day before a scheduled public meeting will be 
distributed and posted to the TRPA website before the meeting begins. TRPA does not guarantee written 
comments received after 4 p.m. the day before a meeting will be distributed and posted in time for the 
meeting. 

Attachment: 
A. Resolution

• Exhibit 1 – Fee Schedule

53

mailto:tboos@trpa.gov
mailto:publiccomment@trpa.gov


OPERATIONS & GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 2 

Attachment A 

Resolution 

54



OPERATIONS & GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 2 

TAHOE REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY 
TRPA RESOLUTION NO. 2024 –  

RESOLUTION AMENDING THE WATERCRAFT INSPECTION FEE  
AMOUNT AND SCHEDULE, EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 2024 THROUGH DECEMBER 2024 

WHEREAS, the introduction of aquatic invasive species such as quagga and zebra mussels pose a threat to 
the integrity of the Lake Tahoe Region’s ecosystem, recreation, water purveyance systems and economy in 
general; and  

WHEREAS, Subparagraph 63.4.2.E of the TRPA Code of Ordinances as amended April 2011 requires that an 
owner and/or operator of a Boat Ramp (excluding Marine Railway Systems) or other Boat Launch Facility 
shall close any ramp or facility if the provisions of Subparagraphs 63.4.2.(A)-(C) are not met in order to 
prevent the launching of motorized watercraft; and 

WHEREAS, Subparagraph 63.4.2.A of the TRPA Code of Ordinances as amended April 2011 further requires 
that all motorized Watercraft shall be inspected by TRPA or its designee prior to launching into the waters 
of the Lake Tahoe Region to detect the presence, and prevent the introduction of, aquatic invasive species; 
and 

WHEREAS, Subparagraph 63.4.2.B of the TRPA Code of Ordinances as amended April 2011 further requires 
that all Watercraft inspected pursuant to Subparagraph 63.4.2.A shall be subject to decontamination if 
determined necessary by the TRPA or its designee; and 

WHEREAS, Subparagraph 63.4.2.D of the TRPA Code of Ordinances as amended April 2011 further states 
that Inspections and decontaminations performed pursuant to Section 63.4 are subject to a fee related to 
the costs of performing such services and other Watercraft inspection program costs; and 

WHEREAS, Subparagraph 63.4.2.D of the TRPA Code of Ordinances as amended April 2011 further states 
that the TRPA Governing Board will review and approve the fee amount and schedule annually; and 

WHEREAS, during the April 2011 Board meeting, the TRPA Governing Board adopted Resolution 2011-07 
making watercraft subject to a fee for inspection, decontamination and other program costs; and 

WHEREAS, the Watercraft Inspection plan for 2024 requires a combination of public and private funding 
currently estimated at $2,414,000 to inspect and decontaminate motorized watercraft; and 

WHEREAS, state funding from both California and Nevada has been secured to support aquatic invasive 
species inspections for 2024; and 

WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency on September 24, 2008 directed 
staff to bring to the Board for consideration an equitable fee schedule; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Governing Board of the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency that 
the amount and schedule of the aquatic invasive species inspection fee effective January 2024 through 
December 2024 be as shown in Exhibit 1; (Attached) 

55



OPERATIONS & GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 2 

 
PASSED and ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency this 28th 
day of February 2024, by the following vote: 
 
Ayes:  
Nays: 
Absent:  
 

                                                         
_________________________ 

      Cindy Gustafson, Chair 
             Tahoe Regional Planning Agency                                                                
                                                               Governing Board  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

56



OPERATIONS & GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 2 

Exhibit 1 to Attachment A 

Fee Schedule 

57



OPERATIONS & GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 & 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 2 

ATTACHMENT A, EXHIBIT 1 

Staff Proposed Fees for 2024 Boating Season (effective January 2024 through December 2024) 

2024 Sticker Fee Schedule 

Tahoe Only Stickers Current Fee Propose Fee 

All Sealed Vessels $33.00 $38.00 

Tahoe In & Out Stickers Current Fee Proposed Fee 

Personal Watercraft (PWC) $48.00 $58.00 
Vessels 0.1 ft. - 17.0 ft. $48.00 $58.00 
Vessels 17.1 ft. - and Greater $88.00 $103.00 

Single Inspection Passes Current Fee Proposed Fee 

Personal Watercraft (PWC) $43.00 $53.00 
Vessels 0.1 ft. - 17.0 ft. $43.00 $53.00 
Vessels 17.1 ft. - and Greater $68.00 $83.00 

Decontamination Fees Current Fee Proposed Fee 

Simple Decontamination (single system, personal watercraft) $25.00 $30.00 
Intermediate Decontamination (2-3 systems) $60.00 
Complex Decontamination (4 or more systems) $50.00 $110.00 
Drained ballasts $25.00 $30.00 
Undrained ballasts $50.00 $60.00 
Simple decontamination and drained ballast $50.00 $60.00 
Intermediate and drained ballast $90.00 
Complex decontamination and drained ballast $75.00 $140.00 
Simple decontamination and undrained ballast $75.00 $90.00 
Intermediate and undrained ballast $120.00 
Complex decontamination and undrained ballast $100.00 $170.00 
Attached mussels $250.00 $350.00 

58



STAFF REPORT 

Date: February 21, 2024  

To: TRPA Governing Board 

From: TRPA Staff 

Subject: Presentation on the Vision Zero Strategy and possible recommendation for endorsement of 

the Vision Zero Strategy 

Summary and Staff Recommendation: 
Staff will present a summary of the final Vision Zero Strategy. Staff recommends endorsement of the 
2024 Vision Zero Strategy with a resolution committing to a goal of zero fatalities and serious injuries by 
2050. This timeline aligns with the Nevada Department of Transportation in their commitment to zero 
fatalities by 2050 and the California Department of Transportation in their commitment to zero fatalities 
and serious injuries by 2050. 

Required Motions:  
In order to adopt the resolution, the Board must make the following motion(s), based on the staff 
report: 

1) A motion to endorse the 2024 Vision Zero Strategy, including a resolution committing to a
goal of zero fatalities and serious injuries by 2050, as shown in Attachment A and Exhibit 1.

In order for the motion to pass, an affirmative vote of any eight members is required. 

Project Description/Background: 
The 2024 Vision Zero Strategy is a roadway safety plan, updated from the 2019 Lake Tahoe Region 
Safety Strategy. The strategy seeks to support and accelerate the achievement of the 2020 Linking 
Tahoe: Regional Transportation Plan (2020 RTP) safety goals and inform the upcoming Regional 
Transportation Plan update. Vision Zero is a strategy that seeks to eliminate all traffic fatalities and 
severe injuries, while increasing safe, healthy, and equitable mobility for all. From 2013 to 2021, there 
were 41 fatalities and 183 life-changing serious injuries on Tahoe’s roadways, according to latest crash 
data reported by state and local law enforcement agencies. TRPA has a role in achieving significant 
reductions in these numbers and improving the safety of our region through safety planning, 
stakeholder coordination, regional policies, and setting and reporting on federally mandated safety 
performance targets.  A key aspect of Vision Zero and condition of funding eligibility is an official public 
commitment by the governing body to an eventual goal of zero roadway fatalities and serious injuries 
with a timeline. Staff propose a goal of achieving zero fatalities and serious injuries on roadways in the 
Tahoe Basin by 2050, as shown in Attachment A. 

To develop this strategy, staff evaluated the most recent nine years of complete crash data (2013 – 

2021) available for the California and Nevada portions of the Tahoe Region. The strategy includes a 

TRANSPORATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 
& CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 3

59

https://www.trpa.gov/wp-content/uploads/documents/archive/2/Tahoe-Safety-Plan-_Final_02-20-2019_reduced_size.pdf
https://www.trpa.gov/wp-content/uploads/documents/archive/2/Tahoe-Safety-Plan-_Final_02-20-2019_reduced_size.pdf


breakdown of crashes by year, month, weather, travel mode, lighting, crash types, and primary crash 

factors. TRPA also developed the Lake Tahoe Crash Data Dashboard as a tool for stakeholders and the 

public to view crash data trends easily and transparently. The data analysis informed the identified 

strategies, proposed policies, and a project list to help transportation partners across the Lake Tahoe 

Region improve safety for all road users. Thirty candidate locations were identified for future 

transportation safety improvements, based on crash data analysis, equity considerations, and a bicycle 

level of traffic stress analysis. From this list, eight locations were highlighted as regionally significant 

priority projects. Potential safety countermeasures, cost estimates, and equity analyses were developed 

for each of the eight priority projects. 

Vision Zero emphasizes the importance of collaboration with local governments, state agencies, law 
enforcement, advocacy groups, and the public. The strategy development was guided by a Technical 
Advisory Committee (TAC) with representatives from over twenty agencies, including state and local 
agencies, advocacy groups, fire departments, and law enforcement agencies. From April to September 
2023, outreach in English and Spanish gathered input from more than 400 people at community events 
and 320 survey respondents. 

The Vision Zero Strategy is meant to be a living document that will be used long after endorsement by 

the TRPA Governing Board. We will be updating crash data on the Vision Zero Website annually, with 

transparent reporting on progress towards reducing roadway fatalities and serious injuries. We will 

analyze safety metrics through annual federal performance measure reporting and in the Transportation 

Performance Report, which will be published every two years. We will also provide biennial updates to 

the Governing Board, with an opportunity for public input. 

Policy Recommendations 
The strategy looks at safety policies in the 2020 RTP and recommends minor revisions for consideration 
in the 2025 Regional Transportation Plan. The revisions are mostly tied to the updated Lake Tahoe 
Countermeasures Toolbox, to ensure the proven safety countermeasures are considered in the design of 
future projects and in corridor planning. The strategy also includes proposed policies from the 
Transportation Equity Study, unanimously endorsed by the Governing Board in July 2023. The strategy 
highlights proposed equity policies that elevate transportation safety for all. 

Environmental Review: 
Environmental review for the proposed projects will be completed on a project specific basis by the 

implementing agencies. 

Public Comment:  
The strategy was available for a 14-day public comment period from January 19th through February 2nd, 
during which 17 comments were received. The public and stakeholders were supportive of the strategy 
and efforts to make the roads safer for all road users. Comments received were primarily project 
specific. Based on comments, the final strategy includes an expanded section on the speed-related and 
driving under the influence crashes in Chapter 2.3: Analysis of Contributing Factors. The role of the 
Tahoe Transportation Implementation Committee was clarified in Chapter 1.2: TRPA’s Role in Safety, 
and updates were made to the Lake Tahoe Countermeasures Toolbox (Appendix A), with the addition of 
driveway consolidation.  

TRANSPORATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 
& CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 3

60

https://trpa.maps.arcgis.com/apps/dashboards/0db89eab417e4b40ba541ad3541bc6cf
http://trpa.gov/visionzero


Contact Information: 
For questions regarding this agenda item, please contact Rachael Shaw, Associate Transportation 
Planner, at (775) 589-5267 or rshaw@trpa.gov. To submit a written public comment, email 
publiccomment@trpa.gov with the appropriate agenda item in the subject line. Written comments 
received by 4 p.m. the day before a scheduled public meeting will be distributed and posted to the TRPA 
website before the meeting begins. TRPA does not guarantee written comments received after 4 p.m. 
the day before a meeting will be distributed and posted in time for the meeting. 

Attachments: 
A. Resolution 2024-__

• Exhibit 1 2024 Vision Zero Strategy

TRANSPORATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 
& CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 3

61

mailto:rshaw@trpa.gov
mailto:publiccomment@trpa.gov
https://www.trpa.gov/wp-content/uploads/2024-Draft-Vision-Zero-Strategy.pdf


Attachment A 

Resolution 2024-__ 

TRANSPORATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 
& CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 3

62



TAHOE REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY 
TRPA RESOLUTION NO. 2024–  

RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF THE GOAL OF ACHIEVING ZERO FATALITIES AND SERIOUS INJURIES ON 
ROADWAYS IN THE TAHOE BASIN BY 2050 AND ENDORSEMENT OF VISION ZERO TO 

ACHIEVE THIS GOAL. 

WHEREAS, according to data from the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration, each year 
approximately 40,000 people are killed in traffic collisions in the United States; and  

WHEREAS, from 2013 to 2021, 41 people died and 183 suffered serious injuries on roads in the Tahoe 
Region; and 

WHEREAS, a basic tenet of Vision Zero is that fatal and serious crashes are not inevitable, and death and 
serious injury are not an acceptable cost for using our public roadway system; and 

WHEREAS, the Vision Zero Strategy provides a framework for reducing traffic deaths and serious injuries 
through a data-driven approach; and 

WHEREAS, TRPA is dedicated to work with local and state jurisdictions to implement countermeasures 
and projects that aim to significantly reduce deaths and serious injuries on Tahoe roads; and 

WHEREAS, Vision Zero supports the Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy 
goal of Safety; and 

WHEREAS, a commitment to Vision Zero considers and supports equity, as low-income communities and 
communities of color carry a disproportionate burden of traffic-related injuries and fatalities in the U.S.; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Tahoe Basin joins other regions, counties, and cities across the Nation in a commitment 
to Vision Zero, an evidence-backed approach with demonstrated success; and  

WHEREAS, TRPA joins the Nevada Department of Transportation in their commitment to zero fatalities 
by 2050; and 

WHEREAS, TRPA joins the California Department of Transportation in their commitment to zero fatalities 
and serious injuries by 2050; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Governing Board of the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency 
adopts a goal of eliminating traffic deaths and serious injuries by 2050 and endorses the Vision Zero 
Strategy as an approach to achieving this goal. 

PASSED and ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency this ___ 
day of _____, 2023, by the following vote: 

Ayes: 

TRANSPORATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 
& CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 3

63



Nays: 
Absent: 

_________________________ 
Cindy Gustafson, Chair 
Tahoe Regional Planning Agency  
Governing Board  

TRANSPORATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 
& CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 3

64



Attachment A 
Exhibit 1 2024 Vision Zero Strategy (link) 

TRANSPORATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 
& CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 3

65

https://www.trpa.gov/wp-content/uploads/2024-Draft-Vision-Zero-Strategy.pdf


66



STAFF REPORT 

Date: February 21, 2024  

To: TRPA Governing Board 

From: TRPA Staff 

Subject:   Notice of Preparation for Joint Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Impact 
  Statement for Proposed Boatworks Redevelopment Project; 740, 760, and 790 North 
  Lake Boulevard, Tahoe City, Placer County, California; APNs 094-090-001, -033, -036, - 
  042, and 065; TRPA File # ERSP2022-0953 

Summary: 
Boatworks at Tahoe LLC (project applicant) is requesting approval of various discretionary entitlements 
in support of the proposed Boatworks at Lake Tahoe project (proposed project), located on a 3.8-acre 
site at the eastern gateway to Tahoe City.  The proposed project would redevelop the existing 
Boatworks Mall, the Inn at Boatworks, and El Dorado Savings Bank building with a mixed-use 
development that includes hotel lodging, residential condominiums (to be included in the hotel pool), 
and independent commercial spaces and spa. The hotel component will also include food and beverage, 
conference facilities and other amenities that are accessory to the hotel. The project would be served by 
underground parking (both valet and self-park) and proposes to reduce the current encroachment into 
the stream environment zone (SEZ) on the project site.  

Placer County and the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency (TRPA) are planning to prepare a joint 
Environmental Impact Report /Environmental Impact Statement (EIR/EIS) for the proposed project that 
will serve as an EIR prepared by Placer County pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) and the State CEQA Guidelines and an EIS prepared by TRPA pursuant to its Compact, Code of 
Ordinances (Code), and Rules of Procedure.  

In accordance with State CEQA Guidelines, Section 15082, and TRPA Rules of Procedure, Section 6.9, a 
notice of preparation (NOP) has been issued to inform agencies and interested parties that an EIR/EIS 
will be prepared for the proposed project. The purpose of a NOP is to provide sufficient information 
about the proposed project and its potential environmental impacts to allow agencies and interested 
parties the opportunity to provide meaningful comments regarding the scope and content of the 
EIR/EIS, including mitigation measures that should be considered and alternatives that should be 
evaluated.    

Advisory Planning Commission Discussion: 
The NOP was placed on the Advisory Planning Commission (APC) agenda for February 14, 2024. At the 
meeting, the project team provided the APC an overview of the proposed project and solicited input on 
the scope and content of the proposed EIR/EIS from APC members and the public.   

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 467



Contact Information: 
For questions regarding this agenda item, please contact Brandy McMahon, Local Government 
Coordinator, at (775) 589-5274 or bmcmahon@trpa.gov. To submit a written public comment, email 
publiccomment@trpa.gov with the appropriate agenda item in the subject line. Written comments 
received by 4 p.m. the day before a scheduled public meeting will be distributed and posted to the TRPA 
website before the meeting begins. TRPA does not guarantee written comments received after 4 p.m. 
the day before a meeting will be distributed and posted in time for the meeting. 

To submit written public comment on the NOP, please refer to the NOP. 

Attachment:  
A. Notice of Preparation

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 468



Attachment A 
Notice of Preparation 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 469



NOTICE OF PREPARATION OF AN  
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT/ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT 

DATE: January 31, 2024 

TO: California and Nevada State Clearinghouses 
Responsible and Trustee Agencies 
Interested Parties and Organizations 

SUBJECT: Notice of Preparation of an Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Impact Statement for the 
Boatworks at Lake Tahoe Project  

REVIEW PERIOD: January 31 thru February 29, 2024 

LEAD AGENCIES: 

Placer County 

Community Development Resource Agency 
Environmental Coordination Services 
3091 County Center Drive, Suite 190 
Auburn, CA  95603 
Contact: Shirlee Herrington 
Phone: 530.745.3132/Fax: 530.745.3080 
Email: cdraecs@er.ca.gov  

Tahoe Regional Planning Agency 

PO Box 5310 
128 Market Street 
Stateline, NV  89449 
Contact: Brandy McMahon 
Phone: 775.589. 5274/Fax 775.588.4527 
Email: bmcmahon@trpa.gov 

Placer County and the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency (TRPA) are preparing a joint Environmental Impact 
Report/Environmental Impact Statement (EIR/EIS) for the proposed Boatworks at Tahoe project. This joint document 
that will serve as an EIR prepared by Placer County pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and 
the State CEQA Guidelines, and an EIS prepared by TRPA pursuant to its Compact, Code of Ordinances (Code), and 
Rules of Procedure. This notice meets the CEQA and TRPA noticing requirements for a Notice of Preparation (NOP) to 
provide responsible agencies and interested persons with sufficient information to make meaningful responses as to 
the scope and content of the EIR/EIS. Your timely comments will ensure an appropriate level of environmental review 
for the project. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Boatworks at Tahoe LLC (project applicant) is requesting approval of various discretionary 
entitlements in support of the proposed Boatworks at Lake Tahoe redevelopment project (proposed project). The 
proposed project would redevelop the existing Boatworks Mall, the Inn at Boatworks and El Dorado Savings Bank 
building with a mixed-use development that includes hotel lodging, residential condominiums (to be included in the 
hotel pool), and independent commercial spaces and spa. The hotel component will also include food and beverage, 
conference facilities and other amenities that are accessory to the hotel. The project would be served by underground 
parking (both valet and self-park) and proposes to reduce the current encroachment into the stream environment 
zone (SEZ) on the project site.  

PROJECT LOCATION: 740, 760, and 790 North Lake Boulevard, Tahoe City, County of Placer. The existing site is 
commonly known as Boatworks Mall, Boatworks commercial condominium, and The Inn at Boatworks.  

For additional information regarding the project, please contact Heather Beckman at (530) 388-6484 or 
HBeckman@placer.ca.gov. For TRPA specific questions, please contact Brandy McMahon at (775) 589-5274 or 
bmcmahon@trpa.gov. A copy of the NOP is available for review at the Placer County Community Development Tahoe 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 470

http://www.placer.ca.gov/planning
http://www.trpa.org/
mailto:cdraecs@er.ca.gov
mailto:bmcmahon@trpa.gov
mailto:bmcmahon@trpa.org
bmcmahon
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



office (775 North Lake Boulevard, Tahoe City), the Placer County Community Development Auburn office (3091 County 
Center Drive, Auburn), TRPA offices (128 Market Street, Stateline, Nevada), the Tahoe City Library (740 N. Lake 
Boulevard, Tahoe City), on the Placer County website, and TRPA’s Lake Tahoe Info Parcel Tracker as follows: 

Placer County: https://www.placer.ca.gov/9561/Boatworks-at-Lake-Tahoe-Environmental-Im 

TRPA: https://parcels.laketahoeinfo.org  
(Enter the TRPA File # ERSP2022-0953 in the top right-hand corner of the webpage to review the NOP and other 
documents associated with the application)  

NOP Comment Period: Written comments should be submitted at the earliest possible date, but not later than 
5:00 p.m. on Thursday, February 29, 2024, to Shirlee Herrington, Environmental Coordination Services, Community 
Development Resource Agency, by mail at 3091 County Center Drive, Suite 190, Auburn, CA 95603; phone (530) 745-
3132; fax: (530) 745-3080; or cdraecs@placer.ca.gov. 

NOP Scoping Meeting: In addition to the opportunity to submit written comments, an NOP scoping meeting will be 
held in person and virtually via Zoom to inform interested parties about the proposed project, and to provide agencies 
and the public with an opportunity to provide comments on the scope and content of the EIR/EIS. TRPA will also 
include the NOP on the TRPA Advisory Planning Commission agenda and Governing Board agenda (consent calendar) 
at their February meetings. Further information on the date and time of the scoping meeting and TRPA meetings is 
provided below. 

TRPA Advisory Planning Commission EIR/EIS Scoping Meeting 
on the Boatworks at Lake Tahoe Project TRPA Governing Board 

 Tuesday, February 14, 2024
 Meeting will begin at 9:30 a.m. but is not

time certain.
In-Person:  
TRPA Offices, 128 Market Street, Stateline, NV 

Virtual: 
Virtual meeting information will be available 
with meeting materials posted at 
https://www.trpa.gov/events/ up to 1 week 
prior to the meeting. 

 Monday, February 26, 2024
 4:00 to 6:00 p.m.

In-Person: 
Tahoe City Public Utility District 
221 Fairway Drive, Tahoe City 

Virtual: 
Zoom: https://placer-ca-
gov.zoom.us/j/99615438857 
Phone: 888 788 0099 | Webinar ID: 996 1543 
8857 

 Wednesday, February 28, 2024
 Meeting will begin at 8:00 a.m. but is not

time certain.
In-Person:  
TRPA Offices, 128 Market Street, Stateline, NV 

Virtual: 
Virtual meeting information will be available 
with meeting materials posted at 
https://www.trpa.gov/events/ up to 1 week 
prior to the meeting. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 471

https://www.placer.ca.gov/9561/Boatworks-at-Lake-Tahoe-Environmental-Im
https://parcels.laketahoeinfo.org/
mailto:cdraecs@placer.ca.gov.
https://www.trpa.gov/events/
https://www.trpa.gov/events/


PROJECT LOCATION AND SURROUNDING USES 
The Boatworks at Lake Tahoe project site is located at 740, 760, and 790 North Lake Boulevard, Tahoe City, California 
within the County of Placer (Figure 1). The existing site is commonly known as Boatworks Mall, Boatworks commercial 
condominium, and The Inn at Boatworks. The site is south of the SR 28/Jackpine Street intersection and forms the 
eastern gateway to Tahoe City. The site is an estimated 120 miles east of Sacramento, California, and 50 miles 
southwest of Reno. The site is situated on assessor’s parcel numbers (APNs) 094-090-001, -033, -036, -042, and 065. 
The project site is located within the Greater Tahoe City Mixed-Use Town Center overlay of the Placer County Tahoe 
Basin Area Plan.  

The existing site includes two buildings with 46,112 sq. ft. of commercial leasable space and a 34-room motel building, 
with one manager unit (Figure 2). The existing buildings vary from one to three stories. There are 176 existing on-site 
parking spaces.  

The site is generally bounded by SR 28 to the north, with Placer County offices located directly across SR 28; the Tahoe 
City Marina development to the west and south; and Safeway to the east. The Lakeside Trail and Lake Tahoe generally 
front the property to the south. No changes to the Lakeside Trail Easement are contemplated. 

PROJECT CHARACTERISTICS 
Boatworks at Tahoe LLC’s vision for the project involves creating a high-quality lodging and condominium complex 
with community serving retail that connects to other existing pedestrian friendly retail along SR 28 that is consistent 
with the character of Tahoe City.  

The proposed project (Figure 3) involves demolishing the existing 45- and 65-year-old buildings at the site, realigning 
the SR 28 access driveway, and adding a service access driveway on SR 28 to support redevelopment of the project 
site with the following: 

 79 hotel lodging units (64 standard guest rooms and 15 suites with full in-room amenities, with unit sizes ranging
from 480 to 1,440 square feet (sq. ft.) and an average room size of 565 sq. ft.;

 29 residential condo-hotel units (2- and 3-bedroom units, with unit sizes ranging from 1,700 to 2,000 sq. ft.). Each
condominium will have one lock-off totaling 29 lock-offs, for a grand total of 58 units;

 6,228 sq. ft. of conference facilities;

 a 11,530 sq. ft. full-service spa;

 swimming pools/hot tubs;

 a guest fitness center;

 5,485 sq. ft. of food and beverage outlets;

 7,063 sq. ft. of commercial retail space fronting SR 28; and

 56,194 sq. ft. of underground parking (155 spaces).

Owners of the condominiums would be restricted to a maximum stay of up to 90 nights per year. The condominium 
units would be subject to transient occupancy taxes (TOT) for those nights where the condominiums are rented to the 
public.  

The two proposed buildings are designed to include classic gables, stepping massing, and accessibility to pedestrian 
connections on- and off-site. The buildings are designed to include natural stone, wood, metal, and glazing and range 
from one to four stories, with a maximum height of 56 feet as allowed for mixed-use development located within town 
centers.  

The project includes the following trip-reducing features: amenities that support active transportation (e.g., employee 
changing facilities, employee lockers, and bicycle parking and storage); bicycles for use by lodge guests; on-site 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 472



electric vehicle charging stations; and private and public transit connectivity/shuttles to recreational and sightseeing 
opportunities. 

The project site is approximately 75 percent covered with existing impermeable pavement and structures and is 
located on lands designated as land capability district (LCD) 6, except along the eastern site boundary and a portion of 
the site fronting Lake Tahoe where lands are designated LCD 1b/stream environment zone (SEZ) and Backshore/1b. 
The proposed project proposes enhancements to the on-site SEZ on the eastern edge of the site at Bliss Creek. 
Enhancements would include removal of coverage in the SEZ and creating a buffer between the SEZ and 
development, removing existing trash and debris as part of ongoing maintenance and removing invasive weeds to 
support native vegetation communities. Further SEZ enhancements could include removing existing conifers, treating 
bank instability using revegetation and bioengineering solutions, and integrating formal multi-use trail crossings to 
eliminate user-defined trails.  

Preliminarily, the project would be estimated to generate about 40 new full-time equivalent (FTE) positions. Employee 
housing mitigation for the project would be provided through an off-site property acquisition, consisting of existing 
housing or through the applicant’s payment of in-lieu fees pursuant to Placer County’s Affordable Housing and 
Employee Accommodation Ordinance and consistent with Placer County General Plan Policy C-2.  

The project is designed to be consistent with the existing TRPA Regional Plan, TRPA Code of Ordinances, Placer 
County Tahoe Basin Area Plan and Placer County Zoning Ordinance, including the proposed 155 underground parking 
spaces that would avoid interception with the seasonal groundwater table. It is noted that Placer County has approved 
amendments to the Area Plan that allow exceptions to TRPA Code Section 33.3.6 related to groundwater interception 
for projects in Town Centers if the project is designed to prevent adverse off-site groundwater impacts. If the Area 
Plan amendment for exceptions to groundwater interception for projects in Town Centers is approved by the TRPA 
Governing Board (hearing date anticipated in winter 2024), the EIR/EIS will evaluate another project option that would 
increase the subsurface parking by 20 spaces. 

PROJECT OBJECTIVES 
Objectives of the proposed project, as stated by the project applicant, include the following: 

 Redevelop the Boatworks Mall site in a way that contributes to TRPA threshold attainment as envisioned in the
TRPA Regional Plan and Tahoe Basin Area Plan;

 Provide high-quality tourist accommodations and amenities located in Tahoe City;

 Promote economic growth through the creation of additional jobs, increased property and transit occupancy
(TOT) taxes, sales tax and other positive economic outcomes for the local and surrounding communities;

 Create a project that can fund environmental improvements and is sensitive to scale and massing of the project
site and Tahoe City;

 Act as a catalyst project to assist in the economic revitalization of Tahoe City;

 Create a project that maintains the project site’s locally accessible recreation opportunities and connectivity to
pedestrian, bicycle, and multi-modal transportation opportunities;

 Enhance site circulation and improve pedestrian safety and traffic flow;

 Build an energy efficient and environmentally sensitive project by using green building design and operating the
facility according to green hotel standards; and

 Reduce impervious surfaces in the Bliss Creek SEZ and improve water quality, including capturing fine sediment
and reducing the current encroachment into the Bliss Creek SEZ.

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 473



PROBABLE ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS 
The EIR/EIS will include project-level analysis of potential impacts of the Boatworks at Lake Tahoe project. Resource 
topics requiring project-specific analysis for the proposed project will include scenic resources; geology, soils, land 
capability, and coverage; hydrology and water quality; transportation; air quality; greenhouse gas emissions; noise; 
archaeological, historical, and tribal cultural resources; population and housing; and utilities and service systems as 
described in more detail below. All other resource topics are assumed to be scoped out of the detailed analysis, 
addressed through application of County and TRPA Code requirements, and dismissed with a brief discussion and 
analysis. Issues dismissed from detailed evaluation for the proposed project, and the rationale for dismissal, will be 
included in the EIR/EIS for topics including agricultural and forestry resources; biological resources; energy; hazards, 
hazardous materials, and risk of upset; land use; mineral resources; public services; recreation; and wildfire. The 
rationale for dismissal of these topics from detailed evaluation will include tiering from the analysis in the Tahoe Basin 
Area Plan EIR/EIS in addition to other supporting documentation, as applicable. 

The following subject areas include potential environmental effects that will be analyzed in the EIR/EIS. 

Scenic Resources. The proposed project would be visible from SR 28 and Lake Tahoe. Key scenic concerns include 
increased height and visual mass on the redeveloped site. The EIR/EIS will evaluate scenic impacts of the project 
alternatives in accordance with the State CEQA Guidelines, Chapter 66 of the TRPA Code, the adopted TRPA Scenic 
Resource Threshold Standards, local and regional plans/design guidelines, height limits and findings, and nighttime 
views in the area. The evaluation will characterize the existing conditions and the project’s impact on the applicable 
scenic roadway travel unit, shoreline travel unit, scenic resources, recreation areas and bike paths, as well as 
community character. The impact analysis will utilize visual simulations of the project from viewpoints along SR 28, the 
Lakeside Trail, and Lake Tahoe. Mitigation measures (temporary and permanent) will be proposed, if needed. 

Geology, Soils, Land Capability, and Coverage. Implementation of the proposed project would involve excavation, 
grading, placement of fill material, and construction of new lodging units, residential condominium units, and 
associated amenities, including underground parking. Potential environmental effects related to soils and geology, 
land capability, seismic hazards, slope stability, erosion, and paleontological resources will be described in the EIR/EIS. 
The analysis will describe coverage impacts based on comparison of existing land coverage calculations by parcel and 
proposed coverage for the project. Mitigation measures (temporary and permanent) will be proposed, if needed. 

Hydrology and Water Quality. The clarity of Lake Tahoe is world-renowned and is at the heart of the scenic beauty and 
attractiveness of the Region to residents and visitors alike. The lake’s designation as an Outstanding National Resource 
Water (ONRW) affords it the highest level of protection under the anti-degradation policy of the US Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA). Lake clarity continues to be a regulatory focus in the Tahoe Region. The project site abuts 
the Tahoe City Marina on Lake Tahoe and a portion of the Bliss Creek SEZ. As described above under “Project 
Characteristics,” the proposed project would enhance the on-site Bliss Creek SEZ by removing coverage and creating a 
buffer to development in addition to other proposed SEZ enhancements. The proposed project also includes 
underground parking. 

The EIR/EIS will include project-level analysis of the hydrologic effects of the proposed project, including impacts 
relative to existing and proposed impervious surfaces, the potential for increased runoff, and the ability of existing and 
proposed drainage facilities to convey runoff. The proposed project will be evaluated in terms of potential sources of 
water quality pollutants, with particular emphasis on nutrient and sediment loads transported off-site to Lake Tahoe 
and Bliss Creek, and their control (e.g., proposed best management practices) relative to existing conditions and Lake 
Tahoe Basin regulations and standards. This will include an assessment of source and treatment controls over a range 
of hydrologic conditions, consistent with the Lake Tahoe and Truckee River Total Maximum Daily Loads. Potential 
impacts associated with excavation for the underground parking as it relates to interference with groundwater flows 
and consistency with TRPA and Placer County regulations will be assessed in the EIR/EIS. Mitigation measures 
(temporary and permanent) will be proposed, if needed. 

Transportation. Implementation of the proposed project could impact traffic on SR 28 through the increase in density 
of uses at the site or changes to site access. As summarized above under “Project Characteristics,” the project includes 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 474



trip-reduction features that support active transportation; thus, providing opportunities to reduce motorized vehicle 
use and encouraging bicycle and transit use. Construction and implementation of the proposed project would 
generate short-term construction-related traffic. Long-term traffic impacts will also be discussed in the context of General 
Plan/TBAP conformity. The transportation analysis will include identification of major roadways and intersections in the 
project area and an TRPA and SB 743-compliant vehicle miles traveled (VMT) analysis. Effects on local circulation patterns 
will also be discussed in these locations. Mitigation measures (temporary and permanent) will be proposed, if needed. 

Air Quality. The project would involve temporary construction emissions and generation of fugitive dust. It would also 
generate temporary construction traffic in the area, contributing pollutants to the region. The EIR/EIS will include an 
assessment of ambient air quality conditions as well as short-term (i.e., construction) air quality impacts and long-term 
(i.e., operational) regional air pollutant emissions. The assessment of long-term air quality impacts will consider 
anticipated greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reductions and other air quality benefits resulting from any potential 
reduction in VMT and replacement of existing antiquated stationary greenhouse gas sources. Mitigation measures 
(temporary and permanent) will be proposed, if needed. 

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions. Implementation of the proposed project has the potential to increase GHG 
emissions from vehicles and operation of the new facilities that may be an increase over existing conditions. The EIR 
will evaluate potential GHG impacts using the latest widely accepted modeling tool. Anticipated GHG emissions and 
temporary construction GHG emissions will be assessed and described. Mitigation measures (temporary and 
permanent) will be proposed, if needed. 

Noise. The EIR/EIS will assess potential short-term (i.e., construction) noise impacts relative to sensitive receptors and 
their potential exposure. Noise levels of specific construction equipment will be determined and resultant noise levels 
at nearby receptors (at given distances from the source) will be calculated. Long-term (i.e., operational) noise impacts, 
including increased noise from increased use of the project site by the hotel lodging units, residential condominiums, 
and associated outdoor and rooftop amenities at the project site will be assessed. Mitigation measures (temporary and 
permanent) will be proposed, if needed. 

Archaeological, Historical, and Tribal Cultural Resources. The EIR/EIS will provide an overview of project area prehistory, 
ethnography and history, a discussion of documented cultural resources in the project area, and the potential impacts 
to these and unrecorded sites, features or objects, and suitable measures designed to mitigate potential impacts. The 
project-level analysis of the proposed project will include a site-specific archaeological and architectural review. The 
evaluation methodology for the EIR/EIS will include archival research, field reconnaissance, and eligibility 
determination for listing on the National Register of Historic Places (National Register) and/or California Register of 
Historical Resources (California Register) for any heritage properties identified. Mitigation measures (temporary and 
permanent) will be proposed, if needed. 

Population and Housing. The project would increase employment opportunities at the site and the corresponding 
demand for employee housing. It is understood that the proposed project would be required to offset the new 
employee demand for housing consistent with Placer County General Plan Policy C-2 that requires new development 
in the Tahoe Basin to house 50 percent of the full-time equivalent employees generated by the development. This 
section will discuss the combined effects of the project on population, employment, and housing. The impact analysis 
will address whether the project would alter the location, distribution, density, or growth rate of population planned 
for the Tahoe region. The EIR/EIS will include analysis of the approach the applicant will use (e.g., in lieu fee, off-site 
acquisition and deed restriction, or new construction) to meet the County’s inclusionary housing requirements. 

Utilities and Service Systems. The utilities and service systems section of the EIR/EIS will evaluate impacts on the 
existing water supply and wastewater treatment and distribution infrastructure, power, and solid waste collection and 
disposal from the proposed intensification of development on the project site compared to existing conditions. 
Mitigation measures (temporary and permanent) will be proposed, if needed. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 475



ALTERNATIVES 
The EIR/EIS will evaluate a range of alternatives to the proposed Boatworks at Lake Tahoe project in accordance with 
Section 15126.6 of the State CEQA Guidelines, the TRPA Rules of Procedure, and Section 3.7.2 of the TRPA Code. In 
accordance with Section 15126.6 of the State CEQA Guidelines, an EIR must “describe a range of reasonable 
alternatives to the project, or to the location of the project, which would feasibly attain most of the basic objectives of 
the project but would avoid or substantially lessen any of the significant effects of the project and evaluate the 
comparative merits of the alternatives.” As required by CEQA, the EIR/EIS will evaluate a No Project Alternative.  

Aside from the No Project Alternative, the County and TRPA have not yet determined the additional action alternatives 
to the project to be evaluated in the EIR/EIS. However, the EIR/EIS will consider up to two additional action alternatives 
to the proposed project in addition to the No Project Alternative. One of the action alternatives would likely reduce 
the height of the proposed project by one floor while retaining as many of the project’s proposed units and uses as 
possible. The second action alternative would likely reduce the density of the proposed redevelopment of the project 
site, reconfigure the proposed mix of uses, and incorporate a shared site access driveway with the Tahoe City Marina.  

Comments pertaining to alternatives that should be considered in the EIR/EIS are invited. Once the alternatives are 
identified, the impacts of the alternatives will be analyzed relative to the proposed project, consistent with the 
requirements of CEQA, the TRPA Rules of Procedure, and TRPA Code. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 476



Source: SB Architects 2023 

Figure 1 Project Location 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 477



This page intentionally left blank. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 478



Source: SB Architects 2023. 

Figure 2 Existing Site Development

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 479



Source: SB Architects 2023. 

Figure 3 Proposed Project Site Plan 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 480



STAFF REPORT 

Date: February 21, 2024  

To: TMPO Governing Board 

From: TRPA Staff 

Subject: Adoption of the 2023 Federal Transportation Improvement Program Amendment 7 

Summary and Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends adoption of the 2023 Federal Transportation Improvement Program (FTIP) 
Amendment No. 7 as presented.  

Required Motion:  
In order to adopt the proposed resolution, the Board must make the following motion(s), based on the 
staff report: 

1) A motion to adopt Resolution 2024-__ as set forth in Attachment A

In order for motion to pass, an affirmative vote of any eight Board members is required. 

Tahoe Transportation Commission Recommendation: 
On February 07, 2024, the Tahoe Transportation Commission recommended approval of the 2023 FTIP 
Amendment No. 7 to the Tahoe Metropolitan Planning Organization (TMPO) Governing Board. 

Project Description/Background: 
Tahoe Regional Planning Agency (TRPA), in its role as the TMPO, prepares and adopts a Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP) at least every two years, including a California TIP (FTIP includes all projects) 
and Nevada TIP (includes only projects in the state). The 2023 FTIP is a four-year financially constrained 
list of transportation projects that are reasonably expected to be funded between federal fiscal years 
2023 and 2026. Any transportation project receiving federal funds, considered regionally significant, or 
requiring a federal action must be included in the document. Projects must also be consistent with and 
included in the adopted Regional Transportation Plan. An amendment is a revision to the FTIP that 
involves a major change to a project. This may include the addition or deletion of a project, a change in 
project cost greater than 50 percent of the total project cost, or a change in project scope. Amendment 
No. 7 adds an additional project; Corridor Coordination to the 2023 Federal Transportation 
Improvement Program. See Exhibit 1 to Attachment A. 

The Tahoe Transportation District has requested to add the Corridor Coordination project to the 2023 
FTIP. The Corridor Coordination program proposes support for corridor implementation across multiple 
jurisdictions, land management agencies, and stakeholders to streamline the delivery process of 
corridor-based projects. It will provide support for coordinating necessary project agreements, MOU's, 

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 
& TMPO CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1

81



financing and funding, planning, design, implementation, and post construction operations and 
maintenance activities. This coordination effort will result in project delivery.  

The project budget is $120,000 annually for five years totaling $600,000. Current funding is through 
Nevada’s Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) and will go towards supporting the implementation 
of the SR28 Central Corridor for the first three years. Additional future funds will need to be sought out 
to support additional corridor coordination in future years. The following shows the FTIP 
programming details.  

Corridor Coordination (CTIPS ID 220-0000-0174) 
 Implementing Agency: Tahoe Transportation District (TTD)
 Description: Project will support corridor coordination of multiple jurisdictions, land

management agencies, and stakeholders for corridor-based projects along SR28, SR89, and
US50. Estimated Project Cost $600,000. Completion Year 2029.

 Funding: FFY 2024 Nevada STBG $300,000 and TTD General Fund $16,000

Performance Measures:   
The 2012 federal transportation authorization legislation, ‘Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st 
Century’ (MAP-21) established new requirements for Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPOs) 
around performance management and reporting to ensure the most efficient investment of federal   
transportation funds. The most recent federal transportation legislative package, the Infrastructure 
Investment and Jobs Act of 2021 (IIJA), carries forward these performance-based planning 
requirements.  

To incorporate the federal performance requirements into the FTIP, the MPO is required to show that 
the FTIP makes progress towards achieving the region’s federal performance targets. The federal 
performance measures have been a part of the Regional Transportation Plan since 2017, incorporated 
into goals, policies and planning documents. The federal performance measures defined by the Federal 
Highway Administration are categorized into three performance management (PM) focus areas; PM1 -
Transportation Safety, PM2 - National Highway System (NHS) Pavement and Bridge Condition and PM3 - 
NHS Performance, Interstate System Freight Movement and Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
Program. These performance targets will be achieved through the implementation of investment 
priorities, through the programming of transportation projects in the 2023 FTIP, this amendment, and 
subsequent FTIP amendments and administrative modifications.   

The Corridor Coordination will support the implementation of corridor projects supporting PM1, 
Transportation Safety for all users and aligned RTP Goal increasing safety and security for all users. The 
corridor projects will improve roadway conditions and help alleviate conflicts that occur between 
pedestrians and vehicles on the roadways and with the vehicles parking versus those traveling through. 
Additionally, adding parking management, transit, and bicycle and pedestrian improvements to provide 
safer crossings and travel space for pedestrians and bicyclists.  

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 
& TMPO CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1

82



Public Comment:  
Amendment No. 7 was released on January 31, 2024 for a seven (7) day public comment period as 
required by the TMPO Public Participation Plan. The item was opened for public comment at the 
February 07, 2024 Tahoe Transportation Commission Board meeting. No comments were received. 

Contact Information: 
For questions regarding this agenda item, please contact Judy Weber, Associate Transportation Planner, 
at (775) 589-5203 or jweber@trpa.gov. 
To submit a written public comment, email publiccomment@trpa.gov with the appropriate agenda item 
in the subject line. Written comments received by 4 p.m. the day before a scheduled public meeting will 
be distributed and posted to the TRPA website before the meeting begins. TRPA does not guarantee 
written comments received after 4 p.m. the day before a meeting will be distributed and posted in time 
for the meeting. 

Attachments: 
A. TMPO Resolution No. 2024- ___

 Exhibit 1 – Federal Transportation Improvement Program Amendment No. 7

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 
& TMPO CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1

83



Attachment A 
TMPO Resolution No. 2024- ___ 

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 
& TMPO CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1

84



TAHOE METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
 TMPO RESOLUTION NO. 2024 - ____ 

ADOPTION OF AMENDMENT No. 7 TO THE  
TMPO 2023 FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, the Tahoe Metropolitan Planning Organization (TMPO) is the designated metropolitan 
planning organization for the Lake Tahoe Region as defined by the Transportation Equity Act for the 
21st Century; and 

WHEREAS, the 2023 TMPO Federal Transportation Improvement Program (FTIP) has been developed in 
accordance with the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) and 23 CFR 450; and    

WHEREAS, the 2020 Regional Transportation Plan for the Lake Tahoe Region describes a transportation 
system envisioned for the horizon years and was adopted as a financially constrained plan by the TMPO 
Board on April 28, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, the 2023 FTIP is consistent with the transportation system and financial plan described in 
the current Regional Transportation Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the 2023 FTIP is financially constrained by year and includes a financial plan that 
demonstrates which projects can be implemented using committed funds; and 

WHEREAS, the 2023 FTIP includes all regionally significant transportation projects to be funded from 
local, state, or federal resources; and 

WHEREAS, the 2023 FTIP has been developed under TMPO policies for community input and 
interagency consultation procedures; and 

WHEREAS, during the life of the program, it is sometimes necessary to amend the program to reflect 
changes in project costs, scopes, or schedules, or to add new projects; and 

WHEREAS, the 2023 FTIP is now in need of amendment; and 

WHEREAS, the 2023 FTIP Amendment No. 7 adds a new project; Corridor Coordination that meets all 
applicable transportation planning requirements per 23 Code of Federal Regulations Part 450: and 

WHEREAS, on February 07, 2024 the Tahoe Transportation Commission recommended the TMPO 
Governing Board adopt the 2023 FTIP Amendment No. 7.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Governing Board of the Tahoe Metropolitan Planning 
Organization adopts this resolution approving the 2023 FTIP Amendment No. 7 as described in Exhibit 1 
hereto. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that TMPO staff is hereby directed and authorized to work with California 
Department of Transportation, the Nevada Department of Transportation, the Federal Highway 
Administration, and the Federal Transit Administration to make whatever technical changes or 
corrections are needed to the format and organization of the document to obtain its approval by these 
agencies. 

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 
& TMPO CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1

85



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Tahoe Metropolitan Planning Organization this 
Wednesday, February 28, 2024 by the following vote: 

Ayes: 
Nays: 
Absent: 

_____________________________ 
Cindy Gustafson, Chair  
Tahoe Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Governing Board 

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 
& TMPO CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1

86



Attachment A 
Exhibit 1 – Federal Transportation Improvement Program Amendment No. 7 

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 
& TMPO CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1

87



TAHOE REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY

federal transportation 
improvement program

FINAL September 202220
23

 - 
20

26

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 
& TMPO CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1

88

jweber
Typewritten Text

jweber
Typewritten Text

jweber
Typewritten Text

jweber
Typewritten Text

jweber
Typewritten Text

jweber
Typewritten Text

jweber
Typewritten Text

jweber
Typewritten Text

jweber
Typewritten Text
AMENDMENT No.7

jweber
Typewritten Text

jweber
Typewritten Text



2023 Federal Transportation Improvement Program - Amendment No. 7 

Index of Sections 

Section 1: Summary of Changes  

Section 2: California Transportation Improvement Program System (CTIPS) Project Report 

Section 3: Financial Summary 

Section 4: Public Notification 

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 
& TMPO CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1

89

jweber
Typewritten Text

jweber
Typewritten Text



Existing 
/New CTIPS ID Project Title

Description of 
Change Fund Type Prior 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 Total 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 Total Comments

STBG (NV)  $ ‐   $ ‐   $     ‐   $ ‐   $         ‐   $ ‐   $ ‐   $        300,000   $ ‐   $ ‐   $               300,000 

Local Funds  $ ‐   $ ‐   $                     ‐   $ ‐   $ ‐   $ ‐   $ ‐   $          16,000   $ ‐   $ ‐   $                  16,000 
‐$   ‐$    316,000$  

Acronyms
STBG (NV): Surface Transportation Block Grant (Nevada)
TTD: Tahoe Transportation District

TTD project will provide corridor coordination across 
multiple jurisdictions for corridor based projects 
along SR28, SR89, and US50. TPC $600,000. 
Completion year 2029.  

Summary of Changes
Tahoe Metropolitan Planning Organization

2023 Federal Transportation Improvement Program
Amendment 7

1/26/2024

PRIOR FFY  CURRENT FFY 

 New 
220‐0000‐

0174
Corridor Coordination New Project

Page 1 of 1 TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 
& TMPO CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1 

90

jweber
Typewritten Text
Section 1

jweber
Typewritten Text



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency - Federal Transportation Improvement Program
(Dollars in Whole)

Local Highway System
DIST:
03

PPNO: EA: CTIPS ID:
220-0000-0174

CT PROJECT ID: MPO ID.:
TTD24

COUNTY:
Various Counties

ROUTE: PM:

TITLE (DESCRIPTION):
Corridor Coordination (Project will support corridor
coordination of multi-jurisdictional and land management
project stakeholders for corridor-based projects located
on SR28, SR89, and US Hwy 50.)

MPO Aprv:  

State Aprv:  

Federal Aprv:  

EPA TABLE II or III EXEMPT CATEGORY

Null

  IMPLEMENTING AGENCY:  Tahoe Transportation District
  PROJECT MANAGER:  Jim Marino PHONE: (775)       557-4901 EMAIL: jmarino@tahoetransportation.org

PROJECT VERSION HISTORY (Printed Version is Shaded) (Dollars in whole)

Version Status Date Updated By Change Reason Amend No. Prog Con Prog RW PE

1 Active 01/26/2024 JWEBER Amendment - New Project 7 316,000

* RSTP -

* Fund Source 1 of 2

* Fund Type: STP Local

* Funding Agency: Nevada DOT

PRIOR 22-23 23-24 24-25 25-26 26-27 27-28 BEYOND TOTAL

PE

RW

CON 300,000 300,000

Total: 300,000 300,000

* Local Funds -

* Fund Source 2 of 2

* Fund Type: County Funds

* Funding Agency:

PRIOR 22-23 23-24 24-25 25-26 26-27 27-28 BEYOND TOTAL

PE

RW

CON 16,000 16,000

Total: 16,000 16,000

Project Total: PRIOR 22-23 23-24 24-25 25-26 26-27 27-28 BEYOND TOTAL

PE

RW

CON 316,000 316,000

Total: 316,000 316,000

Comments:
******** Version 1 - 01/23/2024 ********
New TTD project: Corridor Coordination. $300,000 NV STBG, $16,000 Local Funds/TTD general funds in FFY 24. Short-term funding will go towards implementing the SR28 Central Corridor
projects. Total project cost $600,000. Completion 2029. RTP Appendix B-3.

Products of CTIPS Page  1                                                                                                                           01/26/2024 12:25:29
TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 & 

TMPO CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1
91

jweber
Typewritten Text
CURRENT

jweber
Typewritten Text

jweber
Typewritten Text

jweber
Typewritten Text

jweber
Typewritten Text

jweber
Typewritten Text

jweber
Typewritten Text

jweber
Typewritten Text

jweber
Typewritten Text

jweber
Typewritten Text
Section 2

jweber
Typewritten Text



TABLE 1: REVENUE

Funding Source
Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current

No. 04 No. 07 No. 04 No. 07 No. 04 No. 07 No. 04 No. 07

   Sales Tax 

       City

       County

   Gas Tax 

       Gas Tax (Subventions to Cities)

       Gas Tax (Subventions to Counties)
   Other Local Funds $3,435 $3,435 $1,370 $1,370 $572 $572 $175 $175 $5,552
       County General Funds $3,435 $3,435 $570 $570 $555 $555 $175 $175 $4,735

       City General Funds $800 $800 $17 $17 $817

       Street Taxes and Developer Fees

       RSTP Exchange funds

   Transit 

        Transit Fares

   Other (See Appendix 1) $6,915 $6,915 $3,923 $3,939 $2,983 $2,983 $2,984 $2,984 $16,821

Local Total $10,350 $10,350 $5,293 $5,309 $3,555 $3,555 $3,159 $3,159 $22,373

   Tolls

       Bridge

      Corridor

   Regional Sales Tax

   Other (See Appendix 2)

Regional Total

   State Highway Operations and Protection Program (SHOPP) 1 $26,560 $26,560 $28,437 $28,437 $3,330 $3,330 $41,790 $41,790 $100,117
      SHOPP $26,560 $26,560 $28,437 $28,437 $3,330 $3,330 $41,790 $41,790 $100,117
      SHOPP Prior

      State Minor Program

   State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) 1

      STIP 

      STIP Prior

   State Bond

      Proposition 1A (High Speed Passenger Train Bond Program)

      Proposition 1B (Highway Safety, Traffic Reduction, Air Quality, and Port Security Bond Act of 2006)

   Active Transportation Program (ATP) 1 $260 $260 $2,901 $2,901 $490 $490 $3,651

   Highway Maintenance (HM) Program 1

   Highway Bridge Program (HBP) 1

   Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (SB1) $3,055 $3,055 $3,055

   Traffic Congestion Relief Program (TCRP)

   State Transit Assistance (STA)(e.g., population/revenue based, Prop 42)

   Other (See Appendix 3) $7,378 $7,378 $4,872 $4,872 $6,126 $6,126 $3,719 $3,719 $22,095

State Total $34,198 $34,198 $39,265 $39,265 $9,946 $9,946 $45,509 $45,509 $128,918

   5307 - Urbanized Area Formula Grants $3,667 $3,667 $3,934 $3,934 $3,934 $3,934 $3,845 $3,845 $15,380

   5309 - Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants

   5309b - New and Small Starts (Capital Investment Grants) 

   5309c - Bus and Bus Related Grants 

   5310 - Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities $64 $64 $64 $64 $64 $64 $64 $64 $256

   5311 - Formula Grants for Rural Areas

   5311f - Intercity Bus 

   5337 - State of Good Repair Grants

   5339 - Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Grants $355 $355 $355 $355 $370 $370 $345 $345 $1,425

   FTA Transfer from Prior FTIP

   Other (See Appendix 4) $3,300 $3,300 $7,899 $7,899 $1,612 $1,612 $2,100 $2,100 $14,911

Federal Transit Total $7,386 $7,386 $12,252 $12,252 $5,980 $5,980 $6,354 $6,354 $31,972

   Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) Improvement Program $1,520 $1,520 $1,551 $1,551 $1,582 $1,582 $1,613 $1,613 $6,266

   Construction of Ferry Boats and Ferry Terminal Facilities (Ferry Boat Program)

   Coordinated Border Infrastructure Program

   Federal Lands Access Program $9,956 $9,956 $9,956

   Federal Lands Transportation Program

   GARVEE Bonds Debt Service Payments

   Highway Infrastructure Program (HIP) $173 $173 $173

   High Priority Projects (HPP) and Demo

   Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) $3,450 $3,450 $104 $104 $3,554

   National Highway Freight Program (NHFP)

   Nationally Significant Freight and Highway Projects (FASTLANE/INFRA Grants)

   Railway-Highway Crossings Program

   Recreational Trails Program

   SAFETEA-LU Safe Routes to School (SRTS)
   Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBGP/RSTP) $2,306 $2,306 $2,356 $2,356 $2,410 $2,410 $2,463 $2,463 $9,535
   Tribal Transportation Program

      Other (see Appendix 5) $35,150 $35,150 $7,073 $7,073 $30,849 $30,849 $1,938 $1,938 $75,010

Federal Highway Total $52,555 $52,555 $10,980 $10,980 $34,945 $34,945 $6,014 $6,014 $104,494

      Other Federal Railroad Administration (see Appendix 6)

Federal Railroad Administration Total

Federal Total $59,941 $59,941 $23,232 $23,232 $40,925 $40,925 $12,368 $12,368 $136,466

     TIFIA (Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act)

     Other (See Appendix 7)

Innovative Financing Total

$104,489 $104,489 $67,790 $67,806 $54,426 $54,426 $61,036 $61,036 $287,757

Financial Summary Notes:
1  State Programs that include both state and federal funds. Template Updated: 2/22/2023

N
O
T
E
S

TOTAL
CURRENT

Amendment Amendment Amendment Amendment

FY 2023

Tahoe MPO
2023 FTIP

Amendment 07
($'s in 1,000)

REVENUE TOTAL

FE
D

ER
A

L 
R

A
IL

ST
A

TE
LO

C
A

L
FE

D
ER

A
L 

TR
A

N
SI

T
IN

N
O

VA
TI

VE
 

FI
N

A
N

C
E

R
EG

IO
N

A
L

FE
D

ER
A

L 
H

IG
H

W
A

Y

FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026

4 YEAR (FTIP Period)

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 
& TMPO CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1

92

jweber
Typewritten Text
Section 3 

jweber
Typewritten Text



TABLE 1: REVENUE - APPENDICES

Tahoe MPO
2023 FTIP

Amendment 07
($'s in 1,000)

Appendix 1 - Local Other

CURRENT
Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current TOTAL

TRPA AQ Mitigation
Private funds $650 $650 $36 $36 $686
Local Transportation Funds $5,650 $5,650 $2,905 $2,905 $2,905 $2,905 $2,905 $2,905 $14,365
Washoe County $36 $36 $326 $326 $362
TRPA O&M $81 $81 $81
TRPA WQ Mitigation $248 $248 $248
Douglas County $250 $250 $78 $78 $79 $79 $407
Tahoe Fund $656 $656 $656
TTD General Funds $16 $16

Local Other Total $6,915 $6,915 $3,923 $3,939 $2,983 $2,983 $2,984 $2,984 $16,821

Appendix 2 - Regional Other

CURRENT
Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current TOTAL

Regional Other Total

Appendix 3 - State Other
CURRENT

Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current TOTAL
Nevada TAP $62 $62 $814 $814 $133 $133 $133 $133 $1,142
LCTOP $280 $280 $278 $278 $117 $117 $675
TDA $3,400 $3,400 $3,600 $3,600 $3,500 $3,500 $3,501 $3,501 $14,001
NV Tahoe Bond $740 $740 $740
NV State Funds $1,625 $1,625 $2,261 $2,261 $3,886
NV State Parks $85 $85 $85 $85 $85 $85 $85 $85 $340
NV State Gas Tax $1,186 $1,186 $95 $95 $30 $30 $1,311
NV State Funds (NDSL/AIS)

State Other Total $7,378 $7,378 $4,872 $4,872 $6,126 $6,126 $3,719 $3,719 $22,095

Appendix 4 - Federal Transit Other

CURRENT

Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current TOTAL
NV - FTA 5339 $1,200 $1,200 $2,887 $2,887 $4,087
NV - FTA 5311 $2,100 $2,100 $1,612 $1,612 $1,612 $1,612 $2,100 $2,100 $7,424
NV - FTA 5339 c $3,400 $3,400 $3,400

Federal Transit Other Total $3,300 $3,300 $7,899 $7,899 $1,612 $1,612 $2,100 $2,100 $14,911

Appendix 5 - Federal Highway Other

CURRENT

Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current TOTAL
NV USFS (SNPLMA $652/$2.4& LTRA) $1,667 $1,667 $1,400 $1,400 $3,067
NV STBG $678 $678 $2,624 $2,624 $1,488 $1,488 $1,488 $1,488 $6,278
NV HIP $251 $251 $251
NV NHPP $23,156 $23,156 $17,433 $17,433 $40,589
NV CDS/Earmarks $1,385 $1,385 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $5,385
NV USFWS (AIS) $2,267 $2,267 $2,267
NV STBG Statewide / Flex $7,719 $7,719 $7,211 $7,211 $14,930
CA CRP $545 $545 $275 $275 $275 $275 $275 $275 $1,370
NV CRP $523 $523 $175 $175 $175 $175 $873

Federal Highway Other Total $35,150 $35,150 $7,073 $7,073 $30,849 $30,849 $1,938 $1,938 $75,010

Appendix 6 - Federal Railroad Administration Other
CURRENT

Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current TOTAL

Federal Railroad Administration Other Total

Appendix 7 - Innovative Other

CURRENT
Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current TOTAL

 Innovative Other Total

FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026

FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026

FY 2026

FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026

FY 2023 FY 2026FY 2024 FY 2025

Federal Railroad Administration Other

FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026

FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026

FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025

Innovative Other

Local  Other

Regional Other

State Other

Federal Transit Other

Federal Highway Other

Page 1 of 1
TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 

& TMPO CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1
93



TABLE 2: PROGRAMMED

FUNDING SOURCES
Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current 

No. 04 No. 07 No. 04 No. 07 No. 04 No. 07 No. 04 No. 07

Local Total $10,350 $10,350 $5,293 $5,309 $3,555 $3,555 $3,159 $3,159 $22,373

   Tolls

       Bridge

      Corridor

   Regional Sales Tax

   Other (See Appendix A)

Regional Total

   State Highway Operations and Protection Program (SHOPP) 1 $26,560 $26,560 $28,437 $28,437 $3,330 $3,330 $41,790 $41,790 $100,117
      SHOPP $26,560 $26,560 $28,437 $28,437 $3,330 $3,330 $41,790 $41,790 $100,117

      SHOPP Prior

      State Minor Program

   State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) 1

      STIP 

      STIP Prior

   State Bond

      Proposition 1A (High Speed Passenger Train Bond Program)

      Proposition 1B  (Highway Safety, Traffic Reduction, Air Quality, and Port Security Bond Act of 2006)

   Active Transportation Program 1 $260 $260 $2,901 $2,901 $490 $490 $3,651

   Highway Maintenance (HM) Program 1

   Highway Bridge Program (HBP) 1

   Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (SB1) $3,055 $3,055 $3,055

   Traffic Congestion Relief Program (TCRP)

   State Transit Assistance (STA)(e.g., population/revenue based, Prop 42)

   Other (See Appendix B) $7,326 $7,326 $4,872 $4,872 $5,848 $5,848 $3,691 $3,691 $21,737

State Total $34,146 $34,146 $39,265 $39,265 $9,668 $9,668 $45,481 $45,481 $128,560

   5307 - Urbanized Area Formula Grants $3,174 $3,174 $3,934 $3,934 $3,934 $3,934 $3,262 $3,262 $14,304

   5309 - Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants

   5309b - New and Small Starts (Capital Investment Grants) 

   5309c - Bus and Bus Related Grants 

   5310 - Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities $64 $64 $64 $64 $64 $64 $62 $62 $254

   5311 - Formula Grants for Rural Areas

   5311f - Intercity Bus 

   5337 - State of Good Repair Grants

   5339 - Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Grants $345 $345 $345 $345 $360 $360 $335 $335 $1,385

   FTA Transfer from Prior FTIP

   Other (See Appendix C) $3,300 $3,300 $7,899 $7,899 $1,612 $1,612 $2,100 $2,100 $14,911

Federal Transit Total $6,883 $6,883 $12,242 $12,242 $5,970 $5,970 $5,759 $5,759 $30,854

   Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) Improvement Program $1,499 $1,499 $1,551 $1,551 $1,582 $1,582 $1,613 $1,613 $6,245

   Construction of Ferry Boats and Ferry Terminal Facilities (Ferry Boat Program)

   Coordinated Border Infrastructure Program

   Federal Lands Access Program $9,956 $9,956 $9,956

   Federal Lands Transportation Program

   GARVEE Bonds Debt Service Payments

   Highway Infrastructure Program (HIP) $173 $173 $173

   High Priority Projects (HPP) and Demo

   Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) $3,450 $3,450 $104 $104 $3,554

   National Highway Freight Program (NHFP)

   Nationally Significant Freight and Highway Projects (FASTLANE/INFRA Grants)

   Railway-Highway Crossings Program

   Recreational Trails Program

   SAFETEA-LU Safe Routes to School (SRTS)
   Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBGP/RSTP) $2,053 $2,053 $2,053 $2,053 $2,410 $2,410 $2,463 $2,463 $8,979
   Tribal Transportation Program

   Other (see Appendix D) $35,150 $35,150 $6,773 $7,073 $30,849 $30,849 $1,938 $1,938 $75,010

Federal Highway Total $52,281 $52,281 $10,377 $10,677 $34,945 $34,945 $6,014 $6,014 $103,917

      Other Federal Railroad Administration (see Appendix E)

Federal Railroad Administration Total

Federal Total $59,164 $59,164 $22,619 $22,919 $40,915 $40,915 $11,773 $11,773 $134,771

     TIFIA (Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act)

     Other (See Appendix F)

Innovative Financing Total

$103,660 $103,660 $67,177 $67,493 $54,138 $54,138 $60,413 $60,413 $285,704

MPO Financial Summary Notes:
1  State Programs that include both state and federal funds. Template Updated: 2/22/2023

FY 2023

PROGRAMMED TOTAL

IN
N

O
VA

TI
VE

 
FI

N
A

N
C

E
R

EG
IO

N
A

L
FE

D
ER

A
L 

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

FE
D

ER
A

L 
TR

A
N

SI
T

ST
A

TE

Tahoe MPO
2023 FTIP

Amendment 07
($'s in 1,000)

FE
D

ER
A

L 
R

A
IL

LO
C

A
L

FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026

4 YEAR (FTIP Period)
N
O
T
E
S

TOTAL
CURRENT

Amendment Amendment Amendment Amendment

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 
& TMPO CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1

94



TABLE 2: PROGRAMMED - APPENDICES

Tahoe MPO
2023 FTIP

Amendment 07
($'s in 1,000)

Appendix A - Regional Other
CURRENT

Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current TOTAL

Regional Other Total

Appendix B - State Other

CURRENT

Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current TOTAL
Nevada TAP $62 $62 $814 $814 $133 $133 $133 $133 $1,142
LCTOP $280 $280 $278 $278 $117 $117 $675
TDA $3,348 $3,348 $3,600 $3,600 $3,222 $3,222 $3,473 $3,473 $13,643
NV Tahoe Bond $740 $740 $740
NV State Funds $1,625 $1,625 $2,261 $2,261 $3,886
NV State Parks $85 $85 $85 $85 $85 $85 $85 $85 $340
NV State Gas Tax $1,186 $1,186 $95 $95 $30 $30 $1,311
NV State Funds (NDSL/AIS)

State Other Total $7,326 $7,326 $4,872 $4,872 $5,848 $5,848 $3,691 $3,691 $21,737

Appendix C - Federal Transit Other

CURRENT

Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current TOTAL
NV FTA 5339 $1,200 $1,200 $2,887 $2,887 $4,087
NV FTA 5311 $2,100 $2,100 $1,612 $1,612 $1,612 $1,612 $2,100 $2,100 $7,424
NV FTA 5339 c $3,400 $3,400 $3,400

Federal Transit Other Total $3,300 $3,300 $7,899 $7,899 $1,612 $1,612 $2,100 $2,100 $14,911

Appendix D - Federal Highway Other

CURRENT

Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current TOTAL
USFS (SNPLMA $652 /$2.4 & LTRA) $1,667 $1,667 $1,400 $1,400 $3,067
NV STBG $678 $678 $2,324 $2,624 $1,488 $1,488 $1,488 $1,488 $6,278
NV HIP $251 $251 $251
NV NHPP $23,156 $23,156 $17,433 $17,433 $40,589
NV CDS/Earmarks 2022 & 2023 $1,385 $1,385 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $5,385
NV USFWS ( AIS) $2,267 $2,267 $2,267
NV STBG Statewide / Flex $7,719 $7,719 $7,211 $7,211 $14,930
CA CRP $545 $545 $275 $275 $275 $275 $275 $275 $1,370
NV CRP $523 $523 $175 $175 $175 $175 $873

Federal Highway Other Total $35,150 $35,150 $6,773 $7,073 $30,849 $30,849 $1,938 $1,938 $75,010

Appendix E - Federal Railroad Administration Other
CURRENT

Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current TOTAL

Federal Railroad Administration Other Total

Appendix F - Innovative Finance Other
CURRENT

Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current TOTAL

 Innovative Other Total

FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026

FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026

FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026

FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026

FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026

FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026

Innovative Other

Regional Other

State Other

Federal Transit Other

Federal Highway Other

Federal Railroad Administration Other

Page 1 of 1TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 
& TMPO CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1

95



TABLE 3: REVENUE-PROGRAMMED

FUNDING SOURCES Amendment Amendment Amendment Amendment
Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current 

No. 04 No. 07 No. 04 No. 07 No. 04 No. 07 No. 04 No. 07

Local Total

   Tolls
       Bridge
      Corridor
   Regional Sales Tax
   Other

Regional Total

   State Highway Operations and Protection Program (SHOPP) 1

      SHOPP 
      SHOPP Prior
      State Minor Program
   State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP)  1

      STIP 
      STIP Prior
   State Bond
      Proposition 1A (High Speed Passenger Train Bond Program)
      Proposition 1B  (Highway Safety, Traffic Reduction, Air Quality, and Port Security Bond Act of 2006)

   Active Transportation Program 1

   Highway Maintenance (HM) Program 1

   Highway Bridge Program (HBP) 1

   Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (SB1)
   Traffic Congestion Relief Program (TCRP)
   State Transit Assistance (STA)(e.g., population/revenue based, Prop 42)
   Other $52 $52 $278 $278 $28 $28 $358

State Total $52 $52 $278 $278 $28 $28 $358

   5307 - Urbanized Area Formula Grants $493 $493 $583 $583 $1,076
   5309 - Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants
   5309b - New and Small Starts (Capital Investment Grants) 
   5309c - Bus and Bus Related Grants 
   5310 - Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities $2 $2 $2
   5311 - Formula Grants for Rural Areas
   5311f - Intercity Bus 
   5337 - State of Good Repair Grants
   5339 - Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Grants $10 $10 $10 $10 $10 $10 $10 $10 $40
   FTA Transfer from Prior FTIP
   Other

Federal Transit Total $503 $503 $10 $10 $10 $10 $595 $595 $1,118

   Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) Improvement Program $21 $21 $21
   Construction of Ferry Boats and Ferry Terminal Facilities (Ferry Boat Program)
   Coordinated Border Infrastructure Program
   Federal Lands Access Program
   Federal Lands Transportation Program
   GARVEE Bonds Debt Service Payments
   Highway Infrastructure Program (HIP)
   High Priority Projects (HPP) and Demo
   Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP)
   National Highway Freight Program (NHFP)
   Nationally Significant Freight and Highway Projects (FASTLANE/INFRA Grants)
   Railway-Highway Crossings Program
   Recreational Trails Program
   SAFETEA-LU Safe Routes to School (SRTS)
   Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBGP/RSTP) $253 $253 $303 $303 $556
   Tribal Transportation Program
   Other $300

Federal Highway Total $274 $274 $603 $303 $577

   Other Federal Railroad Administration

Federal Railroad Administration Total

Federal Total $777 $777 $613 $313 $10 $10 $595 $595 $1,695

   TIFIA (Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act)

   Other

Innovative Financing Total

$829 $829 $613 $313 $288 $288 $623 $623 $2,053

Template Updated: 2/22/2023

REVENUE - PROGRAM TOTAL

LO
C

A
L

R
EG

IO
N

A
L

FE
D

ER
A

L 
H

IG
H

W
A

Y
IN

N
O

VA
TI

VE
 

FI
N

A
N

C
E

FE
D

ER
A

L 
TR

A
N

SI
T

FE
D

ER
A

L 
R

A
IL

ST
A

TE

Tahoe MPO
2023 FTIP

Amendment 07
($'s in 1,000)

TOTAL
CURRENT

4 YEAR (FTIP Period)
FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 
& TMPO CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1

96



NOTICE OF SEVEN (7) DAY PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
2023 FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

 Amendment No. 7 

This announcement is being initiated as required by the Tahoe Metropolitan Planning 
Organization’s Public Participation Plan to provide public notification of changes that 
have been proposed to the 2023 Federal Transportation Improvement Program (FTIP). 
The public comment period commences on January 31, 2024 and closes February 7, 
2024 at 5:00 p.m. A public hearing will be held on February 7, 2024 at the Tahoe 
Transportation Commission meeting prior to the close of the comment period.  

Amendment No. 7 document is available upon request or can be accessed online at: 
https://www.trpa.gov/transportation/ 

Please submit comments to: 

Tahoe Metropolitan Planning Organization   
P.O. Box 5310 

Stateline, NV 89449 
Attn: Judy Weber, Associate Transportation Planner 

Or via email:  jweber@trpa.gov 

Amendment No. 7 programs an additional project into the 2023 Federal Transportation 
Improvement Program. 

• Tahoe Transportation District (TTD):  Corridor Coordination
This project proposes support for corridor coordination across multi-jurisdictional
and land management project stakeholders for corridor-based projects located on
SR28, SR89, and US50. Short-term funds will go towards supporting the
implementation of the SR28 Central Corridor projects. Total Project Cost $600,000.
Completion Year 2029.

Please direct any questions regarding this notice to Judy Weber at (775) 589-5203. 

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 
& TMPO CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1

97

https://www.trpa.gov/transportation/
mailto:jweber@trpa.gov
jweber
Typewritten Text
Section 4 



98



STAFF REPORT 

Date: February 21, 2024 

To: TRPA Governing Board 

From: TRPA Staff 

Subject: A Public Hearing to Consider Approval of Economic Sustainability and Housing Amendments 
to Placer County’s Tahoe Basin Area Plan  

Summary and Staff Recommendation: 
Placer County will provide an overview of the proposed amendments to the Tahoe Basin Area Plan 
(TBAP). Staff find that the proposed amendments conform with the Regional Plan and will have no 
significant environmental impact beyond the impact already analyzed and mitigated in the 2016 TBAP 
EIR/EIS. Staff seeks Governing Board discussion and asks the Governing Board to consider approval of 
the proposed area plan amendment with the TRPA-recommended text changes detailed in Exhibit A to 
this staff report.  

Required Motions:  
To adopt the proposed amendments to the Tahoe Basin Area Plan, the Board must make the following 
motions: 

1) A motion to approve the Required Findings, as described in Attachment D, including a Finding of
No Significant Effect, for adoption of the Area Plan amendment as described in the staff
summary; and

2) A motion to adopt Ordinance 2024-__, amending Ordinance 2021-02, to amend the Tahoe Basin
Area Plan as shown in Attachment C and including the changes detailed in Exhibit A to the staff
report.

An affirmative vote of a majority of each state’s delegation is required for a motion to pass. 

Project Description/Background: 
Since the 2012 Regional Plan Update, TRPA has encouraged local jurisdictions to develop area plans to 
replace the former local planning documents: plan area statements and community plans. Area plans 
are collaborative documents which become a component of both the Regional Plan and the city or 
county’s comprehensive plan. They represent a paradigm shift for TRPA since they enable TRPA to 
transition its focus to regional issues while allowing local jurisdictions greater autonomy to define and 
manage their own local land use.  

The TRPA Governing Board approved the TBAP on January 25, 2017. The plan encompasses Placer 
County’s entire jurisdiction in the Tahoe Basin. The plan includes two town center districts to 
accommodate mixed-use and higher density development in the area: the Tahoe City and Kings Beach 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.99



Town Center Districts. The proposed TBAP amendments focus on specific changes to facilitate 
appropriate development and redevelopment in these town center districts along with standards and 
policies applying across the plan area.    

Placer County’s proposed amendment package is intended to provide a systematic approach to 
encouraging desired investment (i.e., environmentally and economically beneficial redevelopment and 
affordable workforce housing) to the Tahoe portion of Placer County by analyzing and adaptively 
managing the Area Plan’s goals and policies and implementing regulations. The following key studies 
completed between 2019 and 2022 and a robust stakeholder engagement process serve as the basis for 
this proposed amendment package:  

• Tahoe Basin Town Center Economic Sustainability Needs Analysis (2019)
• Placer County Tahoe Basin Town Center Economic Sustainability Analysis (2020)
• Baseline Report for the Tahoe Basin (2021)
• Community Report for the Tahoe Region (2022)
• Envision Tahoe Prosperity Playbook (2022)

Placer County is proposing a comprehensive package of amendments to TBAP policies and implementing 
regulations based on the studies listed above and stakeholder engagement.  

Proposed Policy Amendments: 
 Sustainable town center redevelopment and protection of scenic resources
 Expanded hardening, green waste, and defensible space incentives
 High-speed broadband and childcare facilities to meet the needs of local workers
 Allocation and conversion of TRPA development rights to maximize community benefit
 Frontage improvements including, sidewalks, curb, gutters, and parking management
 Development of mixed-use, business park, and light industrial space in town centers
 Public art by local artists
 Adaptive reuse of underutilized properties
 Development of affordable, moderate, and achievable housing

Proposed Implementing Regulation Amendments (presented below in categories and in more detail 
within Attachment C): 

 Mobile vending
 Streamlined permitting for uses within a defined maximum square footage
 Building length and height
 Groundwater interception
 Parking exemptions
 Setbacks, articulation, massing, and parking requirements for deed-restricted housing
 Incentives for affordable housing
 Inclusionary zoning for new condominium subdivisions in Town Centers
 Street frontage improvements
 Signs
 Shorezone permitting
 Other miscellaneous cleanup

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.100

https://www.placer.ca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/43238/Placer-County-Tahoe-Basin-Town-Center-Economic-Sustainability-Needs-Analysis
https://www.placer.ca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/43238/Placer-County-Tahoe-Basin-Town-Center-Economic-Sustainability-Needs-Analysis
https://tahoeprosperity.org/wp-content/uploads/TPC-Report_Sept-2021_Web.pdf
https://tahoeprosperity.org/wp-content/uploads/March-2022-Tahoe-Community-Report-final.pdf
https://tahoeprosperity.org/wp-content/uploads/JUNE-2022_Prosperity-Playbook_Web.pdf


Placer County staff have held workshops with the Placer County Planning Commission, North Lake Tahoe 
Resort Association, North Tahoe Business Association, and Tahoe City Downtown Association to refine 
this amendment package. The proposed amendments were presented to the Placer County Planning 
Commission on August 10, 2023. An ordinance adopting the amendments was approved by the Placer 
County Board of Supervisors on October 31, 2023 (Attachment A). The Advisory Planning Commission 
(APC) unanimously recommended adoption of the amendments at their December 6, 2023, meeting and 
the Regional Planning Committee recommended adoption on January 24, 2024. County staff provided a 
detailed summary of the proposed amendments included as Attachment B to this packet. Additionally, 
County staff provided a status report on the implementation of the TBAP (Attachment K) and a detailed 
response to public comments (Attachment M).  

Environmental Review: 
Placer County submitted an Initial Environmental Checklist (IEC) pursuant to Chapter 3: Environmental 
Documentation of the TRPA Code of Ordinances and Article VI of the Rules of Procedure (Attachment E). 
TRPA staff completed a review of the IEC and submitted revisions to Placer County staff. The IEC finds 
that the proposed amendments would not result in significant effects on the environment. 

Regional Plan Compliance:  
TRPA staff completed a Regional Plan Conformance Review Checklist (Attachment F) and determined 
that the proposed amendment is in conformance with the Regional Plan.  Recommendations of the APC 
and RPC will be considered by the Governing Board in determining whether to find the Area Plan 
amendment in compliance with the Regional Plan.   

Contact Information: 
For questions regarding this agenda item, please contact Jacob Stock, AICP, Senior Planner, at (775) 
589-5221 or jstock@trpa.gov. 

Attachments: 

A. Placer County Adopting Ordinance
B. Placer County Staff Report
C. TRPA Adopting Ordinance

 Exhibit A—Proposed Policy Amendment Language
 Exhibit B—Proposed Implementing Regulation Amendment Language

D. Findings
E. IEC
F. Conformity Checklist
G. Compliance Measures
H. Table of Amendments
K. TBAP Implementation Report
M. Response to Comments

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.101

https://www.trpa.gov/wp-content/uploads/Agenda-Item-No.-VII.-A.-Attachment-C-Exhibit-A-Proposed-Policy-Amendment-Language.pdf
https://www.trpa.gov/wp-content/uploads/Agenda-Item-No.-VII.-A.-Attachment-C-Exhibit-B-Proposed-Implementing-Regulation-Language.pdf
https://www.trpa.gov/wp-content/uploads/Agenda-Item-No.-VII.-A.-Attachment-E-IEC.pdf


Attachment A 
Placer County Adopting Ordinance 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.102



AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.103



AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.104



AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.105



AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.106



AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.107



AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.108



AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.109



AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.110



AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.111



AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.112



AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.113



AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.114



Attachment B 
Placer County Staff Report 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.115



TO: TRPA Governing Board    DATE: February 28, 2024 

FROM: 

BY: 

Crystal Jacobsen, Acting Community Development Resource Agency Director 

Emily Setzer, Principal Planner and Stacy Wydra, Principal Planner  

SUBJECT: Tahoe Basin Area Plan – Economic Sustainability and Housing Amendments 

ACTIONS REQUESTED 

1. Conduct a public hearing to consider the following items:
a. Recommendation to adopt the Addendum and the Errata to the Tahoe Basin Area

Plan Environmental Impact Report.
b. Recommendation to adopt a Resolution approving amendments to the Tahoe Basin

Area Plan policy document.
c. Recommendation to adopt an Ordinance amending the Tahoe Basin Area Plan

implementing regulations.
d. Recommendation to adopt an Ordinance amending Placer County Code, Chapter

12, Article 12.08, Section 12.08.020(A).
2. Close the public hearing, take tentative action on the above and continue the item to October

31, 2023 at 2:00pm for final action.

BACKGROUND 

Planning Services Division staff proposes changes to the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan 
(TBAP) to promote economic sustainability and production of new housing. Staff recommends that 
the Board of Supervisors (Board) consider adoption of a Resolution and Ordinance to repeal and 
replace the TBAP in its entirety and adoption of an Ordinance amending Placer County Code 
Chapter 12, Article 12.08, Section 12.08.020(A) to remove outdated zoning area references, 
clarify where countywide street improvements are required, and to add single-family detached 
dwellings as subject to street improvement requirements to align with TBAP pedestrian mobility 
goals. The proposed replacement of the TBAP would amend Parts 2.6, 2.7, 3.4, 3.5, 4.3, 4.7 and 
8.2 of the TBAP, and Chapters 1, 2, and 3 of the TBAP Implementing Regulations to refine policy 
and code sections aimed at supporting workforce housing, as well as encouraging lodging and 
mixed-use redevelopment in Town Centers. The amendment package focuses on diversifying 
land uses across a variety of sectors, streamlining land use processes and reducing barriers for 
new businesses in the Town Centers, and providing additional opportunities for a greater variety 
of housing types, including workforce housing, throughout North Tahoe.  

Tahoe Basin Area Plan 
As stated, the TBAP was originally adopted by the Board on December 6, 2016, and by the Tahoe 
Regional Planning Agency (TRPA) Governing Board on January 25, 2017. The TBAP replaced all 
previous community plans, general plans, land use regulations, development standards and 
guidelines, and Plan Area Statements within the Tahoe Basin.  The TBAP includes both a Policy 
document and an Implementing Regulations document, which serves as the zoning code for the 
Tahoe Basin. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.116



Area plans are a central part of the TRPA Lake Tahoe Regional Plan and an important strategy to 
accelerate attainment of TRPA environmental thresholds. The TBAP sets forth the regulations that 
implement the Lake Tahoe Regional Plan in the Placer County portion of the Lake Tahoe region. 
Since adoption of the TBAP, the State of California has passed housing legislation in each legislative 
session that limits the ability of local governments to regulate housing development. State Housing 
laws have sought to reduce and limit local permitting processes, moving toward a ministerial approval 
model for housing in an effort to reduce barriers to housing production. The State laws obligate local 
government to undertake updates in their housing plans and plan for growth, among other 
requirements. Also, since the TBAP adoption, multiple efforts have been underway to address the 
lack of redevelopment and revitalization of the Town Centers and Village Centers.  

Purpose of Proposed Amendments 
The proposed TBAP amendments are targeted at economic development and housing in response 
to 1) a lack of new development/redevelopment, particularly lodging, in the Town Centers, 2) a lack 
of workforce housing, and 3) a decreasing population.  

Although North Tahoe has undergone significant public infrastructure investment and community 
and governing body approval of comprehensive plans and visions for the future, the Tahoe City and 
Kings Beach Town Centers have yet to see significant private sector investment resulting in projects 
in the ground. A few sizable, proposed redevelopment projects in the Town Centers have been 
proposed in the past year and are in the planning stages; however, even those projects are struggling 
to meet various onerous existing TBAP development standards. 

Due to the lack of high-quality lodging in the Town Centers, lodging has shifted to the neighborhoods 
in the form of short-term rentals. This, in combination with second homes, has drastically decreased 
the availability of workforce housing. The North Tahoe region has seen very few new multifamily 
workforce or “missing middle” housing projects, defined as house-scale buildings with multiple units 
in walkable environments, often targeted at those who earn above the typical 60 percent Area 
Median Income limits deemed as “affordable” but still can’t afford to purchase homes in the region.  

East Placer currently has approximately 19,000 residential units, 12 percent of which are owner-
occupied fulltime, 15 percent are used as short-term rentals, while the remaining 73 percent sit 
mostly vacant as private vacation homes/second homes, some of which are used as long-term 
rentals. The North Tahoe-Truckee Regional Housing Implementation Plan prepared for the Mountain 
Housing Council in October 2021 estimated that about one third of North Tahoe and Truckee’s 
housing was used for workforce housing, which combines housing used as long-term rentals and 
housing owned and occupied by local workers.  

In addition, the 2020 American Community Survey five-year estimates predict that only eight percent 
of the housing units in the Tahoe Truckee Unified School District geographical boundary (which 
covers North Tahoe and Truckee) are renter-occupied. The lack of housing options has led to a 
decrease in population. In the Placer County portion of the Tahoe Basin, the population decreased 
by 2,000 residents between 2000 and 2020. This lack of year-round economic stability has made it 
challenging for businesses to thrive.  

Since adoption of the TBAP, a variety of studies have been released that connect the regional 
economic base with workforce housing needs in the Tahoe-Truckee region. Two of these studies, 
the Placer County Tahoe Basin Town Center Economic Sustainability Needs Analysis (Attachment 
I) conducted by Placer County and BAE Urban Economics, Inc. (BAE) in 2019, as well as a series

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.117



of economic reports collectively called “Envision Tahoe” released by the Tahoe Prosperity Center 
(Attachment H), are included with this report package and further discussed below.  

Additionally, many community groups have commented about the desire for quality hotels in the 
Town Centers, ways to make the approval process for small business start-ups more simplified, and 
the overwhelming demand for workforce housing. These groups include the North Lake Tahoe 
Resort Association, the North Tahoe Business Association, the Tahoe City Downtown Association, 
and the Mountain Housing Council. The overall theme has centered around shifting lodging from 
short-term rentals in residential neighborhoods to quality hotels in Town Centers, creating vibrant 
Town Centers with a unique sense of place, and the need for a variety of workforce housing units. 

Placer County Tahoe Basin Town Center Economic Sustainability Needs Analysis 
In 2019, the Placer County Executive Office (CEO) contracted with a real estate advisory consulting 
firm BAE Urban Economics to identify the causal forces and the financial feasibility needs/gaps 
behind the lack of private sector investment, and to identify potential local government regulatory 
updates and incentives that could be tailored and utilized to attract environmentally and economically 
beneficial re-investment in the Town Centers. BAE was also asked to develop recommendations to 
address a number of issues identified in the analysis. The results of BAE’s analysis were 
incorporated into the Placer County Tahoe Basin Town Center Economic Sustainability Analysis, 
finalized in March 2020. The analysis examined four prototypes of projects that had been trending 
or which the County would prefer to see built: 

1. Mixed-Use Residential

2. For-Sale Residential Condominium

3. Limited-Service Hotel

4. Full-Service Condotel

Based on a range of factors, the only prototype that proved within the range of market acceptable 
financial feasibility was the For-Sale Residential Condominium. It is important to note that while the 
TBAP allows this type of use in the Town Centers, area residents do not believe it is consistent with 
either the Kings Beach or Tahoe City vision documents, which preceded the TBAP. Barriers to 
investment in desired development types include: 

• High construction material and labor costs

• High cost to meet parking requirements

• Utility costs

• Infeasible employee housing requirement

• Uncertain and prolonged entitlement and construction permitting process

• Complex and prescriptive regulatory requirements

• Detailed and expensive plan sets required for pre-entitlement

• Vehicle miles traveled (VMT) thresholds

• Town Center incentives not designed for smaller infill projects

• Lack of catalyst, proof of concept, projects

• Lack of available parcels large enough for development

• Anticipated developer and lender caution about a real estate market dip

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.118



The report's recommendations were built around four broad findings outlined in the document: 

1. High Cost of Development

2. Uncertainty, Risk and Indirect Costs Associated with a Complex Entitlement and

Permitting Process

3. Complex and Prescriptive Requirements Hinder Project Feasibility

4. Local Conditions Create Perception of Increased Risk

Staff recommended a multi-pronged approach in moving forward with the concepts proposed in the 
BAE study including the following: 

1. Updates to the North Lake Tahoe Economic Incentives Program to include a
Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) incentive program, addition of TRPA development
rights, and an enhanced infrastructure finance district.

2. Process, policy, and code improvements to facilitate development, scale back
requirements, and better understand and alleviate constraints and challenges in the
development process, including zoning and building requirements and fees,
collaborating with TRPA, updating parking standards and creating parking districts,
and increasing workforce housing allowances.

3. Relaxing workforce housing mitigation and allocate funding to implement programs
to attract and retain permanent residents.

Since that time, staff has made significant strides towards implementing the improvements outlined 
in the study including: 

• CEO staff updated the North Lake Tahoe Economic Incentives Program (Incentives
Program) in June 2022.

• CDRA and CEO staff are coordinating on amendments to the Incentives Program to
include an allocation and priority process for distribution of TRPA development rights.

• CDRA staff is evaluating the creation of Enhanced Infrastructure Finance Districts,
particularly for the Kings Beach “Grid” neighborhood, to complete frontage
improvements such as sidewalks.

• CDRA staff brought forward programs such as the Workforce Housing Preservation
Program (adopted by the Board on February 26, 2021, and launched Summer 2021)
and the Lease to Locals Program (adopted by the Board on July 26, 2022, and
launched August 1, 2022) to facilitate down payment assistance while preserving
housing for the workforce and to incentivize long-term rentals.

• CDRA staff also brought forward an updated Affordable Housing and Employee
Accommodation Ordinance, adopted by the Board on October 27, 2020, and a fee,
most recently approved on April 19, 2022.

Envision Tahoe 
The Tahoe Prosperity Center prepared and released several reports documenting the economics of 
the Tahoe Basin from Fall 2021 to Summer 2022: the Baseline Report for the Tahoe Basin in 
September 2021, the Community Report for the Tahoe Region in March 2022, and the Envision 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.119



Tahoe Prosperity Playbook in June 2022. The three documents focused on a number of key findings 
for the Tahoe Basin as a whole: 

• Population:

o Tahoe’s 20-year population decline changed direction in 2019 and population
growth accelerated in 2020 but is still lower than the population count in 2000.

o K-12 public school enrollment data shows an overall decline in student
population over the past five years, including the pandemic years.

o The number of residents with advanced degrees has steadily increased over
the past 10 years, suggesting a knowledgeable and skilled talent pool is
available to be tapped in Tahoe to support existing and/or new businesses.

• Housing Availability & Affordability:

o The total number of housing units increased in the Basin 1.35 percent from
2010 to 2020.

o The median average income in Tahoe is $53,165 while real estate reports
show the median home price in January 2022 has risen to $950,000.

• Economy:

o Tahoe’s economic base has become more concentrated in a few areas since
2010. Three industry clusters (and the businesses that support them)
contribute 95 percent of all economic output in the Tahoe Basin: visitor
services, environmental innovation, and health and wellness. All three sectors
experienced flat or declining job growth and economic output over the past 10
years.

o Visitor-related businesses increased from 40 percent to 62 percent of all
economic activity in the Basin over the past 10 years, is subject to wide
seasonal swings in employment, and is highly susceptible to disruption.

o Construction has seen a steady increase in jobs over the past 10 years. Since
2010, construction has grown by 57 percent to more than 4,000 jobs today, or
12 percent of the job base. Like tourism, construction is subject to boom and
bust cycles driven by economic swings and available consumer spending.

o With the rise of economic, social, and environmental disruptions caused by
climate change, pandemics, and rapid economic and technological shifts, the
importance of economic diversification is rising as a central element in
economic development planning at the regional, state, and national level.

The Envision Tahoe Prosperity Playbook focuses on four action goals and tactical approaches: 
Action Goals: 
1. Strengthen key industries: Support tourism-related job shift to sectors such as health

and wellness and environmental innovation.
2. Build skill pathways for upward mobility: Explore ways to build region-wide skills

programs and curriculums.
3. Jump start the innovation system: Support entrepreneurship and local chambers and

business associations to help launch new businesses.
4. Shape the enabling environment: Quantify the business and community advantages

that could result from a well-coordinated branding and global marketing strategy
focused on health, wellness, recreation and the outdoors, environmental innovation,

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.120



and the connections between them; and energize and scale up present 
conversations about improved public-private sector alignment and shared 
governance across the Tahoe-Truckee region. 

Tactical Approaches: 
1. Accelerate workforce housing in the Tahoe-Truckee region.
2. Improve and fund Tahoe transportation and mobility.

Outreach and Stakeholder Engagement 
The proposed TBAP amendments have been informed from years of ongoing feedback from a 
variety of stakeholders and community groups in the region, including: 

• North Tahoe Business Association Board and its Economic Vitality Committee

• Tahoe City Downtown and its Business Advocacy Committee

• North Tahoe Community Alliance

• Mountain Housing Council

• TRPA Living Working Group

• Applicants to the Community Development Resource Agency

• Planner feedback from customer interactions

Additionally, staff sought input from seven professionals from the Tahoe Basin business and 
development community, including designers/architects, small business owners, and developers, 
regarding their experiences bringing forward new business and/or development in the Town 
Centers and to formulate potential modifications. Staff met with those individuals from May to 
June in 2021 to better understand the factors that contribute to the lack of investment, 
development and/or redevelopment in the Town Centers and to gain a better understanding 
regarding their experiences related to the development and/or processing of a project within the 
Town Centers. Staff documented their feedback which included topics such as processing 
barriers, strict development standards and/or required site improvements, zoning restrictions, etc. 
The proposed amendments of the TBAP are intended to address as many of these topics as 
possible.   

Staff also presented these amendments to the following groups to conduct outreach and seek 
feedback: 

• Placer County Planning Commission informational workshop - September 22, 2022

• North Lake Tahoe Resort Association – October 5, 2022

• North Tahoe Regional Advisory Council informational item – October 13, 2022

• North Tahoe Business Association – October 17, 2022

• Tahoe City Downtown Association – October 18, 2022

• North Tahoe Regional Advisory Council workshop – November 9, 2022 (see summaries
below)

• North Tahoe Regional Advisory Council action item – November 30, 2022 (see summaries
below)

• Planning Commission Hearing – December 8, 2022 (see summary below)

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.121



• TRPA Regional Plan Implementation Committee informational workshop – December 14, 
2022 

• TBAP Community Workshop - March 9, 2023 

• TBAP Town Hall Meeting – August 1, 2023 
 
North Tahoe Regional Advisory Council Meeting Overview 
On October 13, 2022, and November 9, 2022, staff presented the proposed TBAP amendments as 
an informational item to the North Tahoe Regional Advisory Council (NTRAC). At the November 9, 
2022, NTRAC meeting, 26 members of the public provided comments on the proposed 
amendments.  Of the 26 members who spoke, 15 of them provided positive comments in support of 
the amendments proposed. Comments included support for frontage improvements, including 
addressing sidewalks; parking for both developments and enforcement (overflows into 
neighborhoods); concerns that density is increasing; address short term rentals impacts; fire impacts 
and evacuation; the need for walkability; the need for housing; the need for workforce housing and 
deed restrictions extended beyond 50 years; acknowledgement that these amendments target small 
businesses and the challenges that they face; concerns with the height amendments and exceptions; 
impact fees and hinderance to development – should consider different fees for difference 
projects/number of units; short term rentals impacting the neighborhoods; balance of environmental 
improvements and development; concerns with existing boarded-up buildings and difficulty for 
redevelopment of existing structures; provide incentives to make it easier to build smaller homes, 
more affordable; majority of housing inventory is large, second homes; consider utilizing 
campgrounds as alternative for housing opportunities (during the winter months); process is difficult 
and challenging; need to require workforce housing first; discourage more population; need to 
improve incentives; support for mixed-use development, tiny houses, community kitchens; need for 
RV parks year-round; exemptions of coverage need to be considered; concerns with mobile vendors 
and noise impacts; wealth and inequality is the bigger issue; concerns with environmental impacts 
to existing conditions; need to look at transportation issues; cannot continue to do nothing, need to 
make some changes.        
 
The proposed TBAP amendments were brought forward for recommendation at the November 30, 
2022, NTRAC meeting, where six of the eight NTRAC members voted in support of a 
recommendation of approval with a few considerations:  

• Height: Remain at 56-FT with allowance of additional height for appurtenances and roof-top 
uses. 

• Consider Transition Zones: Between Town Center and Adjoining Residential Zone Districts. 

• Review of Fire Evacuation and Egresses – Updates to the 2016 review. 

• Efforts to support redevelopment over new development. 

• Development Right Manual. Requested community input, develop a program, i.e., 
Stakeholder Working Group. 

 
Planning Commission Overview and Modifications to the Proposal 
On December 8, 2022, the Planning Commission considered the TBAP Amendment package. Due 
to substantial public comment received, the meeting largely focused on building height and length 
and perceived density increases. The Planning Commission voted (5 Yes, 0 No, 2 Absent) to 
continue the item to a future date. Commissioners Woodward and DeMattei were absent from the 
meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.122



After the Planning Commission meeting, increases to height and length allowances were 
eliminated from this Amendment proposal (see Building Length and Building Height sections 
below). Transition Zones currently exist within the TBAP, and no changes are proposed to those 
existing zones. However, in both Town Centers, building length transitions have been 
incorporated to ensure compatibility with residential zone districts. Buildings are proposed to be 
a maximum of 75 feet on all parcel frontages directly facing residential zone districts (see Building 
Length section below). An Addendum was prepared for the proposed amendments and the review 
of Fire Evacuation and Egresses was evaluated. The Addendum concluded that these proposed 
Amendments would not hamper emergency response or evacuation plans and would result in a 
less than significant impact, in accordance with the TBAP Environmental Impact Report (EIR) 
(pgs. 18-23). The Amendments are focused on the redevelopment of our Town Centers and those 
efforts are demonstrated through the proposed amendments. Lastly, the County will conduct a 
public process for the Development Right Manual when that work program is initiated.   

At the August 10, 2023 Planning Commission hearing, the Planning Commission considered the 
proposed TBAP Amendment package with revisions. Thirty-five (35) members of the public 
commented on the proposed TBAP Amendments. Comments received included but were not limited 
to cumulative impacts, traffic, transportation, parking, wildfire evacuation, housing. Commissioner 
Woodward expressed concerns about the Addendum, asking questions about the cumulative 
analysis. In response, an Errata was prepared. Commissioner Ronten had questions regarding 
density, however, after staff responded to his questions, he expressed satisfaction with the analysis 
of the Addendum and support of the goals to reinvest and shift development into Town Centers. 
Commissioner Dahlgren commented on the amendments noting they were minor in nature and not 
significant and was satisfied with the analysis of the Addendum. Following deliberations, the Planning 
Commission voted (5 Yes, 0 No, 2 Absent) to recommend approval to the Board. Commissioners 
Herzog and DeMattei were absent from the meeting.  

Implementation Report 
As a result of comments received regarding the implementation of the TBAP, staff have prepared 
the Implementation Report, Attachment K, summarizing the county’s efforts to implement the TBAP, 
the TRPA Regional Plan and to achieve regional goals. The report outlines the County’s 
implementation efforts related to: transportation and mobility, housing, Total Daily Maximum Load, 
and the TBAP goals and policies, implementation plan, and mitigation measures identified in the 
TBAP EIR.  

Placer County Board of Supervisors 
The Board of Supervisors unanimously approved the amendments on October 31, 2023. 

TRPA Regional Planning Committee 
The RPC recommended approving the amendments on January 24, 2024, with five members 
voting approval and one absent. 

Overview of Proposed Area Plan Changes 
The proposed TBAP Amendments are targeted at the final recommendations related to process, 
policy, and code improvements identified in the Placer County Tahoe Basin Town Center Economic 
Sustainability Needs Analysis, and are particularly focused on lodging, mixed-use, and workforce 
housing. The amendments also focus on diversifying land uses across a variety of sectors, with the 
intent of diversifying the business sector and a variety of housing types, as identified in the Envision 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.123



Tahoe reports. Therefore, the proposed amendments are designed to round out the implementation 
of recommendations outlined in the study, particularly focused on process, policy and code 
improvements to facilitate and encourage revitalization projects in the Town Centers and workforce 
housing throughout North Tahoe. 

1. Tahoe Basin Area Plan – Policy Document Proposed Amendments
To align the Area Plan policies with updated regional and County goals, additional policies
and revisions have been included to the following sections: Scenic Resources, Vegetation,
Socio Economic, Land Use, Mixed-use, Town Centers, Community Design, Redevelopment,
and Housing. The policies are based off recommendations in the BAE study as well as
community feedback and regional partner goals. A summary is provided below.

• Scenic Resources: These policy amendments are intended to support the evaluation of
scenic requirements to achieve private reinvestment in Town Centers targeted for
redevelopment and/or new development in a manner that improves environmental
conditions, creates a more efficient, sustainable and less auto‐dependent land use
pattern, and provides for economic opportunities.

• Vegetation: A new policy was added to support implementation of new or expanded home
hardening programs (i.e., replacing wood shake roofs to protect structures from falling
embers during a wildfire), green waste, and defensible space incentive and/or rebate
programs.

• Socio Economic: Policies were added to support high-speed broadband infrastructure
capacity and to support childcare facilities to meet the needs of the local workforce. Policy
was also added to address the prevention of blight.

• Land Use: Policies were added to support the development of a reservation and
conversion manual for the allocation and conversion of TRPA development rights. Policies
were added to address land uses in the Town Centers. Policies are included to support
funding sources for a frontage improvement implementation plan to achieve the Area Plan
infrastructure and streetscape features such as sidewalks, curbs, and gutters, as well as
implementing parking management plans, community-wide snow storage plans, and
development of a reservation and conversion manual as described below.

• Mixed-use: Policies have been added to support the development of mixed-use, business
park, and light industrial space and encourage residential components in industrial and
commercial development.

• Town Centers: New policies have been added that would allow groundwater interception
for mixed-use projects in Town Centers, supporting simplified permit processes for mixed-
use projects, encouraging active ground floor uses, facilitating mobile vendors and food
trucks in Town Centers, supporting the retention and expansion of businesses within the
North Tahoe-Truckee region, supporting relocations of industrial and public utility land
uses in the Town Centers to free up Town Center sites, as well as supporting parking
maximums and creative parking solutions.

• Community Design: Policies to support and promote local artists and public art in North
Tahoe have been included.

• Redevelopment: New policies to support and encourage adaptive reuse of vacant or
underutilized retail and office space, support redevelopment of aging lodging products and
encourage revitalization and creation of new high-quality lodging, allow multipurpose and
flexible gathering spaces in private and public parking areas where events could be held

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.124



during off-peak hours, expedite building permit processes, and support the development 
of new business innovation space and flexible light industrial spaces to diversify the local 
economy. 

• Housing: Additional policies have been included to support streamlining affordable, 
moderate, and achievable housing, require that 50 percent of units converted from 
multifamily to condominiums be deed restricted to affordable, moderate or achievable 
housing, address the job-housing imbalance in the region, monitor and track housing data 
in the region, and to support adaptive management of the short-term rental inventory to 
balance housing availability with short-term rentals as new lodging products are added to 
the region. Policies have been added to explore opportunities for local worker overnight 
camping in public and private parking lots, as well as to support local worker housing to 
be constructed above public and private parking lots.  

 
Additionally, planned environmental improvement projects have been modified to support 
coordination with TRPA to address Town Center development as it relates to TRPA scenic 
standards and to develop a reservation and conversion manual to guide the conversion and 
allocation of TRPA development rights in North Lake Tahoe by prioritizing them towards the 
most community-benefitting and high priority projects that align with the policies in this Area 
Plan and the Lake Tahoe Regional Plan.  
 
Changes are also proposed to the Area Plan Implementing Regulations document, including 
amendments in Chapters 1) Introduction and General Provisions, 2) District Standards, as 
well as 3) Area-Wide Standards and Guidelines. A summary of the proposed Implementing 
Regulations amendments are described below.  

 
2. Tahoe Basin Area Plan - Implementing Regulations Proposed Amendments 

Town Centers:  
Mobile Vendors  
On September 17, 2018, the Governor signed Senate Bill 946 (the “Safe Sidewalk Vending Act”), 
which establishes requirements for local regulation of sidewalk vending. The law became 
effective January 1, 2019. The purpose of SB 946 is to legalize and decriminalize sidewalk 
vending across the state. SB 946 defines “sidewalk vendor” as a person who sells food or 
merchandise from a pushcart, stand, display, pedal-driven cart, wagon, showcase, rack or other 
nonmotorized conveyance, or from one’s person, on a public sidewalk or other pedestrian path. 
A sidewalk vendor can be “a roaming sidewalk vendor,” which is defined as moving from place 
to place and stopping only to complete a transaction, or “a stationary vendor,” which is defined 
as vending from a fixed location. SB 946 applies only to public sidewalks and paths, not private 
property. The law allows local authorities to adopt regulations governing sidewalk vending or 
amend existing regulations. If the local authority wishes to regulate sidewalk vending, those 
regulations need to be consistent with SB 946. A local authority may adopt additional 
requirements regulating the time, place, and manner of sidewalk vending if the requirements are 
directly related to objective health, safety, or welfare concerns, including a sidewalk vending 
permit or valid business license, as well as a valid California Department of Tax and Fee 
Administration seller’s permit. Placer County has not adopted additional sidewalk vending laws 
and current County Code is not compliant with SB 946. 
 
In the Tahoe Basin, mobile vendors such as sidewalk vendors and food trucks have been 
considered outdoor retail sales per the TRPA Code of Ordinances, which required a minor 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.125



use permit under the TBAP. As of the time of publishing the BAE study, the North Tahoe area 
had not seen the establishment of many new brick and mortar food related businesses in the 
past decade. While a few have experienced success by starting as a food truck and 
transitioning later to a commercial space, staff had heard anecdotally that the use permit 
process significantly deterred these types of businesses from starting in the area. The 
proposed amendments would allow food trucks and mobile vendors in the Town Centers and 
would comply with SB 946 requirements. These uses still require approval through the 
County’s Environmental Health division. These amendments are intended to simplify and 
facilitate food related startup businesses to strengthen the economic vitality of the Town 
Centers while being compatible with State law. 

Land Use Allowances 
The Town Centers currently require use permits for a variety of land uses that are commonly 
desired in a Town Center to promote walkability and support a year round economy. These 
include the following:  

• Hotels, Motels and other Transient Dwelling Units

• Eating and drinking facilities

• Building materials and hardware stores

• Repair services

The proposed amendments would allow certain land uses  based on a certain maximum square 
footage. To calculate these size thresholds, staff used the maximum square footage listed for 
each land use in the TRPA Project Impact Assessment (PIA) which calculates maximum sizes 
based on the vehicle miles traveled for each land use type. For example, a hotel may be allowed 
in certain Town Center zone districts based on the maximum size threshold as specified in the 
PIA. Additionally, the proposed amendments separate eating and drinking facilities into 
subcategories based off the traffic generation rates found in the Institute of Transportation 
Engineers Manual (Drinking Place, Fast Casual Restaurant, Quality Restaurant, High-Turnover 
Sit-Down Restaurant, and Fast-Food Restaurant without Drive Thru Window) to allow a specified 
maximum commercial floor area for each type of facility listed in the use tables. If the maximums 
differ from the PIA, the PIA threshold would take precedence. The goal of these changes is to 
incentivize new lodging products, restaurants, retail, and local-serving land uses and encourage 
these types of land uses in the Town Centers. 

Building Length 
Following the December 8, 2022 Planning Commission meeting, staff removed the additional 
building height and length allowances in the Town Centers. Any future projects that would like 
to request additional building height and/or length would have to be analyzed through a 
separate TBAP amendment process. 

Tables 2.04.A-4, Building Form Guidelines for the Greater Tahoe City Mixed-Use Subdistricts, 
and 2.04.B-4, Building Form Guidelines for the North Tahoe East Mixed-Use Subdistricts of 
the Area Plan, have been revised to further clarify building modulation requirements, ensure 
compatibility between mixed use and residential zone districts, and to define maximum 
building lengths for proposed structures in the mixed-use Town Center zone districts in Kings 
Beach and to add maximum building lengths in Tahoe City where there were no existing 
maximums.  

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.126



• Building length is reduced in MU-TOR near Stateline from 350 feet to 200 feet to align
with maximum building lengths in other mixed-use subdistricts.

• In Greater Tahoe City Mixed-Use Subdistricts, maximum building length has been
added where there was none before to align with development standards in North
Tahoe East Mixed-Use Subdistricts.

• In both Town Centers, building length transitions have been incorporated to ensure
compatibility with residential zone districts. Buildings are proposed to be a maximum
of 75 feet on all parcel frontages directly facing residential zone districts.

• Building modulation requirements for any buildings over 75 feet wide have been
refined to make the requirements in North Tahoe East Mixed-Use Subdistricts align
with those in the Greater Tahoe City Mixed-Use Subdistricts, and to clarify the use of
facades, modulations, and other articulation features.

Building Height 
A potential amendment to increase building height (from the existing allowed 56 feet to 72.7 
feet) and length allowances of up to 500 feet in the Town Centers was originally suggested. 
At the March 9, 2023 workshop the proposed height allowances were decreased to a 
maximum of 61 feet. To be eligible for the extra height and building length, projects would 
have been required to construct deed restricted achievable housing, at least one public art 
component, and comply with scenic and design standards. Following that workshop, due to a 
majority of feedback that was not supportive of extra building height or length, staff removed 
those height and building length increases from this set of amendments.  

Section 2.09, Overlay Districts, of the TBAP has been revised in coordination with TRPA staff 
to allow for a few adjustments to building height. These changes are intended to provide 
flexibility in the number of stories and clarity to maximum building heights in Special Planning 
Area Overlay Districts. All projects would still be required to comply with TRPA scenic 
thresholds. 

1. The TBAP currently includes maximum height in both feet and number of stories.
The amendments dictate maximum building height by feet rather than by the
number of stories (e.g., 56 feet in Core Areas instead of four stories and 46 feet in
Transition Areas instead of three stories). The maximum height in feet remains the
same.

2. The maximum height in Special Planning Areas has been added to provide clarity.

a. In the Tahoe City Western Entry Special Planning Area, maximum height
on the mountainside has been adjusted to match that of the Core Areas,
56 feet, due to its location in front of a tall ridgeline and that parcels in that
area have been identified as potential housing opportunity sites.

b. Height maximums matching the Transition Areas have been added to the
Tahoe City River District Special Planning Area where there were none
before, matching those of the Transition Areas.

c. Height maximums have been specified for the portion of the Tahoe City
Golf Course Special Planning Area that is not within a Core or Transition
Area, matching those of the Transition Areas.

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.127



d. Height maximums have been specified for the Truckee River Corridor 
Special Planning Area where there were none before, matching those of 
the Transition Areas. 

e. Height maximums have been specified for the Kings Beach Entry Special 
Planning Area where there were none before, matching those of the 
Transition Areas. 

f. Height maximums have been specified for the North Stateline Special 
Planning Area where there were none before, matching those of the 
Transition Areas. 

 
Groundwater 
To facilitate the redevelopment desired in Town Centers and allow for below grade parking 
which reduces coverage, the proposed amendments include exceptions to groundwater 
interception to projects proposing below grade parking. When such exceptions are granted, 
the applicant must demonstrate that the project impacts have been mitigated to be equal to 
or better than the original impacts.   
 
Parking 
On February 9, 2021, the Board approved a two-year pilot parking exemption program for the 
North Lake Tahoe Town Centers. The purpose was to support exemptions to parking 
requirements to spur redevelopment in the Town Centers and support strategies identified in 
the Resort Triangle Transportation Plan (RTTP), which was approved by the Board in October 
2020, and which outlines strategies to increase mobility and reduce VMT in the Tahoe region. 
The pilot parking exemption program allows for the following: 

• Expands eligible applicants to include all development/redevelopment proposed in 
Town Centers. 

• Allows for tourist accommodation and residential uses to be considered in the 
program, whereas these uses currently were previously excluded. 

• Removes the existing limitation in the Area Plan that project sites eligible for the 
exemption shall be 25,000 square feet or less. 

• Expands financial mitigations beyond establishment of a transit County Service 
Area Zone of Benefit to include financial support for transit service enhancements 
or other alternative transportation projects that support multi-modal transportation 
and/or strategies noted in the RTTP. 
 

At the end of the two-year period, staff agreed to bring forward permanent TBAP amendments 
for consideration that support RTTP strategies and provide permanent expanded parking 
exemptions for Town Center development. Therefore, the proposed amendments have 
incorporated these changes to permanently provide greater flexibility for property owners and 
businesses in Town and Village Centers and to encourage alternative modes of 
transportation. 

 
Housing: 
Opticos Missing Middle Recommendations 
On January 18, 2021, missing middle housing consulting firm, Opticos, provided 
recommendations to TRPA, on how to better facilitate missing middle housing development 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.128



in the Tahoe Basin (Attachment I).  The Tahoe-Truckee region’s housing stock predominantly 
consists of single-family housing with a handful of affordable lower-income apartments. To 
facilitate more development of missing middle housing, such as smaller homes, townhouses, 
duplexes and triplexes, which are intended to be more affordable by design for middle income 
worker whose incomes exceed affordable rental income limits but cannot afford the majority 
of houses on the open market, staff incorporated the following recommendations into the 
proposed amendments: 

• Removing setbacks and articulation and massing requirements which limit building
square footage and are not possible to enforce over time. Such requirements are
challenging to implement because the setbacks are based on the interior land use,
which can change over time. For example, a mixed-use building may be built in
the Town Center that includes commercial on the second floor and would require
a smaller setback than residential uses. However, a future owner could want to
convert that commercial use to residential and would therefore require a greater
setback than would be infeasible to create.

• Reducing or removing parking requirements for residential multifamily. The
proposed amendments would 1) reduce multifamily parking standards to better
align with single-family parking standards and 2) reduce single-family parking
standards to accommodate smaller single-family development. Per Opticos, these
changes would make multifamily less burdensome and costly to develop. For
example, Opticos states that changing the required number of parking spaces from
one to two per unit increases the average monthly rent per bedroom from $993 to
$1,404 and the income required for affordability from $36,000 to $51,000.

• Including multifamily  as an allowed use. Opticos recommends that an easier
process be provided for multifamily projects by preparing standards with enough
clarity and predictability about what the standards will generate.

• Density. Opticos has had economists tell them that in order to sustain
neighborhood- serving shops and services within a short walking distance, a rule
of thumb is that the immediate area (5-to-10-minute walking distance) have an
overall density of 16 units per acre. While the proposed amendments do not
increase the overall density in any zone districts, the amendments do refine
minimum lot size and width which has prohibited projects from achieving the
maximum density.

• Reducing minimum lot width. Opticos recommends reducing lot widths to better
accommodate small lot development which is more affordable by design, and
which would accommodate attached multifamily such as duplexes, triplexes, and
fourplexes. The proposed amendments include reduced minimum lot widths for
certain zone districts. Similarly, staff also removed minimum lot area per dwelling
unit in all residential zone districts to accommodate smaller dwelling units.

Preferred Affordable, Moderate and Achievable Areas 
The TBAP included 21 zone districts that were listed as Preferred Affordable, Moderate and 
Achievable Areas but did not include any development standards to incentivize or encourage 
the production of housing. In most of these zone districts, multifamily required a minor use 
permit while single family housing was allowed. In these zone districts the following changes 
have been proposed:  

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.129



• Where not otherwise allowed , the proposed amendments would allow multifamily
and employee housing if 100 percent of units are deed restricted to affordable,
moderate or achievable housing per TRPA Code of Ordinances Chapter 90:
Definitions, for achievable, moderate income or affordable housing. This is
intended to encourage development of multifamily housing by reducing costs and
time delays associated with use permits.

• In seven residential zone districts listed as Preferred Affordable, Moderate and
Achievable Areas, the minimum lot size was reduced to 2,904 square feet to
accommodate existing densities of 15 dwelling units per acre and minimum lot
widths were reduced to 25 feet to accommodate smaller lots that are more
affordable by design, and which match existing lot sizes in many areas of the Area
Plan. Side setbacks were also reduced to five feet minimum, except when
adjoining another unit on adjacent property, which would require zero feet on one
side and 10 feet on the other to accommodate duplex style developments.

Town Center: Single Family Land Use 
The TBAP allowed single-family development in Town Centers, if already existing. Previous 
development proposals have spurred considerable community feedback opposing new single-
family development in Town Centers. The proposed amendments would only allow new 
single-family over one unit, including townhomes and condominiums, if single-family 
encompasses 25 percent or less of the entire project or if at least 50 percent of the single-
family residential units are deed restricted to affordable, moderate or achievable housing per 
TRPA Code of Ordinances Chapter 90: Definitions, for achievable, moderate-income or 
affordable housing. The intent is to facilitate mixed-use development and allow some single-
family units to offset costs of workforce housing or commercial uses while still achieving the 
goals of the Area Plan and community. 

Tiny Houses 
The proposed amendments refer to the countywide housing code amendments that were 
adopted by the Board on June 14, 2022, to allow for tiny houses as primary or accessory 
dwelling units as well as employee housing and tiny house communities. Moveable tiny 
houses and moveable tiny house communities would comply with definitions and development 
standards in Placer County’s Zoning Ordinance. Staff has coordinated with TRPA to 
determine that the County regulates these uses in the Tahoe Basin rather than TRPA.  

Miscellaneous Housing Cleanups 
In the Fairway Tract Northeast Subdistrict, multiple family density was adjusted from eight to 
15 dwelling units per acre to clean up inconsistency with the already existing density 
allowances for similar zone districts. In all other residential subdistricts, the density allowances 
for employee housing and multiple family housing were the same. 

Other: 
Street Frontage Improvements 
Street Frontage Improvements are requirements of the Tahoe City Mixed-Use Subdistricts, 
North Tahoe East Mixed-Use Subdistricts, and the North Tahoe West Mixed-Use Subdistricts. 
The proposed amendments are designed to provide consistency throughout the Area Plan in 
identifying the requirements of street frontage improvements and to also provide reference to 
the applicable standards contained in the Area Plan, i.e., Section 3.06 “Streetscape and 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.130



Roadway Design Standards” and Table 3.06.A “Future Streetscape and Roadway Design 
Characteristics”. Specifically, amendments are sought to Placer County Code Chapter 12, 
Article 12.08, Section 12.8.020A, to add single-family detached dwellings, as subject to street 
improvements requirements, to align with the TBAP pedestrian mobility goals.  

The revisions to Section 3.06 and Table 3.06.A, specifically, will provide clarity to project 
applicants which is intended to result in fewer design exceptions and variance requests. Minor 
changes were made to the text of the TBAP to eliminate redundancy and/or to provide clarity 
and consistency. For example, in the Kings Beach Residential zone district, street frontage 
improvements were required of commercial or multifamily developments but not of single-
family, which further incentivized development of second homes rather than multifamily or 
new commercial development. The proposed amendments would require streetscape and 
frontage improvements of all development as identified in Table 3.06.A. CDRA staff intends 
to bring forward a comprehensive sidewalk improvement financing plan to offset the costs and 
burdens on individual development at a later date.  

Signs 
The proposed amendments eliminate the sign regulations contained in the TBAP under 
Section 3.11 and direct the reader to refer to the TRPA Code of Ordinance Chapter 38 “Signs.” 
This amendment is intended to simplify signage requirements and will make the TBAP 
consistent with the TRPA Code of Ordinances, thereby eliminating the need for future 
amendments to the TBAP should the TRPA modify Chapter 38 of the Code of Ordinance.  

Shorezone 
The proposed amendments to the TBAP are intended to reflect the changes made to Placer 
County Code Chapter 12, Article 12.32, “Lake Tahoe Shorezone” adopted by the Board in 
February of 2021. In August 2019, TRPA amended its Code of Ordinances, including 
shorezone regulations contained in Chapters 80 through 85. With the 2019 amendment, 
Section 12.32 of the Placer County Code was no longer in alignment with TRPA and contained 
conflicting permitting requirements. Therefore, staff proposed a complete replacement of the 
original ordinance with updated ordinance text to eliminate duplicate permitting processes, 
align with the TRPA ordinance, limit the County’s permitting role, and primarily rely on the 
Memorandum of Understanding between the California State Lands Commission and TRPA 
for shorezone related permitting. While the shorezone is primarily governed by TRPA and the 
State Lands Commission, the proposed amendments reflect the changes adopted by the 
Board in February of 2021. These comprise adding text to reference the Placer County Code 
Article 12.32 “Lake Tahoe Shorezone” and adjusting the applicable land use table to notify 
the reader that certain accessory structures shall also comply with the requirements of Article 
12.32.  

Miscellaneous Cleanup 
The proposed amendments also included several “cleanups” recommended by staff that are 
intended to provide more clarity across the document and address typos or other minor errors. 

Tahoe Regional Planning Agency – Initial Environmental Checklist 
In addition to the Addendum and Errata prepared for CEQA, draft documents: an Initial 
Environmental Checklist, Compliance Measures, a Conformity Checklist and Findings were 
prepared for the Amendments to comply with the environmental review requirements of the TRPA.  

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.131



RECOMMENDATIONS 
Based on the discussion and analysis in this report, staff recommends that the Board approve the 
following items: 

1. Adopt the Addendum and Errata to the Tahoe Basin Area Plan EIR prepared for the project as
set forth in Attachment D and Attachment E, respectively, and supported by the following
findings:

A. The Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan and Tahoe City Lodge Project
Environmental Impact Statement/Environmental Impact Report (Area Plan EIR)
(certified and adopted by the Placer County Board of Supervisors on December 6,
2016, California State Clearinghouse #2014072039; and adopted by the Tahoe
Regional Planning Agency on January 25, 2017), and Addendum and Errata to the
Area Plan EIR have been considered prior to approval of this project. Together they
are determined to be adequate to serve as the environmental documentation for this
project and satisfy all the requirements of CEQA. The Addendum to the Area Plan EIR
did not raise important new issues about the significant effects on the environment.

B. The Addendum and the Errata to the Area Plan EIR were prepared pursuant to CEQA
Guidelines Section 15164 and Placer County Environmental Review Ordinance
Section 18.20.110. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 through 15164, no
changes have occurred in the amendments or to existing circumstance that would
warrant additional environmental analysis for the TBAP Amendments requested.

C. The proposed amendments to the TBAP modify policies to achieve housing and Town
Center redevelopment which were already considered under the TBAP and therefore
the policy changes would not have the potential to cause a significant effect on the
environment.

D. Under PRC Section 21080.17 and CEQA Guidelines Section 15282 subsection (h),
CEQA does not apply to the adoption of an ordinance by a city or county to implement
the provisions of Section 65852.2 of the Government Code (the state accessory
dwelling unit law). The proposed amendments implement Government Code Section
65852.2 and 65852.22 within unincorporated Placer County in a manner that is
consistent with the requirements of state law.

2. Adopt a Resolution approving amendments to the Tahoe Basin Area Plan policy document
based on the following findings:

A. The proposed amendments to the Tahoe Basin Area Plan policy document are consistent
with the objectives, policies, general land uses and programs specified in the Placer County
General Plan and Tahoe Basin Area Plan, and the amendments are internally consistent with
the remaining provisions of the 2017 approved Tahoe Basin Area Plan. Specifically these
amendments will address process, policy, and code improvements to facilitate development,
scale back requirements, and better understand and alleviate constraints and challenges in
the development process, including zoning and building requirements and fees, collaborating
with TRPA, updating parking standards and creating parking districts, and increasing
workforce housing allowances; will include action goals and tactical approaches aimed at
improving the economic viability of the Tahoe Basin; and contains amendments aimed to
further implement existing policies aimed at supporting additional housing at affordable price
levels, construction of workforce housing, and providing assistance for economic
development and environmental redevelopment and are consistent with the goals, objectives

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.132



and policies of the Placer County General Plan and the Tahoe Basin Area Plan since they 
are in accordance with the following: 
i. TBAP Policy SE-P-3. Opportunities for economic development outside Town Centers

should be pursued in a manner consistent with the Regional Plan.
ii. TBAP Policy SE-P-4. Whenever feasible, Placer County should provide assistance to

property owners seeking to complete projects on priority redevelopment sites through
public-private partnerships and other forms of assistance.

iii. TBAP Policy SE-P-5. Placer County supports efforts to promote environmental
redevelopment in mixed-use areas within and outside Town Centers, including the
Village Centers identified in this Area Plan.

iv. TBAP Policy SE-P-6. Continue efforts to address the existing job-housing imbalance
and provide additional housing at affordable price levels should be pursued.

v. TBAP Policy HS-P-6. Pursue TRPA-Certified Local Governing Moderate-Income
Housing Programs pursuant to Sections, 52.3.4 and 52.3.6 of the TRPA Code of
Ordinances to provide additional opportunities for deed-restricted affordable and
moderate-income housing.

vi. TBAP Policy HS-P-7. Evaluate housing needs in the region in coordination with TRPA.
Consistent with Regional Plan Housing Policy HS-3.1, update TRPA policies and
ordinances as necessary to achieve state, local and regional housing goals. Future
housing efforts should seek to remove identified barriers preventing the construction of
necessary affordable housing in the region including, but not limited to, workforce and
moderate-income housing, secondary residential units and long-term residency in
motel units.

vii. General Plan Policy 1.B.2. The County shall encourage the concentration of multi-
family housing in and near downtowns, village centers, major commercial areas, and
neighborhood commercial centers.

viii. Housing Element – Policy HE-A-2. The County shall continue efforts to streamline and
improve the development review process based on object design standards, and to
eliminate any unnecessary delays in the processing of development applications.

ix. Housing Element – Policy HE-A-3. The County shall strive to remove barriers to new
housing production including advancing adaptive policies, regulations, and procedures,
as well as addressing market constraints as admissible.

x. Housing Element Policy HE-A-4. The County shall encourage mixed-use and transit-
oriented development projects where housing is provided in conjunction with
compatible non-residential uses.

xi. Housing Element Policy HE A-6. The County shall encourage the development of multi-
family dwellings in locations where adequate infrastructure and public services are
available.

xii. Housing Element Policy HE-B-1. The County shall facilitate expanded housing
opportunities that are affordable to the workforce of Placer County.

xiii. Housing Element Policy HE-G-1. The County shall promote housing opportunities for
all persons regardless of race, religion, color, ancestry, national origin, sex, disability,
family status, income, sexual orientation, or other barriers that prevent choice in
housing.

xiv. Housing Element Policy HE-E-2. The County shall encourage the TRPA to strengthen
the effectiveness of existing incentive programs for the production of affordable housing
and encourage Accessory Dwelling Units.

B. The Area Plan as amended is not within the area of any airport land use plan.

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.133



 
C. Notices of all hearings required by Section 17.60.140 have been given and all hearings 

required pursuant to Section 17.58.200 have been held. 
 
3. Adopt an Ordinance approving amendments to the Tahoe Basin Area Plan Implementing 

Regulations based on the following findings: 

A. The proposed amendments to the Tahoe Basin Area Plan Implementing Regulations are 
consistent with Placer County General Plan and Tahoe Basin Area Plan. Specifically these 
amendments are in response to the Placer County Tahoe Basin Town Center Economic 
Sustainability Needs Analysis, which recommended process, policy, and code improvements 
to facilitate development, scale back requirements, and better understand and alleviate 
constraints and challenges in the development process, including zoning and building 
requirements and fees, collaborating with TRPA, updating parking standards and creating 
parking districts, and increasing workforce housing allowances; responds to the Tahoe 
Prosperity Center’s reports, which include action goals and tactical approaches aimed at 
improving the economic viability of the Tahoe Basin; and aim to further implement existing 
policies aimed at supporting additional housing at affordable price levels, construction of 
workforce housing, and providing assistance for economic development and environmental 
redevelopment consistent with the goals, objectives and policies of the Placer County 
General Plan and the Tahoe Basin Area Plan since they are in accordance with the following: 
i. TBAP Policy SE-P-3. Opportunities for economic development outside Town Centers 

should be pursued in a manner consistent with the Regional Plan. 
ii. TBAP Policy SE-P-4. Whenever feasible, Placer County should provide assistance to 

property owners seeking to complete projects on priority redevelopment sites through 
public-private partnerships and other forms of assistance. 

iii. TBAP Policy SE-P-5. Placer County supports efforts to promote environmental 
redevelopment in mixed-use areas within and outside Town Centers, including the 
Village Centers identified in this Area Plan. 

iv. TBAP Policy SE-P-6. Continue efforts to address the existing job-housing imbalance 
and provide additional housing at affordable price levels should be pursued. 

v. TBAP Policy HS-P-6. Pursue TRPA-Certified Local Governing Moderate-Income 
Housing Programs pursuant to Sections, 52.3.4 and 52.3.6 of the TRPA Code of 
Ordinances to provide additional opportunities for deed-restricted affordable and 
moderate income housing. 

vi. TBAP Policy HS-P-7. Evaluate housing needs in the region in coordination with TRPA. 
Consistent with Regional Plan Housing Policy HS-3.1, update TRPA policies and 
ordinances as necessary to achieve state, local and regional housing goals. Future 
housing efforts should seek to remove identified barriers preventing the construction of 
necessary affordable housing in the region including, but not limited to, workforce and 
moderate-income housing, secondary residential units and long-term residency in 
motel units. 

vii. General Plan Policy 1.B.2. The County shall encourage the concentration of multi-
family housing in and near downtowns, village centers, major commercial areas, and 
neighborhood commercial centers. 

viii. Housing Element – Policy HE-A-2. The County shall continue efforts to streamline and 
improve the development review process based on object design standards, and to 
eliminate any unnecessary delays in the processing of development applications.  

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.134



ix. Housing Element – Policy HE-A-3. The County shall strive to remove barriers to new
housing production including advancing adaptive policies, regulations, and procedures,
as well as addressing market constraints as admissible.

x. Housing Element Policy HE-A-4. The County shall encourage mixed-use and transit-
oriented development projects where housing is provided in conjunction with
compatible non-residential uses.

xi. Housing Element Policy HE-A-6. The County shall encourage the development of
multi-family dwellings in locations where adequate infrastructure and public services
are available.

xii. Housing Element Policy HE-B-1. The County shall facilitate expanded housing
opportunities that are affordable to the workforce of Placer County.

xiii. Housing Element Policy HE-G-1. The County shall promote housing opportunities for
all persons regardless of race, religion, color, ancestry, national origin, sex, disability,
family status, income, sexual orientation, or other barriers that prevent choice in
housing.

xiv. Housing Element Policy HE-E-2. The County shall encourage the TRPA to strengthen
the effectiveness of existing incentive programs for the production of affordable
housing and encourage Accessory Dwelling Units.

B. The proposed amendments to the Tahoe Basin Area Plan Implementing Regulations are
consistent with and implement the Area Plan, as approved in 2017 and as herein amended.

C. The proposed amendments to the Tahoe Basin Area Plan Implementing Regulations will
implement the Tahoe Basin Area Plan policies and goals and will ensure orderly development
of the Plan Area.

4. Adopt an Ordinance amending the Placer County Code, Chapter 12, Article 12.08, Section

12.08.020(A).

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.135



Attachment C 
TRPA Adopting Ordinance 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.136



TAHOE REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY 
ORDINANCE 2024-__    

AN AMENDMENT TO ORDINANCE NO. 2021-02 TO ADOPT 
TAHOE BASIN AREA PLAN AMENDMENTS 

The Governing Board of the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency (TRPA) does ordain as follows: 

Section 1.00  Findings 

1.10 It is desirable to amend TRPA Ordinance 2021-02 by amending the Tahoe Basin Area 
Plan to further implement the Regional Plan pursuant to Article VI (a) and other 
applicable provisions of the Tahoe Regional Planning Compact. 

1.20 The Tahoe Basin Area Plan amendments were the subject of an Initial Environmental 
Checklist (IEC), which was processed in accordance with Chapter 3: Environmental 
Documentation of the TRPA Code of Ordinances and Article VI of the Rules of 
Procedure. The Tahoe Basin Area Plan amendments have been determined not to have 
a significant effect on the environment and are therefore exempt from the 
requirement of an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) pursuant to Article VII of the 
Compact.  

1.30 The Advisory Planning Commission (APC) and the Governing Board have each 
conducted a noticed public hearing on the proposed Tahoe Basin Area Plan 
amendments. The APC has recommended Governing Board adoption of the 
necessary findings and adopting ordinance. At these hearings, oral testimony and 
documentary evidence were received and considered.  

1.40 The Governing Board finds that the Tahoe Basin Area Plan amendments adopted 
hereby will continue to implement the Regional Plan, as amended, in a manner that 
achieves and maintains the adopted environmental threshold carrying capacities as 
required by Article V(c) of the Compact. 

1.50 Prior to the adoption of these amendments, the Governing Board made the findings 
required by TRPA Code of Ordinances Section 4.5, and Article V(g) of the Compact. 

1.60 Each of the foregoing findings is supported by substantial evidence in the record. 

Section 2.00  TRPA Code of Ordinances Amendments  

Ordinance 2021-02 is hereby amended by amending the Tahoe Basin Area Plan as set 
forth in the exhibits to this ordinance. 

Section 3.00  Interpretation and Severability 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.137



The provisions of this ordinance amending the TRPA Code of Ordinances adopted 
hereby shall be liberally construed to affect their purposes. If any section, clause, 
provision or portion thereof is declared unconstitutional or invalid by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this ordinance and the amendments to the 
Regional Plan Package shall not be affected thereby. For this purpose, the provisions of 
this ordinance and the amendments to the Regional Plan Package are hereby declared 
respectively severable. 

Section 4.00  Effective Date 

The provisions of this ordinance amending the Tahoe Basin Area Plan shall become 
effective on adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency Governing Board 
at a regular meeting held on _______, 2024, by the following vote:  

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Abstentions: 

Absent: 

Cindy Gustafson, Chair 
Tahoe Regional Planning Agency, 
Governing Board 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.138



Attachment C 
Exhibit A—Proposed Policy Amendment Language (link) 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.139

https://www.trpa.gov/wp-content/uploads/Agenda-Item-No.-VII.-A.-Attachment-C-Exhibit-A-Proposed-Policy-Amendment-Language.pdf
https://www.trpa.gov/wp-content/uploads/Agenda-Item-No.-VII.-A.-Attachment-C-Exhibit-A-Proposed-Policy-Amendment-Language.pdf


Attachment C 
Exhibit B—Proposed Implementing Regulation Amendment Language (link) 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.140

https://www.trpa.gov/wp-content/uploads/Agenda-Item-No.-VII.-A.-Attachment-C-Exhibit-B-Proposed-Implementing-Regulation-Language.pdf
https://www.trpa.gov/wp-content/uploads/Agenda-Item-No.-VII.-A.-Attachment-C-Exhibit-B-Proposed-Implementing-Regulation-Language.pdf


Attachment D 
Findings 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.141



REQUIRED FINDINGS FOR AN AMENDMENT TO PLACER COUNTY’S 
TAHOE BASIN AREA PLAN  

This document contains required findings per Chapters 3, 4, and 13 of the TRPA Code of Ordinances (Code) 
for the amendments to Placer County’s Tahoe Basin Area Plan (Area Plan): 

Chapter 3 Findings:   The following finding must be made prior to amending the Area Plan: 

1. Finding: The proposed Area Plan amendments could not have a significant effect 
on the environment and a finding of no significant effect shall be 
prepared in accordance with TRPA’s Rules of Procedure. 

Rationale: Based on the completed Initial Environmental Checklist (IEC), no 
significant environmental impacts have been identified as a result of the 
proposed amendments. The IEC was prepared to evaluate the potential 
environmental impacts of the proposed amendments and tiers from 
programmatic analyses contained in the following environmental review 
documents: 

• Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan and Tahoe City Lodge
Project Environmental Impact Statement/Environmental Impact
Report (Area Plan EIS/EIR) (California State Clearinghouse (SCH)
Number 20140720039)

• Tahoe Regional Plan Update Environmental Impact Statement
(RPU EIS) (California SCH Number 2007092027; Nevada SCH
Number E2008-124)

These program-level environmental documents include regional 
cumulative scale analyses and a framework of mitigation measures that 
provide a foundation for subsequent, site-specific environmental review 
documents as individual planning, redevelopment and other projects are 
proposed. The IEC is tiered from the Area Plan EIS/EIR and RPU EIS in 
accordance with Section 6.12 of the TRPA Rules of Procedure. The Area 
Plan EIS/EIR and RPU EIS are programmatic environmental documents 
prepared pursuant to Article VI of the TRPA Rules of Procedure 
(Environmental Impact Statements) and Chapter 3 (Environmental 
Documentation) of the TRPA Code.  

The RPU EIS evaluates a comprehensive plan that establishes growth 
limits, provides policy direction, and enacts development and 
environmental standards. The Area Plan EIS/EIR evaluates a 
comprehensive land use plan that implements the Regional Plan and 
includes greater specificity within the Placer County portion of the Tahoe 
Region. The Area Plan EIS/EIR analyzes full implementation of uses and 
physical development proposed under the Area Plan, and it identifies 
measures to mitigate the significant adverse program-level and 
cumulative impacts associated with that growth. The Area Plan is an 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.142



element of the growth that was anticipated in the 2012 Tahoe Regional 
Plan Update RPU and evaluated in the 2012 RPU EIS. By tiering from the 
Area Plan EIS/EIR and RPU EIS, the IEC relies on these documents for the 
following:  

• background and setting information for environmental topic
areas,

• regional growth-related issues,

• issues that were evaluated in sufficient detail in the Area Plan
EIS/EIR or RPU EIS for which there is no significant new
information or change in circumstances that would require
further analysis, and

• assessment of cumulative impacts.

Nothing in the IEC in any way alters the obligations of Placer County or 
TRPA to implement the mitigation measures adopted as part of the Area 
Plan or RPU, as documented in the Area Plan EIS/EIR or RPU EIS. 
Consequently, Placer County would adhere to all applicable adopted 
mitigation measures required by the Area Plan and Regional Plan as a 
part of the proposed Area Plan amendments. 

Adoption of the proposed amendments would amend policies in the 
TBAP Policy document and the Area Plan Implementing Regulations. The 
proposed Area Plan amendments focus on process, policy, and code 
improvements to support appropriate lodging, mixed-use developments, 
and a variety of housing types, including workforce housing. The 
amendments also focus on diversifying land uses, with the intent of 
streamlining planning processes and increasing the diversity of business 
and housing types. Therefore, the proposed amendments are designed 
to implement recommendations outlined in the Economic Sustainability 
Needs Assessment, particularly those focused on process, policy, and 
code improvements that will facilitate and streamline revitalization 
projects in the Town Centers and workforce housing throughout North 
Tahoe. Taken together, these changes seek to accelerate 
implementation of the goals and policies of the Regional Plan. The 
proposed Area Plan Policy document changes are summarized in Table 1 
of the IEC and the proposed Area Plan Implementing Regulations are 
summarized in Table 2 of the IEC. The effects of these amendments were 
evaluated in detail in the IEC and found to be less than significant. 

All aspects of the Regional Plan, Area Plan, and TRPA Code not 
specifically affected by the proposed amendments would continue to 
apply throughout the plan area. As such, future projects proposed within 
the plan area would be required to comply with all applicable provisions 
of the TRPA Code, including requirements for site development, growth 
management, and resource management and protection, as well as 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.143



applicable TRPA standard conditions of approval. Proposed projects 
within the plan area would be reviewed through applicable TRPA and 
CEQA environmental review requirements and, if necessary, project 
revisions or mitigation measures necessary to avoid significant 
environmental impacts would continue to be required as a condition of 
approval. 

Chapter 4 Findings:       The following findings must be made prior to amending the Area Plan:  

1. Finding:   The proposed Area Plan amendments are consistent with, and will not adversely affect 
implementation of the Regional Plan, including all applicable goals and  
policies, community plans/plan area statements, the TRPA Code, and other 
TRPA plans and programs. 

   
 Rationale: The Area Plan consists of a Policy document and Implementation Regulations 

(ordinances) that conform to the Regional Plan. The adopted land use and zoning 
maps are consistent with Regional Plan Map 1, Conceptual Regional Land Use Map. 
No modifications to the Area Plan boundaries are proposed.  

The proposed amendments to the Area Plan were prepared in conformance with the 
substantive and procedural requirements of the Regional Plan goals and policies, as 
implemented through TRPA Code, Chapter 13, “Area Plans.” The Area Plan is 
consistent with the Tahoe Regional Plan and TRPA Code, as shown in the Area Plan 
Finding of Conformity Checklist and as demonstrated in the IEC. The proposed 
amendments focus on process, policy, and code improvements to support 
appropriate lodging, mixed-use developments, and a variety of housing types, 
including workforce housing. The amendments also focus on diversifying land uses, 
with the intent of streamlining planning processes and increasing the diversity of 
business and housing types.  

Pursuant to TRPA Code Section 4.4.2, TRPA considers, as background for making the 
Section 4.4.1.A through C findings, the proposed project’s effects on compliance 
measures (those implementation actions necessary to achieve and maintain 
thresholds), supplemental compliance measures (actions TRPA could implement if the 
compliance measures prove inadequate to achieve and maintain thresholds), the 
threshold indicators (adopted measurable physical phenomena that relate to the 
status of threshold attainment or maintenance), additional factors (indirect measures 
of threshold status, such as funding levels for Environmental Improvement Program 
[EIP] projects), and interim and target dates for threshold achievement. TRPA 
identifies and reports on threshold compliance measures, indicators, factors, and 
targets in the threshold evaluation reports prepared pursuant to TRPA Code, Chapter 
16, “Regional Plan and Environmental Threshold Review.” 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.144



TRPA relies upon a project’s accompanying environmental documentation, staff’s 
professional analyses, and prior plan level documentation, including findings and 
environmental documentation, to reach the fundamental conclusions regarding a 
project’s consistency with the Regional Plan and thresholds. A project that is 
consistent with all aspects of the Regional Plan and that does not adversely affect any 
threshold is, by definition, consistent with compliance measures, indicators, and 
targets. 
 

  To increase its analytical transparency, TRPA has prepared worksheets related 
specifically to the TRPA Code Section 4.4.2 considerations, which set forth the 
222 compliance and supplemental compliance measures. Effects of the proposed 
project (here the amendments to support appropriate lodging, mixed-use 
developments, and a variety of housing types, including workforce housing, and that 
are intended to streamline planning processes and increase the diversity of business 
and housing types) on these items, if any, are identified and to the extent possible 
described.  

TRPA cannot identify target dates, status, and trends for some threshold indicators 
because of a lack of available information. TRPA may still determine whether the 
project will affect the TRPA Code Section 4.4.2 considerations (and ultimately 
consistency with the Regional Plan and impact on thresholds) based on the project’s 
specific environmental impacts related to those threshold indicators.   

Based on the IEC prepared for the proposed amendments, Area Plan EIS, Area Plan 
findings made by the TRPA Governing Board, TRPA Code Section 4.4.2 staff analyses, 
and using applicable measurement standards consistent with the available 
information, the proposed amendments will not adversely affect applicable 
compliance and supplemental compliance measures, indicators, additional factors, 
and attainment of targets by the dates identified in the 2019 Threshold Evaluation. 
The Area Plan incorporates and/or implements relevant compliance measures, and 
with implementation of the measures with respect to development within the Area 
Plan, the effects are not adverse, and with respect to some measures, are positive.  

TRPA anticipates that implementation of the proposed amendments could accelerate 
threshold gains to the extent that it leads to environmental redevelopment in an 
aging town center.  

Section 4.4.2.B also requires TRPA to disclose the impact of the proposed project on 
its cumulative accounting of units of use (e.g., residential allocations, commercial 
floor area, tourist accommodation units). The proposed Area Plan amendments do 
not affect the cumulative accounting of units of use as no additional residential, 
commercial, tourist, or recreation allocations are proposed or allocated as part of the 
Area Plan amendments. The proposed amendments promote diversifying land uses, 
with the intent of streamlining planning processes and increasing the diversity of 
business and housing types. The proposed process, policy, and code improvements 
will facilitate and streamline revitalization projects in the Town Centers and 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.145



workforce housing throughout North Tahoe but would not increase the number of 
allowable units of use in the plan area. 

Similarly, TRPA Code Section 4.4.2.C requires TRPA to confirm whether the proposed 
project is within the remaining capacity for development (e.g., water supply, sewage, 
electrical service) identified in the environmental documentation for the Regional 
Plan. The amendments do not affect the amount of the remaining capacities 
available, identified and discussed in the RPU EIS. The Area Plan does not allocate 
capacity or authorize any particular development.  

TRPA therefore finds that the amendments are consistent with and will not adversely 
affect implementation of the Regional Plan, including all applicable goals and policies, 
community plans, plan area statements, the TRPA Code, and other TRPA plans and 
programs.  

2. Finding: The proposed Area Plan amendment will not cause the environmental threshold 
carrying capacities to be exceeded. 

Rationale: As demonstrated in the completed IEC, no significant environmental effects were 
identified as a result of the proposed amendments, and the IEC did not find any 
thresholds that would be adversely affected or exceeded. As found above, the Area 
Plan, as amended, is consistent with the Regional Plan.  

TRPA reviewed the proposed amendments in conformance with the adopted 
Threshold Standards and 222 compliance measures and supplemental compliance 
measures. The amendments will not adversely affect applicable compliance 
measures, indicators, additional factors, and supplemental compliance measures and 
target dates as identified in the 2019 Threshold Evaluation indicator summaries. 
Pursuant to Chapter 13 of the TRPA Code, TRPA will monitor all development projects 
within the Area Plan through quarterly and annual reports. These reports will be used 
to evaluate the status and trend of the thresholds every 4 years. 

The proposed Area Plan amendments do not affect the cumulative accounting of 
units of use as no additional residential, commercial, tourist, or recreation allocations 
are proposed or allocated as part of the Area Plan amendments. The proposed 
amendments promote diversifying land uses, with the intent of streamlining planning 
processes and increasing the diversity of business and housing types. The proposed 
process, policy, and code improvements will facilitate and streamline revitalization 
projects in the Town Centers and workforce housing throughout North Tahoe but 
would not increase the number of allowable units of use in the plan area. 

The amendments do not affect the amount of the remaining capacity available, as the 
remaining capacity for water supply, sewage collection and treatment, recreation and 
vehicle miles travelled have been identified and evaluated in the Area Plan EIS/EIR. 
No changes to the overall capacity are proposed in the proposed amendments. TRPA 
therefore finds that the amendments will not cause the thresholds to be exceeded. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.146



3. Finding: Wherever federal, state, or local air and water quality standards apply for the Region, 
the strictest standards shall be attained, maintained, or exceeded pursuant to Article 
V(d) of the Tahoe Regional Planning Compact. 

Rationale: Based on the following: (1) Area Plan Amendments IEC, (2) Area Plan EIS/EIR, and (3) 
the 2019 Threshold Evaluation Report, adopted by the Governing Board, no 
applicable federal, state, or local air and water quality standard will be exceeded by 
adoption of the amendment. The proposed amendments do not affect or change the 
federal, state, or local air and water quality standards that apply to the Region. 
Projects developed under the Area Plan will meet the strictest applicable air quality 
standards and implement water quality improvements consistent with TRPA Best 
Management Practices (BMPs) requirements, the Lake Tahoe Total Maximum Daily 
Load (TMDL), Middle Truckee River Watershed TMDL, and the County’s Pollutant 
Load Reduction Plan (PLRP). Federal, state, and local air and water quality standards 
remain applicable for all parcels in the Area Plan, thus ensuring environmental 
standards will be achieved or maintained pursuant to the Bi-State Compact.  

The proposed amendments to Policy TC-P-10 in the Area Plan and Section 3.09 of the 
Implementing Regulations would allow groundwater interceptions for mixed-use 
projects proposing below-grade parking. When such exceptions are granted, the 
applicant would be required to demonstrate that the project’s impacts have been 
mitigated to be equal to or better than the original impacts from the proposed 
project. This policy would strengthen the intent of the Area Plan to condense 
development in Town Centers and limit impermeable surfaces at street level. The 
revised policy was guided by Section 33.3.6 of the TRPA Code of Ordinances for mixed 
use projects in Town Centers.  

The amendments to policies and implementing regulations would support 
implementation of the goals and policies in the existing Area Plan by continuing to 
promote compact redevelopment of Town Centers and minimizing the environmental 
impacts from development on water quality and habitat. The amendments that 
would allow groundwater interception for mixed-use projects would require design 
approaches to ensure the project does not interfere with groundwater flow or 
quality. Because these policies would further support implementation of the land use 
patterns identified in the Area Plan while maintaining regional water quality, the 
amendments would not result in any new or more severe impacts to water quality. 

4. Finding: The Regional Plan and all of its elements, as amended, achieves and maintains the 
thresholds. 

Rationale: I. Introduction

In 1980, Congress amended the Compact to accelerate the pace of environmental 
progress in the Tahoe region by tasking TRPA with adopting a regional plan and 
implementing regulations that protect the unique national treasure that is Lake 
Tahoe. First, Article V(b) required that TRPA, in collaboration with Tahoe’s other 
regulatory agencies, adopt “environmental threshold carrying capacities” 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.147



(“thresholds” or “standards”) establishing goals for a wide array of environmental 
criteria, including water quality, air quality, and wildlife. Second, Article V(c) directed 
TRPA to adopt a “regional plan” that “achieves and maintains” the thresholds, and to 
“continuously review and maintain” implementation of the plan. 

The 1980 Compact inaugurated an era of establishing and enforcing rigorous controls 
on new development. In 1982, TRPA adopted the necessary thresholds for the Tahoe 
Region. These thresholds are a mix of both long- and short-term goals for the Tahoe 
Region. The Region was “in attainment” of a number of these thresholds shortly after 
the adoption of the Regional Plan and remains in attainment today. Other thresholds 
address more intractable problems; for example, TRPA established numeric water 
quality standards that, even under best-case conditions, could not be attained for 
decades. See, e.g., League to Save Lake Tahoe v. Tahoe Reg’l Planning Agency, 739 F. 
Supp. 2d 1260, 1265 (E.D. Cal. 2010). 

The second phase in this process was establishing a regional plan that, when 
implemented through rules and regulations, would ultimately “achieve and maintain” 
the thresholds over time. In 1987, following years of negotiation and litigation, TRPA 
adopted its Regional Plan. The 1987 Regional Plan employed a three-pronged 
approach to achieve and maintain the adopted environmental thresholds. First, the 
plan established a ceiling on development in Tahoe and restricted the placement, 
timing, and extent of new development. Second, the plan sought to prevent new 
harm to the environment as well as repair the environmental damage caused by 
existing development, particularly for projects that pre-dated TRPA’s existence (i.e., 
correcting the “sins of the past”); to this end, the plan created incentives to 
redevelop urbanized sites under more protective regulations and to transfer 
development out of sensitive areas that would then be restored. Third, TRPA adopted 
a capital investment program that was largely, but not exclusively, publicly funded to 
achieve and maintain thresholds by improving infrastructure and repairing 
environmental damage. In 1997, TRPA replaced this program with its EIP. In 
subsequent years, TRPA generated investments of well over $1 billion in public and 
private money to restore ecosystems and improve infrastructure under the EIP. 
Recent litigation confirmed that the Regional Plan as established in 1987 and 
subsequently amended over time will achieve and maintain the adopted 
environmental thresholds. Sierra Club v. Tahoe Reg’l Planning Agency, 916 F.Supp.2d 
1098 (E.D. Cal. 2013) [Homewood litigation]. 

Regional Plan Update Process 

Even though implementation of the 1987 Regional Plan would achieve and maintain 
the thresholds, in 2004 TRPA began public outreach and analysis of the latest science 
and monitoring results to identify priority areas in which the Regional Plan could be 
comprehensively strengthened to accelerate the rate of threshold attainment. TRPA’s 
policymakers realized that the challenges facing the region differed from those 
confronting the agency when it adopted its original Regional Plan in 1987. 
Uncontrolled new growth that had been the primary threat decades earlier had been 
brought into check by the strict growth limitations in the 1987 Regional Plan. Today’s 
problems differed, resulting from the continuing deterioration and lack of upgrades 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.148



to existing “legacy” development. In essence, to make the greatest environmental 
difference, the Tahoe region needed to fix what was already in place. In addition, 
TRPA realized some existing land-use controls could be improved to remove barriers 
to redevelopment that would address ongoing environmental degradation caused by 
sub-standard development constructed before TRPA had an adopted Regional Plan or 
even came into existence. Land use regulations and public and private investment 
remain essential to attaining the thresholds for Lake Tahoe.  

Furthermore, TRPA recognized that the social and economic fabric of the Tahoe 
Region could not support the level of environmental investment needed. The 
economic foundation of gaming had fallen away, and the level of environmental 
investment needed could not be supported solely by an enclave of second homes for 
the wealthy. Businesses and the tourism sector were faltering. Affordable housing 
and year-round jobs were scarce. Local schools were closing, and unemployment was 
unusually high. In light of these realities, TRPA sponsored an ongoing outreach 
program to obtain input on how to advance TRPA’s environmental goals. Between 
2004 and 2010, TRPA conducted over 100 public meetings, workshops, and additional 
outreach. More than 5,000 people provided input regarding their “vision” for TRPA’s 
updated Regional Plan. Based on this input, TRPA identified a number of priorities to 
be addressed by the updated Regional Plan, including: 

1. Accelerating water quality restoration and other ecological benefits by
supporting environmental redevelopment opportunities and EIP investments.

2. Changing land-use patterns by focusing development in compact, walkable
communities with increased alternative transportation options.

3. Transitioning to more permitting by local governments to create “one-stop”
and “one permit” for small to medium sized projects, where local
government wanted to assume these duties.

On December 12, 2012, TRPA’s 9-year effort culminated with the approval of the 
RPU. 

Regional Plan Update Amendments 

The RPU uses multiple strategies targeting environmental improvements to 
accelerate achieving and maintaining threshold standards in the Region. First, the 
RPU maintained both regulatory and implementation programs that have proven 
effective in protecting Lake Tahoe’s environment. TRPA’s regional growth control 
regulatory system, strict environmental development standards, and inter-agency 
partnerships for capital investment and implementation (e.g., EIP) remain in place. 

Second, the RPU promotes sensitive land restoration, redevelopment, and increases 
the availability of multi-modal transportation facilities. The implementation of the 
RPU will facilitate transferring existing development from outlying, environmentally 
sensitive areas into existing urbanized community centers. The RPU provides 
incentives so that private capital can be deployed to speed this transformation. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.149



Third, the RPU authorizes the area plan process for communities and land 
management agencies in the Tahoe Region to eliminate duplicative and unpredictable 
land use regulations that deterred improvement projects. Area plans, created 
pursuant to Chapter 13 of the TRPA Code, also allow TRPA and local, state, federal, 
and tribal governments to expand the types of projects for which local, state, federal, 
and tribal governments apply TRPA rules to proposed projects within the Tahoe 
Region. After approval of an area plan by TRPA, this process allows a single 
government entity to review, permit, and inspect projects in their jurisdiction. All 
project approvals delegated to other government entities may be appealed to TRPA 
for final decision. In addition, the performance of any government receiving 
delegated authority will be monitored quarterly and audited annually to ensure 
proper application of TRPA rules and regulations. 

As noted above, a variety of strategies in the Regional Plan will work together to 
accelerate needed environmental gains in the categories where threshold benefits are 
most needed – water quality, restoration of sensitive lands, scenic quality advances in 
developed scenic units, and efforts to continue maintenance and attainment of air 
quality standards. Area plans that include “Centers” play a key role in the Regional 
Plan’s overall strategy by activating environmental redevelopment incentives (e.g., 
increases in density and height) that also provide the receiving capacity for transfers 
of units from sensitive lands.  

The next section of this finding establishes how the Amended Placer County Tahoe 
Basin Area Plan fulfills the role anticipated by the RPU and the expected threshold 
gain resulting from its implementation. 

II. Area Plan Amendment and Threshold Gain  

The proposed Area Plan amendments would maintain programs in the existing Area 
Plan that could accelerate threshold gain, including water quality restoration, scenic 
quality improvement, and other ecological benefits. To the extent that the 
amendments lead to environmental redevelopment in aging town centers, it would 
accelerate threshold gain. An increase in redevelopment will likewise increase the 
rate of threshold gain by accelerating the application of controls designed to enhance 
water quality, air quality, soil conservation, and scenic quality improvements.  

As described in more specific detail below, the amendments will have a potentially 
beneficial effect on multiple threshold areas.  

  A. Water Quality  

The 2019 Threshold Evaluation found that the trend in reduced lake clarity has been 
slowed. The continued improvement is a strong indication that the actions of 
partners in the region are contributing to improved clarity and helping TRPA attain 
one of its signature goals.  

The proposed revisions to Policy TC-P-10 in the Area Plan and Section 3.09 of the 
Implementing Regulations will allow groundwater interceptions for mixed-use 
projects proposing below-grade parking. When such exceptions are granted, the 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.150



applicant would be required to demonstrate that the project’s impacts have been 
mitigated to be equal to or better than the original impacts from the proposed 
project. This policy would strengthen the Area Plan’s intent to condense development 
in Town Centers and limit impermeable surfaces at street level. The revised policy 
was guided by Section 33.3.6 of the TRPA Code of Ordinances for mixed-use projects 
in Town Centers.  

The amendments to policies and implementing regulations would support 
implementation of the goals and policies in the existing Area Plan by continuing to 
promote compact redevelopment of Town Centers and minimizing the environmental 
impacts from development on water quality and habitat. The amendments that 
would allow groundwater interception for mixed-use projects would require design 
approaches to ensure the project does not interfere with groundwater flow or 
quality. Because these revised policies would further support implementation of the 
land use patterns identified in the Area Plan while maintaining regional water quality. 

Potential environmental redevelopment within the amended Area Plan will result in 
accelerated water quality benefits. Each redevelopment project is required to comply 
with strict development standards, including water quality BMPs and coverage 
mitigation requirements, and will provide additional opportunities for implementing 
area wide water quality systems. 

B. Air Quality

The 2019 Threshold Evaluation found that the majority of air quality standards are in 
attainment and observed changes suggest that conditions are improving or stable. 
Actions implemented to improve air quality in the Tahoe Region occur at the national, 
state, and regional scale. The US Environmental Protection Agency has established 
vehicle tail-pipe emission standards and industrial air pollution standards. These 
actions have resulted in substantial reductions in the emissions of harmful pollutants 
at state-wide and national scales and likely have contributed to improvement in air 
quality at Lake Tahoe. At a regional scale, TRPA has established ordinances and 
policies to encourage alternative modes of transportation and to reduce vehicle idling 
by prohibiting the creation of new drive-through window establishments and limiting 
idling during project construction. 

Facilitating projects within the approved area plans is an integral component in 
implementing regional air quality strategies and improvements at a community level. 
(TRPA Goals and Policies: Chapter 2, “Land Use”). The Area Plan was adopted to 
implement and achieve the environmental improvement and redevelopment goals of 
the Regional Plan, and the proposed amendments would further that goal. A primary 
function of the Amended Area Plan is to consolidate applicable local and regional 
plans to facilitate implementation of the Regional Plan. Because implementation of 
the Area Plan would lead to implementation of the Regional Plan, it would directly 
contribute to achieving and maintaining the air quality threshold.  

TRPA’s 2020 RTP includes an analysis of its conformity with the California State 
Implementation Plan to ensure that the RTP remains consistent with state and local 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.151



air quality planning work to achieve and/or maintain the national ambient air quality 
standards (NAAQS). The proposed amendments do not propose substantial changes 
to land use assumptions and would not change the conformity determination by state 
regulators. 

The proposed Area Plan amendments would not change the development potential 
within the plan area, so the location, amount, and type of construction activities 
within the plan area would not change substantially. Operational emissions would 
also not change substantially because the Area Plan Amendments would not change 
air quality regulatory requirements, increase vehicle use, or alter the amount or type 
of development possible within the plan area. The proposed amendments could 
affect the land use pattern by encouraging redevelopment of Town Centers; 
promoting mixed-use projects; encouraging shared parking; encouraging affordable, 
moderate, or achievable housing; allowing food trucks and mobile vendors; and 
supporting the Resort Triangle Transportation Plan. Taken together, these changes 
would encourage more concentrated development within Town Centers with less 
development outside of the Town Centers. This land use pattern would create 
residences near commercial uses and potentially generate the shorter trip lengths 
and reduce vehicle miles traveled (VMT) needed to meet the Air Quality Thresholds. 

 C. Soil Conservation 

The 2019 Threshold Evaluation found negligible change in the total impervious cover 
in the Region over the last 5 years and the majority of soil conservation standards in 
attainment. While the permitting process of partners has been effective in focusing 
development on less sensitive lands and encouraging removal of impervious cover 
from sensitive areas, there is still much work to be done. Plans for large scale stream 
environment zone (SEZ) restoration, recent improvements in the development rights 
program, and implementation of the area plans will continue to help achieve SEZ 
restoration goals.  

As summarized in Table 3-1 of the IEC, the plan area exceeds the amount of coverage 
allowed in land capability districts 1b and 2. This indicates that future redevelopment 
would be required to implement excess land coverage mitigation strategies and 
relocation of development from sensitive land consistent with the Regional Plan. 
Furthermore, redevelopment permitting would require these properties to 
incorporate modern site design standards, including landscaping, BMPs, and 
setbacks. These standards would likely result in the removal of existing land coverage 
for properties that are overcovered. Any projects on over-covered parcels 
implemented within the amended Area Plan would include excess land coverage 
mitigation. The coverage limits and policies in the proposed Area Plan would not be 
changed by the proposed amendments and the proposed developed allocation 
system would clarify allowable coverage for future projects. This would support 
attainment of TRPA Threshold Standards related to land coverage consistent with the 
limits allowed by the land capability and Individual Parcel Evaluation System systems. 
Therefore, the amendments will help to accelerate threshold gain through soil 
conservation. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.152



D. Scenic Quality

The 2019 Threshold Evaluation found that scenic gains were achieved in developed 
areas along roadways and scenic resources along the lake’s shoreline, the areas most 
in need of additional scenic improvement. Overall, 93 percent of the evaluated scenic 
resource units met the threshold standard and no decline in scenic quality was 
documented in any indicator category.  

TRPA-designated scenic travel units within the Area Plan include those along State 
Route (SR) 89, SR 28, and Lake Tahoe. The proposed amendments to Area Plan 
policies and Implementing Regulations include clarification of existing scenic 
requirements, support for public art, and slightly more compact development within 
Town Centers, due to incentives for affordable housing, changes to setbacks, and 
allowances for tiny homes. Most of the existing design standards would continue to 
apply, which have been demonstrated to result in improved scenic quality and 
community character as older, non-conforming development is replaced with new 
buildings consistent with current standards (TRPA 2023). Therefore, it is reasonable 
to expect that redevelopment under the Area Plan, as amended, would continue to 
result in incremental improvements in scenic quality and a built environment that is 
consistent with the community character. Any subsequent projects carried out under 
the amended Area Plan would be required to make project-specific findings, as well 
as the Chapter 4 threshold findings and Chapter 37 height findings in the TRPA Code. 

Consistent with the Regional Plan, the Area Plan allows for changes in the built 
environment through use of remaining allocations, use of newly authorized 
allocations, and implementation of design standards and guidelines and Code 
provisions that ultimately affect the form of new development and redevelopment. 
The Area Plan implements, and is consistent with, the provisions of the Regional Plan 
(such as increased density and height in community centers) intended to incentivize 
redevelopment, while protecting scenic resources. The Area Plan Area-wide 
Standards and Guidelines (Implementing Regulations, Chapter 3) are designed to 
guide development that would reflect the character of the area, protect viewsheds, 
and substantially improve the appearance of redevelopment projects.  

E. Vegetation

The 2019 Threshold Evaluation found that vegetation in the Region continues to 
recover from the impacts of legacy land use. The majority of vegetation standards 
that are currently not in attainment relate to common vegetation in the Region. This 
finding is consistent with those of past threshold evaluations. As the landscape 
naturally recovers from the impacts of historic logging, grazing, and ground-
disturbance activities over the course of this century, many of the standards are 
expected to be attained.  

The plan area includes extensive undeveloped areas primarily characterized by the 
dominant vegetation habitat types of Sierran Mixed conifer, Jeffery pine (Pinus 
jeffreyi), white fir (Abies concolor), and perennial grasslands. The urban zones are 
along the shoreline and lower canyons surrounded by mixed conifer forests. The 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.153



proposed Area Plan amendments would not change land use classifications or allow 
new uses that would be more likely to require vegetation removal. These 
amendments would facilitate more concentrated redevelopment in existing Town 
Centers, which could reduce the potential for development on vacant lands 
containing native vegetation because a higher proportion of future growth would 
likely occur in already developed Core Areas. The proposed amendments would not 
alter or revise the regulations pertaining to native vegetation protection during 
construction. Consistent with existing conditions, individual projects implemented 
under the Area Plan are required to comply with Section 33.6, “Vegetation Protection 
During Construction,” of the TRPA Code. Protective requirements include installation 
of temporary construction fencing, standards for tree removal and tree protection, 
standards for soil and vegetation protection, and revegetation of disturbed areas.  

The proposed amendments would not result in direct tree or vegetation removal. 
Future projects are subject to project-level environmental review and the removal of 
native, live, dead, or dying trees must be implemented consistent with Chapter 61, 
“Vegetation and Forest Health,” of the TRPA Code.  

F. Recreation 

The 2019 Threshold Evaluation found that land acquisition programs and the Lake 
Tahoe EIP have contributed to improved access and visitor and resident satisfaction 
with the quality and spectrum of recreation opportunities. Partner agencies have 
improved existing recreation facilities and created new ones, including providing 
additional access to Lake Tahoe, hiking trailheads, and bicycle trails. Today’s emerging 
concerns are transportation access to recreation sites and maintaining quality 
recreation experiences as demand grows, concerns that may require the Region to 
revisit policies and goals for the recreation threshold standards. 

The plan area contains numerous recreational opportunities within its boundaries. 
Tahoe City Public Utility District (TCPUD) and North Tahoe Public Utility District 
(NTPUD) manage recreation facilities throughout the plan area, including beaches, 
day-use areas, lakeside parks, hiking and biking trails, and boat launch facilities. Some 
of the other agencies and organizations that contribute to the development and 
management of recreational facilities within the plan area include the US Forest 
Service, California Tahoe Conservancy, California Department of Parks and 
Recreation, Tahoe Rim Trail Association, Tahoe Fund, and the County.  

The proposed amendments do not alter regulations related to recreation or approve 
changes to existing recreation facilities that would affect access or visitor and 
resident satisfaction with the quality and spectrum of recreation opportunities.  

Although the proposed Area Plan amendments could modestly increase the pace of 
construction within the plan area, they would not increase the potential for growth in 
the plan area beyond that which could already occur under the existing Area Plan. As 
such, because potential future growth in the plan area is limited, the demand for 
recreation facilities would not substantially increase. The existing Area Plan already 
includes appropriate strategies to provide additional recreation capacity consistent 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.154



with demand. The proposed Area Plan amendments do not approve any projects that 
would affect recreation demand or capacity and all future projects would be assessed 
for their impact on access to or the quality of existing recreation opportunities.  

The approval of any project proposing the creation of additional recreational capacity 
would be subject to subsequent project-level environmental review and permitting 
and, if applicable, would be subject to the Persons At One Time (PAOT) system of 
recreation allocations administered by TRPA as described in Section 50.9, “Regulation 
of Additional Recreation Facilities,” of the TRPA Code. No additional PAOTs are 
proposed by the amendment. 

In addition, the existing Area Plan is consistent with applicable plans that guide 
existing and proposed recreation uses, which would be unchanged. 

G. Fisheries

While the 2019 Threshold Evaluation found standards for fisheries to generally be in 
attainment, the standards focus on physical habitat requirements that may not 
reflect the status of native fish populations. Recent population surveys in Lake Tahoe 
suggest significant declines in native fish species in parts of the nearshore. Declines 
are likely the result of impacts from the presence of aquatic invasive species in the 
lake. While efforts to prevent new invasive species from entering the lake have been 
successful, mitigating the impact of previously introduced existing invasive species 
remains a high priority challenge. Invasive species control projects are guided by a 
science-based implementation plan. Ensuring native fish can persist in the region and 
the restoration of the historic trophic structure to the lake will likely require partners 
to explore novel methods to control invasive species and abate the pressure they are 
placing on native species. Climate change driven shifts in the timing and form of 
precipitation in the Region pose a longer-term threat to native fish that may need to 
be monitored. 

BMPs required for project development would improve water quality and thus could 
contribute to improved riparian and lake conditions in receiving water bodies. The 
Area Plan amendments will not alter the resource management and protection 
regulations, Chapters 60 through 68 of the TRPA Code. Chapter 63, “Fish Resources,” 
includes the provisions to ensure the projection of fish habitat and provide for the 
enhancement of degraded habitat. Development within the Area Plan could benefit 
the fisheries threshold through goals and policies aimed at the restoration of SEZs 
and implementation of BMPs.  

H. Wildlife

The 2019 Threshold Evaluation found that 12 of the 16 wildlife standards are in 
attainment. Over 50 percent of the land area in the Tahoe region is designated for 
protection of listed special-status species. Populations of special interest species are 
either stable or increasing. 

Future redevelopment projects in the Area Plan would be subject to project-level 
environmental review and permitting at which time the proposals would be required 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.155



to demonstrate compliance with all federal, state, and TRPA regulations pertaining to 
the protection of animal species in accordance with Section 62.4 of the TRPA Code. 
Therefore, implementation of the proposed amendments would not result in the 
reduction in the number of any unique, rare, or endangered species of animals, 
including waterfowl. 

I. Noise

The 2019 Threshold Evaluation found that ambient noise levels in seven of nine land-
use categories are in attainment with standards, but because of the proximity of 
existing development to roadways just two of seven transportation corridors are in 
attainment with ambient targets. Due to insufficient data, status determinations 
were not possible for nearly half of the single event noise standards. Limited noise 
monitoring resources were prioritized towards collecting more robust information to 
analyze ambient noise standards, which are more conducive to influence by 
management actions than are single event sources. TRPA continues to update and 
evaluate its noise monitoring program to ensure standards are protective and 
realistically achievable.  

As discussed in the IEC, the Area Plan amendments would not alter noise policies and 
the adopted TRPA CNEL threshold standards, and Regional Plan noise policies would 
continue to be applied. Future projects within the plan area would be evaluated at a 
project level and Placer County or TRPA would enforce CNEL standards on a project-
by-project basis pursuant to the noise limitations in TRPA Code Chapter 68, “Noise 
Limitations.” Through the project-level analysis, TRPA or Placer County would only 
approve projects that can demonstrate compliance with TRPA’s threshold standards 
(i.e., CNEL standards). The existing Area Plan CNEL standards are consistent with the 
TRPA’s threshold standards; thus, future projects under the amendments would only 
be approved by TRPA or Placer County if they can demonstrate compliance with 
these CNEL standards.  

III. Conclusion

Based on the foregoing: completion of the IEC, previously certified Area Plan EIR/EIS, 
and the findings made on January 25, 2017, TRPA finds the Area Plan, as amended by 
the project achieves and maintains the thresholds. As described above in more detail, 
the Area Plan as amended actively promotes threshold achievement and 
maintenance by (1) potentially incentivizing environmentally beneficial 
redevelopment, (2) requiring the installation of BMP improvements for all projects in 
the Area Plan, (3) requiring conformance with the Area-wide Standards and 
Guidelines that will result in improvements to scenic quality and water quality, (4) 
facilitating redevelopment in proximity to alternative modes of transportation to 
reduce VMT; and (5) incorporating projects identified in the County’s PLRP to 
guarantee the assigned reductions necessary to meet water quality objectives. In 
addition, as found in Chapter 4 Findings 1 through 3 and the Chapter 13 Findings, no 
element of the proposed amendments interferes with the efficacy of any of the other 
elements of the Area Plan. Thus, the Regional Plan, as amended by the Amended 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.156



Area Plan, will continue to achieve and maintain the thresholds. 

 
Chapter 13 Finding:     The following findings must be made prior to amending the Area Plan:  

1. Finding: The proposed Area Plan amendment is consistent with and furthers the goals and policies 
of the Regional Plan. 

 
 Rationale: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

Regional Plan Land Use Policy 4.6 encourages the development of area plans that 
supersede existing plan area statements and community plans or other TRPA 
regulations to be responsive to the unique needs and opportunities of communities. 
The proposed Area Plan amendments were found to be consistent with the goals and 
policies of the Regional Plan and would accelerate implementation of Regional Plan 
goals and policies, as described in the Area Plan Finding of Conformity Checklist 
(Attachment F to the staff summary), and as described in Chapter 4, Finding #1, above. 

 

The finding of no significant effect based on the IEC can be found on the subsequent page. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.157



FINDING OF NO SIGNIFICANT EFFECT 

Project Description: Proposed amendments to the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan. 

Staff Analysis:   In accordance with Article IV of the Tahoe Regional Planning Compact, as amended, 

and Section 6.6 of the TRPA Rules of Procedure, TRPA staff reviewed the 

information submitted with the subject project.  

Determination:  Based on the Initial Environmental Checklist, Agency staff found that the subject 

project will not have a significant effect on the environment. 

___________________________ __________ 

TRPA Executive Director/Designee Date 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.158



Attachment E 

IEC (link) 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.159

https://www.trpa.gov/wp-content/uploads/Agenda-Item-No.-VII.-A.-Attachment-E-IEC.pdf


Attachment F 
Conformity Checklist 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.160



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency 
Area Plan Finding of Conformity Checklist 

AREA PLAN INFORMATION 

Area Plan Name: Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan Amendments 

Lead Agency: Placer County 

Submitted to TRPA: July 27, 2023 

TRPA File No: N/A 

CONFORMITY REVIEW 

Review Stage: Final Review - After Local Adoption 

Conformity Review Date: November 15, 2023 

TRPA Reviewer: Jacob Stock 

HEARING DATES 

Lead Agency Approval: October 31, 2023 

APC: December 6, 2023 

RPIC: 

Governing Board: 

December 13, 2023 

January 27, 2024 

Appeal Deadline: N/A 

MOU Approval Deadline: N/A 

CHARACTERISTICS 

Geographic Area and 
Description: 

The Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan addresses that portion 
of Placer County that is also within the jurisdiction of TRPA, 
encompassing an area of 46,162 acres (72.1 square miles) that 
includes the communities of Kings Beach/Stateline, Tahoe City, 
Carnelian Bay, Dollar Point, Sunnyside, Homewood, Tahoe Vista, 
and Tahoma. 

Land Use Classifications: Residential, Recreation, Mixed-Use, Tourist, Backcountry, 
Conservation, Town Center 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.161



Area Plan Amendment 
Summary: 

 

 
The proposed Area Plan amendments focus on process, policy, and code improvements to support appropriate 

lodging, mixed-use developments, and a variety of housing types, including workforce housing. The 

amendments also focus on diversifying land uses, with the intent of streamlining planning processes and 

increasing the diversity of business and housing types. Therefore, the proposed amendments are designed to 

implement recommendations outlined in the Economic Sustainability Needs Assessment, particularly those 

focused on process, policy, and code improvements that will facilitate and streamline revitalization projects in 

the Town Centers and workforce housing throughout North Tahoe. Tables 1 through 3 summarize the 

proposed amendments to the Tahoe Basin Area Plan (TBAP) policy document, implementing regulations, and 

height and building length limits in Town Centers, respectively. 

Table 1. Summary of Proposed Policy Document Changes 

Area Plan Element Proposed Change  Summary of Change 

Scenic Resources  Changed policy language in 

policies SR-P-3, SR-P-4, and 

added policy SR-P-10. 

The policy amendments are intended to support the evaluation or 

reevaluation of scenic requirements to facilitate private reinvestment in 

Town Centers targeted for redevelopment and/or new development 

under the Area Plan. The intent is to generate development that 

improves environmental conditions, creates a more efficient, sustainable, 

and less auto‐dependent land use pattern, and provides for economic 

opportunities.  

Vegetation Changed policy language in 

policy VEG-P-6 and added 

policy VEG-P-7 

A new policy was added to support implementation of new or expanded 

hardening, green waste, and defensible space incentive and/or rebate 

programs. 

Socio-Economic Removed policy SE-P-5 and 

added policies SE-P-6 and 

SE-P-7 

Former Policy SE-P-5 was removed from the Area Plan, which related to 

addressing the job-housing imbalance and providing housing at various 

affordable levels. Policies were added to support high-speed broadband 

infrastructure capacity and to support childcare facilities to meet the needs 

of the local workforce. 

Land Use Added policies LU-P-19, LU-

P-20, LU-P-21, LU-P-22, and 

LU-P-23. 

New policies were added to help achieve the objectives of the Placer 

County North Lake Tahoe Economic Development Incentive Program, 

which prioritizes development rights to the most community-benefitting 

projects that align with the Area Plan and Regional Plan. Policies were 

added to support the allocation and conversion of TRPA development 

rights, and to address land uses in the Town Centers. Policies were also 

included to support funding sources for a frontage improvement 

implementation plan to achieve area plan infrastructure such as sidewalks, 

curbs, and gutters, as well as implementing parking management plans and 

developing a reservation and conversion manual for development rights. 

Mixed Use Added policies MU-P-7, 

MU-P-8, and MU-P-9. 

Policies were added to ensure the availability and development of mixed 

use, business park, and light industrial space, and to encourage potential 

residential components in such development. 

Town Centers Changed policy language in 

policy TC-P-5, and added 

policies TC-P-10, TC-P-11, 

TC-P-12, TC-P-13, TC-P-14, 

TC-P-15, TC-P-16, TC-P-17, 

TC-P-18, and TC-P-19. 

New policies were added that would allow groundwater interception for 

mixed-use projects in Town Centers, supporting streamlined permit 

processes for mixed use projects, encouraging active ground floor uses, 

facilitating mobile vendors and food trucks in Town Centers, supporting 

the retention and expansion of businesses from the North Tahoe-Truckee 

region, supporting relocations of industrial and public utility land uses in 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.162



Area Plan Element Proposed Change Summary of Change 

the Town Centers to free up Town Center sites, as well as supporting 

parking maximums and other parking solutions. 

Community Design Added policies CD-P-14, 

CD-P-15, CD-P-16, and CD-

P-17. 

Policies to support and promote local artists and public art in North 

Tahoe were included. 

Redevelopment Added policies DP-P-5, DP-

P-6, DP-P-7, DP-P-8, DP-P-

9, DP-P-10, and DP-P-11. 

New policies support and encourage adaptive reuse of vacant or 

underutilized retail and office space, support redevelopment of aging 

lodging products and encourage revitalization and creation of new high-

quality lodging, allow multipurpose and flexible gathering spaces in 

private and public parking areas where events could be held during off-

peak hours, expedite building permit processes, and support the 

development of new business innovation space and flexible light 

industrial spaces to diversify the local economy. 

Housing Added policies HS-P-8, HS-

P-9, HS-P-10, HS-P-11, HS-

P-12, 

Additional policies were included to support streamlining affordable, 

moderate, and achievable housing, require that 50 percent of units 

converted from multifamily to condominiums be deed restricted to 

affordable, moderate or achievable housing, address the job-housing 

imbalance in the region, monitor and track housing data in the region, 

and support adaptive management of the short-term rental inventory to 

balance housing availability with short-term rentals as new lodging 

products are added to the region. 

Table 2. Summary of Proposed Implementing Regulations Changes 

Proposed Change Summary of Change 

Global changes to the Implementing 

Regulations to adopt and incorporate 

the TRPA Shorezone Ordinances. 

The proposed amendments to the area plan are intended to reflect the changes made to 

Placer County Code Chapter 12, Article 12.32, “Lake Tahoe Shorezone” adopted by the 

Board of Supervisors in February of 2021. In August 2019, TRPA amended its Code of 

Ordinances, including shorezone regulations contained in Chapters 80 through 85. 

Additions have been made to Chapter 

1.04 Administration, Design Review 

Required for Commercial, Tourist 

Accommodation, and Multi-Family 

Dwelling Residential Development, 

and All Development in Designated 

Scenic Areas. Tourist Accommodation 

was added to the review requirement 

and an exemption was added. 

Tourist Accommodation development has been added and would therefore be subject to 

Design Review. Multi-Family Residential Development with 15 units or fewer and not in a 

designated scenic area is exempt from the Design Review requirements under this part. 

Additionally, the process for Design Review has been modified to provide for lesser 

environmental review if project is exempt per applicable CEQA Guidelines exemptions or 

other California streamlining exemptions. 

Residential Subdistrict Development 

Standards revised to reduce or 

remove setbacks, articulation, 

massing requirements, minimum lot 

widths, and minimum lot area. 

Setbacks and articulation and massing requirements limiting building capacity would be 

removed and/or reduced. The proposed amendments would also include reduced minimum 

lot widths for some zone districts. The minimum lot area per dwelling unit in all residential 

zone districts would also be removed to accommodate smaller dwelling units.  

In seven of the 21 residential zone districts listed as Preferred Affordable, Moderate and 

Achievable Areas, the minimum lot size was reduced to 2,904 square feet to accommodate 

existing densities of 15 dwelling units per acre, and minimum lot widths were reduced to 25 

feet to accommodate smaller lots that can promote smaller and more affordable houses, 

and which match existing lot sizes. Street side setbacks for corner lots are introduced. Side 

setbacks were also reduced to 5 feet minimum, except when adjoining another unit on 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.163



Proposed Change Summary of Change 

adjacent property, which would require 0 feet on one side and 10 feet on the other to 

accommodate duplex-style developments. 

Residential Subdistrict Land Use 

Regulations revised to change 

multiple family and multi-person 

dwellings and employees housing to 

an Allowed Use. 

In the 21 residential zone districts listed as Preferred Affordable, Moderate, and 

Achievable Areas, where not otherwise allowed by right, the proposed amendments 

would allow multifamily and employee housing by right with no use permit if 100 percent 

of units are deed restricted to affordable, moderate, or achievable housing per TRPA 

Code of Ordinances Chapter 90: Definitions, for achievable, moderate-income, or 

affordable housing. This is intended to encourage development of multifamily housing by 

reducing costs and time delays associated with use permits and provide clear standards 

and requirements that must be met. 

Mixed-Use Districts Tables 2.04.A-1 

for Greater Tahoe City Mixed Use and 

2.04.B-1 and North Tahoe East 

Residential Uses 

Multifamily, multi-person, and employee housing would be allowed by right if 100% of 

the units are deed restricted to affordable, moderate, or achievable housing per TRPA 

Code of Ordinances Chapter 90: Definitions, for achievable, moderate-income or 

affordable housing. New attached single-family residential units of more than one unit, 

would only be allowed if single family encompasses 25% or less of the entire project or if 

at least 50% of the units are deed restricted to affordable, moderate or achievable 

housing per TRPA Code of Ordinances Chapter 90: Definitions, for achievable, moderate-

income or affordable housing. 

Mixed-Use Districts Tables 2.04.A-3 

for Greater Tahoe City Mixed Use and 

2.04.B-3 and North Tahoe East  

Side and rear setbacks were reduced to 0 ft to encourage mixed use development in the 

Town Centers.  

Table 2.04.A-4, Building Form 

Guidelines for the Greater Tahoe City 

Mixed-Use Subdistricts has been 

revised. 

Revisions refine maximum building lengths for proposed structures in the mixed-use 

Town Center zone districts in Tahoe City where there were no existing maximums. These 

changes are proposed to assist in guiding building design and massing. See Table 2-3, 

below. 

Table 2.04.B-4, Building Form 

Guidelines for the North Tahoe East 

Mixed-Use Subdistricts has been 

revised. 

Revisions refine maximum building lengths for proposed structures in the mixed-use 

Town Center zone districts in Kings Beach. These changes are proposed to assist in 

guiding building design and massing. See Table 2-3, below. 

Section 2.09, Overlay Districts, has been 

revised to clarify building height 

standards. 

The proposed changes below incorporate clarifications on maximum height allowances in Town 

Centers and transition areas. All projects would still be required to comply with TRPA scenic 

requirements.  

Land Use Regulations for Mixed-Use 

Subdistricts have been revised. 

Amendments would allow food trucks and mobile vendors in Town Centers as an allowed 

use in compliance with Senate Bill (SB) 946. SB 946 established requirements for local 

regulation of sidewalk vending, legalizing sidewalk vending across the state.  

The proposed amendments would also offer an avenue to some types of land uses that 

currently require use permits to be pursued as an allowed use if below a defined 

maximum square footage. The following land uses would be eligible:  

Hotels, Motels, and other Transient Dwelling Units 

Eating and drinking facilities 

Building materials and hardware stores 

Repair services 

Additionally, the proposed amendments separate eating and drinking facilities into 

subcategories based on the Institute of Transportation Engineers Manual (Drinking Place, 

Fast Casual Restaurant, Quality Restaurant, High-Turnover Sit-Down Restaurant, and Fast-

Food Restaurant without Drive Thru Window) to allow a specified maximum commercial 

floor area for each type of facility listed in the use table. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.164



Proposed Change Summary of Change 

The goal of these changes is to incentivize and streamline new lodging products, 

restaurants, retail, and local-serving land that would strengthen the year-round economic 

vitality of Town Centers and make the Implementing Regulations compatible with state 

law.  

Section 3.01, “Permissible Uses,” has 

been amended to incorporate 

Moveable Tiny Houses. 

The proposed amendments refer to the countywide housing code amendments that were 

adopted by the Board of Supervisors on June 14, 2022, to allow for tiny houses as primary 

or accessory dwelling units as well as employee housing and tiny house communities. 

Moveable tiny houses and moveable tiny house communities would comply with 

definitions and development standards in Placer County’s Zoning Ordinance. 

Section 3.06 “Streetscape and 

Roadway Design Standards” and 

Table 3.06.A “Future Streetscape and 

Roadway Design Characteristics” have 

been revised. 

The proposed amendments are designed to provide consistency throughout the Area 

Plan in identifying the requirements of street frontage improvements and to provide 

reference to other applicable standards contained in the area plan. The proposed 

amendments would require street frontage improvements of all development. Minor 

changes were made to the text to eliminate redundancy and provide clarity and 

consistency.  

Section 3.07, “Parking and Access,” 

has been revised to permanently 

adopt the parking pilot program for 

North Lake Tahoe Town Centers.  

These changes support exemptions to parking and spur redevelopment in the Town 

Centers and support strategies identified in the Resort Triangle Transportation Plan 

(RTTP), which was approved by the TRPA Board of Supervisors in October 2020 and 

outlines strategies to increase mobility and reduce VMT in the Tahoe region. Changes 

include: 

Expanding eligible applicants to include all development/redevelopment proposed in 

Town Centers. 

Allowing further collaboration with tourist accommodation and residential uses to be 

considered. 

Removing the existing limitation in the area plan that project sites eligible for the 

exemption shall be 25,000 square feet or less. 

Expanding financial mitigations beyond establishment of a transit County Service Area Zone of 

Benefit to include financial support for transit service enhancements or other alternative 

transportation projects that support multi-modal transportation and/or strategies noted in 

the RTTP. 

Revised single-family and multi-family dwelling parking requirements. 

Section 3.09, “Design Standards and 

Guidelines,” has been revised to 

include exceptions for groundwater 

interception. 

The proposed amendment exempts groundwater interception to projects proposing 

below-grade parking. When such exceptions are granted, the applicant must 

demonstrate that the project impacts have been mitigated to be equal to or better than 

the original impacts. This amendment is intended to facilitate the redevelopment desired 

in Town Centers and allow for below-grade parking, which reduces coverage. 

The proposed amendments would restrict new attached single family in Town Centers of 

over one unit, including townhomes and condominiums, if single family encompasses 25 

percent or less of the entire project or if at least 50 percent of the single-family residential 

units are deed restricted to affordable, moderate, or achievable housing per TRPA Code 

of Ordinances Chapter 90: Definitions, for achievable, moderate-income, or affordable 

housing. The intent is to facilitate mixed use development and allow some single family to 

offset costs of workforce housing or commercial uses while still achieving the goals of the 

area plan and community. 

Section 3.11, “Signs,” has been 

removed. 

Updates refer to the TRPA Code of Ordinance Chapter 38 “Signs.” This amendment is 

intended to streamline signage requirements and will make the Basin Area Plan consistent 

with the TRPA Code of Ordinances, thereby eliminating the need for future amendments 

to the area plan should TRPA modify Chapter 38 of the Code of Ordinance. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.165



Table 3. Updates to Building Length and Height in Town Centers 

Proposed Change Summary of Change 

Building Length – Kings Beach Town 

Center 

Building length is reduced in MU-TOR from 350 ft to 200 ft. To ensure compatibility with 

residential zone districts, any buildings directly facing residential zone districts are 

proposed to be a maximum of 75 ft long.  

Building Length – Tahoe City Town 

Center 

Building length transitions have been incorporated where there were none before to 

ensure consistency between Kings Beach and Tahoe City mixed use zone districts. To 

ensure compatibility with residential zone districts, any buildings directly facing residential 

zone districts are proposed to be a maximum of 75 ft long. 

Building Height – Town Centers The maximum building height is currently measured in stories, which would change to 

feet (e.g., 56 feet instead of four stories). Maximum building heights have been 

incorporated for the special planning area overlay districts where there were none before. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.166



Conformity Checklist 
TRPA Code 

Section 
Conformity 

YES NO N/A 

A. Contents of Area Plans

1 General 13.5.1 ●

2 Relationship to Other Code Sections 13.5.2 ●

B. Development and Community Design Standards

Building Height 

1 Outside of Centers 13.5.3 ●

2 Within Town Centers 13.5.3 ●

3 Within the Regional Center 13.5.3 ●

4 Within the High-Density Tourist District 13.5.3 ●

Density 

5 Single-Family Dwellings 13.5.3 ●

6 Multiple-Family Dwellings outside of Centers 13.5.3 ●

7 Multiple-Family Dwellings within Centers 13.5.3 ●

8 Tourist Accommodations 13.5.3 ●

Land Coverage 

9 Land Coverage 13.5.3 ●

10 Alternative Comprehensive Coverage Management 13.5.3.B.1 ●

Site Design 

11 Site Design Standards 13.5.3 ●

Complete Streets 

12 Complete Streets 13.5.3 ●

C. Alternative Development Standards and Guidelines Authorized in an Area Plan

1 
Alternative Comprehensive Coverage Management 
System 

13.5.3.B.1 ●

2 Alternative Parking Strategies 13.5.3.B.2 ●

3 
Areawide Water Quality Treatments and Funding 
Mechanisms 

13.5.3.B.3 ●

4 Alternative Transfer Ratios for Development Rights 13.5.3.B.4 ●

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.167



TRPA Code 
Section 

Conformity 
YES NO N/A 

D. Development Standards and Guidelines Encouraged in Area Plans

1 Urban Bear Strategy 13.5.3.C.1 ●

2 Urban Forestry 13.5.3.C.2 ●

E. Development on Resort Recreation Parcels

1 Development on Resort Recreation Parcels 13.5.3.D ●

F. Greenhouse Gas Reduction

1 Greenhouse Gas Reduction Strategy 13.5.3.E ●

G. Community Design Standards

1 Development in All Areas 13.5.3.F.1.a ●

2 Development in Regional Center or Town Centers 13.5.3.F.1.b ●

3 Building Heights 13.5.3.F.2 ●

4 Building Design 13.5.3.F.3 ●

5 Landscaping 13.5.3.F.4 ●

6 Lighting 13.5.3.F.5 ●

7 Signing – Alternative Standards 13.5.3.F.6 ●

8 Signing – General Policies 13.5.3.F.6 ●

H. Modification to Town Center Boundaries

1 Modification to Town Center Boundaries 13.5.3.G ●

I. Conformity Review Procedures for Area Plans

1 Initiation of Area Planning Process by Lead Agency 13.6.1 ●

2 Initial Approval of Area Plan by Lead Agency 13.6.2 ●

3 Review by Advisory Planning Commission 13.6.3 ●

4 Approval of Area Plan by TRPA 13.6.4 ●

J. Findings for Conformance with the Regional Plan

General Review Standards for All Area Plans 

1 Zoning Designations 13.6.5.A.1 ●

2 Regional Plan Policies 13.6.5.A.2 ●

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.168



  TRPA Code 
Section 

Conformity 
YES NO N/A 

3 Regional Plan Land Use Map 13.6.5.A.3 ●   

4 Environmental Improvement Projects 13.6.5.A.4 ●   

5 Redevelopment 13.6.5.A.5 ●   

6 Established Residential Areas 13.6.5.A.6 ●   

7 Stream Environment Zones 13.6.5.A.7 ●   

8 
Alternative Transportation Facilities and 
Implementation 

13.6.5.A.8 ●   

Load Reduction Plans 

9 Load Reduction Plans 13.6.5.B ●   

Additional Review Standards for Town Centers and the Regional Center 

10 Building and Site Design Standards 13.6.5.C.1 ●   

11 Alternative Transportation 13.6.5.C.2 ●   

12 Promoting Pedestrian Activity 13.6.5.C.3 ●   

13 Redevelopment Capacity 13.6.5.C.4 ●   

14 Coverage Reduction and Stormwater Management 13.6.5.C.5 ●   

15 Threshold Gain 13.6.5.C.6 ●   

Additional Review Standards for the High-Density Tourist District 

16 Building and Site Design 13.6.5.D.1   ● 

17 Alternative Transportation 13.6.5.D.2   ● 

18 Threshold Gains 13.6.5.D.3   ● 

K. Area Plan Amendments 

1 Conformity Review for Amendments to an Area Plan 13.6.6 ●   

2 
Conformity Review for Amendments Made by TRPA to 
the Regional Plan that Affect an Area Plan – Notice 

13.6.7.A   ● 

3 
Conformity Review for Amendments Made by TRPA to 
the Regional Plan that Affect an Area Plan – Timing 

13.6.7.B   ● 

L. Administration 

1 Effect of Finding of Conformance of Area Plan 13.6.8   ● 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.169



TRPA Code 
Section 

Conformity 
YES NO N/A 

2 
Procedures for Adoption of Memorandum of 
Understanding 

13.7 ●

3 
Monitoring, Certification, and Enforcement of an Area 
Plan 

13.8 ●

4 Appeal Procedure 13.9 ●

Conformity Review Notes 

A. CONTENTS OF AREA PLANS

1. General ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.5.1

Requirement An Area Plan shall consist of applicable policies, maps, ordinances, and any other 
related materials identified by the lead agency, sufficient to demonstrate that these 
measures, together with TRPA ordinances that remain in effect, are consistent with 
and conform to TRPA’s Goals and Policies and all other elements of the Regional 
Plan. In addition to this Section 13.5, additional specific requirements for the 
content of Area Plans are in subsection 13.6.5.A. The Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) that is associated with an approved Area Plan is a separate, 
but related, approval and is not part of the Area Plan. 

Notes The Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan (TBAP) consists of applicable policies, maps, 
ordinances, and related materials that conform to the Regional Plan. These policies, maps, 
and ordinances were developed with the specific intent of conforming with the Regional Plan. 
Development of the TBAP included close collaboration between Placer County and TRPA 
staff, members of the public, and other stakeholders over approximately five years. TRPA 
determined that TBAP was in conformance with the Regional Plan and adopted the existing 
TBAP in December 2016.  
The proposed amendments focus on process, policy, and code improvements to support 
appropriate lodging, mixed use, and workforce housing within the TBAP plan area.  

2. Relationship to Other Sections of the Code ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.5.2

Requirement This section is intended to authorize development and design standards in Area 
Plans that are different than otherwise required under this Code. In the event of a 
conflict between the requirements in this section and requirements in other parts 
of the Code, the requirements in this section shall apply for the purposes of 
developing Area Plans. Except as otherwise specified, Code provisions that apply to 
Plan Area Statements (Chapter 11), Community Plans (Chapter 12), and Specific and 
Master Plans (Chapter 14) may also be utilized in a Conforming Area Plan. If an Area 
Plan proposes to modify any provision that previously applied to Plan Area 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.170



Statements, Community Plans, or Specific and Master Plans, the proposed revision 
shall be analyzed in accordance with Code Chapters 3 and 4. 

Notes The existing TBAP modified provisions that previously applied to Plan Area Statements and 
Community Plans consistent with Code Section 13.5.2. The proposed amendments include 
targeted revisions to include substitute development and design standards including 
standards related to setbacks, building length, lot size. These changes have been evaluated 
in an Initial Environmental Checklist consistent with the Tahoe Regional Planning Compact, 
Chapter 3 of the Code of Ordinances, and the rules of procedure.   

 

B. DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY DESIGN STANDARDS 

Area plans shall have development standards that are consistent with those in Table 13.5.3-1 

MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT 

1. Outside of Centers ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A 

Citation 13.5.3 

Requirement Building height standards shall be consistent with Code Section 37.4. 

Notes  Building heights are defined in Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan and comply with the 
TRPA Code of Ordinances. The proposed amendment clarifies that building heights are 
measured in feet rather than stories, but makes no change to maximum building heights.  

2. Within Town Centers ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A 

Citation 13.5.3 

Requirement Building height is limited to a maximum of 4 stories and 56 feet. 

Notes Building heights are defined in Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan and comply with the 
TRPA Code of Ordinances. The proposed amendment limits building height in Town 
Centers to 56 feet.  

3. Within the Regional Center ☐ YES ☐ NO ☒ N/A 

Citation 13.5.3 

Requirement Building height is limited to a maximum of 6 stories and 95 feet. 

Notes The TBAP does not include the Regional Center. 

4. Within the High-Density Tourist District ☐ YES ☐ NO ☒ N/A 

Citation 13.5.3 

Requirement Building height is limited to a maximum of 197 feet. 

Notes  The TBAP does not include the High-Density Tourist District 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.171



DENSITY 

5. Single-Family Dwellings ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.5.3 

Requirement Single-family dwelling density shall be consistent with Code Section 31.3. 

Notes The TBAP proposed density standards for single-family dwellings is consistent with Section 
31.3 (see TBAP Implementing Regulations Section 3.04). The proposed amendments do not 
change existing single-family dwelling density. 

6. Multiple-Family Dwellings outside of Centers ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.5.3 

Requirement Multiple-family dwelling density outside of Centers shall be consistent with Code 
Section 31.3. 

Notes The TBAP proposed density standards for multiple-family dwellings outside of Town 
Centers is consistent with Section 31.3 (see TBAP Implementing Regulations Section 3.04). 
The proposed amendments do not change existing multiple-family dwelling density.  

7. Multiple-Family Dwellings within Centers ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.5.3 

Requirement Multiple-family dwelling density within Centers shall be a maximum of 25 units 
per acre. 

Notes The TBAP proposed density standards for multiple-family dwellings outside of Town 
Centers is consistent with Section 31.3 (see TBAP Implementing Regulation Section 3.04). 
The proposed amendments do not change existing multiple-family dwelling density.  

8. Tourist Accommodations ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.5.3 

Requirement Tourist accommodations (other than bed and breakfast) shall have a maximum 
density of 40 units per acre. 

Notes The TBAP proposed density standards for multiple-family dwellings outside of Town 
Centers is consistent with Section 31.3 (see TBAP Implementing Regulation Section 3.04). 
The proposed amendments do not change tourist accommodation density. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.172



LAND COVERAGE 

9. Land Coverage ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A 

Citation 13.5.3 

Requirement Land coverage standards shall be consistent with Section 30.4 of the TRPA Code. 

Notes The TBAP land coverage standards are consistent with Section 30.4. Maximum transferred 
coverage limits within Town Centers are consistent with Code section 30.4.2.B (see TBAP 
Implementing Regulations Section 3.03). The proposed amendments would not change 
coverage standards. 

10. Alternative Comprehensive Coverage Management System ☐ YES ☐ NO ☒ N/A 

See Section C.1 of this document. 

SITE DESIGN 

11. Site Design Standards ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A 

Citation 13.5.3 

Requirement Area plans shall conform to Section 36.5 of the TRPA Code.   

Notes The proposed amendments to the TBAP conforms to Section 36.5 of the TRPA Code of 
Ordinances. It includes detailed design standards and guidelines. These standards address 
retention of natural features; building placement that is compatible with adjacent 
properties and considers sun, climate, noise, safety, and privacy; and site planning that 
includes a drainage, infiltration, and grading plan that meets water quality standards (see 
PCTBAP Implementing Regulations Section 3.09). The PCTBAP also includes detailed 
parking and access design standards that are logical and consistent with the transportation 
element of the Regional Plan (See PCTBAP Implementing Regulations Section 3.07). 
 
The amendments would modify Section 3.06 “Streetscape and Roadway Design Standards” 
to clarify requirements of street frontage improvements. They would also modify Section 
3.09, “Design Standards and Guidelines,” to allow mixed use developments to intercept 
groundwater when grading for below grade parking if all impacts are mitigated.  The 
amendments would also add to Section 1.04  “Administration for Design Review” to 
require design review for tourist accommodation uses and exclude multi-family residential 
developments with 15 units or fewer that are not in designated scenic areas. These 
proposed amendments were evaluated in an IEC and would remain consistent with Code 
Section 36.5. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.173



COMPLETE STREETS 

12. Complete Streets ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A 

Citation 13.5.3 

Requirement Within Centers, plan for sidewalks, trails, and other pedestrian amenities 
providing safe and convenient non-motorized circulation within Centers, as 
applicable, and incorporation of the Regional Bike and Pedestrian Plan.   

Notes The TBAP conforms with the complete streets provisions of Section 36.5, and provides 
additional requirements to implement complete street concepts. The TBAP includes 
streetscape design standards (See TBAP Implementing Regulations Section 3.06), 
development standards that require complete street improvements with new 
development and substantial alteration of existing properties (see TBAP Implementing 
Regulations Sections 2.04.A.4.a; 2.04.B.4.a; 2.04.C.4.a; and 2.04.D.4.a), as well as design 
guidelines that promote street frontage designs that are compatible with complete streets 
concepts (see PCTBAP Implementing Regulations Section 2.04.A.5.a and 2.04.B.5.a). The 
TBAP amendments include additional polices to support funding sources for a frontage 
improvement implementation plan to achieve area plan infrastructure such as sidewalks, 
curbs, and gutters, as well as implementing parking management plans (See Implementing 
Regulations 3.06).  

 

C. ALTERNATIVE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES AUTHORIZED IN AREA PLANS 

1. Alternative Comprehensive Coverage Management System ☐ YES ☐ NO ☒ N/A 

Citation 13.5.3.B.1 

Requirement An Area Plan may propose a comprehensive coverage management system as an 
alternative to the parcel-level coverage requirements outlined in Sections 30.4.1 
and 30.4.2, provided that the alternative system shall: 1) reduce the total coverage 
and not increase the cumulative base allowable coverage in the area covered by 
the comprehensive coverage management system; 2) reduce the total amount of 
coverage and not increase the cumulative base allowable coverage in Land 
Capability Districts 1 and 2; and 3) not increase the amount of coverage otherwise 
allowed within 300 feet of high water of Lake Tahoe (excluding those areas 
landward of Highways 28 and 89 in Kings Beach and Tahoe City Town Centers 
within that zone). For purposes of this provision, “total” coverage is the greater of 
existing or allowed coverage. 

Notes The TBAP does not propose an alternative comprehensive coverage management system. 
Future development of an alternative development comprehensive coverage management 
system would require an amendment to the TBAP and approval by TRPA. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.174



2. Alternative Parking Strategies ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.5.3.B.2 

Requirement An Area Plan is encouraged to include shared or area-wide parking strategies to 
reduce land coverage and make more efficient use of land for parking and 
pedestrian uses. Shared parking strategies may consider and include the following: 

• Reduction or relaxation of minimum parking standards;

• Creation of maximum parking standards;

• Shared parking;

• In-lieu payment to meet parking requirements;

• On-street parking;

• Parking along major regional travel routes;

• Creation of bicycle parking standards;

• Free or discounted transit;

• Deeply discounted transit passes for community residents; and

• Paid parking management

Notes The TBAP amendments include parking strategies intended to reduce land coverage, make 
more efficient use of land, and encourage non-auto transportation modes (See TBAP 
Implementing Regulations 3.06 and 3.09.B.1.e).  These changes support exemptions to 
parking and spur redevelopment in the Town Centers and support strategies identified in the 
Resort Triangle Transportation Plan, which was approved by the TRPA in October 2020 and 
outlines strategies to increase mobility and reduce VMT. Other specific parking strategies 
include, allowing groundwater interception in mixed use projects for underground parking 
options which follows TRPA Section 33.3.6.A.2 (see TBAP Implementing Regulations Section 
3.07.A.3 and Table 3.07.A-1). 

3. Areawide Water Quality Treatments and Funding
Mechanisms

☐ YES ☐ NO ☒ N/A

Citation 13.5.3.B.3 

Requirement An Area Plan may include water quality treatments and funding mechanisms in 
lieu of certain site-specific BMPs, subject to the following requirements: 

• Area-wide BMPs shall be shown to achieve equal or greater effectiveness and
efficiency at achieving water quality benefits to certain site-specific BMPs and
must infiltrate the 20-year, one-hour storm.;

• Plans should be developed in coordination with TRPA and applicable state
agencies, consistent with applicable TMDL requirements;

• Area-wide BMP project areas shall be identified in Area Plans and shall address
both installation and ongoing maintenance;

• Strong consideration shall be given to areas connected to surface waters;

• Area-wide BMP plans shall consider area-wide and parcel level BMP
requirements as an integrated system;

• Consideration shall be given to properties that have already installed and
maintained parcel-level BMPs, and financing components or area-wide BMP
plans shall reflect prior BMP installation in terms of the charges levied against

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.175



projects that already complied with BMP requirements with systems that are 
in place and operational in accordance with applicable BMP standards; and 

• Area-wide BMP Plans shall require that BMPs be installed concurrent with
development activities. Prior to construction of area-wide treatment facilities,
development projects shall either install parcel-level BMPs or construct area-
wide improvements.

Notes The existing TBAP does not include an area-wide water quality treatment programs in-lieu of 
site-specific BMPs. The proposed amendments do not propose any changes to water quality 
treatment programs in-lieu of site-specific BMPs. The proposed amendments do not change 
provisions regarding BMPs.  

4. Alternative Transfer Ratios for Development Rights ☐ YES ☐ NO ☒ N/A

Citation 13.5.3.B.4 

Requirement Within a Stream Restoration Plan Area as depicted in Map 1 in the Regional Plan, 
an Area Plan may propose to establish alternative transfer ratios for development 
rights based on unique conditions in each jurisdiction, as long as the alternative 
transfer ratios are determined to generate equal or greater environment gain 
compared to the TRPA transfer ratios set forth in Chapter 51: Transfer of 
Development. 

Notes The TBAP does not propose alternative transfer ratios for development rights within a 
Stream Restoration Plan Area. The proposed amendment would not change alternative 
transfer ratios for development rights.   

D. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES ENCOURAGED IN AREA PLANS

1. Urban Bear Strategy ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.5.3.C.1 

Requirement In Area Plans, lead agencies are encouraged to develop and enforce urban bear 
strategies to address the use of bear-resistant solid waste facilities and related 
matters. 

Notes The TBAP includes policies to manage bear populations. The proposed amendments do not 
change these provisions. 

2. Urban Forestry ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.5.3.C.2 

Requirement In Area Plans, lead agencies are encouraged to develop and enforce urban forestry 
strategies that seek to reestablish natural forest conditions in a manner that does 
not increase the risk of catastrophic wildfire. 

Notes The TBAP includes vegetative policies to support forest health and maintain healthy 
vegetation in urban areas. A proposed amendment encourages implementation of new or 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.176



expanded hardening, green waste, and defensible space incentive and/or rebate programs 
for residential and commercial land uses to expand these existing efforts. The efforts would 
aim to promote healthy urban forest conditions in a manner that does not increase the risk 
of catastrophic wildfire as per TRPA Code 13.5.3.C.2. 

E. DEVELOPMENT ON RESORT RECREATION PARCELS

1. Development on Resort Recreation Parcels ☐ YES ☐ NO ☒ N/A

Citation 13.5.3.D 

Requirement In addition to recreation uses, an Area Plan may allow the development and 
subdivision of tourist, commercial, and residential uses on the Resort Recreation 
District parcels depicted on Map 1 of the Regional Plan and subject to the following 
conditions: 

• The parcels must become part of an approved Area Plan;

• Subdivisions shall be limited to “air space condominium” divisions with no lot
and block subdivisions allowed;

• Development shall be transferred from outside the area designated as Resort
Recreation; and

• Transfers shall result in the retirement of existing development.

Notes There are no Resort Recreation parcels within the TBAP plan area. 

F. GREENHOUSE GAS REDUCTION

1. Greenhouse Gas Reduction Strategy ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.5.3.E 

Requirement To be found in conformance with the Regional Plan, Area Plans shall include a 
strategy to reduce emissions of Greenhouse Gases from the operation or 
construction of buildings. The strategy shall include elements in addition to those 
included to satisfy other state requirements or requirements of this code. 
Additional elements included in the strategy may include but are not limited to 
the following: 

• A local green building incentive program to reduce the energy consumption of
new or remodeled buildings;

• A low interest loan or rebate program for alternative energy projects or energy
efficiency retrofits;

• Modifications to the applicable building code or design standards to reduce
energy consumption; or

• Capital improvements to reduce energy consumption or incorporate
alternative energy production into public facilities.

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.177



Notes The TBAP amendments do not propose any changes to Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Reduction 
Strategy programs or air quality policies, which is currently in compliance with TRPA Code 
(See TBAP Section 2.5). Proposed amendments for complete streets, modified parking 
requirements, and emphasis on redevelopment projects in core areas would limit vehicle 
trips necessary in Town Centers and may reduce GHG emissions from vehicle trips in the 
plan area. Section 3.07, Parking and Access, has been revised to permanently adopt the 
parking pilot program for North Lake Tahoe Town Centers and provide more flexibility to 
encourage alternative transportation modes. 

 

G. COMMUNITY DESIGN STANDARDS 

To be found in conformance with the Regional Plan, Area Plans shall require that all projects comply 
with the design standards in this subsection. Area Plans may also include additional or substitute 
requirements not listed below that promote threshold attainment. 

1. Development in All Areas ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A 

Citation 13.5.3.F.1.a 

Requirement All new development shall consider, at minimum, the following site design 
standards: 

• Existing natural features retained and incorporated into the site design; 

• Building placement and design that are compatible with adjacent properties 
and designed in consideration of solar exposure, climate, noise, safety, fire 
protection, and privacy; 

• Site planning that includes a drainage, infiltration, and grading plan meeting 
water quality standards, and 

• Access, parking, and circulation that are logical, safe, and meet the 
requirements of the transportation element.   

Notes The TBAP amendments proposes minor changes in site design standards set by TRPA. Tourist 
accommodations would now require a design review to be reviewed for design standards 
and multi-Family dwelling units of less than 15 units would be exempt from design review. 
Amendments are proposed to reduce setbacks in mixed-use subdistricts to accommodate 
duplex style houses and limit distance of buildings from roadways if the changes would allow 
the area to remain in compliance with TRPA scenic standards (See Implementing Regulations 
3.09).  
 
Proposed amendment to Section 3.09.B.E would allow groundwater interception for mixed-
use projects if the project mitigates all groundwater impacts. Section 3.07, Parking and 
Access, of the Implementing Regulations is proposed to be modified to permanently adopt 
the parking pilot program for North Lake Tahoe Town Centers. The changes support 
exemptions to parking and spur redevelopment in Town Centers and is a strategy to reduce 
VMT in the region. The proposed amendments are in compliance with Code Section 
13.5.3.F.1.a.   

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.178



2. Development in Regional Center or Town Centers ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A 

Citation 13.5.3.F.1.b 

Requirement In addition to the standards above, development in Town Centers or the Regional 
Center shall address the following design standards: 

• Existing or planned pedestrian and bicycle facilities shall connect properties 
within Centers to transit stops and the Regional Bicycle and Pedestrian 
network. 

• Area Plans shall encourage the protection of views of Lake Tahoe. 

• Building height and density should be varied with some buildings smaller and 
less dense than others. 

• Site and building designs within Centers shall promote pedestrian activity and 
provide enhanced design features along public roadways. Enhanced design 
features to be considered include increased setbacks, stepped heights, 
increased building articulation, and/or higher quality building materials along 
public roadways.   

• Area Plans shall include strategies for protecting undisturbed sensitive lands 
and, where feasible, establish park or open space corridors connecting 
undisturbed sensitive areas within Centers to undisturbed areas outside of 
Centers. 

Notes The TBAP proposed amendments would not alter plans for a comprehensive network of 
existing and planned pedestrian and bicycle facilities that connect properties within Centers 
to other multi-modal transportation options (See TBAP Figures 5-3 through 5-5). Proposed 
amendments clarify complete street and frontage requirements that incorporate alternative 
transportation options (See Implementing Regulations 3.06).  
 
The TBAP amendments would continue to include project requirements to comply with the 
TRPA threshold scenic requirements on Highways and for views of Lake Tahoe (See 
Implementing Regulations 1.04).  
 
Detailed design standards are included in the TBAP, which addresses pedestrian activity and 
enhanced design features along public roadways in Town Centers. The standards address 
building articulation, street frontage landscaping, stepped heights, and other building form 
requirements. The exact standards vary by Town Center.  
 
The amendments do not change the density or coverage allowances in the plan area.  
The proposed amendments do not change special planning area requirements for open 
space, restoring disturbed SEZs, or creating open space corridors connecting undisturbed 
sensitive areas within Town Centers to undisturbed areas outside of Town Centers (See TBAP 
Implementing Regulations Sections 2.09.B.1, 3, and 5). 

3. Building Heights ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A 

Citation 13.5.3.F.2 

Requirement • Area Plans may allow building heights up to the maximum limits in Table 
13.5.3-1 of the Code of Ordinances 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.179



• Building height limits shall be established to ensure that buildings do not
project above the forest canopy, ridge lines, or otherwise detract from the
viewshed.

• Area Plans that allow buildings over two stories in height shall, where feasible,
include provisions for transitional height limits or other buffer areas adjacent
to areas not allowing buildings over two stories in height.

Notes The TBAP amendments would not change building height allowances from the approved 
TBAP, which are within the limits allowed in Table 13.5.3-1 of the Code. Within portions of 
Town Centers designated as core areas and overlay districts, building heights would comply 
with TRPA Code Ordinance Chapter 37 Section 37.7.16 (see TBAP Implementing Regulations 
Section 2.09.A & B). Existing TRPA height standards in Chapter 37 of the TRPA Code would 
continue to remain in effect outside of Town Centers (see TBAP Implementing Regulations 
Section 3.10).  

In addition, TBAP Implementing Regulations sections 2.09.A.1,2, and 3, and section 3.09.A 
require that buildings in Town Centers shall meet the findings listed in Section 37.7.16 of the 
TRPA Code of Ordinances; and the project must continue to comply with the Design 
Standards and Guidelines and Noise Standards of the Tahoe Basin Area Plan and TRPA scenic 
threshold standards. 

4. Building Design ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.5.3.F.3 

Requirement Standards shall be adopted to ensure attractive and compatible development. The 
following shall be considered: 

• Buffer requirements should be established for noise, snow removal, aesthetic,
and environmental purposes.

• The scale of structures should be compatible with existing and planned land
uses in the area.

• Viewsheds should be considered in all new construction. Emphasis should be
placed on lake views from major transportation corridors.

• Area Plans shall include design standards for building design and form. Within
Centers, building design and form standards shall promote pedestrian activity.

Notes The TBAP includes detailed standards for building design and form that have been 
developed to ensure attractive and compatible development. These standards address 
compatibility with adjacent properties, including scale and design for noise, snow removal, 
aesthetic, and environmental purposes (see TBAP Implementing Regulations Section 3.09). 
Section 3.09.A.2 requires the consideration of viewsheds in the design of buildings, and the 
TBAP. The proposed amendments would reduce setback requirements in some locations in 
order to promote more compact Town Center redevelopment. These amendments were 
evaluated in an IEC and are consistent with Code Section 13.5.3.F.3. 

The proposed amendments to the TBAP would also defer to the Lake Tahoe Shoreline Plan 
(TRPA Code Chapters 80 through 85) for design standards for shoreline structures.   

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.180



5. Landscaping ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.5.3.F.4 

Requirement The following should be considered with respect to this design component of a 
project: 

• Native vegetation should be utilized whenever possible, consistent with Fire
Defensible Space Requirements.

• Vegetation should be used to screen parking, alleviate long strips of parking
space, and accommodate stormwater runoff where feasible.

• Vegetation should be used to give privacy, reduce glare and heat, deflect wind,
muffle noise, prevent erosion, and soften the line of architecture where
feasible.

Notes The existing TBAP includes landscaping standards and guidelines that require the use of 
vegetation on the TRPA Recommended Native and Adapted Plant List, except for accent 
plantings. The standards require consistency with defensible space requirements, and 
encourages the use of vegetation to create and separate spaces, give privacy, screen heat 
and glare, deflect wind, muffle noise, articulate circulation, inhibit erosion, purify air, and 
soften the lines of architecture and paving (See PCTBAP Implementing Regulations Section 
3.09.C). Additional design standards and guidelines require parking lot landscaping to screen 
parking, break up long strips of parking, and accommodate stormwater (See PCTBAP 
Implementing Regulations Section 3.07.C). 

The TBAP amendments include policies supporting the expansion of building hardening, 
green waste management, and defensible space incentive and rebate programs (See TBAP 
Veg-P-7 and Implementing Regulations Section 3.09.C).  

6. Lighting ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.5.3.F.5 

Requirement Lighting increases the operational efficiency of a site. In determining the lighting 
for a project, the following should be required: 

• Exterior lighting should be minimized to protect dark sky views, yet adequate
to provide for public safety, and should be consistent with the architectural
design.

• Exterior lighting should utilize cutoff shields that extend below the lighting
element to minimize light pollution and stray light.

• Overall levels should be compatible with the neighborhood light level.
Emphasis should be placed on a few, well-placed, low-intensity lights.

• Lights should not blink, flash, or change intensity except for temporary public
safety signs.

Notes The TBAP Section 3.09.D “Lighting” includes detailed lighting standards that are more 
stringent than required by TRPA Code section 13.5.3.D.5. The TBAP proposed amendments 
do not change the standards related to lighting. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.181



7. Signing – Alternative Standards ☐ YES ☐ NO ☒ N/A 

Citation 13.5.3.F.6 

Requirement Area Plans may include alternative sign standards. For Area Plans to be found in 
conformance with the Regional Plan, the Area Plan shall demonstrate that the sign 
standards will minimize and mitigate significant scenic impacts and move toward 
attainment or achieve the adopted scenic thresholds for the Lake Tahoe region. 

Notes The proposed amendments would remove Section 3.11, “Signs” from the implementing 
regulations. The amended TBAP would not include subsititute sign standards and would 
instead defer signage standards to the TRPA Code Chapter 38 “Signs” to streamline future 
regional signage updates. 

8. Signing – General Policies ☐ YES ☐ NO ☒ N/A 

Citation 13.5.3.F.6 

Requirement In the absence of a Conforming Area Plan that addresses sign standards, the 
following policies apply, along with implementing ordinances: 

• Off-premise signs should generally be prohibited; way-finding and directional 
signage may be considered where scenic impacts are minimized and 
mitigated. 

• Signs should be incorporated into building design; 

• When possible, signs should be consolidated into clusters to avoid clutter. 

• Signage should be attached to buildings when possible; and  

• Standards for number, size, height, lighting, square footage, and similar 
characteristics for on-premise signs shall be formulated and shall be consistent 
with the land uses permitted in each district. 

Notes The proposed amendments would remove substitute sign standards and would defer to the 
TRPA Code which is consistent with TRPA Code Section 13.5.3.F.6. 

 

H. MODIFICATION TO TOWN CENTER BOUNDARIES 

1. Modification to Town Center Boundaries ☐ YES ☐ NO ☒ N/A 

Citation 13.5.3.G 

Requirement When Area Plans propose modifications to the boundaries of a Center, the 
modification shall comply with the following: 

• Boundaries of Centers shall be drawn to include only properties that are 
developed, unless undeveloped parcels proposed for inclusion have either at 
least three sides of their boundary adjacent to developed parcels (for four-
sided parcels), or 75 percent of their boundary adjacent to developed parcels 
(for non-four-sided parcels). For purposes of this requirement, a parcel shall 
be considered developed if it includes any of the following: 30 percent or more 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.182



of allowed coverage already existing on site or an approved but unbuilt project 
that proposes to meet this coverage standard.    

• Properties included in a Center shall be less than ¼ mile from existing
Commercial and Public Service uses.

• Properties included in a Center shall encourage and facilitate     the use of
existing or planned transit stops and transit systems.

Notes The proposed amendments would not modify a Town Center boundary. 

I. CONFORMITY REVIEW PROCEDURES FOR AREA PLANS

1. Initiation of Area Planning Process by Lead Agency ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.6.1 

Requirement The development of an Area Plan shall be initiated by a designated lead agency. 
The lead agency may be TRPA or a local, state, federal, or tribal government. There 
may be only one lead agency for each Area Plan.   

Notes Placer County is the lead agency for development of the TBAP and is the lead agency seeking 
the amendments that are the subject of this application. 

2. Initial Approval of Area Plan by Lead Agency ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.6.2 

Requirement If the lead agency is not TRPA, then the Area Plan shall be approved by the lead 
agency prior to TRPA’s review of the Area Plan for conformance with the Regional 
Plan under this section. In reviewing and approving an Area Plan, the lead agency 
shall follow its own review procedures for plan amendments. At a minimum, Area 
Plans shall be prepared in coordination with local residents, stakeholders, public 
agencies with jurisdictional authority within the proposed Area Plan boundaries, 
and TRPA staff. 

If the lead agency is TRPA, the Area Plan shall require conformity approval under 
this section by TRPA only. No approval by any other government, such as a local 
government, shall be required. 

Notes The TBAP amendments were prepared by Placer County staff to clean up Area Plan policies 
to streamline economic development opportunities and increase affordable housing in the 
plan area.  

3. Review by Advisory Planning Commission ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.6.3 

Requirement The TRPA Advisory Planning Commission shall review the proposed Area Plan and 
make recommendations to the TRPA Governing Board. The commission shall 
obtain and consider the recommendations and comments of the local 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.183



government(s) and other responsible public agencies, as applicable. jurisdictional 
authority within the proposed Area Plan boundaries, and TRPA staff. 

Notes The Advisory Planning Commission (APC) will review the amendments on December 8, 2023. 

4. Approval of Area Plan by TRPA ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.6.4 

Requirement For Area Plans initiated and approved by a lead agency other than TRPA, the Area 
Plan shall be submitted to and reviewed by the TRPA Governing Board at a public 
hearing. Public comment shall be limited to issues raised by the public before the 
Advisory Planning Commission and issues raised by the Governing Board. The 
TRPA Governing Board shall make a finding that the Area Plan, including all zoning 
and development Codes that are part of the Area Plan, is consistent with and 
furthers the goals and policies of the Regional Plan. This finding shall be referred 
to as a finding of conformance and shall be subject to the same voting 
requirements as approval of a Regional Plan amendment. 

Notes The TRPA Governing Board is scheduled to review the TBAP and act regarding a finding of 
conformance on January 27, 2024. Following review by the Regional Plan Implementation 
Committee and the Advisory Planning Commission. The Governing Board will need to find 
the amendment to the TBAP in conformance with the Regional Plan for it to take effect.  

J. FINDINGS OF CONFORMANCE WITH THE REGIONAL PLAN

In making the general finding of conformance, the TRPA Governing Board shall make the general 
findings applicable to all amendments to the Regional Plan and Code set forth in Sections 4.5 and 4.6, 
and also the following specific review standards: 

GENERAL REVIEW STANDARDS FOR ALL AREA PLANS 

1. Zoning Designations ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.6.5.A.1 

Requirement The submitted Area Plan shall identify zoning designations, allowed land 
uses, and development standards throughout the plan area.  

Notes The TBAP Implementing Regulations identify zoning designations (Section 2.01), allowed 
land uses (Section 2.02 through 2.08), and development standards throughout the entire 
Plan area (Chapters 2 and 3). The proposed amendments make targeted changes to 
support affordable housing developments and redevelopment in Town Centers but do not 
change zoning designations in the plan area.  

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.184



2. Regional Plan Policies ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.6.5.A.2 

Requirement The submitted Area Plan shall be consistent with all applicable Regional 
Plan policies, including, but not limited to, the regional growth 
management system, development allocations, and coverage 
requirements.   

Notes The TBAP amendments and its components align with the Regional Plan goals and policies 
and was approved by TRPA in January 2017. The amendments do not propose additional 
growth, allocations, or coverage beyond that anticipated in the Regional Plan. The 
amendments do propose to develop an allocation tracking management system to 
streamline growth and development management. This proposed system, once 
developed, would require TRPA approval.  

3. Regional Plan Land Use Map ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.6.5.A.3 

Requirement The submitted Area Plan shall either be consistent with the Regional Land 
Use Map or recommend and adopt amendments to the Regional Land Use 
Map as part of an integrated plan to comply with Regional Plan policies 
and provide threshold gain.   

Notes The TBAP amendments would not change the Regional Land Use Map or adopt 
amendments to the Regional Land Use Map as a part of an integrated plan to comply with 
Regional Plan policies and attain and maintain threshold standards.  

4. Environmental Improvement Projects ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.6.5.A.4 

Requirement The submitted Area Plan shall recognize and support planned, new, or 
enhanced Environmental Improvement Projects. Area Plans may also 
recommend enhancements to planned, new, or enhanced Environmental 
Improvement Projects as part of an integrated plan to comply with 
Regional Plan Policies and provide threshold gain. 

Notes The TBAP recognizes and supports new, planned, and enhanced Environmental 
Improvement Program (EIP) projects and the amendments do not propose to change EIP 
projects. 

5. Redevelopment ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.6.5.A. 

Requirement The submitted Area Plan shall promote environmentally beneficial 
redevelopment and revitalization within town centers, regional centers 
and the High Density Tourist District. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.185



Notes The TBAP amendments promote environmentally beneficial redevelopment and 
revitalization within the Tahoe City and Kings Beach Town Centers and by allowing for 
more compact redevelopment, while continuing to comply with TRPA’s coverage, height, 
and density limits. Regional centers and High Density Tourist Districts do not exist in the 
plan area.  
New policies added to TBAP support and encourage adaptive reuse of vacant or 
underutilized retail and office space, support redevelopment of aging lodging products and 
encourage revitalization and creation of new high-quality lodging, allow multipurpose and 
flexible gathering spaces in private and public parking areas where events could be held 
during off-peak hours, expedite building permit processes, and support the development 
of new business innovation space and flexible light industrial spaces to diversify the local 
economy.  

6. Established Residential Areas ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A 

Citation 13.6.5.A.6 

Requirement The submitted Area Plan shall preserve the character of established 
residential areas outside of town centers, regional centers and the High 
Density Tourist District, while seeking opportunities for environmental 
improvements within residential areas. 

Notes The TBAP amendments would not alter the zoning of established residential areas. The 
amendments would modify setbacks, articulation, massing requirements, and lot widths 
and minimum lot sizes in Residential Subdistricts to accommodate smaller dwelling units. 
The amendments would not change density or potential growth rates of the plan area (See 
TBAP Implementing Regulations Sections 2.09.A & B and 3.04). 

7. Stream Environment Zones ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A 

Citation 13.6.5.A.7 

Requirement The submitted Area Plan shall protect and direct development away from 
Stream Environment Zones and other sensitive areas, while seeking 
opportunities for environmental improvements within sensitive areas. 
Development may be allowed in disturbed Stream Environment zones 
within town centers, regional centers and the High-Density Tourist District 
only if allowed development reduces coverage and enhances natural 
systems within the Stream Environment Zone. 

Notes No changes related to the above requirement for Stream Environment Zones (SEZs) are 
proposed with these amendments.   

8. Alternative Transportation Facilities and Implementation ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A 

Citation 13.6.5.A.8 

Requirement The submitted Area Plan shall identify facilities and implementation 
measures to enhance pedestrian, bicycling and transit opportunities along 
with other opportunities to reduce automobile dependency. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.186



Notes The proposed amendments would clarify requirements for complete streets, eliminate 
parking minimums for additions up to 1,000 square feet in Town Centers, and support 
frontage improvement implementation plans to achieve area plan infrastructure such as 
sidewalks, curbs, and gutters, as well as implementing parking management plans (See 
Implementing Regulations 2.09, 3.06, and 3.07.A.4). These changes support strategies 
identified in the Resort Triangle Transportation Plan (RTTP), which was approved by the 
TRPA Governing Board in October 2020 and outlines strategies to increase mobility and 
reduce VMT in the Tahoe region.  

LOAD REDUCTION PLANS 

9. Load Reduction Plans ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.6.5.B 

Requirement TRPA shall utilize the load reduction plans for all registered catchments or 
TRPA default standards when there are no registered catchments, in the 
conformance review of Area Plans. 

Notes The TBAP incorporates load reduction plans for registered catchments. The proposed 
amendments include no changes related to the requirement for load reduction plans.  

ADDITIONAL REVIEW STANDARDS FOR TOWN CENTERS AND THE REGIONAL CENTER 

10. Building and Site Design Standards ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.6.5.C.1 

Requirement The submitted Area Plan shall include building and site design standards 
that reflect the unique character of each area, respond to local design 
issues and consider ridgeline and viewshed protection. 

Notes As described above, the TBAP includes detailed design standards that reflect the unique 
character of each area, respond to local design considerations, and promote ridgeline and 
viewshed protection. The TBAP Implementing Regulations include a mix of unique 
standards that reflect the character of individual zoning subdistricts (see Chapter 2), as 
well as a series of area-wide standards and guidelines (see Chapter 3). The proposed 
amendments include targeted modifications to setbacks, lot size, and other design 
standards to promote redevelopment and affordable housing. The revised standards 
would continue to reflect the unique character of each community within the plan area. 
The amendments would include no changes to requirements for ridgeline and viewshed 
protection.  

11. Alternative Transportation ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.6.5.C.2 

Requirement The submitted Area Plan shall promote walking, bicycling, transit use and 
shared parking in town centers and regional centers, which at a minimum 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.187



shall include continuous sidewalks or other pedestrian paths and bicycle 
facilities along both sides of all highways within town centers and regional 
centers, and to other major activity centers. 

Notes The TBAP amendments would include a policy that encourages the creation of a funding 
source for a comprehensive frontage improvement implementation plan, to include the 
construction of sidewalks (See TBAP LU-P-21). The proposed amendments are also 
designed to provide consistency in the plan area in identifying the street frontage 
improvement requirements (See Implementing Regulations Section 3.06 and Table 3.06A).  
The targeted amendments to promote redevelopment in Town Centers would concentrate 
services in Town Centers and reduce VMT in the plan area.  

12. Promoting Pedestrian Activity ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A 

Citation 13.6.5.C.3 

Requirement The submitted Area Plan shall use standards within town centers and 
regional centers addressing the form of development and requiring that 
projects promote pedestrian activity and transit use. 

Notes Detailed design standards are included in the TBAP, which address pedestrian activity and 
enhanced design features and transit use in Centers. The standards address building 
articulation, street frontage landscaping, stepped heights, and other building form 
requirements. The exact standards vary by Center. See for example, the Greater Tahoe 
City Mixed Use subdistrict standards in Implementing Regulations Section 2.04.A.4. The 
proposed TBAP amendments include a policy that encourages the creation of a funding 
source for a comprehensive frontage improvement implementation plan, to include the 
construction of sidewalks (See TBAP LU-P-21). The amendments are also designed to 
provide consistency in the plan area in identifying the street frontage improvement 
requirements (See Implementing Regulations Section 3.06 and Table 3.06A).  

13. Redevelopment Capacity ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A 

Citation 13.6.5.C.4 

Requirement The submitted Area Plan shall ensure adequate capacity for 
redevelopment and transfers of development rights into town centers and 
regional centers. 

Notes The existing TBAP incudes height, density, and coverage limits up to the maximum limits 
allowed by Chapter 13 of the Code of Ordinances. These standards would provide 
adequate capacity for redevelopment of the existing Town Centers and transfers of 
development from sensitive and/or outlying areas. The TBAP amendments do not propose 
changes to height, density, and coverage limits. New policies support and encourage 
adaptive reuse of vacant or underutilized retail and office space, support redevelopment 
of aging lodging products and encourage revitalization and creation of new high-quality 
lodging, allow multipurpose and flexible gathering spaces in private and public parking 
areas where events could be held during off-peak hours, expedite building permit 
processes, and support the development of new business innovation space and flexible 
light industrial spaces to diversify the local economy. These standards would provide 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.188



adequate capacity for redevelopment of the existing Town Centers and transfers of 
development from sensitive and/or outlying areas. 

14. Coverage Reduction and Stormwater Management ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.6.5.C.5 

Requirement The submitted Area Plan shall identify an integrated community strategy 
for coverage reduction and enhanced stormwater management. 

Notes Part 8, Implementation Plan, of the existing TBAP includes specific projects necessary to 
implement an integrated strategy for coverage reduction and stormwater 
management.The proposed amendments to TBAP do not change or identify new or 
different specific projects necessary to implement an integrated strategy for coverage 
reduction and stormwater management. In addition, the TBAP includes special planning 
areas with specific requirements for SEZ restoration and coverage reduction (See TBAP 
Implementing Regulations Sections 2.09.B.1, 3, and 5). 

15. Threshold Gain ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.6.5.C.6 

Requirement The submitted Area Plan shall demonstrate that all development activity 
within Town Centers and the Regional Center will provide for or not 
interfere with Threshold gain, including but not limited to measurable 
improvements in water quality. 

Notes The existing TBAP was reviewed in an EIR/EIS, which identified beneficial effects on 
threshold standards including water quality. The proposed amendments were evaluated in 
an IEC and EIR addendum, which identified no impacts that would interfere with 
attainment of threshold standards.  

ADDITIONAL REVIEW STANDARDS FOR THE HIGH-DENSITY TOURIST DISTRICT 

16. Building and Site Design ☐ YES ☐ NO ☒ N/A

Citation 13.6.5.D.1 

Requirement The submitted Area Plan shall include building and site design standards 
that substantially enhance the appearance of existing buildings in the High 
Density Tourist District. 

Notes The TBAP does not include the High Density Tourist District. 

17. Alternative Transportation ☐ YES ☐ NO ☒ N/A

Citation 13.6.5.D.2 

Requirement The submitted Area Plan shall provide pedestrian, bicycle and transit 
facilities connecting the High-Density Tourist District with other regional 
attractions. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.189



Notes There is no High Density Tourist Districts in the plan area..  

18. Threshold Gain ☐ YES ☐ NO ☒ N/A 

Citation 13.6.5.D.3 

Requirement The submitted Area Plan shall demonstrate that all development activity 
within the High-Density Tourist District will provide or not interfere with 
Threshold gain, including but not limited to measurable improvements in 
water quality. If necessary to achieve Threshold gain, off-site 
improvements may be additionally required. 

Notes TBAP does not include a High Density Tourist District and the proposed amendments 
would not interfere with Threshold gain.  

 

K. AREA PLAN AMENDMENTS 

1. Conformity Review for Amendments to an Area Plan ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A 

Citation 13.6.6 

Requirement Following approval of an Area Plan, any subsequent amendment to a plan or 
ordinance contained within the approved Area Plan shall be reviewed by the 
Advisory Planning Commission and Governing Board for conformity with the 
requirements of the Regional Plan. Public comment before the Governing Board 
shall be limited to consideration of issues raised before the Advisory Planning 
Commission and issues raised by the Governing Board. The Governing Board shall 
make the same findings as required for the conformity finding of the initial Area 
Plan, as provided in subsection 13.6.5; however, the scope of the APC and 
Governing Board’s review shall be limited to determining the conformity of the 
specific amendment only. If the Governing Board finds that the amendment to the 
Area Plan does not conform to the Regional Plan, including after any changes 
made in response to TRPA comments, the amendment shall not become part of 
the approved Area Plan. 

Notes The amendment to the TBAP is narrowly focused on achieving affordable housing and 
redevelopment opportunities in Town Centers in the plan area and has been crafted by 
Placer County staff for conformity with the Regional Plan. The Advisory Planning Commission 
and Governing Board’s review will be focused on determining the conformity of this 
amendment.   

2. Conformity Review for Amendments Made by TRPA to the 
Regional Plan that Affect an Area Plan - Notice 

☐ YES ☐ NO ☒ N/A 

Citation 13.6.7.A 

Requirement TRPA shall provide lead agencies with reasonable notice of pending amendments 
that may affect Area Plans. TRPA also shall provide lead agencies with notice of 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.190



Area Plan topics that may require amendment following adopted Regional Plan 
amendments pursuant to this section. 

Notes The proposed amendments were initiated by Placer County and are not the result of an 
amendment to the Regional Plan.  

3. Conformity Review for Amendments Made by TRPA to the
Regional Plan that Affect an Area Plan - Timing

☐ YES ☐ NO ☒ N/A

Citation 13.6.7.B 

Requirement If TRPA approves an amendment to the Regional Plan that would also require 
amendment of an Area Plan to maintain conformity, the lead agency shall be given 
one year to amend the Area Plan to demonstrate conformity with the TRPA 
amendment. The Governing Board shall make the same findings as required for 
the conformity finding of the initial Area Plan, as provided in subsection 13.6.5; 
however, the scope of the Governing Board’s review shall be limited to 
determining the conformity of only those amendments made by the lead agency 
to conform to the TRPA amendment. If the Governing Board finds that the other 
government fails to demonstrate conformity with the TRPA amendment following 
the one-year deadline, then the Board shall identify the policies and/or zoning 
provisions in the Area Plan that are inconsistent and assume lead agency authority 
to amend those policies and provisions. 

Notes The proposed amendments were initiated by Placer County and are not the result of an 
amendment to the Regional Plan.    

L. ADMINISTRATION

1. Effect of Finding of Conformance of Area Plan ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.6.8 

Requirement By finding that an Area Plan conforms with the Regional Plan pursuant to the 
requirements of this chapter and upon adoption of an MOU pursuant to Section 
13.7, the Area Plan shall serve as the standards and procedures for 
implementation of the Regional Plan. The standards and procedures within each 
Area Plan shall be considered and approved individually and shall not set 
precedent for other Area Plans. 

Notes TRPA and Placer County entered into an MOU for the TBAP consistent with Code section 
13.7 on November 13, 2017. The existing MOU would remain in place with adoption of the 
proposed amendments. 

2. Procedures for Adoption of Memorandum of Understanding ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A

Citation 13.7 

Requirement An Area Plan shall be consistent with the Procedures for Adoption of a 
Memorandum of Understanding. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.191



Notes TRPA and Placer County entered into an MOU for the TBAP consistent with Code section 
13.7 on November 13, 2017. The existing MOU would remain in place with adoption of the 
proposed amendments. 

3. Monitoring, Certification, and Enforcement of an Area Plan ☒ YES ☐ NO ☐ N/A 

Citation 13.8 

Requirement An Area Plan shall include notification, monitoring, annual review, and 
recertification procedures consistent with Code Section 13.8. 

Notes Notification, monitoring, annual review, and recertification procedures are specified in the 
MOU between Placer County and TRPA dated November 13, 2017. 

4. Appeal Procedure ☐ YES ☐ NO ☒ N/A 

Citation 13.9 

Requirement The Area Plan shall include an appeal procedure consistent with Code Section 13.9. 

Notes Appeal procedures are specified in the MOU between Placer County and TRPA, dated 
November 13, 2017. 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.192



 

Attachment G 
Compliance Measures 

 
 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.193



Compliance Measures Affected by the South Shore Area Plan Amendment

1 BMP requirements, new 

development: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 60 

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Fish

N

2 BMP implementation program -- 

existing streets and  highways: 

Code of Ordinances  Chapter 60 

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ,  

Trans, Fish

N

3 BMP implementation program -- 

existing urban development: 

Code of Ordinances 

Chapter 60 

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Fish

N

4 BMP implementation program -- 

existing urban drainage systems: 

Code of Ordinances  Chapter 60 

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Trans, Fish

N

5 Capital Improvement Program 

for Erosion and Runoff Control

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Trans, Fish

N The proposed amendments make no changes 

to the TBAP's policies regarding 

implementation of the CIP. 

6 Excess coverage mitigation 

program: Code of Ordinances 

Chapter 60 

WQ, Soils/SEZ N The proposed amendments do not change 

excess coverage mitigation requirements.

7 Effluent limitations:  California 

(SWRCB, Lahontan Board)  and 

Nevada (NDEP): Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 5 

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Fish

N The effluent limitations in Chapter 5 of the 

TRPA Code of Ordinances are not being 

modified. 

8 Limitations on new subdivisions: 

(See the Goals and Policies: Land 

Use Element)

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Rec, Scenic

N All new subdivisions will continue to be 

limited by the provisions in Chapter 39, 

Subdivision, of the TRPA Code of Ordinances. 

No changes are proposed.    

9 Land use planning and controls: 

See the Goals and Policies: Land 

Use Element and Code of 

Ordinances  Chapters 11, 12, 13, 

14, and 21 

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Trans, Scenic

N The TBAP was developed to meet the 

requirements of Chapter 13, Area Plans, and 

to implement the 2012 Regional Plan. No 

changes to the Regional Plan land use 

planning controls are proposed.   

10 Residential development 

priorities, The Individual Parcel 

Evaluation System (IPES): Goals 

and Policies: Implementation 

Element and Code of 

Ordinances Chapter 53

WQ, Soils/SEZ N The TBAP amendments maintain the existing 

Growth Management regulations, Chapters 50 

through 53, of the TRPA Code.  No changes 

are proposed with the amendments.  

The proposed amendments make no changes 

to the TBAP's BMP requirements and 

implementation programs. The proposed Area 

Plan amendments will comply with existing 

BMP requirements.  

Tracking 

Number

Compliance Measure 

Description

WATER QUALITY/SEZ - IN PLACE

Affected 

Threshold 

Categories

Affected 

by Action 

(Y/N)

Comments

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.194



Compliance Measures Affected by the South Shore Area Plan Amendment

Tracking 

Number

Compliance Measure 

Description

WATER QUALITY/SEZ - IN PLACE

Affected 

Threshold 

Categories

Affected 

by Action 

(Y/N)

Comments

11 Limits on land coverage for new 

development: Goals and 

Policies: Land Use Element and 

Code of Ordinances Chapter 30

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Scenic

N The TBAP incorporates the existing land 

coverage provisions in Chapter 30 of the TRPA 

Code as well as the provisions that allow for 

high capability lands in Town Centers and the 

Regional Center to be covered up to 70%.  It 

also includes provisions to protect and restore 

SEZs, maximize opportunities to remove or 

mitigate excess land coverage, implement EIP 

projects (including area wide water quality 

and erosion control projects), and accelerate 

BMP implementation.  No changes are 

proposed with the amendments.  

12 Transfer of development: Goals 

and Policies: Land Use Element 

and Implementation Element

WQ, Soils/SEZ N The TBAP includes Goals and Policies from the 

Land Use Element and Implementation 

Element of the Regional Plan regarding the 

transfer of development. The proposed 

amendments are consistent with the goals 

and policies in the TBAP. No changes are 

proposed.

13 Restrictions on SEZ 

encroachment and vegetation 

alteration: Code of Ordinances 

Chapter 30

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Veg, Wildlife, 

Fish, Rec, 

Scenic

N The TBAP amendments will not alter existing 

restrictions on SEZ encroachment and 

vegetation alteration in the TRPA Code of 

Ordinances, Chapter 30.

14 SEZ restoration program: 

Environmental Improvement 

Program.

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Veg, Wildlife, 

Fish, Scenic

N The TBAP benefits the EIP's SEZ restoration 

program through policies and provisions for 

the protection and restoration of SEZs. No 

changes are proposed with the amendments. 

15 SEZ setbacks: Code of 

Ordinances Chapter 53

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Veg, Wildlife, 

Fish

N SEZ setback requirements in the TRPA Code of 

Ordinances, Chapter 53, IPES, Section 53.9, 

were not altered by the TBAP. No changes are 

proposed. 

16 Fertilizer reporting 

requirements: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 60

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Fish, Rec

N The TBAP maintains the Resource 

Management and Protection regulations in 

the TRPA Code, including fertilizer reporting 

and water quality mitigation requirements.  

No changes to fertilizer requirements are 

proposed with the amendments.    

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.195



Compliance Measures Affected by the South Shore Area Plan Amendment

Tracking 

Number

Compliance Measure 

Description

WATER QUALITY/SEZ - IN PLACE

Affected 

Threshold 

Categories

Affected 

by Action 

(Y/N)

Comments

17 Water quality mitigation: Code 

of Ordinances 

Chapter 60

WQ, Soils/SEZ N The TBAP maintains the Resource 

Management and Protection regulations in 

the TRPA Code, including fertilizer reporting 

and water quality mitigation requirements.  

No changes to water quality mitigations are 

proposed with the amendments.    

18 Restrictions on rate and/or 

amount of additional 

development

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Wildlife, 

Scenic

N The TBAP contains policies outlining the 

restrictions on rate and/or amount of 

additional development. While the proposed 

amendments may modestly increase the pace 

of development in the place area, no changes 

to the amount of development are proposed.

19 Improved BMP implementation/  

enforcement program

WQ, Soils/SEZ N The TBAP includes goals and policies related 

to the BMP implementation/enforcement 

program. No changes to BMP requirements 

are proposed with the amendments.

20 Increased funding for EIP 

projects for erosion and runoff 

control

WQ, Soils/SEZ N The TBAP amendments do not affect funding 

for EIP erosion and runoff control projects.  

21 Artificial wetlands/runoff 

treatment program

WQ, Soils/SEZ N The TBAP does not alter the artificial 

wetlands/runoff treatment program. No 

changes are proposed with the amendments.

22 Transfer of development from 

SEZs

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Scenic

N The TBAP provides incentives for property 

owners to hasten the transfer of development 

rights from sensitive lands, including SEZs, or 

outlying areas to Town Centers and the 

Regional Center where redevelopment is 

better suited and will have beneficial or or 

reduced adverse environmental impacts.  No 

changes to this provision are proposed with 

the amendments.  

23 Improved mass transportation WQ, Trans, 

Noise 

N The TBAP facilitates mass transportation 

within existing transit routes, supporting 

increased usage of the transit system. No 

changes to mass transportation are proposed 

with the amendments.

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.196



Compliance Measures Affected by the South Shore Area Plan Amendment

Tracking 

Number

Compliance Measure 

Description

WATER QUALITY/SEZ - IN PLACE

Affected 

Threshold 

Categories

Affected 

by Action 

(Y/N)

Comments

24 Redevelopment and redirection 

of land use: Goals and Policies: 

Land Use Element and Code of 

Ordinances Chapter 13

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Scenic

N One of the main objectives of the TBAP is to 

encourage the environmental redevelopment 

of the built environment and implement the 

Goals and Policies in the Land Use Element of 

the Regional Plan. New redevelopment 

policies are proposed that would support and 

encourage adaptive reuse of vacant or 

underutilized retail and office space, support 

redevelopment of aging lodging products and 

encourage revitalization and creation of new 

high-quality lodging, allow multipurpose and 

flexible gathering spaces in private and public 

parking areas where events could be held 

during off-peak hours, expedite building 

permit processes, and support the 

development of new business innovation 

space and flexible light industrial spaces to 

diversify the local economy.

25 Combustion heater rules, 

stationary source controls, and 

related rules: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 65

WQ, AQ N

26 Elimination of accidental sewage 

releases: Goals and Policies: 

Land Use Element

WQ, Soils/SEZ N

27 Reduction of sewer line 

exfiltration: Goals and Policies: 

Land Use Element

WQ, Soils/SEZ N

28 Effluent limitations WQ, Soils/SEZ N

29 Regulation of wastewater 

disposal at sites not connected 

to sewers: Code of Ordinances 

Chapter 60

WQ, Soils/SEZ N

30 Prohibition on solid waste 

disposal: Goals and Policies:  

Land Use Element

WQ, Soils/SEZ N

No changes are being proposed that would 

impact these Compliance Measures.  The 

existing TRPA Code of Ordinance provisions 

will remain in effect. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.197



Compliance Measures Affected by the South Shore Area Plan Amendment

Tracking 

Number

Compliance Measure 

Description

WATER QUALITY/SEZ - IN PLACE

Affected 

Threshold 

Categories

Affected 

by Action 

(Y/N)

Comments

31 Mandatory garbage pick-up: 

Goals and Policies: Public 

Service Element

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Wildlife

N

32 Hazardous material/wastes 

programs: Goals and  Policies: 

Land Use Element and Code of 

Ordinances Chapter 60

WQ, Soils/SEZ N

33 BMP implementation program, 

Snow and ice control practices: 

Code of Ordinances  Chapter 60

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, AQ

N The TBAP did not change BMP requirements. 

No changes are proposed with the 

amendments.  

34 Reporting requirements, 

highway abrasives and deicers: 

Goals and Policies:, Land Use 

Element and Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 60

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Fish

N

35 BMP implementation program--

roads, trails, skidding,  logging 

practices:  Code of Ordinances 

Chapter 60, Chapter 61

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Fish

N

36 BMP implementation program--

outdoor recreation: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 60 

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Fish, Rec

N

37 BMP implementation program--

livestock confinement and  

grazing: Code of Ordinances 

Chapter 21, Chapter 60, Chapter 

64 

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Veg, Wildlife, 

Fish

N

38 BMP implementation program--

pesticides

WQ, Soils/SEZ N

39 Land use planning and controls -- 

timber harvesting:  Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 21

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, AQ, 

Wildlife, Fish, 

Scenic

N

40 Land use planning and controls - 

outdoor recreation: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 21

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Wildlife, 

Noise, Rec, 

Scenic

N

No changes are being proposed that would

impact these Compliance Measures.  The 

existing TRPA Code of Ordinance provisions

will remain in effect. 

The amendments will not alter the 

effectiveness of compliance measures relating 

to timber harvesting or outdoor recreation.  

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.198



Compliance Measures Affected by the South Shore Area Plan Amendment

Tracking 

Number

Compliance Measure 

Description

WATER QUALITY/SEZ - IN PLACE

Affected 

Threshold 

Categories

Affected 

by Action 

(Y/N)

Comments

41 Land use planning and controls--

ORV use: Goals and Policies: 

Recreation Element

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, AQ, 

Wildlife, Fish, 

Noise, Rec, 

Scenic

N Regional Plan Policy R-1.5 states that "Off-

road vehicle (ORV) use is prohibited in the 

Lake Tahoe Region expect on specified roads, 

trails, or designated areas where the impacts 

can be mitigated."  The TBAP did not expand 

ORV use, and no changes are proposed.

42 Control of encroachment and 

coverage in sensitive areas

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Wildlife, Rec, 

Scenic

N The existing TRPA Code provisions remain in 

effect, and no changes are proposed with the 

amendments.  

43 Control on shorezone 

encroachment and vegetation 

alteration: Code of Ordinances 

Chapter 83 

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Scenic

N The proposed amendments to the TBAP are 

intended to reflect the changes made to 

Placer County Code Chapter 12, Article 12.32, 

“Lake Tahoe Shorezone” adopted by the 

Board of Supervisors in February of 2021. In 

August 2019, TRPA amended its Code of 

Ordinances, including shorezone regulations 

contained in Chapters 80 through 85. While 

the existing TRPA code provisions related to 

the Shorezone will remain in effect, the TBAP 

implementing regulations have been updated 

to adopt and incorporate the current TRPA 

Shorezone Ordinances.  

44 BMP implementation program--

shorezone areas: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 60 

WQ, Soils/SEZ N

45 BMP implementation program--

dredging and construction in  

Lake Tahoe: Code of Ordinances 

Chapter 60

WQ, Soils/SEZ N

46 Restrictions and conditions on 

filling and dredging: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 84

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Fish

N

47 Protection of stream deltas WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Wildlife, Fish, 

Scenic

N

48 Marina master plans: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 14 

WQ, 

AQ/Trans, 

Fish, Scenic

N

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.199



Compliance Measures Affected by the South Shore Area Plan Amendment

Tracking 

Number

Compliance Measure 

Description

WATER QUALITY/SEZ - IN PLACE

Affected 

Threshold 

Categories

Affected 

by Action 

(Y/N)

Comments

49 Additional pump-out facilities: 

Code of Ordinances 

Chapter 60 

WQ, Soils/SEZ N

50 Controls on anti-fouling 

coatings:  Code of Ordinances 

Chapter 60

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Fish

N

51 Modifications to list of exempt 

activities

WQ, Soils/SEZ N The proposed amendments would add 

exemptions for multi-family residential 

development with 15 or fewer units and not 

in a designated scenic area to be exempt from 

52 More stringent SEZ 

encroachment rules

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Wildlife, Fish

N

53 More stringent coverage 

transfer requirements

WQ, Soils/SEZ N

54 Modifications to IPES WQ, Soils/SEZ N

55 Increased idling restrictions WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, AQ

N

56 Control of upwind pollutants WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, AQ

N

57 Additional controls on 

combustion heaters

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, AQ

N

58 Improved exfiltration control 

program

WQ, Soils/SEZ N

59 Improved infiltration control 

program

WQ, Soils/SEZ N

60 Water conservation/flow 

reduction program

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Fish

N

61 Additional land use controls WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Wildlife

N

62 Fixed Route Transit - South 

Shore: STAGE 

Trans, Rec N

63 Fixed Route Transit - North 

Shore: TART

Trans, Rec N

64 Demand Responsive Transit Trans N

65 Seasonal Transit Services Trans, Rec N

The proposed amendments do not include 

any changes to water quality or SEZ provisions 

that would affect Compliance Measures 52 

though 61.

The proposed amendments do not include 

any air quality of transportation changes or 

provisions that would affect Compliance 

Measures 62 though 72.

WATER QUALITY/SEZ - SUPPLEMENTAL

AIR QUALITY/TRANSPORTATION - IN PLACE 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.200



Compliance Measures Affected by the South Shore Area Plan Amendment

Tracking 

Number

Compliance Measure 

Description

WATER QUALITY/SEZ - IN PLACE

Affected 

Threshold 

Categories

Affected 

by Action 

(Y/N)

Comments

66 Social Service Transportation Trans N

67 Shuttle programs Trans, Rec N

68 Ski shuttle services Trans, Rec N

69 Intercity bus services Trans N

70 Passenger Transit Facilities Trans N

71 Bikeways, Bike Trails Trans, Noise, 

Rec, Scenic

N

72 Pedestrian facilities Trans, Rec, 

Scenic

N

73 Wood heater controls:  Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 65

WQ, AQ N

74 Gas heater controls: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 65

WQ, AQ N

75 Stationary source controls: 

Code of Ordinances 

Chapter 65

WQ, AQ N

76 U.S. Postal Service Mail Delivery Trans N The proposed TBAP amendments will not 

affect U.S. Postal Service Delivery. 

77 Indirect source review/air 

quality mitigation: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 65

WQ, AQ, 

Trans

N

78 Idling Restrictions: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 65

WQ, AQ N

79 Vehicle Emission 

Limitations(State/Federal)

WQ, AQ N No changes are proposed to the Code's  

provisions related to established vehicle 

emission limitations.

80 Open Burning Controls: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapters 61 and 

Chapter 65

WQ, AQ, 

Scenic

N No changes related to open buring 

requirements are proposed.

81 BMP and Revegetation Practices WQ, AQ, 

Wildlife, Fish

N The TBAP amendments would not alter 

requirements related to BMPs and 

revegetation.

82 Employer-based Trip Reduction 

Programs: Code of Ordinances 

Chapter 65

Trans N

83 Vehicle rental programs: Code 

of Ordinances  Chapter 65

Trans N

84 Parking Standards Trans N

85 Parking Management Areas Trans N

86 Parking Fees Trans N

The proposed amendments do not include

any air quality of transportation changes or 

provisions that would affect Compliance

Measures 62 though 72.

No changes are proposed to the Code's  

provisions related to employer-based trip 

reduction programs.

The proposed amendments would revise the 

parking and access guidelines of the TBAP 

implementing regulations to permanently 

adopt the parking pilot program for North

Lake Tahoe Town Centers. These changes

would support exemptions to parking and

spur redevelopment in the town centers and

support strategies identified in the Resort 

Triangle Transportation Plan (RTTP), which 

was approved by the TRPA Board of

Supervisors in October 2020 and outlines

strategies to increase mobility and reduce

VMT in the Tahoe region. Changes would

include expanding eligible applicants to

include all development/redevelopment 

proposed in town centers, allowing further 

collaboration with tourist accommodation and

residential uses to be considered, removing 

the existing limitation in the area plan that

project sites eligible for the exemption shall 

be 25,000 square feet or less, and expanding 

financial mitigations beyond establishment of

a transit County Service Area Zone of Benefit 

to include financial support for transit service

enhancements or other alternative

transportation projects that support multi-

modal transportation and/or strategies noted

in the RTTP. The amendments would not 

make any changes that would affect traffic 

management, signal synchronization, aviation,

waterborne transit or excursions, air quality

monitoring, alternative fueled vehicle fleets or 

infrastructure improvements, north shore

transit, or the Heavenly Ski Resort Gondola. 

Development associated with the

amendments will use existing units of use

banked within the Amendment Area and

would not generate additional demand for 

waterborne transit services. 

The TRPA Code provisions related to 

Compliance Measures 73 through 75 remain 

in effect, and no changes are proposed with 

the amendments.  

The TRPA Code provisions related to 

Compliance Measures 77 through 78 remain 

in effect, and no changes are proposed with 

the amendments.  

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.201



Compliance Measures Affected by the South Shore Area Plan Amendment

Tracking 

Number

Compliance Measure 

Description

WATER QUALITY/SEZ - IN PLACE

Affected 

Threshold 

Categories

Affected 

by Action 

(Y/N)

Comments

87 Parking Facilities  Trans N

88 Traffic Management Program - 

Tahoe City

Trans N

89 US 50 Traffic Signal 

Synchronization - South Shore

Trans N

90 General Aviation, The Lake 

Tahoe Airport 

Trans, Noise N

91 Waterborne excursions WQ, Trans, 

Rec

N

92 Waterborne transit services WQ, Trans, 

Scenic

N

93 Air Quality Studies and 

Monitoring

WQ, AQ N

The proposed amendments would revise the

parking and access guidelines of the TBAP 

implementing regulations to permanently

adopt the parking pilot program for North

Lake Tahoe Town Centers. These changes 

would support exemptions to parking and 

spur redevelopment in the town centers and 

support strategies identified in the Resort 

Triangle Transportation Plan (RTTP), which 

was approved by the TRPA Board of 

Supervisors in October 2020 and outlines 

strategies to increase mobility and reduce 

VMT in the Tahoe region. Changes would 

include expanding eligible applicants to 

include all development/redevelopment 

proposed in town centers, allowing further 

collaboration with tourist accommodation and 

residential uses to be considered, removing 

the existing limitation in the area plan that 

project sites eligible for the exemption shall 

be 25,000 square feet or less, and expanding 

financial mitigations beyond establishment of 

a transit County Service Area Zone of Benefit 

to include financial support for transit service 

enhancements or other alternative 

transportation projects that support multi-

modal transportation and/or strategies noted 

in the RTTP. The amendments would not 

make any changes that would affect traffic 

management, signal synchronization, aviation, 

waterborne transit or excursions, air quality 

monitoring, alternative fueled vehicle fleets or 

infrastructure improvements, north shore 

transit, or the Heavenly Ski Resort Gondola. 

Development associated with the 

amendments will use existing units of use 

banked within the Amendment Area and 

would not generate additional demand for 

waterborne transit services. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.202



Compliance Measures Affected by the South Shore Area Plan Amendment

Tracking 

Number

Compliance Measure 

Description

WATER QUALITY/SEZ - IN PLACE

Affected 

Threshold 

Categories

Affected 

by Action 

(Y/N)

Comments

94 Alternate Fueled Vehicle - 

Public/Private Fleets and 

Infrastructure Improvements

Trans N

95 Demand Responsive Transit - 

North Shore  

Trans N

96 Tahoe Area Regional Transit 

Maintenance Facility

Trans N

97 Heavenly Ski Resort Gondola Trans N

98 Demand Responsive Transit - 

North Shore

Trans N

99 Coordinated Transit System - 

South Shore

Trans N

100 Transit Passenger Facilities Trans N

101 South Shore Transit 

Maintenance Facility - South 

Shore

Trans N

102 Transit Service - Fallen Leaf Lake WQ, Trans N

103 Transit Institutional 

Improvements

Trans N

104 Transit Capital and Operations 

Funding Acquisition

Trans N

105 Transit/Fixed Guideway 

Easements - South Shore

Trans N

106 Visitor Capture Program Trans N

107 Pedestrian and Bicycle Facilities--

South Shore

Trans, Rec N

108 Pedestrian and Bicycle Facilities--

North Shore

Trans, Rec N

109 Parking Inventories and Studies 

Standards

Trans N

110 Parking Management Areas Trans N

111 Parking Fees Trans N

112 Establishment of Parking Task 

Force

Trans N

113 Construct parking facilities Trans N

114 Intersection improvements--

South Shore

Trans, Scenic N

The TBAP amendments do not alter any 

transit services, bikeways, or pedestrian 

facilities. No changes to existing policies are 

proposed. 

AIR QUALITY/TRANSPORTATION - SUPPLEMENTAL

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.203



Compliance Measures Affected by the South Shore Area Plan Amendment

Tracking 

Number

Compliance Measure 

Description

WATER QUALITY/SEZ - IN PLACE

Affected 

Threshold 

Categories

Affected 

by Action 

(Y/N)

Comments

115 Intersection improvements--

North Shore

Trans, Scenic N

116 Roadway Improvements - South 

Shore

Trans, Scenic N

117 Roadway Improvements - North 

Shore

Trans, Scenic N

118 Loop Road - South Shore Trans, Scenic N

119 Montreal Road Extension Trans N

120 Kingsbury Connector Trans N

121 Commercial Air Service: Part 132 

commercial air service

Trans N

122 Commercial Air Service: 

commercial air service that does 

not require Part 132 

certifications

Trans N

123 Expansion of waterborne 

excursion service

WQ, Trans N

124 Re-instate the oxygenated fuel 

program 

WQ, AQ N

125 Management Programs Trans N

126 Around the Lake Transit Trans N

127 Vegetation Protection During 

Construction: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 33 

WQ, AQ, Veg, 

Scenic

N The TBAP did not alter the provisions of 

Chapter 33, and no changes are proposed 

with the amendments.

128 Tree Removal: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 61

Veg, Wildlife, 

Scenic

N

129 Prescribed Burning: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 61

WQ, AQ, Veg, 

Wildlife, 

Scenic

N

130 Remedial Vegetation 

Management:  Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 61

WQ, Veg, 

Wildlife

N

131 Sensitive and Uncommon Plant 

Protection and Fire Hazard 

Reduction: Code of Ordinances 

Chapter 61

Veg, Wildlife, 

Scenic

N

132 Revegetation:  Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 61

WQ, Veg, 

Wildlife, 

Scenic

N

The TBAP did not alter the provisions of 

Chapter 61, and no changes are proposed 

with the amendments.

VEGETATION - IN PLACE

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.204



Compliance Measures Affected by the South Shore Area Plan Amendment

Tracking 

Number

Compliance Measure 

Description

WATER QUALITY/SEZ - IN PLACE

Affected 

Threshold 

Categories

Affected 

by Action 

(Y/N)

Comments

133 Remedial Action Plans: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 5

WQ, Veg N The TBAP, as amended, is consistent with 

Chapter 5 of the TRPA Code.

134 Handbook of Best Management 

Practices

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Veg, Fish

N The Handbook of Best Management Practices 

will continue to be used to design and 

construct BMPs. No changes are proposed 

with the amendments.

135 Shorezone protection WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, Veg

N See responses to Compliance Measures 43 

through 50. 

136 Project Review WQ, Veg N

137 Compliance inspections Veg N

138 Development Standards in the 

Backshore

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Veg, Wildlife, 

Scenic

N See responses to Compliance Measures 43 

through 50.

139 Land Coverage Standards:  Code 

of Ordinances  Chapter 30

WQ, Veg, 

Wildlife, Fish, 

Scenic

N See response to Compliance Measure 11. The 

amendments do not affect coverage 

standards.

140 Grass Lake, Research Natural 

Area

WQ, Veg, 

Wildlife, Fish, 

Scenic

N Grass lake is not located within the plan area 

and would not be affected by the 

amendments.

141 Conservation Element, 

Vegetation Subelement:  Goals 

and Policies

Veg, Wildlife, 

Fish

N No changes to the conservation element are 

proposed.  

142 Late Successional Old Growth 

(LSOG): Code of Ordinances 

Chapter 61

Veg, Wildlife, 

Fish

N

143 Stream Environment Zone 

Vegetation: Code of Ordinances 

Chapter 61

WQ, Veg, 

Wildlife, Fish

N

144 Tahoe Yellow Cress 

Conservation Strategy

Veg N No changes related to the Tahoe Yellow Cress 

strategy are proposed.

145 Control and/or Eliminate 

Noxious Weeds

Veg, Wildlife N No changes related to noxious weeds are 

proposed.

Projects on the rezoned parcels will be 

reviewed and inspected according to the MOU 

between the County and TRPA. The 

amendments do not alter the project review 

process.

No changes related to late succesional old 

growth or SEZ vegetation are proposed.  

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.205



Compliance Measures Affected by the South Shore Area Plan Amendment

Tracking 

Number

Compliance Measure 

Description

WATER QUALITY/SEZ - IN PLACE

Affected 

Threshold 

Categories

Affected 

by Action 

(Y/N)

Comments

146 Freel Peak Cushion Plant 

Community Protection

Veg N The Freel Peak Cushion Plant community is 

not within the plan area and would not be 

affected by the amendments.

147 Deepwater Plant Protection WQ, Veg N No changes related to deepwater pant 

protection are proposed.

148 Wildlife Resources: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 62

Wildlife, 

Noise

N No changes related to wildlife resources are 

proposed.  

149 Stream Restoration Program WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Veg, Wildlife, 

Fish, Rec, 

Scenic

N No changes to the stream restoration 

program are proposed. 

150 BMP and revegetation practices WQ, Veg, 

Wildlife, Fish, 

Scenic

N No changes related to BMPs and revegetation 

practices are proposed. 

151 OHV limitations WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, AQ, 

Wildlife, 

Noise, Rec

N No changes to OHV limitations are proposed. 

152 Remedial Action Plans: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 5

Wildlife N The TBAP, as amended, is consistent with 

Chapter 5 of the TRPA Code. 

153 Project Review Wildlife N See response to Compliance Measures 136 

and 137. The TBAP amendments will not alter 

the existing project review procedures.

156 Fish Resources: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 63

WQ, Fish N No changes related to fisheries are proposed. 

157 Tree Removal: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 61

Wildlife, Fish N The TBAP amendments do not change tree 

removal provisions of Chapter 61.

158 Shorezone BMPs WQ, Fish N See response to Compliance Measures 43 

through 50. 

159 Filling and Dredging: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 84 

WQ, Fish N

WILDLIFE - IN PLACE

FISHERIES - IN PLACE

VEGETATION - SUPPLEMENTAL

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.206



Compliance Measures Affected by the South Shore Area Plan Amendment

Tracking 

Number

Compliance Measure 

Description

WATER QUALITY/SEZ - IN PLACE

Affected 

Threshold 

Categories

Affected 

by Action 

(Y/N)

Comments

160 Location standards for 

structures in the shorezone: 

Code of Ordinances 

Chapter 84 

WQ, Fish N

161 Restrictions on SEZ 

encroachment and vegetation 

alteration

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Fish

N No changes to SEZ restrictions are proposed. 

162 SEZ Restoration Program WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Fish

N No changes to SEZ restoration programs are 

proposed.  

163 Stream restoration program WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Fish

N

164 Riparian restoration WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Fish

N

165 Livestock: Code of Ordinances 

Chapter 64

WQ, 

Soils/SEZ, 

Fish

N No changes to TRPA Code Chapter 64 are 

proposed.  

166 BMP and revegetation practices WQ, Fish N See response to Compliance Measures 1 

through 4. The TBAP amendments do not alter 

BMP and revegetation practices.

167 Fish habitat study Fish N No changes are proposed. 

168 Remedial Action Plans: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 5

Fish N See response to Compliance Measure 133. 

169 Mitigation Fee Requirements: 

Code of Ordinances  Chapter 86

Fish N No changes to mitigation fees are proposed. 

170 Compliance inspection Fish N No changes to compliance inspections are 

proposed.  

171 Public Education Program Wildlife, Fish N The TBAP does not include a public education 

component, but does address the City's 

education and outreach efforts regarding 

green building. No changes are proposed.

NOISE - IN PLACE

No changes to stream or riparian restoration 

programs are proposed.  

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.207



Compliance Measures Affected by the South Shore Area Plan Amendment

Tracking 

Number

Compliance Measure 

Description

WATER QUALITY/SEZ - IN PLACE

Affected 

Threshold 

Categories

Affected 

by Action 

(Y/N)

Comments

172 Airport noise enforcement 

program

Wildlife, Fish N The Lake Tahoe airport is not within the plan 

area. No changes to noise enforcement are 

proposed.

173 Boat noise enforcement 

program

Wildlife, Fish, 

Rec

N No changes to boat noise enforcement are 

proposed.

174 Motor vehicle/motorcycle noise 

enforcement program: Code of 

Ordinances 

Chapters 5 and  23

Wildlife, Fish N No changes to vehicle noise enforcement are 

proposed.

175 ORV restrictions AQ, Wildlife, 

Noise, Rec

N

176 Snowmobile Restrictions WQ, Wildlife, 

Noise, Rec

N

177 Land use planning and controls Wildlife, 

Noise

N See response to Compliance Measure 9. 

Although the proposed amendments may 

modestly increase the pace of development, 

they would not increase the total amount of 

development allowed in the plan area. 

178 Vehicle trip reduction programs Trans, Noise N The TBAP should reduce VMT via installation 

of pedestrian and bike paths and improving 

public transit.  No changes to vehicle trip 

reduction programs are proposed.  

179 Transportation corridor design 

criteria

Trans, Noise N Placer County, CalTrans, and Mobility 2035 

standards will continue to apply, where 

applicable, and are not affected by the 

amendments.

180 Airport Master Plan South Lake 

Tahoe 

Trans, Noise N The Lake Tahoe airport is not within the plan 

area. No changes to the master plan are 

proposed.

181 Loudspeaker restrictions Wildlife, 

Noise

N No changes are proposed.

182 Project Review Noise N See response to Compliance Measures 136 

and 137. 

183 Complaint system:  Code of 

Ordinances  Chapters 5 and 68 

Noise N Existing complaint systems are not being 

modified.  

No changes to ORV and snowmobile 

restrictions are proposed.

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.208



Compliance Measures Affected by the South Shore Area Plan Amendment

Tracking 

Number

Compliance Measure 

Description

WATER QUALITY/SEZ - IN PLACE

Affected 

Threshold 

Categories

Affected 

by Action 

(Y/N)

Comments

184 Transportation corridor 

compliance program

Trans, Noise N No changes are proposed. 

185 Exemptions to noise limitations Noise N No changes are proposed. 

186 TRPA's Environmental 

Improvement Program (EIP) 

Noise N No changes are proposed. 

187 Personal watercraft noise 

controls 

Wildlife, 

Noise

N No changes are proposed. 

188 Create an interagency noise 

enforcement MOU for the 

Tahoe Region.

Noise N An interagency noise enforcement MOU for 

the Tahoe Region is not being proposed as 

part of the TBAP amendments. 

189 Allocation of Development: 

Code of Ordinances  Chapter 50

Rec N See response to Compliance Measure 10.

190 Master Plan Guidelines: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 14

Rec, Scenic N The TRPA, in coordination with Placer County, 

will continue to process Specific and Master 

Plan Plans pursuant to Chapter 14 of the TRPA 

Code of Ordinances. No changes are 

proposed.  

191 Permissible recreation uses in 

the shorezone and lake zone: 

Code of Ordinances 

Chapter 81

WQ, Noise, 

Rec

N See response to Compliance Measures 43 

through 50. 

192 Public Outdoor recreation 

facilities in sensitive lands

WQ, Rec, 

Scenic

N The TBAP amendments are not altering 

provisions regarding public outdoor recreation 

in sensitive lands. 

193 Hiking and riding facilities Rec N The TBAP includes hiking and riding facilities 

reflected in the adopted Mobility 2035: Lake 

Tahoe Regional Transportation Plan and Lake 

Tahoe Region Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan. 

Therefore, the TBAP is expected to accelerate 

implementation of this compliance measure. 

No changes are proposed with the 

amendments.

194 Scenic quality of recreation 

facilities

Rec, Scenic N All proposals for new recreation facilities 

within the TBAP will have to meet Scenic 

Quality standards. No changes are proposed.

RECREATION - IN PLACE

NOISE - SUPPLEMENTAL

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.209



Compliance Measures Affected by the South Shore Area Plan Amendment

Tracking 

Number

Compliance Measure 

Description

WATER QUALITY/SEZ - IN PLACE

Affected 

Threshold 

Categories

Affected 

by Action 

(Y/N)

Comments

195 Density standards Rec N The TBAP amendments will not alter existing 

density standards. No changes are proposed.

196 Bonus incentive program Rec N The TBAP amendments will not alter existing 

bonus unit incentives.

197 Required Findings:  Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 4 

Rec N All applicable TRPA Code Of Ordinance 

findings will continue to have to be met with 

the future approval of projects within the 

TBAP. No changes are proposed.

198 Lake Tahoe Recreation Sign 

Guidelines

Rec, Scenic N The proposed amendments would update and 

streamline sign guidelines and make the TBAP 

consistent with the TRPA Code of Ordinances.

199 Annual user surveys Rec N No changes to user surveys are proposed.

200 Regional recreational plan Rec N No changes to recreation plans are proposed. 

201 Establish fair share resource 

capacity estimates

Rec N

202 Reserve additional resource 

capacity

Rec N

203 Economic Modeling Rec N

204 Project Review and Exempt 

Activities:  Code of Ordinances 

Chapter 2

Scenic N The TBAP amendments do not alter the list of 

exempt activities. Nor does it affect project 

review requirements or review procedures.

205 Land Coverage Limitations: 

Code of Ordinances 

Chapter 30

WQ, Scenic N The TBAP incorporates the existing land 

coverage provisions in Chapter 30 of the TRPA 

Code as well as the provisions that allow for 

high capability lands in Town Centers and the 

Regional Center to be covered up to 70%.  It 

also includes provisions to protect and restore 

SEZs, maximize opportunities to remove or 

mitigate excess land coverage, implement EIP 

projects (including area wide water quality 

and erosion control projects), and accelerate 

BMP implementation. No changes are 

proposed with the amendments. 

RECREATION - SUPPLEMENTAL

SCENIC - IN PLACE

No changes to recreation capacity or 

economic modeling are proposed.

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.210



Compliance Measures Affected by the South Shore Area Plan Amendment

Tracking 

Number

Compliance Measure 

Description

WATER QUALITY/SEZ - IN PLACE

Affected 

Threshold 

Categories

Affected 

by Action 

(Y/N)

Comments

206 Height Standards: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 37

Scenic N The TBAP Development and Design Standards 

include height standards that are consistent 

with Chapter 37 of the TRPA Code of 

Ordinances, as well as take advantage of the 

new height provisions in the Regional Plan 

and Chapter 13 of the TRPA Code of 

Ordinances.  The maximum building height is 

currently measured in stories, which would 

change to feet (e.g., 56 feet instead of four 

stories). An additional 5-foot height (up to 61 

feet) would be allowed only for Town Center 

Mixed-Use projects that include all of the 

following: fronting Highway 28, 50 or more 

hotel units, deed restricted achievable 

housing, public art, comply with TBAP Design 

Standards and Guidelines, and comply with 

TRPA scenic threshold standards. An 

additional 11 ft. height (up to 72 feet building 

max) for Mixed Use buildings meeting criteria 

above only for rooftop appurtenances such as 

chimneys, flues, vents, antennas, mechanical 

conveyances, roof-top amenities, and similar 

appurtenances.

207 Driveway and Parking 

Standards: Code of Ordinances 

Chapter 34

Trans, Scenic N No changes to driveway or parking standards 

are proposed.  

208 Signs: Code of Ordinances 

Chapter 38

Scenic N The proposed amendments would update and 

streamline sign guidelines and make the TBAP 

consistent with the TRPA Code of Ordinances.  

209 Historic Resources:  Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 67

Scenic N See response to Compliance Measures 16 and 

17. The TBAP amendments would not alter 

provisions related to the protection of historic 

resources.

210 Design Standards: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 36

Scenic N No changes to design standards are proposed.  

211 Shorezone Tolerance Districts 

and Development Standards:  

Code of Ordinances  Chapter 83

Scenic N See responses to Compliance Measures  43 

through 50. 

212 Development Standards 

Lakeward of Highwater: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 84

WQ, Scenic N

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.211



Compliance Measures Affected by the South Shore Area Plan Amendment

Tracking 

Number

Compliance Measure 

Description

WATER QUALITY/SEZ - IN PLACE

Affected 

Threshold 

Categories

Affected 

by Action 

(Y/N)

Comments

213 Grading Standards: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 33

WQ, Scenic N

214 Vegetation Protection During 

Construction: Code of 

Ordinances Chapter 33 

AQ, Veg, 

Scenic

N

215 Revegetation: Code of 

Ordinances  Chapter 61

Scenic N See responses to Compliance Measures 16 

and 17. The amendments would not alter 

revegetation requirments.

216 Design Review Guidelines Scenic N No changes to the design review guidelines 

are proposed.  

217 Scenic Quality Improvement 

Program(SQIP)

Scenic N See response to Compliance Measure 194. 

The TBAP amendments would not alter the 

SQIP.

218 Project Review Information 

Packet

Scenic N See response to Compliance Measure 194. 

The TBAP amendments would not alter 

project review prrequirements.

219 Scenic Quality Ratings, Features 

Visible from Bike Paths and 

Outdoor Recreation Areas Open 

to the General Public

Trans, Scenic N See response to Compliance Measure 194. 

The TBAP amendments would not alter the 

scenic quality ratings or related requirements.

220 Nevada-side Utility Line 

Undergrounding Program

Scenic N The amendments would not affect the utility 

undergrounding program.

221 Real Time Monitoring Program Scenic N No changes to the real time monitoring 

program are being proposed with the TBAP 

amendments. 

222 Integrate project identified in 

SQIP

Scenic N No changes to the SQIP or SQIP 

implementation are proposed.  

SCENIC - SUPPLEMENTAL

No changes to grading or vegetation 

protection standards are proposed.  

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.212



Attachment H 
Table of Amendments 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.213



Table A. Amendments to Policy Document 

1. Scenic Resources Policy to support for: TRPA Scenic Evaluation to direct private reinvestment into Town Centers 

2. Vegetation Policy to support for hardening, green waste, and defensible space incentive and/or rebate programs 

3. Socio Economic Policies to support for: High-speed broadband infrastructure capacity; Childcare facilities to meet the needs 
of the local workforce; Mechanisms to prevent ongoing blight 

4. Land Use Policies to support for:  Reservation and conversion manual for the allocation and conversion of TRPA 
development rights; Funding sources for infrastructure such as sidewalks, curbs, and gutters; Parking 
management plans; Community-wide snow storage plan 

5. Mixed Use Policy to support to encourage mixed use, and residential components in business park, and light 
industrial space 

6. Town Centers Policies to support for: Active ground floor uses; Mobile vendors and food trucks in Town Centers; 
Retention and expansion of businesses from the North Tahoe-Truckee region; Relocate industrial and 
public utility land uses in the Town Centers to free up Town Center sites; Parking maximums and creative 
parking solutions  

7. Community Design Policy to support for Local public art in North Tahoe 

8. Redevelopment Policies to support for Adaptive reuse of vacant or underutilized retail and office space; Revitalize and 
create new high-quality lodging; Multipurpose and flexible gathering spaces in private and public parking 
areas; Expedite building permit processes; New business innovation space and flexible light industrial 
spaces   

9. Housing Policies to support for Streamline affordable, moderate, and achievable housing; Require that 50 percent 
of units converted from multifamily to condominiums be deed restricted to affordable, moderate or 
achievable housing; Monitor and track housing data in the region; Adaptive management of the short-
term rental inventory to balance housing availability (each new lodging unit = decrease in STR cap); Allow 
local worker overnight camping in public and private parking lots; Build local worker housing above public 
and private public parking lots 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.214



Table B. Amendments to Implementing Regulations  

(Zoning/Development Standards) 

Town Center – Land Use Regulations Changes 

1. Allow small-scale uses  Small projects that generate low VMT would be allowed (projects “screen out” 

from TRPA VMT threshold); may require Design Review 

2. Allow Food Trucks & Mobile Vendors No Discretionary Use Permit; no Design Review; would require permits from 

Environmental Health & cannot be parked in roadways  

3. Prohibit Real Estate & Property Management 
Offices  

Do not allow on ground floor highway frontage 

4. Allow Small Scale Hotels/Motels/TAUs Allow if 20 units or less; may require Design Review 

5. Prohibit NEW SF units Allow existing SF units; new SF units only allowed if part of mixed-use project or if 

SF are deed restricted for affordable/workforce housing 

6. Prohibit ADUs  Allow existing ADUs; new ADUs not allowed on highway ground floor frontage 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.215



7. Allow MF, Multi-person, Employee Housing
Units

Allow projects if 100% of units are deed restricted for affordable/workforce 

housing; may require Design Review  

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.216



Table C. Amendments to Implementing Regulations 

(Zoning/Development Standards)  

Town Center – Development Standards Changes 

1. Clarified Streetscape/Roadway
Requirements

Added references to County Code related to roadway standards 

2. Clarified Frontage Improvements Added language to provide consistency with County Code related to sidewalk, curb, 

gutter requirements 

3. Shorezone Requirements Added references to County Code “Lake Tahoe Shorezone Ordinance” 

4. Building Length Added language to provide consistency/clarity; decreased length for commercial 

buildings adjacent to residential zone districts  

5. Building Height Maintain allowed height of 56’; eliminated reference to number of “stories” allowed 

6. Setbacks Removed rear setbacks when adjacent to residential zones with substantial rear setbacks; 

addresses constraints of small town center lots 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.217



7. Ground Water/Snow Storage Allow ground water interception for below-grade parking; require snow storage for 

projects 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.218



Table D. Amendments to Implementing Regulations 

(Zoning/Development Standards) 

•

•

Other Amendments 

1. Community Service Zone
Districts

• Allow SF, MF, multi-person, employee housing and encourage deed restricted housing

• Allow mobile vending uses

• Modify/modernize development standards to encourage affordable housing

2. Recreation and Tourist
Zone Districts

• Allow employee housing within 64-Acre Tract Zone District

• Allow residential uses within Granlibakken Zone District if 100% deed restricted

3. West Shore Mixed-Use
Zone Districts

• Allow mobile vending within Tahoma, Homewood, and Sunnyside Zone Districts

4. Parking • Modernize/reduce parking requirements for residential uses

• Eliminate parking requirements for projects that add under 1,000 SF in town centers

• Allow parking management plans for projects in town centers to provide parking flexibility if

project contributes to transit and mobility and commits to participating in community-wide

parking management program

5. Tiny Homes • Added Movable Tiny House uses and development standards

6. Signage • Removed sign requirements and refer instead to TRPA requirements

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.219



7. Various Revisions • Modified areas of miscellaneous cleanup, typos, etc.

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.220



Table E. Amendments to Implementing Regulations  

(Zoning/Development Standards) 

Housing Related Amendments  

Allow MF, Multi-Person, Employee Housing  Allowed if in a residential district currently designated as preferrable areas for workforce 

housing and if 100% deed restricted; may require Design Review 

Modified/Modernized  Development 

Standards within Residential Zone Districts 

• Matched minimum lot size to existing density maximums 

• Reduced minimum lot width to match existing development patterns and encourage 

smaller scale development 

• Deleted minimum lot area per dwelling unit (excessive restrictions, rely instead on 

setbacks and coverage)  

• Allow for zero-foot setbacks to accommodate duplexes 

• Cleanup: Matched multiple family density with existing employee housing density in 

Fairway Tract Northeast 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.221



Table F. Public Comment Summary 

1. Changes Triggering Supplemental Analysis CEQA Guidelines Sections 15162-15164 (i.e., the CEQA Guidelines sections 
governing the need for supplemental environmental review) 

2. Setbacks What is changing, where reduced, and why 

3. Food Trucks Where allowed, how permitted, and why 

4. Parking Policy related to overnight camping in parking areas and why; parking 
standards/requirements and why 

5. School enrollment Historical counts for Truckee Tahoe Unified School District 

6. TRPA Environmental Review Preparation of IEC & Findings 

7. 2017 TBAP EIR/EIS Mitigation Measures Implementation Report, how mitigation measures are implemented 

8. Lake Clarity Amendment package objective and Addendum findings 

9. Carrying Capacity TBAP buildout, density, TRPA growth control limits 

10. Cumulative Errata to CEQA Addendum – analysis & findings 

11. CEQA Piecemealing TBAP amendments & independent utility 

12. Wildfire Risk Attorney General guidance 

13. Traffic and VMT CEQA analysis & findings 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.222



Attachment K 
TBAP Implementation Report 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.223



2023 PLACER COUNTY AREA PLAN IMPLEMENTATION REPORT: 
Efforts to implement the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency Regional Plan, the 
Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan, and to achieve Tahoe regional goals 

Purpose 
This report is intended to summarize achievements made in implementing the Tahoe Regional Planning 
Agency Regional Plan (TRPA) and Tahoe Basin Area Plan (TBAP), and in meeting Tahoe regional goals.  
Specifically, the report outlines the County’s implementation efforts related to transportation and 
mobility, housing, Total Daily Maximum Load (TMDL), and the TBAP goals and policies, implementation 
plan, and mitigation measures identified in the TBAP environmental impact report.  

Transportation and Mobility 
Vehicle traffic has been one of the most impactful tourism effects experienced by visitors and residents 
in the Lake Tahoe region for decades.  The County utilizes the Tahoe Basin Regional Transportation Plan, 
Placer County Resort Triangle Transportation Plan, North Lake Tahoe Tourism Master Plan, North Lake 
Tahoe Transportation Demand Management Plan and the Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) Investments 
Policy as a guideline for planning and funding a variety of transportation, mobility, and recreational 
amenities that serve visitors and the local community.  In addition, Placer has supported the formation of 
a Tourism Business Improvement District (TBID) which facilities additional investments to transportation 
based on County and community priorities. Placer County continues to address transportation impacts on 
multiple fronts, addressing both day and overnight visitors, as well as community transportation and 
mobility needs.  The County focuses on transportation and mobility inside and outside of the basin, 
particularly the connections in eastern Placer that span from Tahoe City and Kings Beach to ski resorts and 
areas outside the County including the Town of Truckee, recognizing that tourism and transportation 
impacts are regional and not just local.  To minimize impacts from congestion, at least in part caused by 
visitors, the County dedicates significant TOT revenue and staff resources towards these efforts. 

• Class 1 Trails- (FY 21-22, $2.58 million and FY22-23 funding will go to the Board of Supervisors in
Jan. 2023) Funding continues to be dedicated to trail planning and construction. For FY 22-23,
$3.9 million was dedicated to trail planning and construction throughout eastern Placer County,
most of which was dedicated to the “Resort Triangle Trail” which will ultimately connect Tahoe
City, Kings Beach, and Truckee on a class 1 paved trail.

• Winter Trail Operations- ($97,000 in FY 21-22 and budgeted $100,000 in FY 22-23)- This funds
clearing snow from paved trails in the region which allows for recreation as well as multi-modal
transportation options in the winter.

ATTACHMENT K 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.224

http://www.placer.ca.gov/
mailto:codecomp@placer.ca.gov


• Park and Ride Service-($63,000 spent in FY21-22 and $122,000 budgeted for FY22-23. This funds
winter service to ski resorts as well as summer service at peak times. Program goals include
reducing traffic congestion by concentrating person trips to a higher occupancy option which
results in a reduction in vehicle miles traveled or “VMT” by encouraging use of public transit and
improving the overall visitor experience to the region.

• Micro transit Service-($1.9 million in TOT spent in FY21-22 and $2.5 million budgeted for the
service in FY22-23) – On-demand shuttle service for Kings Beach, Tahoe Vista, Dollar Hill, Tahoe
City and the West Shore to town-centers has been implemented. There is additional weekend
service in the peak seasons between Olympic Valley and Tahoe City and from Northstar to Kings
Beach.  Program goals included linkages of local trips to regional services such as Tahoe Truckee
Area Regional Transit (TART) and removal of barriers to the regional transit usage.  This service
has proven to be utilized by visitors and locals in lieu of personal vehicle trips.  With shared rides,
the services achieve a higher vehicle occupancy per trip and eliminate the need for individual
parking in key economic areas.

• Pedestrian Safety and Town Center Traffic Flow– ($140,000 for crossing guards in FY21-22 and
$250,000 budgeted for traffic mitigation and pedestrian safety in FY22-23)- Pedestrian crossing
guards are placed at heavily trafficked crossing in Kings Beach and Tahoe City. The goals of this
program include pedestrian safety and reduction in traffic congestion. Additional funding can be
utilized for other traffic mitigation programs and signage.

In addition to the transportation initiative mentioned above, Placer County is committed to achieving a 
highly functional regional transit system, the Tahoe Truckee Area Regional Transit (TART), implemented 
for almost two decades.   The Board of Supervisors adopted the TART Systems Plan, recently updated in 
2016 as a guiding document to achieve regional transit services goals.  The Department of Public Works is 
currently working on an update of the TART Systems Plan to incorporate changes in recent years, including 
micro transit.   

Highlights of the operations include: 
o $12 Million Annual Operating Budget
o 14 Transit Buses
o 34 Employees
o 400,000+ Riders for the last Fiscal Year
o Operating Hours: 5:30 AM -12 AM Summer & Winter, 6:00 AM–10:00 PM fall and spring

TART has expanded significantly over the years. In the last five y, TART has accomplished the following: 
o Initiation of SR 267 spring and fall Service
o Initiation of SR 267 year-round service to Truckee
o Expanded night service to include non-peak season service until 10:00 pm
o Initiation of winter early morning connections to Northstar

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.225



o Implementation of TART website (TahoeTruckeeTransit.com) upgrade offering interactive 
user experience  

o Initiation of winter peak AM & PM winter 30-minute service Hwy 89 (Tahoe City – Olympic 
Valley)  

o Initiation of winter peak AM & PM winter 30-minute service Hwy 267 (Crystal Bay – 
Northstar)  

o Initiation of Park & Ride service in partnership with the Truckee North Tahoe 
Transportation Management Association (TNT-TMA); specifically State Route 89 and 267 
connections from Truckee, Tahoe City Transit Center, and Tahoe Biltmore/Crystal Bay 

o Partnership with Town of Truckee and Truckee Tahoe Airport District to initiate year-
round night service connection to Northstar and Olympic Valley from Truckee  

o “Free to the Rider” system implemented on TART  
 
Housing and Town Center Redevelopment 
One of eastern Placer’s primary challenges is how and where to house our local workforce. Much like the 
rest of the Tahoe Basin area, Placer County is facing increased challenges of housing affordability as well 
as housing availability for the workforce.  Approximately 80 percent of Placer’s housing units are used as 
second homes or short-term rentals. The region has experienced declining availability in the existing 
housing supply alongside increasing housing costs due in large part to the purchase of housing for second 
home or short-term rental use in the Tahoe area. This affects the local workforce and results in negative 
impacts to the community, businesses, and tourism. Per United States Census data, the North Lake Tahoe 
Basin has seen a reduction of 2,000 full-time residents between 2000-2020. Many of them would like to 
move back to North Lake Tahoe: per the Mountain Housing Council 2021 Regional Housing 
Implementation Plan, 63 percent of those who work in the North Tahoe region and reside outside the 
region reported that they would prefer to live in the region. Nearly 48 percent of employees who work in 
the North Lake Tahoe region reported that it was hard to find a home with affordable rent while only 6 
percent did not experience any problems finding or securing housing in 2021.  
 
To address the lack of available and affordable housing, Placer County is working closely with the Tahoe 
Regional Planning Agency, the Tahoe Truckee Workforce Housing Agency, the Mountain Housing Council, 
and the business community to collaborate, research, and adopt innovative approaches to workforce 
housing.  
 
Housing Programs: 
In the past few years, the county has launched the following programs and initiatives which have proven 
to be successful in the region: 

• Workforce Housing Preservation - The program is to provide homebuying assistance for 
members of the local workforce to deed restrict existing homes for local workforce occupancy.  

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.226

https://tahoetruckeetransit.com/


The County has invested $1,100,000 in the program since it started in 2021 and continues its effort 
to advance homeownership opportunities and preserve housing for the local workforce. Seven 
deed restrictions have been purchased under the program to date, retaining homeownership and 
rental opportunities exclusively for the workforce in the East County. Currently, 43 applicants 
have qualified for the program, and the County will continue to grow this qualified list as the 
program continues to be funded. 

• Lease to Locals - Funding for this program goes to incentivize homeowners to convert vacation
homes to long-term rentals for members of the local workforce.

The Lease to Locals Program pays homeowners to lease their homes to local workers and
encourages long-term rentals utilizing existing housing stock. The Lease to Locals program has
successfully encouraged 34 properties to house 79 people as of early Summer 2023. Property
rents have averaged $2,481 per month and provided much-needed rental opportunities for the
East County workforce.

• STR Program – This program aims to create a balance between short term rental opportunities
in a diversity of lodging types to both support opportunities for residential lodging and
encourage new or redeveloped lodging in town centers, and to address nuisances related to
short term rental properties.

On January 25, 2022: The Placer County Board of Supervisors introduced an ordinance to repeal
and replace the existing short-term rental ordinance, Chapter 9, Article 9.42 of the Placer County
Code, which expanded the eastern Placer STR program. The ordinance was adopted on February
8, 2022, and took effect on March 11, 2022. To preserve residential compatibility, the County has
implemented several components to the STR program. The expanded program implemented a
maximum cap on STR permits of 3,900 in order to maintain housing supply and attainable housing 
pricing for the workforce. The ordinance also requires a TOT certificate for all STR properties. To
preserve multifamily developments for long-term rentals, the ordinance limits one STR per
multifamily property. The County also initiated a Board-directed stakeholder working group to
gauge the efficacy and impacts of the program.  Additionally, the County has developed a code
compliance team housed out of its Tahoe City office. The County sees the
compliance/enforcement arm as a key component to address complaints and ultimately reduce
the impacts of STRs and tourism, and views the compliance team as educators about the program
and about being a good “guest” neighbor, data gatherers on what is/not working, and on-the-
ground resources to identify new or adapted mitigations that should be implemented (both within 
the parameters of the STR ordinance and in the County initiatives as a whole).

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.227



Housing Projects: 
Between now and 2040, eastern Placer County anticipates a demand for between 300 and 600 single 
family units and between 700 and 1,700 multifamily units1, depending on a low growth or high growth 
scenario. One project the County has been working on for a few years, Dollar Creek Crossing, is currently 
undergoing environmental review and is expected to start the project entitlement process in the fall. The 
project would include up to 150 units of rental housing and for-sale housing targeted to meet regional 
housing needs.  Additionally, the County is working with a private developer on the construction of up to 
76 units of rental workforce housing on a County-owned parcel in Kings Beach. This housing project is part 
of a larger mixed-use redevelopment project, 39° North.   The project is expected to start environmental 
review in the fall.   
 
Town Center Reinvestment and Incentives for New and Renovated Lodging Amenities 
No new lodging products have been constructed in the Placer County portion of the Tahoe Basin since the 
early 1960s. Placer County is working from several angles to spur reinvestment and promotion of mixed-
use projects that include lodging in its Town Centers. 
 
In March 2020, Placer County commissioned a study with Bay Area Economics (BAE) to determine why 
new and renovated lodging projects were not progressing in the North Lake Tahoe basin, and how to 
incentivize new or renovated lodging products. The study pointed to high costs of development, complex 
and prescriptive regulatory requirements, and a lack of high-quality lodging examples that would 
encourage new development. The BAE study determined that additional incentives were needed to help 
spur development consistent with community and County environmental and economic development 
goals and to achieve prescribed environmental standards by redeveloping the outdated built 
environment. Staff revised the existing North Lake Tahoe Economic Development Incentive Program to 
include a TOT rebate that could be utilized for newly constructed or renovated hotel/motel lodging 
products. The amendment to that program was adopted in 2020 and further refined in February 2021 
after subsequent conversations with hotel developers in the area. 
 
Additionally, to further the County’s Town Center reinvestment goals, the County is working with a private 
developer on the construction of a mixed-use project, 39° North (aka Kings Beach Center), on a County-
owned site in Kings Beach.  The project involves a hotel component which would include up to 176 hotel 
keys/units, 38 townhomes, and 76 units of rental workforce housing. The project is expected to start 
environmental review in the fall.   
 
Funding Tourism Mitigation 

1 Placer County Housing Strategy & Development Plan, BAE, 2018. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.228



Placer County continues to be progressive and aggressive in identifying areas where the County can 
mitigate the impacts of tourism and improve the region’s infrastructure, specifically with Transient 
Occupancy Tax (TOT) funding generated by our region’s lodging and creative funding mechanisms that 
support these improvements and mitigation measures.   

A critical step toward this funding is the newly created North Lake Tahoe Tourism Business Improvement 
District (NLTTBID) that was approved by our Board of Supervisors on March 9, 2021.  The NLTTBID is a 
benefit assessment district that provides specific benefits to payors by creating a revenue stream to fund 
marketing, promotions, and special events; visitor services and visitor centers operations; business 
support and advocacy; economic development and transportation; and sustainability and mitigation of 
tourism impacts programs for certain North Lake Tahoe businesses. Under this program, lodging, 
restaurant, retail, activities and attractions are all assessed to create the revenue source.  The NLTTBID is 
expected to generate approximately $6 Million on an annual basis for stewardship and promotion of travel 
and tourism specific to North Lake Tahoe.  The NLTTBID has freed up approximately $4.1 million of County 
TOT funds each year that previously went towards funding North Lake Tahoe tourism and marketing 
promotions. Placer County has committed to use that $4.1 million to fund housing and transportation 
initiatives throughout the North Lake Tahoe/East Placer region.  

Additionally, Placer County continues to invest TOT dollars in transit/transportation and tourism 
mitigation projects. Our region continues to experience significant impacts related to trash and litter in 
our town centers and beaches.  To mitigate this, Placer County increased the capacity of trash bins and 
the frequency of trash service in Kings Beach and Tahoe City through a partnership with Clean Tahoe. For 
example, enhanced litter and trash cleanup service was implemented the past two years, funded by TOT 
($150,000 in FY21-22 and $150,000 in FY22-23).  

Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) 
Lake Tahoe was named an Outstanding National Resource Water (ONRW) by the Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA). Since 1968, Lake Tahoe’s water clarity trends have been monitored and are now 
demonstrating improvement from its historically declining condition. To continue this current trend, a 
TMDL was developed for Lake Tahoe, which recognizes the maximum load of specific pollutants that the 
lake can absorb while still functioning normally. The Lake Tahoe TMDL has an endpoint target of mean 
annual water clarity depth of 97.4 feet, which was the measured clarity during the period from 1967 to 
1971. In 2011, Lahontan completed a TMDL analysis for Lake Tahoe and determined that an increased 
emphasis should be placed on controlling very fine sediment particles, which are less than 16 micrometers 
in diameter, from the urban areas surrounding Lake Tahoe. The Basin Plan Amendments (BPA) was then 
assumed by Lahontan, altering their existing water quality protection mandates to being aimed at 
controlling fine sediment in the Basin. In addition to the BPA, Lahontan adopted an updated NPDES 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.229



Permit, which requires the local jurisdictions to participate in the LCCP. The LCCP is a process to plan for, 
track, monitor and report on pollutants of concern. 

Monitoring & Reporting Program Annual Report 

A. Pollutant Load Reduction Report  

On September 10, 2021, the County finalized and submitted its updated Pollutant Load Reduction Plan 
(PLRP) to Lahontan. Another update will be prepared and submitted by September 30, 2023. The PLRP 
outlines how the County intends to meet the five-year NPDES Permit requirements for reducing pollutant 
loading to Lake Tahoe. The NPDES Permit required the PLRP to describe the County’s strategy to reduce 
its baseline fine sediment particle (FSP) pollutant load by 34%, baseline total nitrogen (TN) pollutant load 
by 19% and baseline total phosphorus (TP) pollutant load by 21% by September 30, 2026. The revised 
Baseline Load Report submitted to Lahontan in September shows the updated Baseline Pollutant and 
Allowable Loads for Placer County. Based upon the County’s Baseline Pollutant Load Calculations, and the 
above-mentioned Permit requirements, the County is required to obtain 898 load reduction “credits” by 
September 30, 2026. A “credit” is defined as approximately 200 pounds of fine sediment particles less 
than 16 μm in diameter. 

Table 1 – Baseline Pollutant Loads 
 

Jurisdiction 
Baseline 
FSP (# of 
particles) 

FSP 
Allowable 
Load 

Baseline 
TN 

(lbs/yr) 

TN 
Allowable 
Load 

Baseline 
TP 

(lbs/yr) 

TP 
Allowable 
Load 

Placer 
County 

2.64X 
E19 1.74X E19 8860 7177 2280 1801 

 

The County’s strategy to demonstrate compliance with this requirement is to register drainage area 
catchments through the LCCP. This is done through modeling the catchment in the Pollutant Load 
Reduction Model (PLRM) Version 2.1. Once the analysis is completed in the PLRM, the results are then 
submitted through the Lake Tahoe INFO (LTInfo) platform for registration. Placer County has a total of 567 
credits, which includes 321 credits for registered BMP catchments within Kings Beach, Lake Tahoe Park, 
Lake Forest Highlands, and West Sunnyside Project areas. Additionally, 246 credits have been secured for 
the road registration for the Dollar Point to Tahoe Vista portion of the County.  

The Dollar Point to Tahoe Vista road registration was submitted for a 5-year registration in 2017. It was 
updated and registration resubmitted and accepted in 2022. Additionally, the road condition score 
included in the submitted registration was a 3.0 compared to the 3.5 which was originally registered. The 
change in road condition score was a result of further monitoring and to provide a factor of safety for 
future years while still being able to meet the credit requirement for the permit term. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.230



Table 2 – County’s Registered Catchments 

Catchment Area Credit 
Potential 

WY22 Registration Type Registration Establishment Date 

Kings Beach 174 174 Treatment BMP Oct 1, 2015 

Lake Tahoe Park 34 34 Treatment BMP Oct 1, 2015 

Lake Forest Highlands 30 30 Treatment BMP Oct 1, 2015 

West Sunnyside 83 83 Treatment BMP Oct 1, 2015 

Dollar Point – Tahoe 
Vista 

283 246 Road Operations Oct 1, 2022 

The LCCP requires that the condition of all treatment BMPs be shown to meet a 2.5 or higher BMP RAM 
score during the spring/summer period for the Urban Implementer to declare all expected credits in a 
given water year. As shown in Table 2, all key, essential, and supporting BMPs in the registrations were 
inspected and maintained according to their respective registration memos.  

Tables 3 and 4 show the 2022 BMP RAM scores for registered treatment BMPs and Road RAM scores for 
registered roads in the County, respectively. 

Table 3 – County’s Registered Treatment BMP RAM Scores 

BMP ID BMP Type BMP 
RAM 

Latest Score 
Date 

Registered Catchment Water Quality 
Importance 

DSP_DB01 Dry Basin 4.3 07/12/22 King's Beach Essential 
DSP_IB01 Infiltration Basin 5.0 07/21/22 King's Beach Supporting 
DSP_IB02 Infiltration Basin 5.0 07/21/22 King's Beach Key 
KB1_DB01 Dry Basin 4.5 07/20/22 King's Beach Supporting 
KB1_DB02 Dry Basin 4.5 07/21/22 King's Beach Supporting 
KB1_DB03 Dry Basin 3.1 06/21/22 King's Beach Supporting 
KB1_DB05 Dry Basin 4.7 07/07/22 King's Beach Essential 
KB3_CF01 Cartridge Filter 5.0 09/26/22 King's Beach Essential 
KB3_CF02 Cartridge Filter 5.0 09/26/22 King's Beach Essential 
KB3_WB02 Wet Basin 3.5 07/20/22 King's Beach Essential 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.231



KB3_WB01 Wet Basin 4.6 07/20/22 King's Beach Supporting 
KBCC_DB01 Dry Basin 4.8 07/14/22 King's Beach Key 
KBCC_WB01 Wet Basin 2.7 07/14/22 King's Beach Supporting 
UCT_DB01 Dry Basin 3.2 06/16/22 King's Beach Supporting 
UCT_IB01 Infiltration Basin 5.0 07/21/22 King's Beach Supporting 
LF2_DB01 Dry Basin 3.1 06/22/22 Lake Forest Highlands Essential 
LTP_DB01 Dry Basin 3.2 06/07/22 Lake Tahoe Park Essential 
WS1_DB01 Dry Basin 3.2 06/01/22 West Sunnyside Essential 

 

Table 4 – County’s Registered Road RAM Scores 

Road Class Expected 
Condition 
Score 

Average of all 
Observed 
Scores 

Season Number of 
Assessments 
Required 

Number of 
Assessments 
Conducted 

Achieving 
Expected 
Conditions 

Placer 
Roads 

3.0 3.6 WY2022 80 84 Yes 

 3.0 3.9 Fall/Winter 20 21  
 3.0 3.8 Fall/Winter 20 21  
 3.0 3.4 Fall/Winter 20 21  
 3.0 3.3 Summer 20 21  

 

As an active partner in the Tahoe TMDL, County staff continues to participate in the LCCP and the 
associated Tools Improvement Project. The current PLRM 2.1 version was used to register the Kings Beach, 
Lake Tahoe Park, Lake Forest Highlands, and West Sunnyside treatment BMP registrations and the Dollar 
Point to Tahoe Vista road registration.  

The County also plans to implement the TMDL tools as designed for road maintenance monitoring and 
will continue to play a critical role in understanding and quantifying the benefits from these winter 
maintenance practices. With collaboration and assistance with partner agencies such as Caltrans and El 
Dorado County, the County continues to review TMDL strategies that both make sense and are cost 
effective. 

Tahoe Basin Area Plan Implementation  

As outlined in this report, there have been many achievements in implementing the Tahoe Basin Area 
Plan’s policies related to transportation, mobility, housing, and TMDL efforts that are currently underway.  

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.232



As such, a Local Government Coordination Report (Report) was developed by TRPA staff to inform the 
TRPA Governing Board on progress being made toward the development, adoption, and implemention of 
the TBAP and associated permit delegation Memoranda of Understanding (MOU). Specifically, the Report 
was prepared, pursuant to TRPA Code, Section 13.8: Monitoring, Certification, and Enformcement of Area 
Plans, to provide the Governing Board a recommendation to either certify, ceritfy with conditions or 
revoke all or part of the a permit delegation MOU based on audit results. Based on those results the TBAP 
was recertified by the TRPA Governing Board in December of 2022.   

The recertification was determined based on the following. TRPA as a regional agency guides and oversees 
the implementation of its adopted Regional Plan, Local jurisdication through adopted Area Plans play a 
key role in meeting local community needs while accomplishing the broader goals for the Tahoe Region. 
The Regional Plan specifies TRPA will periodically review the implementation of adopted Area Plans and 
associated permit delegation MOUs for continuing conformation with the Regional Plan. As such, and as 
outlined in the Report, during 2021, 233 project applications were submitted to TRPA and 148 project 
applications were submitted to Placer County within the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan.  During the 
review of the project issued by Placer County on behalf of TRPA, TRPA found that the audit of those 
projects were in compliance with the MOU, and determined that the pursuant to TRPA Code, Section 
13.8.4:  Effect of Annual Review; Annual Report, that the Governing Board recertify Placer County’s MOU. 

In addition to the 148 project applications submitted to Placer County, the Report highlighted the 
following Area Plan projects:  

• The Tahoe City Lodge Project, a redevelopment project in Tahoe City, has been approved and the
original building demolished in 2021. The applicant delayed construction in 2021/2022 due to
material and labor costs. An extension of time for the project was approved in October 2022. In
In July of 2023, construction has commenced with the installation of foundations, vesting the
permit.

• 39 North (formerly the Kings Beach Center Project), proposes the redevelopment of two non-
contiguous project sites in Kings Beach, totaling 5.15 acres. The proposed project includes a 153
key hotel, 36 market-rate townhomes, 10,500 square feet of retail and restaurant space and a 74-
unit deed restricted achievable multi-family development. The project description is being refined 
in anticipation of a Notice of Preparation and scoping for a joint EIR/EIS in 2023.

• The Boatworks Redevelopment project is a joint EIR/EIS mixed-use project in Tahoe City. The
projject proposal includes 80 to 85 hotel units, 31 residential condominiums, conference facilities, 
full-service spa, swimming pool/hot tubs, fitness center, food and beverage outlets and retail
space. The project description is being refined in antiicpation of a Notice of Preparation and
scoping in 2023.

• Planning for the proposed Dollar Creek Crossing Affordable Housing Project, a multi-family
affordable housing project, is underway with an application submittal anticipated in winter 2023.

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.233



• Lake View Development is a mid-size mixed use project inlcuding 10 market rate multi-family 
units, 10 tourist accommodation units and 1,455 square feet of professional office in Kings Beach. 
The project is undergoing a joint review with Placer County and TRPA.  

• Tahoe Basin Area Plan Updates to accelerate the production and supply of affordable-achieveable 
housing in the North Tahoe-Placer area were adopted in February 2021.  

• Current Tahoe Basin Area Plan updates are under review with the intent of providing more 
development incentives and flexibility to encourage economic redevelopment and housing in the 
North Tahoe-Placer area.  

• Several Placer County Department of Public Works projects that support Area Plan 
implementationwere either started or completed in 2020/2021, including:  

o SR 28/Hwy 267 Roundabout project/Griff creek watershed restoration (in design)  
o SR 89 / Fanny Bridge Revitalization (second phase with roundabout at the “wye”, Fanny 

bridge replacement and complete streets improvements) (ready for construction)  
o TART Connect Micor-shuttle service pilot program was successful and extended for 

another year.  
o Free TRAT services pilot program was successul and extended for another year.  
o Resort Triangle Transportation adopted by Board of Supervisors as an ordinance to 

expand parking waiver and exemtpion opportunities with project contribution to transit, 
shared parking, etc.. Implementation of Adaptive Corridor Management and Parking 
Management continues.  

o Dollar Creek Shared Use Trail (completed)  
o North Tahoe Bike Trail segments 1 and 3 (in design)  
o West Shore Pedestrian Improvements (completed)  
o Lakeside Trail – Commons Beach to Fanny Bridge (in design)  
o Kings Beach Water Quality Project – Secline Beach Project (in construction)  

With regards to TMDL Load Reduction and Four-year Recertification, the Lake Tahoe TMDL Program 2022 
Performance Report summarized TMDL Program accomplishments through 2021 and found that all local 
jurisdictions were meeting or exceeing the credit targets for 2021 further supporting the TRPA’s 
Governing Boards action to recertify the TBAP. This recertification was based on the Lake Tahoe TMDL 
Program that is adminstered by the California Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board (Water 
Board) and Nevada Division of Enviornmental Protection (NDEP), together with Total Maximum Daily Load 
(TMDL) Management Agencies. The program is a long term process that guides efforts to restore Lake 
Tahoe’s clarity to depths of nearly 100 feet. To meet this goal, the program aims to reduce fine sediment 
particles by 65 percent; total nitrogen loads by 10 percent; and total phosphorous loads by 35 percent. 
To ensure Area Plans are in comformance with the Lake Tahoe TMDL, TRPA Code, Section 13.8.5: Four-
Year Recertification, requires TRPA use catchment data and all reports to inform the four-year Area Plan 
recertificaiton. Specifically, Placer County exceeded the 2021 Credit Target of 554 by 13 credits, with a 
credit award of 567.  

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.234



The Report aslo addressed Housing, and acknowledged that in 2020, TRPA formed the Tahoe 
Living: Housing and Community Revitalization Working Group. This committee, made up of 
members from local agencies and organziations, housing developers and community members, 
has and continues to develop policy recommendations to address critical housing issues and 
futhe rthe availability of affordable, moderate-income, and local achievable workforce housing. 

Policy Document - Implementation Plan 

In compliance with the TBAP goals and policies, several agencies have accomplished substantial progress 
or completion of the projects shown in the table below. The table reflects a status update on agencies’ 
projects that are included in the TBAP Implementation Plan. (Updated as of 9/7/23). 

Based on responses from lead or coordinating agencies, the following status updates were provided. 
Projects not shown in the table are pending a status update from the lead agency.,  

Project status based on repsonses from agencies: 

Completed: 21 
In progress: 11 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.235



Not started: 9 
Abandoned: 2 

 
 

Completed Projects 
Conservation Projects – Water Quality, Soil Conservation and Stream Environment Zones 

Project Name Project Description Lead 
Agency 

West Sunnyside Water Quality 
Improvement Project, Phase I & 
II 

The West Sunnyside area includes steep hillside terrain and a lack of improved drainage conveyance 
facilities. The project has re-evaluated and investigated effective ways to maximize source control, 

decrease potential for erosive surface flows, and infiltrate/treat stormwater runoff. The project 
includes rock-lined channels, piped drainage systems, asphalt dike, concrete curb and gutter, and 

vegetation. Drainage treatment facilities include sediment traps and detention basins. Phase 1 of the 
West Sunnyside project includes a large treatment basin for detaining storm water from the Talmont 

Subdivision. The second phase will include source control effort directly in the Talmont Subdivision to 
reduce erosion and storm water volume. Construction for Phase 1 is complete and Phase 2 is 

scheduled to be constructed in 2015 pending available funding. 
Placer 
County 

Griff Creek Watershed Water 
Quality Project 

Due to development in the urbanized area of Kings Beach, the once braided stream channel system 
with natural flood control zones has been forced into a single channel that has resulted in significant 

bank erosion and incised channels. In addition, the watershed currently has no urban water treatment 
facilities and the untreated urban runoff is contributing to nutrient sediment and deposition into the 

creek’s outlet, Lake Tahoe.  
Placer 
County 

Homewood Erosion Control 
Project 

This project involves treatment of stormwater and slope stabilization through revegetation, rock slope 
protection, retaining walls, curb and gutter, and sediment basins. Catchment and treatment of 

sediment is needed. The project began in 2006 with an expected completion date of 2017. The 
project is located at San Souci Terrace and Sacramento Avenue between Fawn Street and Tahoe 

Ski Bowl. 
Placer 
County 

Soil Erosion Control Planning-
Water Fund  

This project is funded by a grant from the CTC. The original project was for erosion control measures 
at the North Tahoe Regional Park. Due to certain aspects of the original scope, the project was 
changed to identifying high priority areas needing erosion control measures. Three areas were 

identified: Carnelian Woods Tanks Road, Kingswood West Tank Site, and the Dollar Cove area there 
the District’s Dollar Main sere lift station is located. NTPUD 

Conservation Projects - Scenic Routes 

Wayfinding Sign Program Implement the Placer County Wayfinding Signage Plan to improve the visitor experience and reduce 
auto trips. 

Placer 
County 

Conservation Projects – Vegetation and Wildfire Hazards 

North Tahoe Public Utility 
District Hazardous Fuels 
Treatment at North Tahoe 
Regional Park 

The NTPUD has developed a forest management plan and implements and carries out fuel reduction 
on forested areas on District-owned properties. 

NTPUD 

Transportation Projects 

Dollar Creek Shared Use Trail 

This project will result in the construction of a paved 10-foot wide and 2.2 mile long shared-use trail 
through the Dollar and Firestone properties extending the existing TCPUD multi-use trail (that 
currently terminates near the intersection of Dollar Drive and SR 28) north to the end of Fulton 

Crescent Drive. This project is the southern segment of an approximately 8-mile long North Tahoe 
Bike Trail corridor identified by TRPA to link Tahoe City to Kings Beach. Other connections off of this 

facility have also been proposed to extend northward to Northstar and Truckee. 
Placer 
County 

Homewood Bike Trail Project 

TCPUD has proposed improvements for the construction of 4,175 linear feet of Class I trail along the 
west side of SR 89 from Fawn Street to Cherry Street, with a short 885 linear-foot Class 3 connection 

between Silver Street and Trout Street along Sans Souci Terrace. The Class I bike trail will be a 
paved eight-foot wide path with two-foot compacted shoulders. This section requires a new bike and 

pedestrian bridge over Madden Creek and includes a portion of trail along the frontage of the 
Homewood Mountain Resort parking lot. The Class III connection along Sans Souci Terrace is a 

shared motor vehicle/bicycle route that will be indicated with a bike route sign. TCPUD is also leading 
the effort to fill the “Homewood Hole,” a 0.9-mile gap in the west shore between Cherry Street and 
Fawn Street. Portions directly adjacent to the state highway are planned for construction as part of 

the Lakeside erosion project, while another portion is planned for construction as part of development 
of the Homewood Master Resort. 

TCPUD 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.236



Kings Beach Commercial Core 
Improvement Project 

In addition to the SR 28 improvements noted above, the Kings Beach Commercial Core Improvement 
Project will result in the construction of sidewalks along SR 28 between SR 267 and Beaver Street, 
as well as along portions of Brook Avenue, Steelhead Avenue, Minnow Avenue, Fox Street, Coon 

Street, Deer Street, Secline Street, and Chipmunk Street. 
Placer 
County 

Recreation Projects (Also See Trail Projects in the Transportation Section) 

Tahoe Vista Recreation Area 
(TVRA) Phase 2 

The North Tahoe Public Utility District acquired a 3.6 acre parcel with financial assistance from the 
California Tahoe Conservancy for completion of Phase 2 of the project. Phase 2 will include the 
addition of parking (24 vehicle with trailer pull-through spaces and 41 vehicle spaces, 65 total), 
bicycle trails, a bus pullout and transportation shelter, infrastructure for future 2,200 square foot 
concession space and restrooms, and landscaping. TVRA cannot be fully utilized by the limited 

parking that was permitted and constructed on the lakeside of the project. The project was approved 
with the understanding that project support parking would be built on the westerly side of National 

Avenue to serve the parking needs of the boat launch facility. NTPUD 

Public Service and Facilities Projects 

Zone I Water Storage Tank 
Project 

This is a project in Kings Beach to install a new 1.3 million gallon water tank in Zone I to help meet 
storage deficiency in Zone 1, and install a booster pump station to boost potable water from Zone I to 

the Zone 2 water tank. NTPUD 

Carnelian & Dollar Sewer Pump 
Station Design - Phase I 

This project is for a rehabilitation design of the Carnelian and Dollar Main Sewer Pump Stations. Due 
to the direct relationship between the two stations, they need to be designed together, though 

construction will be done separately. NTPUD 

Brockway ECP Sewer/Water 
Improvements 

Relocations of some utilities is required due to the improvements proposed as part of the Brockway 
Erosion Control Project. Additionally, replacement of some District facilities due to their age and close 

proximity to the proposed improvements is also necessary. NTPUD 

Base Facilities Site Design  This project is necessary to replace outdated buildings and involves the design of an office building to 
house District operations, recreation, engineering, and administrative staff. NTPUD 

Dollar Pump Station 
Rehabilitation 

This project involves the replacement of an intertie valve between the Dollar Main and Dollar Addition 
wet wells, demolition of HVAC appurtenances, installation of VFD, demolition of Q-cells and 

appurtenances, removal and replacement of the #3 pump discharge valve, installation of pressure 
tranducers, grouting floor voids, stabilizing the retaining wall, and SCADA integration. NTPUD 

Kings Beach Watershed 
Improvement 

This project involves the replacement of water and sewer mains as part of the Kings Beach 
Commercial Core Improvements and Watershed Improvement Projects. NTPUD 

New Kings Beach Water Storage 
- Zone 1

This project will increase storage in the system, and increase system redundancy and operating 
efficiencies. It involves installing a new 1.3 million gallon water tank in Zone 1 to help meet storage 

deficiency in Zone 1, and install a booster pump station to boost potable water from the Zone 1 to the 
Zone 2 water tank. NTPUD 

Rim Drive Emergency Water 
Main Replacement Project 

This project will complete the emergency water main replacement project that was done in 2011 by 
replacing the lower portion of Rim Drive. On-going replacement of water mains increases system 

reliability and reduces leakage. NTPUD 

Dolly Varden Water Main 
Replacement Project 

This project will allow the District to abandon the mid-block water main between Cutthroat and Dolly 
Varden, and involves the replacement of water mains in Dolly Varden Avenue from Chipmunk to SR 

267. The ongoing replacement of water mains increases system reliability and reduces leakage. NTPUD 

Carnelian to Watson Creek 
Water Main Replacement 

This area has deficient water pressure to support current needs and fire suppression. The project 
involves the replacement of approximately 2,400 linear feet of undersized water mains and the 
installation of fire hydrants along the south side of SR 28 from Carnelian Bay to Watson Creek. NTPUD 

Tahoe Vista Recreation Area 
Phase 2 

This is the second phase of Tahoe Vista Recreation Area Improvements. The project involves design 
and construction for the north-side parking area. NTPUD 

In Progress Projects 

Conservation Projects – Water Quality, Soil Conservation and Stream Environment Zones 

Project Name Project Description Lead Agency 

Pollution Control Management Measures

New High Efficiency Street Sweepers (5.77%)

Additional projects and measures will be 

identified in future Pollutant Load Reduction 

Placer County

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.237



Plans based on TMDL science and methodology. 

Details for each TMDL Project are described 

below. (Something seems to be missing here, 

there is nothing described below).

Kings Beach Water Quality and SEZ 
Improvement Project

The Kings Beach Residential area includes a 

highly urbanized area with a lack of adequate 

drainage conveyance and stormwater treatment 

facilities. This project proposes to improve the 

quality of stormwater discharging into Lake Tahoe 

from the Kings Beach community by stabilizing 

exposed soils with vegetation and/or mulch; 

improving the existing drainage system with new 

curbs, gutters, earthen berms and underground 

pipes; and treating runoff with a variety of 

methods including fill removal, sediment traps 

and vaults, swales, infiltration and/or detention 

basins, and media filters. Placer County

Tahoe Vista-Tamarack Erosion Control 
Project

This project involves water quality improvements 

and treatment of public right-of-way runoff. The 

project began is 2013 and expected completion is 

2016. Placer County

Tahoe City PUD Access Road BMP and 
Paving

Many TCPUD water supply and sewage transport 

facilities are accessed by dirt and gravel access 

roads. These roads are not surfaced and have no 

storm water treatment or BMPs. In addition, snow 

must be removed from these roads in winter. The 

project proposes to pave these access roads and 

install BMPs for the roadways. TCPUD

Tahoe City PUD BMP Retrofits for District-
Owned Facilities

The purpose of this program is to retrofit and 

update existing District-owned facilities through 

the installation of BMPs for the protection and/or 

restoration of water quality and attainment of 

minimum discharge standards. BMP 

implementation on district owned properties 

include: paving legally established roads, 

driveways, and parking areas; installation of 

drainage conveyances; treatment of surface 

runoff from land covered; vegetate denuded 

areas; restriction of vehicular access; and 

improved delineation of dedicated walkways or 

circulation paths within district-owned parks. TCPUD

Transportation Projects 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.238



SR 89 / Fanny Bridge Community 
Revitalization Project

This project is a roadway modification and 

community revitalization plan, approved in May 

2015 and developed by the Tahoe Transportation 

District (TTD) and Placer County for the Fanny 

Bridge area in Tahoe City. It addresses existing 

traffic congestion and poor bicycle/pedestrian 

conditions with a new State highway alignment 

and bridge over the Truckee River to the south of 

the existing Fanny Bridge, along with significant 

pedestrian and bicycle improvements. 

Construction is scheduled to begin in 2016.

The project was approved with the Alternative 1, 

Option 2 design. New roundabouts are planned at 

the Tahoe City wye and at both ends of the new 

roadway segment. Bike Lane and sidewalk 

connections will be completed between the east 

and wye roundabout, the west and wye 

roundabout and the east end of the project area 

on Highway 28. Multi-use trail improvements will 

connect the east and west roundabouts and pass 

under the new bridge on both sides of the 

Truckee River.

It is the joint desire of TRPA, The Tahoe 

Metropolitan Planning Organization, Tahoe 

Transportation District (TTD)and Placer County to 

revitalize the Fanny Bridge and Tahoe City River 

District Special Planning Area into a pedestrian 

and bicycle friendly zone.  After completion of 

construction of the SR 89 / Fanny Bridge 

Community Revitalization Project, the County 

shall consider special outdoor events and 

roadway closures of the old SR 89 / Fanny Bridge 

area thru temporary outdoor event permits, 

special event encroachment permits, and 

selected closures determined by Placer County. 

Potential impacts to local businesses and traffic 

impacts associated with special events shall be 

considered and accommodated where feasible on 

a case by case basis.

In order to monitor activity in the SR 89 / Fanny 

Bridge area, volume count stations will be 

installed with the SR 89/Fanny Bridge Community 

Revitalization Project.  The County will make 

collected data from count stations available to 

local jurisdictional partners upon request.  Initial 

peak and non-peak hour volume data will be 

obtained after completion of the SR 89 / Fanny 

Bridge Revitalization Project to establish a 

volume and mode baseline.  Additional 

monitoring of bicycle and pedestrian activity, 

sales tax receipts, and other data will be 

coordinated with TRPA and TTD.  Future volume 

monitoring will be performed consistent with the 

County roadway monitoring practices and the 

TTD

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.239



Region’s Lake Tahoe Bicycle and Pedestrian 

Monitoring Protocol. 

Tahoe City Mobility Plan 

The Tahoe City Mobility Plan is intended to 

further design for future connectivity and advance 

solutions for community cohesion in downtown 

Tahoe City.  The Plan addresses pedestrian and 

bicycle corridor gaps in Tahoe City, including the 

“missing link” in the shared use path between 

Commons Beach and the wye.  The Plan also 

provides complete street strategies to improve 

parking and circulation along SR 28 near Grove 

Street, and to establish a vibrant pedestrian-

oriented downtown with safe crossings along SR 

28 to Lake Tahoe, Commons Beach and the 

Truckee River.  Placer County 

Regional Transit Improvements 

Placer County is engaged with local stakeholders 

in developing the North Tahoe Resort Triangle 

Transit Vision.  The Vision Plan would increase 

transit service by 70% for Placer County’s Tahoe 

Area Regional Transit service by adding over 

18,000 vehicle revenue hours of transit service. TART 

Bus Stop Improvements: West Slope and 
Tahoe  

This project involves the addition or retrofit of 

public bus shelters for Placer County Transit 

(West Slope) and Tahoe Area Regional Transit 

(TART). This project represents an ongoing effort 

to replace or add shelters to enhance transit 

ridership throughout the County. TART 

The North Tahoe Bike Trail This project is a northern extension of the Dollar 

Creek Shared Use Trail and will result in the 

completion of the eight-mile long multi-purpose 

Placer County 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.240



trail corridor identified by TRPA to link Tahoe City 

to Kings Beach.

Public Service and Facilities Projects 

Satellite Station Bypass & Valve 
Replacements - Phase I

This project is the result of field work and 

condition assessments of all the satellite pump 

stations. It involves the installation of several 

check valves and gate valves at all satellite 

stations and install bypass valve galleries at high-

flow satellite stations. NTPUD

Not Started Projects 

Conservation Projects – Water Quality, Soil Conservation and Stream Environment Zones 

Project Name Project Description Lead Agency 

Tahoe City Golf Course Restoration

Wetland restoration on portions of the Tahoe City 

Golf Course is being evaluated and planned. 

Projects could be completed by public agencies 

and/or in partnership with Town Center 

redevelopment projects.  Placer County

Flick Point Erosion Control Project II
This project began in 2014 and involves water 

quality improvements and treatment of public 

right-of-way runoff. Placer County

North Tahoe Public Utility District Erosion 
Control Projects

This is a combination of a variety of small erosion 

control projects: one at the District’s Dollar Hill D-

6 sewer pump station/water lake intake which is 

on the shore of Lake Tahoe; another at the Dollar 

Hill D-4 sewer pump station with a road that runs 

right to Lake Tahoe; and erosion control on the 

access roads for the two water tanks in Carnelian 

Bay, Kingswood West Water Tank Access Road. 

These projects began in 2011. NTPUD

Tahoe City Snow Disposal Area Siting

The purpose of this project is to evaluate snow 

removal and disposal for the community, 

including community planning for snow 

management, disposal site selection, disposal 

site characteristics, and disposal site preparation 

in order to minimize the potential for negative 

environmental effects. TCPUD

Transportation Projects 

Lake Forest Bike Trail Improvement
TCPUD is working to construct two short Class I 

trails in the Lake Forest area connecting the 

North Shore Trail with Skylandia Park. TCPUD

National Avenue Bike Path The National Avenue Bike Path will ultimately 

consist of a Class I facility along National Avenue 

from SR 89 to Donner Road. An initial segment 

NTPUD

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.241



adjacent to the Tahoe Vista Recreational Area 

parking area was constructed in 2012. 

Chipmunk to Secline Bike Path 

A shared use path is planned along the south 

(Lake) side of SR 28 between Chipmunk Street 

and Secline Street, connecting bike lanes on the 

discontinuous segments of Brockway Vista Road 

with a separated facility through the State Beach 

area. Placer County 

Recreation Projects (Also See Trail Projects in the Transportation Section) 

Lake Forest Beach Public Access 
Improvements 

This project began in 2011 and involves the 

extension of water lines to provide for water 

service, fire protection, and permanent restrooms 

at Lake Forest Beach. TCPUD 

Skylandia Park Public Access Improvements 
This project involves the reconstruction of water 

lines to provide for fire protection and the 

construction of a picnic pavilion with ADA access. TCPUD 

 

Abandoned Projects 

Conservation Projects – Water Quality, Soil Conservation and Stream Environment Zones 

Project Name Project Description Lead Agency 

Recreation Projects (Also See Trail Projects in the Transportation Section) 

64 Acres Recreational Access Improvements 
This project includes construction of permanent 

restroom facilities, construction of additional 

public parking, and installation of barriers to 

protect vegetation and reduce compaction of 

natural areas. TCPUD 

Public Service and Facilities Projects 

CIP Sewer Projects Slurry Seal  
Slurry seal of pavement to be done one year after 

CIP project completion as required by Placer 

County and Caltrans Encroachment Permits. This 

project fulfills requirements of Placer County and 

Caltrans linear projects. NTPUD 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.242



Tahoe Basin Area Plan EIR/EIS & Mitigation 

The Tahoe Basin Area Plan EIR/EIS is a programatic environmental document that provides a 
regional scale analaysis resulting in a framework for mitigation measures associated with future 
land use implementation.  Subsequent private and public projects associated with both land 
development and infrastructure will be reguired to preform site-specific environemtnal reivew 
documents as they move through the planning, review, and decision-making process.  Since 
certification of the EIR/EIS in 2017, staff have applied the TBAP EIR/EIS mitigation measures to land 
development/redevelopment projects that have been approved.  However, while there are a 
number of projects that have been under review since 2017, there are only a  limited number of 
small-scale projects that have been approved since 2017.     

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.243



Attachment M 
Response to Comments 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.244



This document provides responses to comments raised during the October 16, 2023 Board 
meeting on the Tahoe Basin Area Plan (TBAP) amendments. The responses are categorized by 
topic areas for ease of reference.  

The common remark from many commenters is that the TBAP amendments would increase density 
and therefore impact traffic congestion, wildfire evacuation, and lake clarity, among other things. 
However, the changes that are being proposed with the TBAP amendments do not add uses and do 
not increase density.  Instead, what are being proposed are minor changes to the Area Plan that 
have been brought forward to encourage new workforce housing and to facilitate and encourage 
small-scale lodging and mixed-use development to fill vacant store fronts.  These changes are 
intended to encourage lodging in Town Centers that could, in turn, reduce the number of STRs in 
neighborhoods.  Also, with the redevelopment of derelict or vacant properties, County-required Low 
Impact Development projects would actually improve lake water quality. Additionally, the Placer 
County Sheriff’s Office provided clarity on handling of wildfire evacuation responses, which assists 
in showing that these amendments do not negatively impact evacuation impacts. Responses on 
specific areas are explained further below.   

COMMENTS ABOUT CEQA / ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERNS 

1. TRPA Environmental Review, IEC and Findings

TRPA requires an Initial Environmental Checklist (IEC) that complies with federal environmental 
regulations. This was prepared for the TBAP addendum and errata and TRPA staff are currently 
reviewing it. The IEC is not required for Placer County Board of Supervisors approval, but will be 
available for public review with other meeting materials for the TRPA Advisory Planning 
Commission on December 13, 2023. 

2. Implementation of Mitigation Measures

The Tahoe Basin Area Plan Environmental Impact Report (EIR/S) requires projects to implement 
and complete mitigation measures related to topics including but not limited to transportation, 
mobility, housing, and total maximum daily load/lake clarity. Limited projects have come forward 
since adoption of the TBAP in 2017; therefore, there haven’t been as many opportunities for 
mitigation measure implementation as anticipated. To date, 21 implementation projects have 
been completed, 11 are in progress, nine haven’t started, and two have been abandoned. 
Nonetheless, the current status of implementation of the mitigation measures are described in 
Attachment K to the staff report.  

3. Changed Circumstances / New Information

Commenters expressed concern that circumstances have changed since the 2017 TBAP 
Environmental Impact Report / Environmental Impact Statement (EIR/S) which would require a 
subsequent EIR instead of the Addendum to the EIR (Staff Report, Attachment D) prepared for 
the project. CEQA Guidelines sections 15162 through 15164 provide the framework for when 
supplemental environmental review is needed after an environmental impact report is certified by 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.245



a public agency. Section 15162 states clearly that “no subsequent EIR shall be prepared … unless 
the lead agency determines, on the basis of substantial evidence in light of the whole record” that 
one of three triggers have occurred (changed project, changed circumstances or new information 
of substantial importance). All three triggers have an underlying requirement that changes must 
be substantial or major to be considered for supplemental review.  In addition, changes by 
themselves, do not result in a subsequent EIR unless those changes result in new significant 
environmental effects or substantial increases in already-significant environmental effects. 
 
Changed Project 
CEQA Guidelines section 15162(a)(1) states that a project change occurs when “substantial 
changes are proposed in the project which will require major revisions of the previous EIR ….”  
Considering subsequent review in the context of a changed project, the question is whether the 
proposed project modification would be expected to have a more severe or more significant 
impact than previously analyzed.  The supplemental review is specifically looking at the increment 
of impact resulting from the amendments themselves, not the impact from the Area Plan as a 
whole, because the Area Plan’s impact was already analyzed in the 2017 TBAP EIR/S.   
  
Changed Circumstances  
CEQA Guidelines section 15162(a)(2) states that changed circumstances occur when 
“substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under which the project is 
undertaken which will require major revisions of the previous EIR….”  In the case of changed 
circumstances, it is critical that any changed circumstances must create new or more severe 
significant impacts than those considered in the original CEQA document. In addition, the phrase 
“significant effect on the environment” in sections 15162 through 15164 is specifically defined in 
a manner that does not include the environment’s effect on the project. (California Building 
Industry Assn. v. Bay Area Air Quality Management Dist. (2015) 62 Cal.4th 369, 377–378 [“ … it 
is the project's impact on the environment—and not the environment's impact on the project—
that compels an evaluation of how future residents or users could be affected by exacerbated 
conditions.”].) As a result, local agencies are not asked to analyze the impact of existing 
environmental conditions on a project’s future users or residents, nor are they asked to analyze 
future unidentified environmental impacts on the project.    
 
New Information 
CEQA Guidelines section 15162(a)(3) states that new information is “information of substantial 
importance, which was not known and could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable 
diligence at the time the previous EIR was certified as complete ….”  When the Guidelines refer 
to new information, they specifically refer to new factual information, not regulatory changes or 
agency guidance. (Save Lafayette v. City of Lafayette (2022) 85 Cal.App.5th 842, 856 [“Courts 
analyzing whether new information necessitates an SEIR look to the physical characteristics of a 
site and the actual environmental effects of a project, not to mere regulatory changes”].)  The key 
consideration is also whether the new information was not known, and could not have been known 
at the time of the prior EIR (here the 2017 TBAP EIR/S).  Information that was known at any level, 
or could have been known at the time of the certification of the original EIR does not trigger the 
need for a Subsequent EIR.   
 
Analysis 
With the CEQA analysis the County has determined that none of the conditions for subsequent 
review under the CEQA Guidelines have been triggered, and an addendum is the appropriate 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.246



document to cover these minor changes. What this means is the amendments would not result in 
any new, substantially more severe significant effects than were identified in the Area Plan EIR/S. 
The framework identified here is explained with respect to specific issues in the sections below. 

The changes to the Area Plan policies and regulations proposed with these amendments further 
support implementation of the land use pattern envisioned in the TBAP and analyzed in the Area 
Plan EIR/S, so they would not result in new or more severe impacts than what was analyzed in 
the Area Plan EIR/S.     

As noted in the addendum for the amendments, no changes are proposed to the regional growth 
control system.  In other words, the Area Plan and the Area Plan EIR/S have the backstop of 
TRPA’s Regional Plan.  The amendments will not increase the overall development potential in 
the Area Plan because the total number of residential units, tourist accommodation units, and 
commercial floor area is capped by TRPA’s growth control system from TRPA’s Regional Plan. 
County approvals will continue to be bound by the TRPA carrying capacity set by the TRPA 
Regional Plan.   

Because the overall growth potential would not be changed, any increase in development in Town 
Centers, for example due to affordable housing incentives, would be offset with a corresponding 
decrease in development potential outside of Town Centers.   

It's also important to note that the TBAP amendments would not approve any specific project, and 
future projects within the plan area would be reviewed pursuant to CEQA and TRPA requirements 
through project-specific environmental review.   

The amendments still require that certain projects, such as projects that don’t screen out for VMT, 
obtain project-specific permits to ensure there is no incompatibility with other land uses.  Projects 
such as hotels/mixed use projects would still require use permits as well as project-specific 
environmental review (including consideration of evacuation plans/VMT analyses/TRPA scenic 
standards thresholds).   

For the reasons set forth in the Addendum to the 2017 TBAP EIR/S and in this document, there 
are no changed circumstances or new information that would require subsequent environmental 
review pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15162. 

4. Wildfire

Wildfire risks were identified and analyzed in the 2017 TBAP EIR/S, and therefore are not new 
information that would require subsequent analysis. (See 2017 TBAP EIR/S, Impacts 18-3 and 
18-4). The 2017 TBAP EIR/S noted that projects would be required to comply with regional plan
policies, local and state regulations for fire protection, as well as area plan policies for fuels
reduction, fire resistant materials and defensible space. In addition, Mitigation Measure 18-3 was
adopted requiring future projects to implement a traffic control plan in coordination with affected
agencies that includes measures for notifying emergency service providers and providing
adequate circulation. The 2017 TBAP EIR/S determined that based on the foregoing, the impact
of wildfires was less than significant. The Addendum to the 2017 TBAP EIR/S (Staff Report,
Attachment D) reviewed the earlier EIR with respect to the TBAP amendments, and determined
the impacts would be the same as those previously analyzed in the 2017 TBAP EIR/S.

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.247



The 2022 document from the Attorney General titled “Best Practices for Analyzing and Mitigating 
Wildfire Impacts of Development Projects under the California Environmental Quality Act” is a 
guidance document, and therefore does not constitute new factual information under CEQA
Guidelines section 15162. (See Save Lafayette, above.) Nonetheless, the guidance compiles
readily available information to assist local governments with their consideration of projects in the 
context of wildfire and has been reviewed by the County.  

Wildfire risk is also not a changed circumstance. The risk of fire in the Tahoe Basin was a concern 
in the 2017 TBAP EIR/S, and wildfire and anthropogenic climate change were issues analyzed 
within the document. In addition, prior Placer County EIRs acknowledged the potential for wildfires 
to cross the Sierra Nevada crest and the realistic threat of such an event was known when the 
TBAP EIR/S was prepared.  

The proposed amendments would encourage affordable housing in Town Centers and incentivize 
compact redevelopment in Town Centers, which is consistent with policies and programs that 
were analyzed in the TBAP EIR/S.  In the case of the TBAP and these proposed TBAP 
amendments, there would be no expectation that environmental climate conditions would be 
exacerbated by the project.  In fact, there is an expectation that the project would reduce trips by 
focusing development in walkable town centers, which would have a corresponding beneficial 
effect on VMT, and thereby greenhouse gas emissions.    

5. Evacuation

The 2017 TBAP EIR/S includes a master response related to evacuation and a hazard policy that 
addresses evacuation. Further, the TBAP EIR/S added a new policy to the TBAP noting that all 
new development projects within the Plan Area shall prepare and implement an emergency 
preparedness and evacuation plan (EPEP). Mitigation Measure 18-3 was adopted requiring that 
future projects implement a traffic control plan in coordination with affected agencies for purposes 
of notification and evacuation. The Addendum to the EIR (Staff Report, Attachment D) also 
determined the impacts would be the same as those previously analyzed in the 2017 TBAP EIR/S. 
Accordingly, there are no changes that would require subsequent environmental review.

Commenters have identified concerns that there is no comprehensive evacuation plan and that 
the amendments would increase population and therefore negatively impact evacuation. As noted 
in the TBAP, concern about wildfire and emergency evacuation is an acknowledged and 
legitimate concern, but the suggestion that the Area Plan and these amendments would 
exacerbate existing conditions with respect to emergency evacuation is not accurate. The 
amendments will not increase the overall development potential in the Area Plan because the 
total quantity of residential units, tourist accommodation units, and commercial floor area 
(collectively referred to as TRPA development rights) is capped by TRPA’s growth control system 
from TRPA’s Regional Plan; so County approvals are still bound by the TRPA carrying capacity 
set by the TRPA Regional Plan. The full buildout of the area was studied in the TBAP EIR/S. 
Accordingly, the proposed amendments would not result in uses or activities that would increase 
the risk of wildfire. Development under the TBAP would continue to require compliance with 
Regional Plan policies, local and state regs related to fire protection. 

Emergency Response 
Placer County maintains emergency evacuation plans as well as a notification system to alert the 
community in the event of an emergency or need for evacuation. Additionally, Eastside Unified 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.248



Command comprises a multi-agency emergency response approach that will direct all emergency 
event-specific evacuation procedures. Those evacuation procedures are not dependent on, nor 
are they confined by traffic circulation data because traffic control in an evacuation situation would 
not operate pursuant to normal traffic patterns. Specifically, traffic counts within the Kings Beach 
roundabouts are not indicative of the ability to evacuate the area in the event of a wildfire. The 
Placer County Sheriff’s Office has provided the following written response to the concern for east 
Placer evacuation:  
 

“My name is Lieutenant Ty Conners, and I serve as part of the Law Branch within 
the Placer County Emergency Management team. A growing concern has 
emerged regarding evacuations in the Tahoe Basin. Our office has undertaken 
various initiatives to address this issue, including providing information at the 
Tahoe Board of Supervisors meeting, hosting a public townhall in Kings Beach, 
engaging in social media outreach, and organizing community events. Additionally, 
we have conducted Eastside Unified Command Training involving all our mutual 
aid partners in the Tahoe Basin and neighboring counties. I have been tasked with 
documenting the evacuation plans for the Tahoe Basin and how we will manage 
mass evacuations and limited evacuation routes that could be severely impacted 
by high volumes of traffic. 

 
Regarding the jurisdictional authority for evacuation, in accordance with California 
Penal Code 409.5(a), state, county, and city peace officers, along with other 
designated officials, are granted the authority to close public and private lands and 
order evacuations. This information is part of the 2015 update to the Placer 
Operational Area Eastside Emergency Evacuation Plan. 

 
To illustrate the process of creating a mass evacuation plan, let's consider a fire 
as an example. A Unified Command involving both Law and Fire agencies would 
be established at the onset of the fire incident. Once fire behavior has been 
determined (including direction, rate of spread, and conditions), the fire department 
will advise which areas should receive the following notifications: 

• Evacuation order 
• Evacuation warning 
• Shelter in place 

 
The Placer County Sheriff's Office will then create a zone map, and public 
notifications will begin through Placer Alert. The creation of the zones (Order or 
Warning) is determined based on fire behavior, with the fire dictating the size, 
shape, and affected areas of the zones. This systematic approach aims to 
minimize the displacement of homeowners under an evacuation order, 
consequently reducing evacuation traffic on the roadways and facilitating smoother 
evacuation routes. 
 
Evacuation routes will be established, once again based on fire behavior and the 
safest routes out of the affected area. During this process, incident command will 
coordinate with all mutual aid resources, such as the California Highway Patrol, 
Placer County Road Department, and Cal Trans, to implement the evacuation 
plan. Methods employed to manage traffic flow and direction include traffic control 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.249



points and contraflow, where vehicles traveling on a main road in one direction 
must use lanes typically designated for oncoming traffic. 
 
Additionally, it is recommended to reduce traffic congestion by not waiting for an 
evacuation order if homeowners are concerned about the conditions. Having a 
plan, denoted as "READY, SET, GO," is advisable. Whenever possible, individuals 
should use a single vehicle to transport as many people as they can to minimize 
the number of single-driver vehicles on the road during an evacuation. 
 
Furthermore, it has been noted in various meetings that there is a need for traffic 
studies, especially regarding construction and overall traffic congestion around the 
lake. Traffic congestion often arises because everyone adheres to basic vehicle 
code laws, such as stop signs, staying in one lane of traffic, and obeying traffic 
lights and construction site traffic control. However, all these considerations 
change during an emergency evacuation. Law enforcement's objective is to 
efficiently evacuate the maximum number of people from an area as swiftly as 
possible. Incident Command would halt all roadway construction, station law 
enforcement personnel at chokepoints and intersections to ensure traffic flow, and 
if necessary, implement contraflow methods to increase the number of lanes for 
outgoing traffic. 
 
These evacuation methods have been tested in Placer County during incidents 
such as the Mosquito Fire and River Fire. The Placer County Sheriff's Office 
collaborates with allied agencies and is confident in the effectiveness of our 
methods. Regardless of the time of year when tourist traffic may be heightened, 
our methods and evacuation plans will remain consistent. Incident Command will 
call for sufficient resources to complete the mission effectively.” 

 
As a result, there is no new information with respect to evacuations that would require subsequent 
environmental review beyond the analysis provided in the 2017 TBAP EIR/S and Addendum.  
 

6. Carrying Capacity / Density / Build-out 
 
The key CEQA consideration relative to these amendments is that development will still be bound 
by coverage and density requirements, which are not changing.  The Tahoe Basin Area Plan and 
its associated EIR/S looked at the allowed density and analyzed, at a program level, the impacts 
of projects developing under that framework.   

With the exception of one cleanup in the Fairway Tract Northeast zone district in which the existing 
density was incorrect, the TBAP amendments are not increasing density. All remaining residential 
and mixed-use zone districts use the existing dwelling units per acre. The amendments would 
further encourage affordable housing in Town Centers and incentivize compact redevelopment in 
Town Centers, which is consistent with policies and programs that were analyzed in the TBAP 
EIR/S.  

The amendments will not increase the overall development potential in the Area Plan because 
the total quantity of residential units, tourist accommodation units, and commercial floor area 
(collectively referred to as TRPA development rights) are capped by TRPA’s growth control 
system from TRPA’s Regional Plan.  The TRPA Regional Plan established growth limits by setting 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.250



a maximum buildout amount of residential units, commercial square feet, and tourist 
accommodation units in its regional plan. To date, 3,525 residential units, 731,397 square feet of 
commercial floor area, and 1,340 tourist accommodation units remain for the basin. Because the 
overall growth potential would not be changed, any increase in development in Town Centers, for 
example due to affordable housing incentives, would be offset with a corresponding decrease in 
development potential outside of Town Centers.  

The 2012 TRPA Regional Plan Update EIS cumulative analysis evaluated the effects of total 
build-out of the Tahoe Region, including the TBAP plan area. Because the TBAP must be 
consistent with the Regional Plan, including the growth limits established in the Regional Plan, 
the RPU EIS cumulative analysis provided a cumulative analysis of full build-out of the TBAP. 
The Area Plan EIR/S cumulative analysis supplemented the RPU EIS cumulative analysis by 
evaluating complete build-out of the Tahoe Region in combination with build-out of reasonably 
foreseeable land use plans and projects within the Tahoe Basin and in surrounding areas outside 
of the Tahoe Basin. 

The Errata to the Addendum (Staff Report, Attachment E) describes the land use changes that 
have occurred since the TBAP EIR/S was completed. Because the 2012 TRPA Regional Plan 
Update EIS and Area Plan EIR/S already analyzed the cumulative effects of complete build-out 
of the Tahoe Basin and TBAP plan area consistent with the policies and regulations in both the 
Regional Plan and TBAP, and because the proposed Area Plan amendments would not alter the 
growth limits or other assumptions incorporated into these cumulative analyses; the existing 
analysis in the Area Plan EIR/S already accounts for the cumulative effect of new land use 
changes in the basin since adoption of the Area Plan EIR/S even though the specific projects 
were not identified in the Area Plan EIR/S. For this reason, there are not changed conditions 
within the Tahoe Basin that would cause the proposed Area Plan amendments to result in a new 
or more severe contribution to a significant cumulative impact than was previously disclosed in 
the Area Plan EIR/S. Land use changes outside the basin are expected to result in 655 fewer 
DUs and 7 acres less commercial area in areas outside of the Tahoe Basin than were evaluated 
in the Area Plan EIR/S. Thus, the Area Plan EIR/S provides a conservative analysis of the 
cumulative effects of future development in areas outside of plan area, and the cumulative effects 
of the proposed Area Plan amendments would be less than those disclosed in the Area Plan 
EIR/S. 

7. Cumulative Impacts

Commenters raised concerns that the proposed amendments did not take cumulative impacts 
into consideration.  The CEQA Guidelines and case law are clear that there is no intent to require 
continual re-analysis or updating of CEQA documents.  One of the basic tenets of CEQA is that 
a lead agency can (and should) rely on past certified or adopted analyses and only update those 
analyses when there are issues that have not been addressed. 

The 2017 TBAP EIR/S analyzes the Area Plan which anticipated future projects, up to and 
including full buildout of the Tahoe Basin Plan Area.  So, anything short of full buildout of the Plan
Area has been taken into account in the Area Plan’s cumulative scenario.  Because the proposed 
Area Plan amendments would not alter the growth limits or other assumptions incorporated into 
these cumulative analyses; the existing analysis in the Area Plan EIR/S already accounts for the 
cumulative effect of projects developing in the Basin (e.g., Tahoe Cedars Subdivision, Boatworks 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.251



at Tahoe, 39 Degrees North, and Dollar Creek Crossing) even though the specific projects were 
not identified in the Area Plan EIR/S.   
 
Concerns were also raised over whether there were projects outside of the Basin that should have 
been included in the cumulative that were not. The Village at Palisades and Martis Valley West 
projects both have big development potential and were previously considered in the TBAP EIR/S 
cumulative analysis.   As mentioned in the erratum (Staff Report, Attachment E), the County’s 
rezone program to meet the County’s Regional Housing Needs Assessment is considering 
possible rezoning of two candidate sites outside of the basin, but in proximity to the TBAP plan 
area.  These two candidate sites could lead to an increase of 96 dwelling units outside the plan 
area that were not contemplated in the Area Plan EIR/S cumulative analysis. 
 
As noted above, land use changes outside the basin are expected to result in 655 fewer DUs and 
7 acres less commercial area in areas outside of the Tahoe Basin than were evaluated in the 
Area Plan EIR/S. Palisades is not proposing more development with its reapplication; therefore, 
its contribution to cumulative impacts is not changing.  The Martis Valley West project included 
760 dwelling units.  That project was litigated, the court invalidated approvals, and the County 
rescinded those approvals.  Placer County has not received a new application for the project.  
Regardless of whether the Martis Valley West developer comes forward with a new application, 
the up to 96 additional dwelling units would not be considered a significant change in the 
cumulative scenario since it would result in 655 less DUEs, and would not result in a new or more 
severe contribution to cumulative impact than was evaluated in the Area Plan EIR/S.   

 
8. Lake Clarity  

 
Commenters raised concerns over the analysis of lake clarity. Water quality  is a resource 
category that Placer County has historically and currently analyzes in all CEQA documents. 
Microplastics are one type of pollutant that can affect water quality.  The data related to the 
presence of microplastics in Lake Tahoe does not equate to new information or a changed 
condition under CEQA.   
 
Lake clarity is addressed in the Tahoe Basin Area Plan EIR/S and the TBAP amendments 
addendum in the hydrology and water quality sections and was an objective of the Tahoe Basin 
Area Plan originally. The Area Plan EIR/S found that the TBAP would not alter the existing TRPA 
regulations related to discharge to surface and groundwater or water quality protection. It 
determined that the density and coverage limits within Town Centers were previously analyzed 
by the TRPA RPU EIS and were determined to have a less-than-significant effect on water quality. 
Additionally, redevelopment of Town Centers consistent with TRPA BMP requirements would 
result in a decrease in the pollutant load carried in stormwater runoff and an overall decrease in 
volume of stormwater runoff. Therefore, the TBAP was found to have a beneficial impact on water 
quality. The amendments include policies that would further support implementation of the land 
use patterns identified in the TBAP while maintaining regional water quality and would not result 
in any new or more severe impacts to hydrology and water quality. 

9. Piecemealing  
 
Commenters have raised concerns about decisions by the County to bring forward some TBAP 
amendments, while deciding to bring forward other amendments later, if at all. For instance, 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.252



possible future amendments include the amendments related to height/length that were removed 
out earlier in the process.  

Piecemealing under CEQA occurs when portions of a singular project are brought forward at 
different times in an attempt to circumvent the CEQA analysis of the project as a whole. In general, 
no piecemealing occurs when projects serve different purposes and can be implemented 
independently.  These minor amendments in no way trigger subsequent amendments.  While 
subsequent amendments may occur, they are not a reasonably foreseeable consequence of 
these minor amendments.  These minor amendments have their own independent utility 
irrespective of any future proposal to increase building height/length.  In short, these minor 
amendments can stand on their own.   

The amendments represent code changes and are not connected to any specific project, nor do 
they include any portion of a project. The amendments have independent utility as a regulatory 
document.  They are not dependent on each other to move forward, they don’t need to be 
analyzed together, and staff are not obligated to consider them together.   

10. Vehicle Miles Traveled

The Addendum to the 2017 TBAP EIR/S (Staff Report, Attachment D) evaluated vehicle miles 
travelled (VMT) at pages 11-12 and determined that the amendments would not result in new or 
more severe environmental impacts.  The TBAP amendments would encourage more 
concentrated development within the Town Centers with less development outside of the Town 
Centers.  This land use pattern would result in residences in close proximity to commercial uses 
which would be expected to reduce the number and length of vehicle trips and corresponding 
VMT. VMT is calculated using standard trip generation rates set by the transportation industry. 

Because the proposed amendments would not increase development potential but would promote 
compact land use patterns analyzed in the Area Plan EIR/S, the proposed amendments would be 
consistent with the prior analysis in the Area Plan EIR/S.   

The TBAP EIR/S looked at full buildout of the Area Plan and noted that VMT in the cumulative 
setting would actually be reduced by focusing development in the walkable town centers. The 
proposed TBAP amendments would not alter the development potential within the Plan Area and 
would therefore not increase the potential for new development that would generate VMT.   

Approval of projects through a Minor Use Permit (MUP) would only be allowed if the proposed 
use meets the TRPA VMT screening criteria (i.e., it must be clear that the VMT impacts are 
negligible and screenable).  As a result, VMT is not increased by the amendments to a level that 
requires further environmental review.  

COMMENTS ABOUT TBAP AMENDMENT LANGUAGE 

11. Setbacks: Residential & Town Centers

The BAE study (Staff Report, Attachment G) acknowledged that improvements are needed to 
facilitate development, scale back requirements and better understand and alleviate constraints 
and challenges in the development process, including zoning and building requirements. As such, 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.253



the TBAP amendments considered the Development Standards of the Residential zone districts 
and those of the Town Centers have been identified as barriers for the development and/or 
redevelopment of these parcels. The TBAP amendments propose changes to the setback 
requirements of the Town Centers and Residential zone districts, as outlined below.   

Town Centers 
Rear Setback Modification 
The amendments allow for a zero-foot (0’) rear setback measured from the property line for those 
parcels in the Kings Beach – North Tahoe East Mixed-Use Subdistricts. The amendments align 
with the zero-foot (0‘) rear setback of for the Greater Tahoe City Mixed-Use Town Center Mixed 
Use - Town Center (MU-TC) and Mixed-Use - Neighborhood (MU-N) zone districts. The 
amendment took into consideration the existing parcel configurations, i.e. widths and lengths of 
existing parcels and existing development. The application of all the required development 
standards created hardships for already small and constrained parcels. For parcels adjacent to 
the zoning districts of the Town Center, the existing rear yard setback would remain and would 
provide a separation between the Town Center parcels and those adjoining the Town Center 
parcels, i.e. residential parcels will be required to provide a 10-foot rear yard setback measured 
from the property line.  

Interior Side Setbacks.
The amendments eliminate the required ”10-foot landscaped setback required adjacent to 
residential uses” in the MU-TC, MU-N and MUN-DH and MUN-LFG zone districts of the Village 
Center Subdistricts of the Greater Tahoe City Mixed-Use Subdistricts and Mixed-Use 
Mountainside Town Center (MU-MTC), Mixed-Use Lakeside Town Center (MU-LTC), Mixed-Use 
Residential (MU-R), Mixed-Use Tourist (MU-TOR) and Mixed-Use Waterfront Recreation (MU-
WREC) of the North Tahoe East Mixed-Use Subdistricts. Specifically, the TBAP currently has a 
requirement for interior yards to provide light and air for residential units. The minimum setbacks 
were applied to any building wall facing an interior side or rear yard and when the site is adjacent 
to a residential subdistrict. Specifically, the side setback requires structures to not interrupt a line 
of a 1:1 slope extending upward from 25 feet above existing grade of the setback line adjacent to 
the residential district. Additionally, the standards of all interior yards required setbacks applied to 
that portion of the building wall containing residential windows and extending three feet on either 
side of any window shall comply with the following: (1) For any wall containing a living room, family 
room, or kitchen windows, a setback of at least 15 feet shall be provided; (2) For any wall 
containing sleeping room windows, a setback of at least 10 feet shall be provided. And (3) for all 
other walls containing windows, a setback of at least fire feet shall be provided. Please refer to 
Figure 2.04(B)(3) below, from the TBAP, for the application of the required setbacks based on 
adjoining uses.  

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.254



The requirements of these setbacks created hardships for development, redevelopment and/or 
additions to existing buildings, in that, it was difficult to identify the uses of each floor in the 
adjacent structure and therefore difficult to determine what setback to apply. Additionally, uses 
could change over time resulting in non-conformities to the required interior side setback of the 
built environment. The TBAP amendments would allow for greater flexibility for development and 
reduce challenges known in the Town Centers.   

Residentially Zoned Parcels 
Front Setback. 
The amendments clarify the required front setbacks by providing an additional footnote to alert 
the reader that when applying the front setback there may be other requirements relative to the 
planned streetscape and roadway improvements. The TBAP requires that when a road and/or 
road segment is identified in Table 3.06.A. ”Future Streetscape and Roadway Design 
Characteristics,” the front setback shall be considered from the ultimate road right-of-way width 
listed in Table 3.06.A. Placer County Department of Public Works maintains a Countywide 
Highway Deficiency Manual to plan for ultimate right-of-way and pavement widths, as well as 
sidewalk and bicycle land improvements, for specific County maintained roadways. Table 3.06.A 
provides planned design characteristics for specific streetscape and roadways to guide future 
development improvements. This amendment would ensure that the reader is made aware of the 
planned design characteristics for specific streetscapes and roadways and if applicable to the 
development of the subject parcel.  

Street Side Setbacks 
The TBAP amendments would allow for a street side setback of 10-feet measured from the 
property line and in accordance with the applicability limitations of the definition of ”street-side 
setback” in the Placer County Zoning Ordinance. With the application of all the required setbacks 
for residential  parcels, i.e. front, side and rear, it was acknowledged that corner lots or parcels 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.255



that abut two road frontages, including access easements, would be required to  provide for two 
front setbacks. The TBAP amendments recognize the existing narrow parcels and the constraints 
of the application of two front setbacks to the parcel. As such, by applying a street side setback - 
a lesser setback then the required front setback, will reduce the need for a variance (a timely and 
costly  entitlement process) to request deviation from the requirements of the required setbacks. 
This would address the concerns presented with constrained parcels and challenges with 
compliance with the required development standards.    

12. Food Trucks

The TBAP amendments would bring the TBAP into conformance with California law regarding 
sidewalk vendors. On September 17, 2018, the Governor signed Senate Bill 976 (the “Safe 
Sidewalk Vending Act”), which establishes requirements for local regulation of sidewalk vending. 
The law became effective January 1, 2019. The purpose of SB 946 is to legalize and decriminalize 
sidewalk vending across the state. SB 946 defines “sidewalk vendor” as a person who sells food 
or merchandise from a pushcart, stand, display, pedal-driven cart, wagon, showcase, rack or 
other nonmotorized conveyance, or from one’s person, on a public sidewalk or other pedestrian 
path. A sidewalk vendor can be “a roaming sidewalk vendor,” which is defined as moving from 
place to place and stopping only to complete a transaction, or “a stationary vendor,” which is 
defined as vending from a fixed location. SB 946 applies only to public sidewalks and paths, not 
private property. The law allows local authorities to adopt regulations governing sidewalk vending 
or amend existing regulations. If the local authority wishes to regulate sidewalk vending, then 
those regulations need to be consistent with SB 946. A local authority may adopt additional 
requirements regulating the time, place, and manner of sidewalk vending if the requirements are 
directly related to objective health, safety, or welfare concerns, including a sidewalk vending 
permit or valid business license, as well as a valid California Department of Tax and Fee 
Administration seller’s permit. Placer County has not adopted additional sidewalk vending laws 
and current County Code is not compliant with SB 946.  

Additionally, the TBAP amendments would also allow food trucks in town and village centers to 
support the entrepreneurial economy. Food trucks allow food businesses to start a business with 
much lower overhead and grow their business over time. In fact, the Truckee-Tahoe region has 
seen several brick and mortar restaurants that started as food trucks. All food trucks would require 
a business license and environmental health approvals, and could be conditioned to require them 
to park in specific places and during certain hours, provide and manage waste receptacles, etc. 

13. Parking

The TBAP amendments would adopt the two-year pilot parking exemption program for the North 
Lake Tahoe Town Centers approved by the Board on February 9, 2021. Several potential 
applicants have expressed interest in the project, but no projects have moved forward in that 
timeframe. The purpose was to support exemptions to parking requirements to spur 
redevelopment in the Town Centers and support strategies identified in the Resort Triangle 
Transportation Plan (RTTP), which was approved by the Board in October 2020, and which 
outlines strategies to increase mobility and reduce VMT in the Tahoe region. 

The TBAP amendments would make parking requirements for multi-family development more 
consistent with those of single-family development and reduce requirements for both to incentivize 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.256



production of workforce housing. A surface parking space can cost $20,000 to $30,000 per space 
which developers have told staff adds to the cost of a housing project and significantly reduces 
the feasibility of the project. The following changes are included in the amendments. 
 

 Today’s TBAP Proposed TBAP 
amendments 

Multi-Family Dwelling 1 space per bedroom for 
first two bedrooms and 
.5 per additional 
bedroom 

1 space for first two 
bedrooms and .5 per 
additional bedroom 

Single-Family Dwelling 2 per unit 1 for first two bedrooms; 
three or more bedrooms 2 
per unit 

 
Additionally, the amendments comply with state law, Government Code Section 65863.2, which 
mandates no minimum automobile parking will be required for a residential, commercial, or other 
development project (excluding any portion designated for use as a tourist accommodation unit) 
if the project is located within one-half mile of public transit unless the County makes written 
findings that not imposing or enforcing minimum automobile parking requirements on the 
development would have a substantially negative impact. The Tahoe Basin doesn’t currently meet 
the definition of high-quality transit stop as specified in the code so this would not be applicable 
unless the region moves to 15-minute transit headways. 
 
The TBAP amendments include a policy to explore opportunities to allow local worker overnight 
camping in public and private parking lots. This concept was proposed from the Mountain Housing 
Council as a potential interim solution to create a safe overnight parking framework for local 
workers. Some of the region’s parking lots are already being used for overnight parking/camping 
by local workers but in an unregulated manner with no permitting, requirements, site 
improvements, or enforcement. The policy itself would not allow overnight parking. Staff would 
have to develop a program in coordination with other departments, including the Department of 
Public Works, Environmental Health, and the Sheriff’s Office. The proposed program would then 
need to be adopted by the Board of Supervisors. Similar programs have been implemented in 
other mountain towns, such as the town of Telluride. Any program would need to consider and 
include requirements related to registration or permitting, noise and storage, proximity to 
restrooms, designated parking lot(s), etc. The policy simply allows staff to explore the concept. 

 
14. School Enrollment 

 
One commenter indicated that the area’s population has increased, as evidenced by increased 
school enrollment in the Tahoe Truckee Unified School District, which therefore shows an 
increase in population within the Tahoe basin.  However, the area’s school enrollment data 
included below demonstrates there is no substantial change from 2016 to the current school 
year.  
 

2016 – 2017: 3,941 
2017 – 2018: 3,921 
2018 – 2019: 3,955 
2019 – 2020: 3,981 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.257



2020 – 2021: 3,945 
2021 – 2022: 3,953 
2022 – 2023: 3,960 
2023 – 2024: 3,923 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII. A.258



AGENDA ITEM NO. VIII.A.1 

STAFF REPORT 

Date: February 21, 2024  

To: TRPA Governing Board 

From: TRPA Staff 

Subject: 2023 Annual Report  

Summary and Staff Recommendation: 
Staff presents the attached summary report of TRPA’s strategic focus and accomplishments throughout 
2023. This item is for informational purposes and no action is required.  

Background: 
TRPA carries out strategic initiatives that the Governing Board has identified as work program priorities 
for the agency. These initiatives align directly with implementation of the Regional Plan as well as 
accomplishing the agency’s mission as directed by the Bi-State Tahoe Regional Planning Compact. 

The attached annual report outlines accomplishments and progress made in 2023—. The report also 
highlights areas of special focus for agency teams going forward.  

Contact Information: 
For questions regarding this agenda item, please contact Julie Regan, at (775) 589-5237 or 
jregan@trpa.gov. 

To submit a written public comment, email publiccomment@trpa.gov with the appropriate agenda item 
in the subject line. Written comments received by 4 p.m. the day before a scheduled public meeting will 
be distributed and posted to the TRPA website before the meeting begins. TRPA does not guarantee 
written comments received after 4 p.m. the day before a meeting will be distributed and posted in time 
for the meeting. 

Attachment: 
A. 2022 Annual Report

259

mailto:jregan@trpa.gov
mailto:publiccomment@trpa.gov


AGENDA ITEM NO. VIII.A.1 

Attachment A 

2023 Annual Report 

260



 2023 ANNUAL REPORT

2023 ANNUAL REPORT
   Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

AGENDA ITEM NO. VIII.A.1261



2 3

It is my pleasure to 
present this annual 
report on regional 

progress for Lake Tahoe’s 
environment and commu-
nities. In 2023, the Tahoe 
Regional Planning Agency 
(TRPA) made major strides 
in addressing many of the 
biggest challenges facing this treasured lake. And 
make no mistake, the basin is facing existential 
threats that we must rally to tackle head on.

The vision that took shape 55 years ago when the 
states of Nevada and California came together 
to preserve and protect Lake Tahoe is reflected 
in this report. The Lake Tahoe Regional Plan is 
building partnerships, restoring environmental 
quality, and harmonizing communities with our 
incredible surroundings. Science-based policies 
are not only helping achieve and maintain ambi-
tious environmental goals, they are also increas-
ing safety on Lake Tahoe roadways, reducing 
the threat of wildfire, and building the region’s 
resilience to climate change.

It was also a big year for partnerships. TRPA 
joined 17 land management, destination man-
agement, and non-profit organizations to launch 
the first-ever destination stewardship plan for the 
greater Tahoe Region. Following a year of com-
munity and stakeholder input, the plan is already 
helping reduce the impacts of visitation and is 
promoting sustainable recreation. At the heart of 
the plan is the stewardship ethos of the Washoe 
Tribe of Nevada and California, the original and 
current caretakers of the Tahoe Basin. 

The agency also worked with private proper-
ty owners, scientists, and partner agencies to 
tackle two of the highest priority aquatic invasive 
weed control projects, in the Tahoe Keys and 

Taylor-Tallac marsh on the South Shore. The 
strength of TRPA’s aquatic invasive species part-
nerships proved invaluable when New Zealand 
mudsnails were discovered in the lake in Septem-
ber. The agency’s rapid response protocols helped 
to confront the first new invasive species detected 
in Lake Tahoe since the watercraft inspection 
program began in 2008.

Underlying much of our progress in 2023 is the 
incredible commitment and support around 
the Lake Tahoe Environmental Improvement 
Program, or EIP. Launched during the first Lake 
Tahoe presidential summit in 1997, the EIP has 
completed more than 800 restoration projects to 
repair damage done long ago to the watershed.

We are grateful for the leadership and support of 
the TRPA Governing Board. In December 2023, 
our board approved a package of affordable and 
workforce housing incentives that help address 
the housing crisis impacting Lake Tahoe’s  
environment and communities. The changes  
will lower the cost to provide affordable and 
workforce housing while at the same time  
benefitting water quality.

I am proud of the hard work and determination 
of our entire team. Throughout 2023, our staff 
continued to excel in the challenging but reward-
ing work to achieve our mission to preserve and 
protect Lake Tahoe for this and future  
generations.

Sincerely,

Julie W. Regan
Executive Director
Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

TRPA GOVERNING BOARD

Cindy Gustafson, Chair
Placer County Supervisor

Hayley Williamson, Vice Chair
Nevada At-Large Member

Shelly Aldean   
Carson City Representative 

Francisco Aguilar 
Nevada Secretary of State

Ashley Conrad-Saydah 
Governor of California Appointee

Jessica Diss 
Nevada Governor Appointee

Belinda Faustinos
California Assembly Speaker 
Appointee

Cody Bass
City of South Lake Tahoe Council Member

Meghan Hays
Presidential Appointee

Alexis Hill
Washoe County Commissioner

Vince Hoenigman
Governor of California Appointee

James Settelmeyer
Nevada Department of Conservation  
and Natural Resources Representative

Brooke Laine
El Dorado County Supervisor

Wesley Rice
Douglas County Commissioner

Alexandra Leumer 
California Senate Rules Committee 
Appointee

 Cover photo by: Generikal
A family enjoys the Tahoe East Shore Trail. Photo by: Luxuri Media

Dear Lake Tahoe Community, Governing Board and APC Members, and Stakeholders:

Tahoe Regional Planning Agency  2023 ANNUAL REPORT

AGENDA ITEM NO. VIII.A.1262



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

4 

 2023 ANNUAL REPORT

5

Tahoe Living - Creating complete communities that provide housing for  
all, an appropriate mix of uses to support vibrant, walkable, transit-friendly  
neighborhoods, and the necessary infrastructure to protect our unique and 
precious environment.

Keeping Tahoe Moving - Improving the transportation system for local 
communities and the millions of annual visitors to the Tahoe Region.

Restoration and Resilience - Accelerating environmental improvement and  
transportation programs to restore our environment and bolster the region’s 
climate resilience.

Approved by the Governing Board, 
these strategic priorities reflect the 
agency’s commitment to protect Lake 
Tahoe’s environment while improving 
regional transportation, increasing  
diverse housing options, and facilitat-
ing community revitalization.

TRPA
STRATEGIC
PRIORITIES

• 3 Area Plan amendments

• 125 of 248 deed-restricted affordable
homes under construction as part of
the Sugar Pine Village project in South
Lake Tahoe

• 100-bed affordable housing
dormitory project under construction
at Lake Tahoe Community College

• 8 ADU (accessory dwelling unit)
permits issued

• 924 permits issued and investigated
97 code compliance cases

2023 By The Numbers

99%
TRPA staff retention

• $34.3 million
secured in EIP  
federal funding

• $15.2 million granted through
the Regional Grant Program
to expand transit, sidewalks,
bike paths, and EV charging
stations

• $635,000 mitigation funds
awarded to local governments
for environmental projects

5,667
boat inspections completed 

1,169
tree removal permits issued 
totaling 4,440 hazard trees

213
BMP certificates issued

71.7 ft.
average lake clarity depth in 2022, 
compared to 61 feet in 2021

52,789
miles cycled by Tahoe  
Bike Month participants 

Photo by: Generikal

Photo by: Jonathan Thompson

AGENDA ITEM NO. VIII.A.1263



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

6 

 2023 ANNUAL REPORT

7

Tahoe Living: Housing and Community Revitalization

The Tahoe Living strategic priority implements the housing and community revitalization  
goals of the Regional Plan. It identifies key actions that TRPA can take to create complete 
communities that provide housing for all, an appropriate mix of uses to support vibrant,  

walkable, transit-friendly neighborhoods, and the necessary infrastructure to protect our unique 
and precious environment.  

Key 2023 Accomplishments
• Engaged with the community to garner input

on affordable housing needs and to shape
policy amendments through nine public
hearings, seven event pop-up booths, an on-
line survey, eight newspaper columns, nearly
30 Enewsletters, and more than 20 meetings
with community members and groups.

• TRPA staff and local government partners
secured $2.4 million in California grant
funding to begin the next phase of the Tahoe
Living strategic priority. This funding will
support broad community engagement and
comprehensive environmental review on
potential policy changes to integrate housing,
equity, and climate goals into key land use
and water quality programs.

Affordable Housing Policies Approved
In December, the Governing Board approved  
targeted policy changes to encourage affordable 
and workforce housing in town centers and areas 
close to transit, and achieve Regional Plan goals 
including walkability, improving water quality, and 
reducing vehicle miles traveled.

The amendments allow deed-restricted units within 
town centers and multi-family zones to be designed 
with more flexibility on height, land coverage,  
parking, and units per parcel, if they are made  
permanently affordable for working households  
and meet environmental standards.

PROJECT 
SPOTLIGHT

Affordable apartments at the 248-unit Sugar Pine Village  
project in South Lake Tahoe will be open for applications  
in 2024. Photo by: Jeff Cowen

Housing Outreach - By the Numbers

Keeping Tahoe Moving:  
Transportation and Destination Stewardship

Lake Tahoe’s $5 billion recreation-based economy needs an interconnected and efficient  
transportation system. TRPA and partners will achieve that sustainable future with strategic 
investments in capital projects, transit, multi-use paths, and parking management. These critical 

projects will meet visitor, resident, and commuter demand while protecting the Tahoe Basin’s unique 
natural resources. At the same time, the region has come together to better manage outdoor recreation 
and tourism through a shared destination stewardship plan that will balance the needs of the environ-
ment, businesses, visitors, and local communities. This new strategy will inspire all to take care of Tahoe.

Key 2023 Accomplishments

Transportation
• TRPA’s one-of-a-kind Tahoe Metropolitan

Planning Organization (TMPO) status was
successfully audited and recertified. The inde-
pendent auditors heralded the Tahoe MPO as
a model of best practices, including our public
engagement and outreach, and information
tracking and management systems.

• Federal, state, local, and private partners
secured more than $23 million in new
revenues to improve transportation at Tahoe.
This shared “7-7-7” funding strategy is critical
to close the annual funding gap to implement
the Regional Transportation Plan.

• TRPA convened a coalition of partners to
develop the first Tahoe Regional Trails
Strategy. The Strategy applies a basin-wide
perspective to trail planning and building
and serves as a blueprint for a connected and
accessible dirt trail network for Tahoe.

• The Vision Zero Safety Strategy and Active
Transportation Plan were launched.

 Tahoe City roundabout. Photo by: Luxuri Media

Transportation Funding
TRPA programmed more than $100  
million in transportation funding for  
our implementation partners in 2023. 
These funds support new microtransit 
operations, Tahoe Trail segments,  
roadway safety improvements, and  
other priority transportation projects.

PROJECT 
SPOTLIGHT

AGENDA ITEM NO. VIII.A.1264



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

8 

 2023 ANNUAL REPORT

9

Key 2023 Accomplishments

Destination Stewardship
• Played a critical role in the launch of the

Destination Stewardship Plan. The plan’s vision
and actions were developed in collaboration with
18 regional organizations and participation of over
3,000 residents, visitors, and businesses through
surveys, interviews, and workshops.

• Formed the first Lake Tahoe Destination Steward-
ship Council. The Council will advance the plan’s
32 key actions to ensure outdoor recreation and
tourism enhances community well-being,
supports local businesses and workers, and
protects the lake.

DESTINATION 
STEWARDSHIP PARTNERS 

SHARED VISION

Fannette Island, Emerald Bay, CA.  Photo by: Generikal

Restoration and Resilience:  
Environmental Improvement 
Program

The Restoration and Resilience strategic priority is grounded within the Lake Tahoe Environ-
mental Improvement Program (EIP).  This bi-state, cross-boundary restoration partnership of 
over 80 organizations has implemented more than 800 projects over the last 27 years to restore 

and protect the environment and revitalize Lake Tahoe communities.  

To continue the program’s success and to keep pace with new threats, partners must increase the scale 
of implementation of the EIP. This strategic priority focuses on acquiring sustainable funding for the 
EIP, updating and evaluating the basin’s environmental thresholds, and finding program efficiencies to 
continue to build resilience to climate change and achieve the goals of the Regional Plan. 

Key 2023 Accomplishments
• The EIP partnership completed 25 forest

health, water quality, sustainable recreation,
and transportation improvement projects.

• Secured more than $34.3 million through the
Lake Tahoe Restoration Act (LTRA), congres-
sionally directed spending, and the Bipartisan
Infrastructure Law for the Environmental
Improvement Program. This high-water mark
for Tahoe’s federal funding is double where it
was five years ago.

• Awarded $5.1 million in Lake Tahoe Restoration
Act funding to critical EIP projects through a
new partnership agreement with the USDA
Forest Service.

• Awarded $635,000 in mitigation funds paid
from development projects to local jurisdictions
and land banks for restoration projects, new
maintenance equipment, water quality improve-
ment projects, and sensitive land acquisition.

• Advanced climate smart codes backed by
research and stakeholder workshops to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions and create a more
resilient ecosystem to withstand climate change.
UC Davis students assisted with these
amendments.

• Continued the regional educational webinar
series highlighting EIP projects. The South
Shore webinar introduced 14 ongoing projects
and initiatives by seven partner organizations.

 West Shore of Lake Tahoe. Photo by: Drone Promotions 

Cutting the Green Tape
TRPA established and led a new multi-agency  
Cutting the Green Tape Working Group to identify 
permitting efficiencies, improve interagency  
coordination, and propose process changes for  
environmentally beneficial projects. Staff also  
provided leadership in the Cutting the Green Tape 
California state-wide initiative, serving as a lead  
facilitator for the CDFW/CA State Water Board  
workshop in December 2023.  

PROJECT 
SPOTLIGHT

AGENDA ITEM NO. VIII.A.1265



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

10 

 2023 ANNUAL REPORT

11

Watersheds and Water Quality

Lake Tahoe’s incredible clarity was severely impaired decades ago by unplanned development 
in sensitive areas.  Regaining the lake’s lost clarity is a fundamental goal achieved by restoring 
ecosystem health and resilience and reducing the flow of pollutants and fine sediment from urban 

areas. TRPA provides leadership, support, and funding for large-scale watershed restoration and  
stormwater treatment throughout the region. TRPA works with residents and business owners to  
improve Best Management Practice (BMP) compliance each year and supports local jurisdictions to 
implement projects that reduce stormwater runoff from neighborhoods and roads. 

Key 2023 Accomplishments
• Local jurisdictions continue to exceed targets

set by the Lake Tahoe Total Maximum Daily
Load (TMDL) to reduce nitrogen, phosphorus,
and fine sediment pollution.

• Led the Meeks Bay Ecosystem Restoration
project team to include replacement of the
Meeks Bridge. Replacing the bridge will help
restore the natural flow of Meeks Creek and
improve fish habitat.

• Led the implementation of Year 2 of the Taylor
Tallac Ecosystem Restoration project in part-
nership with the USDA Forest Service. This 
project is removing 17 acres of invasive weeds 
from one of the basin’s largest wetlands. 

• Kicked off two green infrastructure projects:
Ski Run “Mountain to Marina” and Tahoe
Keys Tactical Green Infrastructure. These
projects will elevate the role of natural water
infiltration strategies within neighborhoods
to remove pollutants from stormwater, reduce
flooding, and adapt to climate change.

• Worked with home and business owners to
issue 213 BMP certificates to reduce fine
sediment and pollutants entering the lake:
177 for single-family residential (including
14 lakefront parcels), 5 for multi-family 
residential, and 31 for commercial. 

• Re-issued 68 BMP certificates verifying
maintenance and effectiveness.

PROJECT 
SPOTLIGHT

Environmental Improvement Program

Lake Clarity 
UC Davis Tahoe Environmental Research Center reported the 
lake’s average water clarity in 2022 was the best it has been 
since the 1980s. The average clarity was 71.7 feet compared 
to 61 feet in 2021. The lake also fully mixed in 2023, a winter 
phenomenon when the lake essentially flips over and clear 
water from the bottom replaces the top layer where fine  
sediment and algae are suspended. Following the flip, water 
clarity jumped to an incredible 115 feet. Deep mixing is an 
important process for the lake’s health, however it is  
happening less often. TRPA and our many science partners 
rely on longer-term trends to understand the effectiveness of 
water quality strategies. Climate change and other ecological 
threats continue to challenge lake restoration work.

Forest Health

One of the Environmental Improvement Program’s central goals is to protect communities 
from damaging wildfires and improve forest health. As a founding member of the 21-agency 
Tahoe Fire and Fuels Team (TFFT), TRPA helps implement the Lake Tahoe Forest Action 

Plan through coordination and prioritization of forest treatments, including reintroducing the tra-
ditional practice of cultural burning by the Washoe Tribe. TRPA also works with local communities 
to implement defensible space around their homes and businesses through onsite inspections and 
issuance of tree removal permits. Partners are working collaboratively to identify renewable energy 
opportunities in and around the Tahoe Basin and to coordinate forestry workforce development and 
shared-resource crews.

Key 2023 Accomplishments
• Supported defensible space on private

properties through 1,169 tree removal permits
(for 4,440 individual hazard trees).

• Advanced review of a small-scale renewable
energy project using local wood waste in the
City of South Lake Tahoe.

• Supported Lake Tahoe Community College’s
new forestry program designed to build the
local workforce and increase Tahoe’s capacity
to implement forest fuels treatments.

• Led a discussion at the Tahoe Science Con-
ference about how to incorporate cultural
burning in land management discussions.

• Contributed to the 2023 Collaborative
Forest Landscape Restoration Program
Federal Advisory Committee by evaluating
national project proposals to reduce wildfire
risk while improving environmental, social,
and economic benefits.

• Partners treated 1,700 acres for forest fuels
reduction.

Forest Health Leadership
TRPA staff served on the National Wildfire 
Mitigation and Management Commission 
bringing Tahoe expertise to a diverse group 
of forest health experts. The group was 
charged with the ambitious task of creating 
recommendations that address nearly every 
facet of the wildfire system. 

In 2023, the commission delivered a report to 
Congress with 148 recommendations to help 
lead the nation toward increased resilience to 
the impacts of wildfire.

PROJECT 
SPOTLIGHT

 Photo by: Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District

Environmental Improvement Program

 Photo by: Generikal

AGENDA ITEM NO. VIII.A.1266



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

12 

 2023 ANNUAL REPORT

13

Aquatic Invasive Species

This fall, the Aquatic Invasive Species (AIS) Program was challenged with the discovery of the  
New Zealand mudsnail, the first new invasive species detected in Lake Tahoe since mandatory 
watercraft inspections began in 2008. TRPA leads the multi-sector AIS partnership at Lake 

Tahoe, and its accomplishments are the result of the collective contribution of many organizations and 
individuals. Control programs are working to reduce the spread of invasive species already established, 
and the watercraft inspection and Tahoe Keepers programs are keeping new aquatic invasives out of the 
Tahoe Region.

Key 2023 Accomplishments
• Provided leadership and independent

monitoring to complete Year 2 of the Tahoe 
Keys Control Methods Test to find solutions 
to control aquatic weeds in the Tahoe Keys. 

• Oversaw 5,667 boat inspections at regional
inspection stations. 58 percent of inspected
boats arrived Clean, Drained, and Dry, up
3 percent from 2022.

• Introduced new tools to combat aquatic in-
vaders, such as a solar powered machine that
allowed 500 users to Clean, Drain, and Dry
their non-motorized vessels before launching.

• Translated AIS materials and videos into
Spanish to ensure preventative messaging is
reaching a wide audience of users.

• Removed 1.5 acres of aquatic invasive plants in
Emerald Bay to preserve Lake Tahoe’s famed
clarity and improve water quality.

New Zealand Mudsnails
TRPA led an interagency, science-based rapid 
response to the discovery of the invasive New 
Zealand mudsnail in Lake Tahoe. The incident 
team oversaw lake-wide surveys to determine 
the extent of the infestation. Staff convened a 
science team to develop recommendations,  
and sought new funding to strengthen the  
AIS prevention program for non-motorized  
watercraft. 

PROJECT 
SPOTLIGHT

Environmental Improvement Program

Photo by: 2023 Marine Taxonomic Services, LTD., M.Rydel

Regional Planning

The Regional Planning Department fulfills the commitment to regional environmental  
planning, orderly growth and development, and partnership building as mandated in the 
Bi-State Compact. The Regional Planning team is the lead for two of TRPA’s three strategic 

priorities: Tahoe Living and Keeping Tahoe Moving.

Key 2023 Accomplishments
• Funded nine transportation projects totaling

$15.2 million to expand transit, sidewalks, bike
paths, and EV charging stations in the Tahoe
Basin.

• Supported area plan amendments in Placer
County to realize their housing and economic 
development goals in town centers, allowing 
condominium subdivisions in a part of Wash-
oe County, and expanding housing opportu-
nities in town centers and prioritizing equity 
in the City of South Lake Tahoe.

• Approved the 16-acre Waldorf Astoria
project in Crystal Bay, NV. The project will
add a Class 1 bike lane and reduce vehicle
miles traveled, improve water quality treat-
ment onsite, and add 38 deed-restricted
affordable housing bedrooms for employees.

• Completed the Trans-
portation Equity Study
with significant public
input from underserved
communities. The study
identifies barriers to ac-
cessing goods, services,
and recreation oppor-
tunities at Lake Tahoe.
Recommendations will
be incorporated into the
2025 Regional Transportation Plan.
The Sacramento chapter of WTS selected
the study as the 2023 Rosa Parks Diversity
Leadership Award winner.

• Finalized the SR 89 West Shore Tahoe Trail
Feasibility Study as part of the Highway 89
Corridor Manage ment Plan to complete a
world-class bikeway around iconic Emerald
Bay and parts of the West Shore.

Lake Tahoe Community College student housing. 

LTCC Student Housing
In March, the TRPA board unanimously approved 
the Lake Tahoe Community College (LTCC) Student 
Housing Project, which will provide up to 100 
students with affordable on-campus housing. The 
project broke ground this year and is anticipated 
to open in 2025. Environmental benefits include 
reduced vehicle trips to and from campus and 
heated sidewalks that reduce the need for snow 
removal equipment and de-icing.

PROJECT 
SPOTLIGHT

AGENDA ITEM NO. VIII.A.1267



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

14 

 2023 ANNUAL REPORT

15

Permitting and Code Compliance

The Permitting and Compliance Department reviews, permits, and inspects projects in 
a timely and consistent manner to serve the public and help facilitate environmental 
improvement and economic investment in Lake Tahoe communities.

Key 2023 Accomplishments

Permitting
• Exceeded expectations on permit process

improvements to enhance public service,
realign resources to focus on the highest
environmental priorities, and improve
cost recovery on filing fees.

• Approved major projects representing
hundreds of millions of dollars of invest-
ment in Lake Tahoe’s restoration and
community revitalization.

• Issued 924 permits and met the 120-day
performance measure for 92.7 percent of
reviews, despite record-breaking snowfall
and difficult conditions for projects.

• Formed a new team devoted to public
service and transformed the front lobby
into a service-oriented, efficient, and
welcoming space.

• Launched a new online permitting
appointment system.

Code Compliance
• Investigated 97 code cases within one

week of complaint intake.
• Completed 172 pre-grade inspections and

257 final inspections to ensure develop-
ment projects meet TRPA environmental
protection requirements. 90 percent of
final inspections were performed within
15 days of request.

• Completed 50 audits of projects reviewed
and permitted by local government MOU
partners. Local governments met require-
ments between 88-99 percent of the time.

• Invested 1,300 watercraft team hours on
the lake. Assisted in the identification and
tagging of over 80 illegal moorings. Issued
650 verbal corrective actions, most related
to no-wake zone violations. Interactions
remain positive and focus on use of the
Lake Tahoe boating app to increase safety
and compliance.

 The TRPA watercraft crew educating a paddleboarder at D.L. Bliss State Park. Photo by: Generikal

Shoreline Plan Implementation
To date, more than 92 percent of the  
existing moorings evaluated in the  
Shoreline Plan have been registered. 

Since the Governing Board approved the 
plan in 2018, TRPA has issued 338 moor-
ing allocations from the annual mooring 
lotteries and 6 pier allocations from the 
pier lottery.

Research and Analysis

TRPA continuously tracks the progress and effectiveness of Regional Plan policies and  
environmental programs by monitoring hundreds of environmental threshold standards,  
performance measures, and management actions. The Research and Analysis team collaborates 

with the science community and provides the best possible information for policy decisions, operations, 
and accountability.

Key 2023 Accomplishments
• Analyzed 2020 Census data to support the

agency’s long-range planning work in the
transportation, housing, and destination
stewardship initiatives with updated regional
demographics.

• Transformed 10,000 paper files, including
more than 300,000 pages, into a digital
format with funding from Nevada.

• Upgraded permit tracking software and
GIS mapping tools.

• Conducted plankton tows in Echo Lakes,
Fallen Leaf Lake, and Lake Tahoe to sample
for aquatic invasive species and support
permit requirements. Teams found no new
detections.

• Expanded mobile data collection systems
to improve field monitoring and dashboard
metrics.

2023 Field  
Monitoring

• Collected noise monitoring data for 8 plan areas, 
6 transportation corridor segments, and
9 shoreline sites. 

• Managed an advanced network of 31 bike and
pedestrian counters.

• Worked with agency partners to complete
basin-wide osprey, peregrine falcon, and bald
eagle surveys to assess nesting success and
populations. 

• Maintained air quality and visibility monitoring
stations.

• Assessed 72 stream environment zones for
overall quality and threshold attainment.

• Collected data at 25 sites to measure physical
and biological stream health using benthic
macroinvertebrates.

• Funded weekly human health monitoring at
10 popular beaches throughout the summer. 

• Photographed designated locations for the
scenic threshold assessment.

Upper Truckee River in winter 2023. Photo by: Sarah Underhill

AGENDA ITEM NO. VIII.A.1268



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

16 

 2023 ANNUAL REPORT

17

Key 2023 Accomplishments

Public Outreach
• Organized a series of TRPA Talks around the

lake for community members to meet TRPA’s
new Executive Director and discuss critical
issues affecting our diverse communities, such
as affordable housing, traffic, environmental
restoration, and emergency preparedness.

• Produced two issues of the agency’s
award-winning environmental newspaper,
Tahoe In Depth, featuring more than 40 news
stories from a variety of authors. The paper is
mailed to 36,000 Tahoe Basin property own-
ers and is distributed around the lake to reach
other residents and visitors.

• Facilitated three Spanish workshops focused
on transportation equity and housing changes
with 63 participants.

• Engaged hundreds of community members
with bilingual project materials through
public meetings, webinars, booths at farmer’s
markets and events, and via social media.

• Delivered presentations to more than 50 local,
national, and international delegations about
Destination Stewardship, the Environmental
Improvement Program, and current projects.

Environmental Education
• Organized the Heavenly Snowshoe field trip

for 268 local eighth graders and educated
233 fourth graders on bike safety. TRPA led
additional programs as part of the South
Tahoe Environmental Education Coalition,
which cumulatively reached 10,246 students
and individuals through 17 programs.

• Teamed up with the Lake Tahoe Bicycle
Coalition to organize the 18th annual Tahoe
Bike Month. A record number of participants
cycled 52,789 miles throughout the month of
June. More than 400 students also rode their
bikes to school.

COMMUNICATIONS AND GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS

TRPA supports a culture committed to public education, outreach, and community  
engagement to implement the Lake Tahoe Regional Plan. The communications and govern-
ment affairs teams lead initiatives in collaboration with many agency and nonprofit partners.

PROTECTING, ENJOYING & EXPLORING THE LAKE TAHOE BASIN SUMMER 2023 • ISSUE 24

Tahoe In Depth
PO Box 5310
Stateline, NV 89449

PRSRT STD
U.S. POSTAGE

PAID
RENO, NV

PERMIT #931

INSIDE THIS ISSUE
USFS ANNIVERSARY: Federal agency marks 50 years at Lake Tahoe.  3
TRANSPORTATION: A regional trail vision emerges. 9 
INDIAN SCHOOL: Stewart’s history recounted in moving museum. 10
MITIGATION FEES: How projects have made a difference at Tahoe. 12
DARK SKIES: A popular star-gazing program is coming to Lake Tahoe. 13 
BOTTLE BAN: City’s ban to be in full effect by next summer. 15
FIRE MANAGEMENT: Planning for blazes continues year-round. 16
ROUND HILL PINES: Safety improvements to the South Shore area. 18

The new “Find Tahoe Tessie” app 
teaches young people about 
climate change effects on Lake 
Tahoe. Page 11

A WINTER FOR THE 
RECORD BOOKS

Photo: California State Parks, © All rights reserved
Emerald Bay was extensively frozen for the first time in three decades. 

Jeff Cowen
Tahoe Regional Planning agency

Spencer Benlien has evacuated his South Lake 
Tahoe home twice in recent years. In 2021, 
firefighters were saving his family’s house on 

Cold Creek Trail from the Caldor Fire. This year, 
firefighters pulled Benlien from the debris when his 
home was flattened by tons of ice and snow.

On March 1, as storms stacked record amounts of 
snow on Tahoe rooftops, the 35-year-old noticed cracks 
spreading across his ceiling like invisible ink emerging 
on parchment. Minutes earlier, a handyman clearing the 
roof had left to get more help.

As the cracks widened into fissures, Benlien cried out 
to his mother and 14-year-old sister that it was time to 
go. He dashed out a side door with his sister while his 
mother took another exit with the family pets. In the 
confusion, Benlien went back inside for his mother. 
The roof and walls of the 1967 home caved in, trapping 
Benlien in the kitchen. 

Continued on page 8

The cover of the Summer 2023 issue of Tahoe In Depth.

• Recognized six individuals who have
shown exceptional commitment to
protecting Lake Tahoe as this year’s Lake
Spirit Award winners. The recipients
include one North Shore and one South
Shore recipient for each of the three cate-
gories of Citizen, Agency Representative,
and Lifetime Achievement.

Government Affairs
• Provided testimony to congressional

leaders in Washington D.C., including
Sen. Jacky Rosen (D-Nev), about the
importance of Destination Stewardship
to Lake Tahoe and the nation.

• Led the partnership in organizing the
2023 Lake Tahoe Sum mit featuring U.S.
House Speaker Emer ita Nancy Pelosi (D-
CA 11th District). Also led a Summit staff
field tour showcasing top Environmental
Improvement Program projects to 30 key
legislative staffers and elected officials.

August 9, 2023 • Kings Beach State Recreation Area, California

“S
um

m
er

 D
ay

 a
t E

m
er

al
d 

Ba
y”

 b
y 

Jo
na

th
an

 T
ho

m
ps

on
, 

Tw
ili

gh
t &

 R
us

t, 
w

w
w

.tw
ili

gh
ta

nd
ru

st
slt

.co
m

Hosted by U.S. Senator Alex Padilla
Protecting Lake Tahoe: Sustainability and Stewardship  

in the Face of Climate Crisis

27th Annual

SUMMIT

v

2023 Lake Tahoe Summit poster (left), TRPA booth at the Lake Tahoe Summit at Kings Beach State Recreation Area (top right), and 
TRPA Governing Board Chair Cindy Gustafson addressing the audience (bottom right). Photos by: Corey Rich

TRPA Talks with Julie Regan on the South Shore. Photo by: Sarah Underhill

AGENDA ITEM NO. VIII.A.1269



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

18 

 2023 ANNUAL REPORT

19

FINANCE, LEGAL, AND HUMAN RESOURCES

2023-24 TRPA BUDGET: $27M

Revenues

Expenses

In addition to fiscal services, grants manage-
ment, and budgeting and forecasting, the 
Finance and Facilities Team provides and 

maintains modern Information Technology 
resources to support a hybrid work environment, 
disseminate information to the public, and  
encourage effective public participation in online 
meetings. The finance team adheres to the highest 
financial standards to support Lake Tahoe and 
TRPA’s mission. 

In 2023, TRPA retained 71 of 72 staff members by 
making headway on staff retention goals. Seven-
teen staff members received merit-based promo-
tions, bringing the entire staff up to appropriate 
percentiles in their salary rang es. The Human 
Resources and Finance teams also implemented 
a merit-based salary review process, raised the 
agency’s retirement contributions, and maintained 
competitive health and dental benefits. 

Key 2023 Accomplishments

Finance and Facilities
• Executed a $5 million agreement with the

USDA Forest Service to award federal Envi-
ronmental Improvement Program funds to
partner agencies requiring an outstanding
audit record and broad financial expertise.

• Received an unqualified audit opinion, the
highest possible, for Fiscal Year 2023 financial
statements.

Legal
• Received favorable decisions and findings

in five lawsuits, and navigated an additional
successful settlement.

• Responded in a timely manner to 50 public
records requests, and provided invaluable
support to housing and permitting code
amendments.

• Improved the public engagement process by
creating a written public comment policy for
Governing Board meetings.

Human Resources
• Implemented the Diversity, Equity, and

Inclusion Strategic Plan to ensure policies
are equitable and inclusive.

• Added a language translator on TRPA’s
website and permit application software.

• Worked with the Washoe Tribe of Nevada
and California to display a land acknowl-
edgment in the newly created Da ow Room,
where a map is framed of the Tribe’s
ancestral lands.

• Delivered new training programs such as
the Learning Lab, supported organizational
changes, and integrated hybrid and in- 
person work successfully by sponsoring
field tours, staff outings, and in-person
team activities.

Photo: Sarah Underhill
AGENDA ITEM NO. VIII.A.1270



a lake environment that is sustainable, 
healthy, and safe for the community  
and future generations.VISION

Office Location: 128 Market Street, Stateline, NV
Mailing Address: P.O. BOX 5310 Stateline, NV 89449-5310
Phone: 775.588.4547 • Fax: 775.588.4527 •  trpa.gov

February 2024

AGENDA ITEM NO. VIII.A.1271



272



STAFF REPORT 

Date: February 21, 2024  

To: TRPA Governing Board, Transportation Planning Committee 

From: TRPA Staff 

Subject: Transportation Committee Strategy Session 

Summary: 
Staff will provide background on TRPA’s transportation program and will facilitate a strategy session, 
seeking input and direction on focus areas for the committee.    

Project Description/Background: 
The TRPA Governing Board Transportation Committee was created at the November 15, 2023 Governing 
Board meeting. The following month, December 2023, TRPA staff provided a brief overview of TRPA’s 
transportation planning activities to help orient the committee on the roles and responsibilities of TRPA 
in the transportation arena and upcoming topics coming to the committee. At the meeting, Committee 
Chair, Alexis Hill, asked that the committee identify goals for the next year.  

Next Steps: 
At the February meeting, staff will provide an orientation on the transportation program including 
TRPA’s role in transportation planning and policy as well TRPA’s coordination role in funding and 
implementation. The committee will review proposed short, medium, and long-term priorities the 
committee could potentially focus on to advance transportation priorities. The committee will also  
review future programs and plans that will be requiring committee feedback and support.  

Contact Information: 
For questions regarding this agenda item, please contact Nick Haven, MPO Director, at (775) 589-5256  
or nhaven@trpa.gov, and Michelle Glickert, Transportation Planning Program Manager, at (775) 589- 
5204 or mglickert@trpa.gov.  
To submit a written public comment, email publiccomment@trpa.gov with the appropriate agenda item 
in the subject line. Written comments received by 4 p.m. the day before a scheduled public meeting will 
be distributed and posted to the TRPA website before the meeting begins. TRPA does not guarantee 
written comments received after 4 p.m. the day before a meeting will be distributed and posted in time 
for the meeting. 

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM NO. 6273


	Agenda
	Operations & Governance Committee Minutes
	Legal Committee Minutes
	Transportation Committee Minutes
	Consent Calendar Item No. 1 & Operations & Governance Committee Item No. 3 January Financials
	Attachment A January Financial Statements
	Consent Calendar Item No. 2 & Operations & Governance Committee Item No. 4 Watercraft Inspection Fee Schedule
	Attachment A Resolution
	Exhibit 1 to Attachment A Fee Schedule
	Consent Calendar Item No. 3 & Transportation Committee Item No. 4 Vision Zero Strategy
	Attachment A Resolution
	Exhibit 1 to Attachment A 2024 Vision Zero Strategy
	Consent Calendar Item No. 4 Notice of Preparation - Boatworks Redevelopment Project
	TMPO Consent Calendar Item No. 1 & Transportation Committee Item No. 5 2023 FTIP Amendment 7
	Attachment A Resolution
	Exhibit 1 to Attachment A Federal Improvement Program Amendment No. 7
	Agenda Item No. VII.A Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan Amendments
	Attachment A Placer County Adopting Ordinance
	Attachment B Placer County Staff Report
	Attachment C TRPA Ordinance
	Exhibit A to Attachment C Proposed Policy Amendment Language
	Exhibit B to Attachment C Proposed Implementing Regulation Amendment Language
	Attachment D Findings
	Attachment E Initial Environmental Checklist
	Attachment F Conformity Checklist
	Attachment H Table of Amendments
	Attachment K Tahoe Basin Area Plan Implementation Report
	Attachment M Response to Comments
	Agenda Item No. VIII.A.1 Annual Report
	Attachment A 2023 Annual Report
	Transportation Committee Agenda Item No. 6 Transportation Committee Strategy Session



